YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

Special Meeting
AGENDA

June 30, 2022 - 9:00 a.m.

COMMISSIONERS
OLIN WOODS, CHAIR (PUBLIC MEMBER)
NORMA ALCALA, VICE CHAIR (CITY MEMBER)
WADE COWAN (CITY MEMBER)
GARY SANDY (COUNTY MEMBER)
DON SAYLOR (COUNTY MEMBER)

ALTERNATE COMMISSIONERS
ANGEL BARAJAS (COUNTY MEMBER)
RICHARD DELIBERTY (PUBLIC MEMBER)
GLORA PARTIDA (CITY MEMBER)

CHRISTINE CRAWFORD ERIC MAY
EXECUTIVE OFFICER COMMISSION COUNSEL

NOTE: Effective June 30, 2022, all meetings of the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo)
will be held in person in the Board of Supervisors chambers, located at 625 Court Street, Room 206,
Woodland. While the Board chambers is open for public attendance, you are strongly encouraged to
observe and listen to the meeting via ZOOM. Instructions for participating in the meeting by providing
comments and testimony through ZOOM are set forth in the "Public Participation Instructions" on the
final page of this agenda.

If you attend the Commission meeting in person, please maintain appropriate social distancing to the
extent feasible (i.e., maintain a six-foot distance between yourself and other individuals). Face
coverings are encouraged but not required for attendees.

NOTICE:
This agenda has been posted at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting in a location freely accessible
to members of the public, in accordance with the Brown Act and the Cortese Knox Hertzberg Act. The public
may subscribe to receive emailed agendas, notices and other updates by contacting staff at

lafco@yolocounty.org.

All persons are invited to testify and submit written comments to the Commission. If you challenge a LAFCo
action in court, you may be limited to issues raised at the public hearing or submitted as written comments
prior to the close of the public hearing. If you wish to submit written material at the hearing, please supply 8
copies.

FPPC - Notice to All Parties and Participants in LAFCo Proceedings

All parties and participants on a matter to be heard by the Commission that have made campaign
contributions totaling $250 or more to any Commissioner in the past 12 months must disclose this fact, either
orally or in writing, for the official record as required by Government Code Section 84308.

Contributions and expenditures for political purposes related to any proposal or proceedings before LAFCo are
subject to the reporting requirements of the Political Reform Act and the regulations of the Fair Political
Practices Commission, and must be disclosed to the Commission prior to the hearing on the matter.

PLEASE NOTE - The numerical order of items on this agenda is for convenience of reference. ltems may be
taken out of order upon request of the Chair or Commission members.


mailto:lafco@yolocounty.org

1. Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll Call

3. Public Comment: This is an opportunity for members of the public to address the Commission
on subjects relating to LAFCo purview but not relative to items on this Agenda. The
Commission reserves the right to impose a reasonable time limit on any topic or on any
individual speaker.

4. Gloria Partida, Davis (Alternate City Member)

5. Renew authorization for remote (teleconference/videoconference) meetings pursuant to
Assembly Bill 361 on the basis that (a) the COVID-19 pandemic state of emergency is ongoing,
and (b) meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees

6. Approve the LAFCo Meeting Minutes of May 26, 2022

7. Consider approval of Resolution 2022-07 adopting the Municipal Service Review (MSR) for
the Fire Protection Agencies and approving a Sphere of Influence (SOI) Update for County
Service Area (CSA) 9, East Davis Fire Protection District (FPD), and Springlake FPD (LAFCo
No. 21-05)

8. A report by the Executive Officer on recent events relevant to the Commission and an update
of staff activity for the month. The Commission or any individual Commissioner may request
that action be taken on any item listed.

a. 06.30.2022 Long Range Planning Calendar
b. EO Activity Report - May 23 through June 24, 2022
c. CALAFCO Board (County Member) Nominations

d. CALAFCO Legislative Report

9. Action items and reports from members of the Commission, including announcements,
questions to be referred to staff, future agenda items, and reports on meetings and information
which would be of interest to the Commission or the public.

10. Adjourn to the next Regular LAFCo Meeting
| declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing agenda was posted by 5:00 p.m. on Friday, June

2



24,2022, at the following places:

e On the bulletin board outside the east entrance of the Erwin W. Meier County Administration
Building, 625 Court Street, Woodland, CA; and,

e On the bulletin board outside the Board of Supervisors Chambers, 625 Court Street, Room 206,
Woodland, CA: and,

e On the LAFCo website at: www.yololafco.org.

ATTEST:

Terri Tuck, Clerk
Yolo LAFCo

NOTICE
If requested, this agenda can be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a
disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and the Federal
Rules and Regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Persons seeking an alternative format
should contact the Commission Clerk for further information. In addition, a person with a disability who
requires a modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to participate
in a public meeting should contact the Commission Clerk as soon as possible and at least 24 hours
prior to the meeting. The Commission Clerk may be reached at (530) 666-8048 or at the following
address: Yolo LAFCo, 625 Court Street, Suite 107, Woodland, CA 95695

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION INSTRUCTIONS:
Effective June 30, 2022, all meetings of the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) will
be held in person in the Board of Supervisors chambers, located at 625 Court Street, Woodland,
Room 206. If you choose not to attend the Commission meeting in person but desire to follow the
meeting remotely, make a general public comment, or comment on a specific item on the agenda,
you may do so by:

1. Joining through ZOOM on your computer at https://yolocounty.zoom.us/j/86074085899, Webinar
ID: 860 7408 5899, or participate by phone by calling 1-408-638-0968, Webinar ID: 860 7408
5899. Please note there is no participant code, you will just hit # again after the recording
prompts you.

2. If you are joining the meeting via ZOOM and wish to make a comment on an item, press the
"raise a hand" button. If you are joining the meeting by phone, press *9 to indicate a desire to
make a comment. The moderator will call you by name or phone number when it is your turn to
comment. Press *6 to unmute. The Commission reserves the right to impose a reasonable limit
on time afforded to any topic or to any individual speaker.

3. If you wish to submit a written comment on a specific agenda item or on an item not on the
agenda, please email the Commission Clerk at lafco@yolocounty.org or send to 625 Court
Street, Suite 107, Woodland, CA 95695. Please include meeting date and item number. Please
submit your comment by 3:00pm the day prior to the meeting, if possible, to provide the
Commission a reasonable opportunity to review your comment in advance of the meeting. All
written comments are distributed to the Commission, filed into the record, but will not be read
aloud.


http://www.yololafco.org
https://yolocounty.zoom.us/j/86074085899
mailto:lafco@yolocounty.org




AGENCY

b Y‘O LD
omuon LAFCO .,
AFCO ¢ o«

Consent 5.
LAFCO
Meeting Date:06/30/2022

Information
SUBJECT
Renew authorization for remote (teleconference/videoconference) meetings pursuant to Assembly Bill
361 on the basis that (a) the COVID-19 pandemic state of emergency is ongoing, and (b) meeting in
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees

RECOMMENDED ACTION

Renew authorization for remote (teleconference/videoconference) meetings pursuant to Assembly Bill
361 on the basis that (a) the COVID-19 pandemic state of emergency is ongoing, and (b) meeting in
person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

FISCAL IMPACT
None.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION

Through March 2022, the Commission relied on social distancing recommendations of the County
Health Officer in adopting AB 361 findings. Currently, Dr. Sisson is strongly recommending indoor
masking but is no longer recommending social distancing, and the Commission must therefore
consider the "imminent risks" finding to continue meeting remotely. The recommended action is
required by Assembly Bill 361 to continue meeting remotely during a declared state of emergency. The
Commission has been meeting remotely pursuant to AB 361 since October 28, 2021. LAFCo will return
to meeting in-person on June 30, 2022 with various measures to minimize in-person attendance by
staff and provide options for continued public participation via ZOOM. Renewing the AB 361 findings is
nonetheless appropriate and, if adopted, the findings will allow the Commission to continue to
participate remotely if needed or desired.

AB 361 amended the Brown Act to add simplified procedures that make it easier to hold remote
meetings during a state of emergency proclaimed by the Governor (a local emergency is insufficient).
See Gov. Code § 54953(e). To meet remotely during a proclaimed emergency, the legislative body
must find either of the following circumstances is present: (a) state or local officials continue to impose
or recommend measures to promote social distancing; or (b) as a result of the declared emergency,
the legislative body finds by majority vote that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the
health or safety of attendees.

Continuing to authorize remote meetings pursuant to AB 361 does not require the Commission to meet
remotely, it merely allows one or more Commissioners to do so. Staff hopes most or all Commissioners
and staff will attend meetings in-person, and members of the public may choose to participate remotely
for the sake of convenience. County staff has taken reasonable precautions in the Board Chambers
such as adding HEPA air filtration to ensure filtration of air to remove viral particles, and staff believe
that the minimal attendance of members of the public for LAFCo meetings will ensure that attendees
can remain six feet apart to reduce the possibility of infection with the virus that cause COVID-19.

Attachments
No file(s) attached.

Form Review



Inbox Reviewed By Date
Christine Crawford Christine Crawford 06/22/2022 11:28 AM

Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 06/10/2022 09:53 AM
Final Approval Date: 06/22/2022



e YoLo

AGENCY

FORMATION L AFC
COMMISSION D M

Consent 6.

LAFCO
Meeting Date:06/30/2022

Information
SUBJECT
Approve the LAFCo Meeting Minutes of May 26, 2022

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the LAFCo Meeting Minutes of May 26, 2022.

Attachments
ATT-LAFCo Minutes 05.26.22

Form Review
Form Started By: Terri Tuck Started On: 06/10/2022 12:18 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/10/2022






DRAFT ltem 6

YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION

MEETING MINUTES
May 26, 2022

The Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission met on the 26" day of May 2022, at 9:00 a.m. via
teleconference. Voting members present were Chair and Public Member Olin Woods, County
Members Don Saylor and Alternate (A) Angel Barajas, and City Members Norma Alcala and
Wade Cowan. Voting members absent were Gary Sandy. Others present were Executive Officer
Christine Crawford, Clerk Terri Tuck, and Counsel Eric May.

CALL TO ORDER

Chair Woods called the Meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.
Item Ne 1 Pledge
Angel Barajas led the Pledge of Allegiance.
Item Ne 2 Roll Call
PRESENT: Alcala, Barajas (A), Cowan, Saylor, Woods ABSENT: Sandy

Item Ne 3 Public Comments

None.

Item Ne 4 Oath of Office

City Member Wade Cowan was sworn in prior to the meeting. Alternate City Member
Gloria Partida has not been sworn in.

CONSENT

Item Ne 5 Renew authorization for remote (teleconference/videoconference) meetings
by finding, pursuant to Assembly Bill 361, that (a) the COVID-19 pandemic
state of emergency is ongoing, and (b) meeting in person would present
imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees

Item Ne 6 Approve the LAFCo Meeting Minutes of April 28, 2022

Item Ne 7 Correspondence

Minute Order 2022-16: The recommended actions were approved.

MOTION: Alcala SECOND: Barajas (A)
AYES: Alcala, Barajas (A), Cowan, Saylor, Woods
NOES: None



Yolo LAFCo Meeting Minutes May 26, 2022

Public Hearing

Item Ne 8 Consider approving Resolution 2022-03 adopting findings as a responsible
agency for the subsequent environmental Impact report addendum and
statement of overriding considerations pursuant to CEQA (California
Environmental Quality Act) Guidelines Section 15096 and
adopting Resolution 2022-04 to amend the City of Davis Sphere of Influence
(SOl for the Davis Innovation and Sustainability Campus (DiSC 2022) Project
(LAFCo No. 22-02)

After an overview report by staff, the Chair opened the Public Hearing. Speakers included
Dan Ramos, the applicant; Matt Keasling, attorney for the project; Sherri Metzker City of
Davis Principal Planner; and Dan Carson, Davis City Council. The Public Hearing was
closed.

Minute Order 2022-17: The recommended action was approved, adopting Resolution
2022-03 which adopts findings as a responsible agency for the subsequent environmental
impact report addendum and statement of overriding considerations pursuant to CEQA,
and adopting Resolution 2022-04 amending the City of Davis SOI for the DiSC Project.

MOTION: Saylor SECOND: Alcala
AYES: Alcala, Barajas (A), Cowan, Saylor, Woods
NOES: None

Item Ne 9 Consider adoption of the final LAFCo Budget for Fiscal Year 2022/23

After an overview report by staff, the Chair opened the Public Hearing. There were no
comments, and the Public Hearing was closed.

Minute Order 2022-18: The recommended action was approved, adopting the Final
LAFCo Budget for Fiscal Year 2022/23 including $522,756 of total finance sources
($454,356 in revenue and $68,400 as use of fund balance) and $522,756 of total finance
uses ($517,756 appropriated and $5,000 for reserves), as shown in Attachment A to the
staff report.

MOTION: Saylor SECOND: Cowan
AYES: Alcala, Barajas (A), Cowan, Saylor, Woods
NOES: None

REGULAR

Item Ne 10 Consider Resolution 2022-05 authorizing the City of Woodland to Provide
Out of Agency Water and Sewer Services to the Yolo Cold Storage Project,
APN 027-270-046 located on the northeast corner of West Street and |-5 off
of County Road 19A (LAFCo No. 22-03)

Minute Order 2022-19: The recommended action was approved, adopting Resolution
2022-05 authorizing the City of Woodland to provide out of agency water and sewer
services to the Yolo Cold Storage Facility Project (APN 027-270-046).

MOTION: Barajas (A) SECOND: Saylor

10



Yolo LAFCo Meeting Minutes May 26, 2022

AYES: Alcala, Barajas (A), Cowan, Saylor, Woods
NOES: None

Item Ne 11 Executive Officer’s Report

The Commission was given written reports of the Executive Officer’s activities for the
period of April 25 through March 20, 2022, and was verbally updated on recent events
relevant to the Commission, including the Long Range Planning Calendar.

Staff commented that Tom Stallard expressed his appreciation for being on the
Commission and his thanks for the resolution.

Staff noted on the Long Range Planning Calendar the regular meeting date of June
twenty-third was changed to June thirtieth.

Staff stated that she had received a copy of a signed joint operations agreement (JOA)
from the Dunnigan, Knights Landing, Yolo, and Zamora Fire Protection Districts.

Staff remarked that at Tuesday’s Board of Supervisors meeting CAO staff gave a status
update on the Yolo County Fire Protection Districts Long Term Sustainability Effort, a
parallel process to LAFCos MSR.

After polling the Commission, it was agreed to return to in-person meetings, specifically,
hybrid meetings, a combination of in-person and teleconferencing, starting with the June
meeting. Staff is also working on a contract for videographer services with the same
videographer the Board of Supervisors uses.

Item Ne 12 Commissioner Reports

There were no reports.

Item N2 13 Adjournment

Minute Order 2022-20: By order of the Chair, the meeting was adjourned at 9:48 a.m.

Olin Woods, Chair
Local Agency Formation Commission
ATTEST: County of Yolo, State of California

Terri Tuck
Clerk to the Commission

11



12



e Yo Lo

AGENCY

FORMATION L AFO
COMMISSION D M

Public Hearings 7.
LAFCO
Meeting Date:06/30/2022

Information
SUBJECT
Consider approval of Resolution 2022-07 adopting the Municipal Service Review (MSR) for the Fire
Protection Agencies and approving a Sphere of Influence (SOI) Update for County Service Area (CSA)
9, East Davis Fire Protection District (FPD), and Springlake FPD (LAFCo No. 21-05)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

1. Open the Public Hearing to receive staff presentation and public comment on the Fire Protection
Agencies MSR/SOI Update.

2. Close the Public Hearing.

3. Consider the information presented in the staff report and during the Public Hearing. Discuss and
direct staff to make any necessary changes.

4. Approve Resolution 2022-07, adopting the MSR for the Fire Protection Agencies and approving
the SOI Update for CSA 9, East Davis FPD, and Springlake FPD.

FISCAL IMPACT
No fiscal impact. The LAFCo budget included staff costs and GIS work to complete the MSR in-house.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (CKH Act) is LAFCo's
governing law and outlines the requirements for preparing periodic Municipal Service Reviews (MSRSs)
and Sphere of Influence (SOI) updates. MSRs and SOls are tools created to empower LAFCo to
satisfy its legislative charge of "discouraging urban sprawl, preserving open space and prime
agricultural lands, efficiently providing government services, and encouraging the orderly formation and
development of local agencies based upon local conditions and circumstances."

An MSR is conducted prior to, or in conjunction with, the update of an SOIl. LAFCos are required to
review an agency's SOl every five years. An MSR evaluates the structure and operations of agency
services and includes a discussion of the capability and capacity of the agency to ensure the provision
of municipal services to the existing service area and any future growth of the agency's boundaries.
The SOl indicates the probable future physical boundaries and service area of an agency and lays the
groundwork for potential future reorganizations. Yolo LAFCo staff utilizes a checklist format for MSRs
that allows staff to streamline a consistent assessment of each agency's municipal services. Based on
the findings of the MSR checklist, staff can recommend whether a SOl update is warranted.

BACKGROUND
Please see attached staff report. The agenda software cannot integrate the graphics and tables
needed.

Attachments
ATT A-Staff Report for June 30, 2022-Fire Agencies MSR-SOI
ATT B-Resolution 2022-07 Adopting Fire Protection Agencies MSR-SOI
ATT C-Correspondence Received Through June 23, 2022

13



ATT D-Requested Changes and Corrections
ATT E-Fire Protection Agencies Draft MSR-SOI June 15, 2022

Form Review
Inbox

Reviewed By Date
Christine Crawford (Originator) Christine Crawford 06/24/2022 08:25 AM
Form Started By: Christine Crawford Started On: 06/23/2022 02:25 PM
Final Approval Date: 06/24/2022

14



Item 7-ATT A
SUBJECT

Consider approval of Resolution 2022-07 adopting the Municipal Service Review (MSR) for the
Fire Protection Agencies and approving a Sphere of Influence (SOI) Update for County Service
Area (CSA) 9, East Davis Fire Protection District (FPD), and Springlake FPD (LAFCo No. 21-05)

RECOMMENDED ACTION

1. Open the Public Hearing to receive staff presentation and public comment on the Fire
Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Update.

Close the Public Hearing.

Consider the information presented in the staff report and during the Public Hearing. Discuss
and direct staff to make any necessary changes.

4. Approve Resolution 2022-07, adopting the MSR for the Fire Protection Agencies and
approving the SOI Update for CSA 9, East Davis FPD, and Springlake FPD.

FISCAL IMPACT

No fiscal impact. The LAFCo budget included staff costs and GIS work to complete the MSR in-
house.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDED ACTION

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (CKH Act) is
LAFCo’s governing law and outlines the requirements for preparing periodic Municipal Service
Reviews (MSRs) and Sphere of Influence (SOI) updates. MSRs and SOls are tools created to
empower LAFCo to satisfy its legislative charge of “discouraging urban sprawl, preserving open
space and prime agricultural lands, efficiently providing government services, and encouraging
the orderly formation and development of local agencies based upon local conditions and
circumstances.”

An MSR is conducted prior to, or in conjunction with, the update of an SOI. LAFCos are required
to review an agency's SOI every five years. An MSR evaluates the structure and operations of
agency services and includes a discussion of the capability and capacity of the agency to ensure
the provision of municipal services to the existing service area and any future growth of the
agency’s boundaries. The SOl indicates the probable future physical boundaries and service area
of an agency and lays the groundwork for potential future reorganizations. Yolo LAFCo staff
utilizes a checklist format for MSRs that allows staff to streamline a consistent assessment of
each agency’s municipal services. Based on the findings of the MSR checklist, staff can
recommend whether a SOI update is warranted.

BACKGROUND

Statewide Fire Service Issues

Fire agencies in California are faced with considerable challenges, including securing adequate
sustainable revenue, public reluctance to tax themselves to fund services, increased calls for
service, demand on automatic/mutual aid, and loss of community volunteer base. The fire season
has extended into nearly a year-round event. Agencies that have traditionally relied primarily on
volunteers are especially challenged, as many see declines in volunteer ranks and diminished
availability of volunteer firefighters.

Agencies are passing special assessments to support a growing trend of moving to paid staffing,
and they are also increasingly looking at “scaling up” by reorganizing with neighboring agencies
or entering into service contracts with other providers.

15



Local Fire Service Issues

In Yolo County, fire protection and rescue/emergency medical services (EMS) are provided in the
unincorporated areas by 15 FPDs created from 1927 — 1974 and 1 CSA created in 1987 as a
remnant from the City of West Sacramento incorporation. Currently, 11 of the FPDs provide
services directly while the other 4 FPDs and CSA 9 contract with nearby cities for services.

The FPDs countywide (except for No Man’s Land FPD) were originally established to operate with
community-based volunteers. Over the decades, communities have changed affecting FPD
personnel and services. FPD boundaries and governance has evolved over the decades with
changing conditions as listed below.

Year Consolidation/Significant Reorganization

1959 Dissolved Plainfield FPD and annexed into Springlake FPD

1970 Landowner petition to detach 57 acres from Elkhorn FPD and annex to
Knights Landing FPD

1971 River Garden Farms FPD dissolved and annexed to Dunnigan and Knights
Landing FPDs

1979  Clarksburg FPD extended to the Solano County line

1980 East Yolo FPD petition to annex 1,029 acres from Elkhorn FPD

1983  Consolidation of Bryte, Washington, and Westgate FPDs into East Yolo FPD

1987 East Yolo FPD dissolved for the City of West Sacramento incorporation

LAFCo is using the Municipal Service Review process to identify issues, maximize opportunities
to gain efficiencies, and identify more effective service provision models.

For the FPDs that currently provide services themselves, LAFCo staff embarked on this MSR
process with the assumption that level of service would be correlated to how much financial
resources an FPD has, which turned out not necessarily to be the case. Some of the highest
performing FPDs are performing adequately with less money. Instead, at the end of this process,
staff's observation is that it appears FPDs with the strongest sense of community and
volunteerism perform the best in terms of personnel/apparatus responding, and when
volunteerism declines for numerous societal reasons, FPDs need to pay for the personnel
required to provide service (either with full time employees or a “reserve program” comprised of
volunteers that receive a minimal stipend per shift such as $75/day). And then funding to pay for
adequate staff becomes an issue. In terms of long-term financial sustainability, all the FPDs that
provide direct services also struggle to put aside enough funds to pay for station improvements
and apparatus replacement.

As the tables below illustrate, performance is a complicated combination of the FPD’s geography,
concentration of population, the station coverage it can afford, and dispatch volume. Although
some FPDs staffed with volunteers may have high numbers of personnel responding at a lower
cost, response times can be longer.

16



FY 20/21 Rescue/EMS Incident Response (300 Series)

%
Total No. Awvg. No. Avg. No. Total Total Enroutes Enroutes
of of of Response Core Total Station Dispatch Total Inside Outside Missed Missed
FPD Incidents Personnel Apparatus Time Avg. Revenue Revenue Est.Pop. Coverage Numbers Jurisdiction Jurisdiction Inside FPD Inside FPD
Clarksburg 96 5.82 2.59 8.86 $178969 S 185488 1,260 On Call 268 250 18
Yolo 120 4.40 1.65 7.43 $192,180 S 273,598 970 Part Time 458 278 180
Capay Valley 48 3.92 2.23 12.08 5214901 §$ 345,054 1,130 On Call 154 149 45 1 0.7%
Zamora 55 3.82 1.05 11.64 $157,907 S 163,500 335 On Call 152 110 42 2 1.8%
Willow Oak 155 3.29 1.67 6.61 $453,387 S 750,321 2,502 Full Time 24/7 554 382 172
West Plainfield 67 3.10 2.07 6.70 $370,093 S 436438 752 Full Time 24/7 233 180 53
Knights Landing 48 3.10 2.25 8.33 $119981 5 144,191 1,058 On Call 325 167 158 5 3.0%
Madison 103 2.91 1.73 7.98 $254,074 S 325,805 962 Part Time 321 175 146
Dunnigan 267 2.50 1.29 8.03 $209,196 S 560,178 1,110 Full Time 24/7 551 498 53 2 0.4%
Esparto 317 2.37 1.68 5.52 $298,188 S 378394 3,122 Part Time 589 469 120 1 0.2%
Elkhorn 55 1.16 1.15 18.36 $111,853 $ 112436 128 On Call 168 150 18 10 6.7%
Highlighted FPDs are not meeting min of 3 personnel
FY 20/21 Fire Incident Response (100 Series)
%
Total No. ' Avg. No. Avg. No. Total Total Enroutes Enroutes
of of of Response Core Total Station Dispatch Total Inside Outside Missed Missed
FPD Incidents Personnel Apparatus Time Avg. Revenue Revenue Est.Pop. Coverage Numbers Jurisdiction Jurisdiction Inside FPD Inside FPD
Capay Valley 16 7.31 3.56 13.86 $214,901 $ 345,054 1,130 On Call 194 149 45 1 0.7%
Clarksburg 31 6.52 3.26 11.98 $178,969 $ 185,488 1,260 On Call 268 250 18
West Plainfield 20 4.50 3.30 7.86 $370,093 $ 436,438 752 Full Time 24/7 233 180 53
Zamora 11 4.45 1.55 11.02 $157,907 $ 163,500 335 On Call 152 110 42 2 1.8%
Yolo 25 4.08 1.60 9.39 $192,180 $ 273,598 970  Part Time 458 278 180
Esparto 30 4.07 2.23 10.24 $298,188 $ 378,394 3,122 Part Time 589 469 120 1 0.2%
Madison 29 3.97 2.31 10.59 $254,074 $ 325,805 962  Part Time 321 175 146
Willow Oak 34 3.76 2.12 7.21 $453,387 $ 750,321 2,502 Full Time 24/7 554 382 172
Knights Landing 22 3.05 2.50 9.22 $119,981 $ 144,191 1,058 On Call 325 167 158 5 3.0%
Dunnigan 100 2.61 1.49 9.24 $209,196 $ 560,178 1,110 Full Time 24/7 551 498 53 2 0.4%
Elkhorn 8 1.50 1.50 16.06 $111,853 $ 112,436 128 On Call 168 150 18 10 6.7%

Highlighted FPDs are not meeting min of 4 personnel

Governance and Shared Services Recommendations

At the March 31, 2022 LAFCo meeting, an MSR governance and shared services recommended
strategy were previewed with commissioners and the public. The strategy organizes the FPDs
into Areas 1 through 5 as shown in the map below.

17



Fire Service Areas 1-5

Ke
Hawell Berryessa

Mountain

ge

Napa

[128]

Fire Service Areas 1-5 [Note: Does not include Davis dispatch data]

©) Fire Station Areas 4 N
. Sparse Calls i 5
Dense Calls 2 I
L] Existing Fire Protection Districts 3
0 4 8 16 Miles
L 1 1 1 | 1 1 1 | i
Sonoma W

Scaling Up FPDs that Provide Direct Services

Dixon

3]

]

-American- -

Basin

Rio Lin

OSaaamento

The MSR recommends the FPDs that provide direct services band together through Joint
Operation Agreements (JOAS) as a “functional consolidation”. This means, for operational and
practical purposes, the FPDs are working together as one cohesive unit for greater efficiency and
resiliency, but via agreement rather than a legal consolidation. Regional groups for JOAs are
recommended as follows:

e Area 1: Capay Valley, Esparto, and Madison FPDs. Capay Valley and Esparto FPDs
entered into a JOA in August 2021 which became a model for this MSR. Madison FPD is
looking to join this JOA but hasn’t signed on yet. Madison FPD has requested changes

not supported by the JOA members.

e Area 2: Dunnigan, Knights Landing, Yolo, and Zamora FPDs. These 4 FPDs signed a JOA

in May 2022.

e Area 3: West Plainfield and Willow Oak FPDs signed a JOA earlier this month in June

2022.

18



All of these FPDs should be acknowledged for working to implement LAFCo’s recommendations
so quickly (even before they are adopted). To ensure continued implementation of these JOASs,
each of these FPDs have a recommendation that states:

“...FPDs should provide for a coordinated and more uniform level of service and operation
through either: (1) a Joint Operation Agreement (JOA); or (2) agency merger/consolidation.
The goal for coordinated/joint operations in each Area is to achieve a similar service standard,
efficient use of resources, consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved
coordination during incident response. If any of these agencies enter into a JOA and fail
to make reasonable efforts in good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo
reorganization to combine FPDs should be initiated if its determined consolidation
would promote better service to the public and be a more efficient and effective
utilization of resources.”

This is an admittedly heavy-handed recommendation to ensure the FPDs join their respective
JOA in good faith and continue to promote its goals ongoing or face potential LAFCo
consolidation. LAFCo staff have heard concern that some FPDs may join a JOA only to comply
with LAFCo recommendations but not have the intention to implement it fully. Staff has not seen
that so far, but the additional language would cover this issue should things change.

Area 5 includes the Clarksburg FPD, and it doesn’t make sense for it to be part of a JOA due to
its geographic isolation. However, the District has consistently indicated it would like to participate
in any shared efficiencies it can, such as pooled purchasing.

Elkhorn FPD is unable to provide adequate services and has redundant services provided by the
cities of West Sacramento and Woodland via a 2015 auto aid agreement. Therefore, it is
recommended Elkhorn FPD be dissolved and divided between the districts contracting with the
two cities (Springlake FPD and CSA 9) and is, therefore, included in Area 4 below accordingly.

Absorbing Elkhorn FPD and Reorganizing FPDs and CSA 9 that Provide Services via City
Contract

Assuming Elkhorn FPD cedes its services, there would be 6 districts served by 4 cities: CSA 9,
East Davis FPD, Elkhorn FPD, No Man’s Land FPD, Springlake FPD, and Winters FPD. At the
March 31, 2022 LAFCo meeting, two different reorganization options were considered: (1) one
FPD with four service zones for each city service area; or (2) four separate districts, one for each
city service area. LAFCo directed staff to move forward with one separate district for each city
service area, and therefore, recommendations and SOI Updates are included in each agency’s
study accordingly.

The map below illustrates the reorganization to implement this direction that would reorganize five
districts into three districts that would align with each city’s existing service area. The Winters
FPD boundaries already align to the City of Winters service territory, so no change is needed.
The SOl Updates for CSA 9, East Davis FPD, and Springlake FPD are included in each individual
report and are illustrated below to show how they work together.

It is important to highlight that the districts that do not perform their own services are funding and
contracting mechanisms for the Yolo County Board of Supervisors to provide these critical
services to unincorporated residents, and fire commissioners serve at the pleasure of the Board
of Supervisors to assist the County in this important work. It's also worth emphasizing that
reorganization would not change any existing service contracts or Proposition 218
assessments. Existing contracts and assessments would be administered by the successor
agency as applicable.

19



The MSR also recommends Yolo County streamline its contract FPDs to operate as pass-through

agencies as much as possible. It should also seek to make the FPD-city contracts more consistent

as the current terms for each are quite disparate.

Area 4 SOl Updates and Recommended Reorganization

apa @
o Capay : Zamora Fire
2 Hills B z
= 2 Protection
CapayValley >
i Fire Pro&ection =
District 0 8 Hungry
10 Hollow
Esparto Fire
Protectio?s it
[ District™
Valley
3049 ft
Madison Fire
Protection

District

Willow Oak Fire
Protection
District

Sl

2

Yolo Fire B
Protection 8
District =

YO =

Lake
‘rryessa

Q) County Rovd 95

Winters Fire
Protection
District

West Plainfield
Fire Protection
District

A
5

inish Flat )
Lake Berryep
Wildiife Ary
=
.g L' Tremomnt Rd
- b
P [
é (/ 3
™ 4 g
, English Allendale Dixon  F
' Hills
s =
NG
Existing FPD Boundaries and Proposed SOI N
Davis Service Zone ©  Fire Station f
I West Sacramento Service Zone 7./, Sphere of Influence
I Woodland Service Zone [ Existing Fire Protection Districts |
0 5 10 20 Miles S
L 1 1 1 | 1 1 1 |

Individual District Observations

South Fork Putah

Py Sagy ng

East Davis Fire
Protection

Basin

P DU Jamogd

Riego Rd

W Elverta Rd

Del ' Paso Rd

g
G

jefferson B

Protection
District

Clarksburg Fire

£
&
-3

———Amerjcan— "~~~

W Elkhgrm Bivd

Freepory Blvy

Detailed review, determinations, and recommendations for each district are included in the MSR.
The recommendations for each district are also consolidated and listed as an attachment to the
resolution (Attachment A). A concise, high-level summary of staff’'s observations and analysis of

each district by Areas 1-5 is provided below.

20



Area 1 FPDs (FY 20/21)

Est. Dispatches Paid Fire Reserves
Reside ntial Total Inside Core Ending Fund Station Personnel  with
FPD Area (ac) Pop. Dispatches Jurisdiction Revenue Balance 150 Coverage (FTE) stipend Volunteers
Capay Valley D 110,345 1,130 194 149 5214,501 51,220,126 8 On Call 1.5 0 17
Esparto D 48,161 3,122 589 469 $298,188 S5 810,273 5/10 Regular Hours 2.5 6 21
Madison | 42,325 962 3zl 175 $254,074 S5 493,678 5/10 Regular Hours 2.0 12 12

Capay Valley and Esparto FPDs entered into a JOA in August 2021 which became a model for
this MSR. Madison FPD is looking to join this JOA but hasn’t signed on yet. Madison FPD has
requested changes not supported by the JOA members and is still being sorted out.

Capay Valley FPD achieves high personnel and apparatus response for its calls with an all-
volunteer staff. Response time could be improved, however. The district has a relatively high fund
balance but significant deferred maintenance on its stations and apparatus that exceed
recommended lifespan. The FPD does not have a Proposition 218 assessment. Its fire
commission and staff are stable and capable in its duties. Many of the recommendations are best
practices reporting and policy related.

Esparto FPD has the 2" highest call volume (FY 20/21 within its jurisdiction) and is experiencing
significant population growth as Esparto is the only unincorporated community that can handle it
with municipal services. Its population is expected to increase 26% with development in the
pipeline but its portion of the property taxes received is low (3.9%) compared to the average of all
the FPDs (6.2%), so property taxes may not be sufficient alone to support the FPD in serving
increased demands. It has some full-time paid staff and will likely need more as population
increases as it is struggling to get sufficient personnel on rescue/EMS calls. It has a Proposition
218 assessment, but it needs to be evaluated to see if it should be increased.

Madison FPD is performing very slightly below recommended personnel numbers on average
(3.97 when the benchmark is 4 for fire calls and 2.91 when 3 is recommended for rescue/EMS
calls) and has improved its response over the last three years. The 2016 MSR recommended
consolidation with Esparto FPD and LAFCo staff agrees the Madison station is not needed for an
adequate response (and 24/7 coverage could be achieved if personnel were used more
efficiently). However, if the FPD joins the JOA as recommended and functionally consolidates,
similar goals could be achieved without legal consolidation.

Area 2 FPDs (FY 20/21)

Est. Dispatches Paid Fire Reserves
Residential Total Inside Core Ending Fund Station Personnel with
FPD Area (ac) Pop. Dispatches Jurisdiction Revenue Balance 1SO Coverage (FTE) stipend Volunteers
Dunnigan D 70,351 1,110 551 498 $ 209,196 $ 514,613 NP Full Time 24/7 0 22 2
Knights Landing D 23,692 1,058 325 167 $ 119,981 $ 381,193 5/5Y On Call 0 0 13
Yolo | 33,584 970 458 278 $ 192,180 $ 241,560 4/4Y Regular Hours 1.0 0 21
Zamora | 33,709 335 152 110 $ 157,907 $ 648,080 8b/10 On Call 0 0 13

The Area 2 FPDs signed a JOA in May 2022. As compared to other areas, Area 2 FPDs have
lower core revenues, only one full-time paid personnel among all four of them, and relatively high
call volume. Both Dunnigan and Knights Landing FPDs have a significant portion of their territory
identified as income disadvantaged.

Dunnigan FPD is having a remarkable turnaround since the March 31, 2022 meeting. It hired an
Acting Chief who is getting on top of issues and working well with other chiefs in the area.
However, there are challenging structural problems that will take years to address. Dunnigan FPD
has the highest call volume of all the FPDs (FY 20/21 inside jurisdiction calls, not including mutual
aid), yet is responding with volunteer staff (stipended in some cases) and has no full-time paid
staff like other FPDs with high call volume. District revenues are relatively low, and it has made

7

21



ends meet in the past by sending resources out of the area for CAL FIRE strike team revenue,
but this funding is not reliable. The District does not have a Proposition 218 assessment and fire
commissioners have expressed concern that an assessment would not pass. A large portion of
the FPD territory is disadvantaged. The District probably needs to hire full time staff, and address
critical station improvements (i.e., well/septic failures, new bay doors, hazardous materials
handling, etc.). The new Chief is mending relationships with the fire commission and other chiefs
in the region and things are moving in a positive direction.

Knights Landing FPD’s core revenue is very low and it has been burdened with a significant
number of mutual aid calls from Robbins FPD in Sutter County. It is doing a remarkable job
responding to calls (meeting guidelines for rescue/EMS calls and 1 personnel short on average
for fire calls) considering how low its revenue is. The FPD likely needs to hire full-time staff and
create a reserve program. It also has needed station improvements, some deferred maintenance,
and apparatus over the recommended lifespan. It has an assessment and the County’s study
underway will evaluate it to see if it can be increased, but Knights Landing is a disadvantaged
community. The FPD fire commission and staff are stable and capable, but volunteer burn out is
a concern.

Yolo FPD exceeds standards for incident response, but its data is incomplete, and the District is
taking steps to resolve its issues with reporting. Its fund balance is relatively low to keep up with
its Capital Asset Replacement Plan and replacing apparatus within recommended lifespan. The
District should consider increasing Yolo FPD’s special assessment to provide funding for staffing
and apparatus/equipment needs. LAFCo acknowledges Yolo FPD for taking a leadership role
with the Area 2 JOA despite its initial hesitation.

Zamora FPD is exceeding performance standards for an adequate personnel/apparatus
response. Its call volume is the lowest of the FPDs countywide that provide direct services. The
District needs to create a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and fund the program, increasing its
special assessment if needed. The current assessment has not increased since 1993. The FPD
also needs to improve its training, testing, and incident reporting, which is anticipated to occur
with MSR recommendations and the structure of the JOA.

Area 3 FPDs (FY 20/21)

Est. Dispatches Paid Fire Reserves
Residential Total Inside Core Ending Fund Station Personnel  with
FPD Area (ac) Pop. Dispatches Jurisdiction Revenue Balance 1SO Coverage (FTE) stipend Volunteers
West Plainfield D 21,221 752 233 180 $370,093 $ 385,631 3/3Y Full Time 24/7 3.75 3 19
Willow Oak D 21,546 2,502 554 382 $453,387 S 865,485 3/3Y  Full Time 24/7 4.0 15 16

These FPDs signed a JOA earlier this month in June 2022. Recommendations for both districts
suggest considering a merger with the Area 1 JOA in the 3 to 5-year timeframe.

West Plainfield FPD provides adequate service and is operating in the black. However, it is
transitioning to 24/7 staffing but doesn’t appear able to afford it as its fund balance is low and
trending in a negative direction. The District does not have an assessment and really needs one.
The District is providing good service performance but needs to focus on long term CIP and
financial planning.

Willow Oak FPD is providing adequate response for rescue/EMS calls but is slightly below
recommended personnel response to fire calls (3.76 average, below the recommended 4
personnel). The FPD has received a significant amount of revenue from CAL FIRE strike teams
which cannot be relied upon as stable revenue. The FPD should review its assessment to see if
it needs to be increased.

22



Area 4 FPDs (FY 20/21)

Est. Dispatches Paid Fire Reserves
Residential Total Inside Core Ending Fund Station Personnel with
FPD Area (ac) Pop. Dispatches Jurisdiction Revenue Balance 1SO Coverage (FTE) stipend Volunteers
East Davis D 29,143 2,075 297 297 S 824,863 $ 1,432,155 NA(City) City Contract NA NA NA
Elkhorn | 30,703 128 168 150 $ 111,853 $ 365,374 NR On Call 0 0 10
No Mans Land D 35,639 82 15 15 S 26,896 S 2,879 NA(City) City Contract NA NA NA
Springlake D 32,545 6,587 240 240 $ 556,024 $ - NA (City) City Contract NA NA NA
Winters D 50,528 1,015 301 301 $ 375,948 $ 500,005 NA(City) CityContract NA NA NA

The priority for Area 4 is to absorb the Elkhorn FPD territory and reorganize the districts to achieve
one district for each city service area. Elkhorn and No Man’s Land FPDs are recommended to be
dissolved and their territory annexed into other districts.

East Davis FPD is financially sound. The MSR recommendations envision the East Davis FPD
as a key partner in addressing the Area 4 regional solution. However, the FPD fire commission
strongly objects to taking in any additional territory also served by the City of Davis. It is anticipated
the Board of Supervisors, as the ultimate governing body of the three districts around Davis, will
weigh the community benefits with the potential burdens to the districts in evaluating the MSR'’s
recommendations as the fire commissioners serve at the pleasure of the Board of Supervisors.
There’s also a difference of opinion regarding the FPD’s sizable fund balance. The fire
commission appears very attached to its fund balance as security in case the City ever closed the
local fire station. However, staff suggests even in the unlikely event the City closed this station
after 56 years of continuous service, the FPD cannot just subsidize the City to keep the station
open or bridge services somehow, and there may be better ways to reduce this risk. The FPD
has repeatedly asked to be left out of this MSR (see correspondence in Attachment B). However
as mentioned earlier, the East Davis FPD is a necessary part of the Area 4 regional solution.

Elkhorn FPD has struggled to provide adequate services for years and the 2016 MSR
recommended it become a contract district, which was not implemented. The FPD currently has
10 volunteers and is working on recruiting more. It does not have a town as a community base
and it estimates the population of the district is 80-90 people. In FY 20/21 it had 55 rescue/EMS
calls and 8 fire calls. The FPD acknowledges it is unable to respond to accidents on I-5 safely,
also struggles with calls on Old River Road, and is willing to cede these services. Most of these
accidents are not FPD residents and are being generated by increased traffic through the District.
The FPD would prefer to detach I-5 and Old River Road calls and let the cities of West
Sacramento and Woodland handle them, but wants to maintain the FPD for its fire calls and not
dissolve. However, staff recommends this is not an efficient use of resources to maintain an FPD
for only 8 fire calls per year and the FPD has not responded with sufficient personnel/apparatus
in a timely manner. Therefore, staff recommends this is not a viable long-term solution and
Elkhorn FPD should, unfortunately, be dissolved. The FPD has done what it can, but the number
and difficulty of the calls has increased over the years and it’s time for agency services to evolve
accordingly.

No Man’s Land FPD is operating at a slight deficit, mostly because the City of Davis staff have
not been billing tax exempt parcels for its assessment for years, which was discovered through
this MSR process. The reason No Man’s Land FPD was originally formed in 1974 was because
at the time, the City of Davis was unwilling to provide services and instead were provided by the
City of Dixon. But services changed to the City of Davis after a trial period in 1997, so the reason
for a separate FPD no longer exists. Therefore, LAFCo recommends the No Man’s Land FPD be
dissolved and annexed into East Davis FPD commensurate with the goal of one district for each
city service area.

23



Springlake FPD is also a key district in addressing the Elkhorn FPD issues and is willing to annex
a majority portion of this territory. Its existing territory is currently served by three different
providers: the cities of Davis and Woodland, and UC Davis. And its territory is also dispatched by
two agencies: The City of Davis and YECA. Therefore, a boundary cleanup to align with existing
services would be beneficial. LAFCo staff recommends its FPD-city contract as a model because
it is very streamlined as a pass-through district, meaning revenue collected is simply passed
through to the cities and UC Davis for services. The County’s Proposition 218 study will evaluate
whether assessments are sufficient and consider increasing them if needed. The MSR’s
recommended reorganization would streamline Springlake FPD and create more accountability
to consolidate all the territory served by the City of Woodland under one FPD and detach the
portion served by the City of Davis and UC Davis.

Winters FPD contracts with the City of Winters for services and FPD boundaries are already
aligned with the City service area, so no boundary changes are needed. The City of Winters
reports struggling with sufficient staffing and the FPD should support an assessment to fund
needed services as it does not have one. The MSR recommends the contract and the relationship
between the FPD and City be more streamlined as a pass through of funding as possible
(considering CALPERS pension obligations). The current contract is overly complicated and very
labor intensive to create unique data to implement the funding formula. It does have good
provisions, however, for providing a station and apparatus in the unlikely event services were ever
terminated that may be a model for other FPD-city contracts.

CSA 9 is a pass-through district created as a remnant of the City of West Sacramento
incorporation. The MSR recommends CSA 9 annex the portion of the Elkhorn FPD served by the
City of West Sacramento in the 2015 auto-aid agreement. The District would serve as the financial
mechanism for the City of West Sacramento to provide services.

Area 5 FPD (FY 20/21)

Est. Dispatches Paid Fire Reserves
Residential ~ Total Inside Core Ending Fund Station Personnel  with
FPD Area (ac) Pop. Dispatches Jurisdiction Revenue Balance 1SO Coverage (FTE) stipend Volunteers
Clarksburg I 34,665 1,260 268 250 $178,969 $ 853,612 5/8 On Call 0 0 20

Clarksburg FPD also achieves high personnel and apparatus response for its calls with an all-
volunteer staff. The District has recently invested in station improvements. The FPD’s primary
issue is being able to fund replacement apparatus within recommended service life. Its
Proposition 218 assessment has not been updated since 1993.

AGENCY/PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

While conducting this MSR, the LAFCo Executive Officer met with either representatives of, or
the entire, FPD board of directors/fire commissions 30 or more times. A notice of availability of
the Draft MSR/SOI and public hearing was published in the Davis Enterprise and Woodland
Democrat 21 days in advance.

Each district was provided an opportunity to review and comment on the administrative draft
report before it was made public. When the June 15, 2022 Public Review Draft MSR/SOI was
posted online two weeks before the hearing, staff asked the FPDs to double check the apparatus
lists and other changes since the administrative draft.

Feedback has generally been that MSR recommendations are reasonable for the most part, or
staff has heard nothing. There’s been some frustration expressed about late changes to how
response times were measured, which is due to LAFCo staff misunderstanding. The change is
intended to establish a recommended guideline in the absence of one (but difficult at best for the

10

24



more rural districts to achieve). In the end, response times are provided in the MSR as information
only.

Overall, few changes have been requested to the MSR/SOI since the June 15, 2022 Public
Review Draft, so changes are shown as one slip sheet for a clarification to the Knights Landing
FPD agency overview under Attachment C. This attachment also includes responses to many
changes requested by the East Davis FPD on its administrative draft that were not included with
a detailed explanation. Edits to the MSR/SOI have been formatted in added text and deleted-text
so it is clear what has changed as compared to the Public Review Draft. Any changes will be
incorporated into the final adopted MSR/SOI.

Staff would like to acknowledge the dedication of the Yolo County Firefighters Association (YCFA)
MSR Subcommittee for its invaluable technical expertise throughout this MSR and process. The
individuals who volunteered are listed and acknowledged in the MSR. Staff has heard some FPD
criticism that the MSR Subcommittee didn’t communicate back to the YCFA adequately regarding
updates, standards and guidelines decided upon. However, the Subcommittee volunteered
considerable time and felt empowered by YCFA to make these decisions on behalf of the chiefs
group. No MSR process can be expected to be perfectly smooth and the standards and guidelines
didn’t change the outcome of the MSR to a significant degree. For the next MSR cycle, LAFCo
and YCFA should make sure expectations are better clarified.

FPD Objections
There are objections from two FPDs as already discussed:

e The Elkhorn FPD is opposed to the recommendation that it be dissolved; and
e The East Davis FPD is opposed to the recommendation it annex additional territory also
served by the City of Davis.

Correspondence Received

1. Bill Weisgerber, Chair, East Davis FPD dated June 8, 2022 expressing strong concerns
about the MSR recommendations and asking LAFCo not to approve them “as these
extreme measures are potentially detrimental or even harmful to the residents” of the East
Davis FPD.

2. Tom Stallard, Councilmember, City of Woodland dated June 23, 2022 expressing the need
to resolve the Elkhorn FPD situation and strongly recommending LAFCo adopt all MSR
recommendations.

Any additional correspondence received after this report will be provided to the Commission in a
supplemental packet.

CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT (CEQA)

The proposed Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update is exempt from the
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15061(b)(3) and Section 15320
of the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3 (State CEQA Guidelines).
CEQA requires analysis of agency approvals of discretionary “projects.” A “project,” under CEQA,
is defined as “the whole of an action, which has a potential for resulting in either a direct physical
change in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical change in the
environment.” Section 15061 (b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines describes the General Rule that
CEQA only applies to projects which “have the potential for causing a significant effect on the
environment; where it can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in
guestion may have a significant effect on the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA.”
Section 15320 is a Categorical Exemption for reorganization of local governmental agencies that
do not change the geographical area in which previously existing powers are exercised.

11

25



Approval of the Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update, and the district
reorganization that might follow, do not approve any development project. No physical
construction or activity is contemplated as a result of this action. The Sphere of Influence Update
does not change the geographical area in which fire protection services are exercised. The
project, therefore, will not have the potential to result in individual or cumulative significant effects
on the environment. Furthermore, no special circumstances exist that would create a reasonable
possibility that approving the Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update would
have a significant effect on the environment. Therefore, the project is exempt from CEQA and no
further environmental review is necessary.

12

26



Item 7-ATT B

YOLO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION
Resolution Ne 2022-07

Adopting the Municipal Service Review (MSR) for the Fire Protection Agencies and the
Sphere of Influence Update for County Service Area 9, East Davis Fire Protection District,
and Springlake Fire Protection District
(LAFCo No. 21-05)

WHEREAS, the Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 governs
the organization and reorganization of cities and special districts by local agency formation
commissions established in each county, as defined and specified in Government Code Sections
56000 et seq. (unless otherwise indicated all statutory references are to the Government Code);
and,

WHEREAS, Section 56425 et seq. provides that the local agency formation commission in each
county shall develop and determine the sphere of influence of each local governmental agency
within the county, and enact policies designed to promote the logical and orderly development of
areas within the spheres of influence, as more fully specified in Sections 56425 et seq.; and,

WHEREAS, Section 56430 requires that local agency formation commissions conduct a
municipal service review prior to, or in conjunction with, consideration of actions to establish or
update a sphere of influence in accordance with Sections 56076 and 56425; and,

WHEREAS, beginning in 2021, the Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCo) has been
conducting a review of the municipal services and Spheres of Influences for the Fire Protection
Agencies comprised of County Service Area (CSA) 9 and 15 Fire Protection Districts (FPDs); and,

WHEREAS, the Yolo County Firefighters Association appointed a subcommittee of FPD chiefs to
work with LAFCo on gathering information, establishing performance criteria, and conducting its
Municipal Service Review; and

WHEREAS, at the December 9, 2021 LAFCo meeting, LAFCo reviewed information gathered to
date on the 15 FPDs; and,

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer met with representatives of the FPD boards of directors and
fire commissions 30 times over the course of conducting this Municipal Service Review; and,

WHEREAS, at the March 31, 2022 LAFCo meeting, LAFCo reviewed and provided direction on
the draft governance recommendations included in the administrative draft Municipal Service
Review; and,

WHEREAS, based on the results of the Municipal Service Review, staff has determined that a
Sphere of Influence Update is needed for CSA 9, East Davis FPD, and Springlake FPD to
implement accountability, structure, and efficiencies recommendations; and,

WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the Municipal Service Review pursuant to the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and determined that the proposed Municipal Service Review
and Sphere of Influence is exempt from CEQA pursuant to Section 15061 (b)(3) and Section
15320 of the State CEQA Guidelines. CEQA Guidelines section 15061 (b)(3) sets forth the general
rule exemption, which provides that CEQA only applies to projects which “have the potential for
causing a significant effect on the environment.” Section 15320 is a Categorical Exemption for

Resolution 2022-07
Adopted June 30, 2022
10f 30 27



reorganization of local governmental agencies where the changes do not change the
geographical area in which previously existing powers are exercised. Where it can be seen with
certainty that there is no possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on
the environment, the activity is not subject to CEQA”; and,

WHEREAS, the Executive Officer set a public hearing on June 30, 2022 for consideration of the
draft Municipal Service Review and caused notice thereof to be posted and published at the times
and in the manner required by law at least twenty-one (21) days in advance of the date; and,

WHEREAS, on June 30, 2022, the draft Municipal Service Review was heard before LAFCo, at
the time and place specified in the Notice of Public Hearing; and,

WHEREAS, at said hearing, LAFCo reviewed and considered the draft Municipal Service Review
and Sphere of Influence Update, and the Executive Officer's Report and Recommendations; each
of the policies, priorities, and factors set forth in Government Code Sections Section 56425(e)
and 56430 et seq.; LAFCo’s Guidelines and Methodology for the Preparation and Determination
of Municipal Service Reviews and Spheres of Influences; and all other matters presented as
prescribed by law; and,

WHEREAS, at that time, an opportunity was given to all interested persons, organizations, and
agencies to present oral or written testimony and other information concerning the proposal and
all related matters; and,

WHEREAS, LAFCo received, heard, discussed, and considered all oral and written testimony
related to the sphere update, including but not limited to protests and objections, the Executive
Officer's report and recommendations, the environmental determinations, and the Municipal
Service Review.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED that the Yolo Local
Agency Formation Commission hereby:

1. Finds the proposed Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update exempt
from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to the California Code of
Regulations, Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3 (State CEQA Guidelines) Section 15061(b)(3)
and Section 15320; and,

2. Adopts Resolution 2022-07 approving the Municipal Service Review for the Fire Protection
Agencies and approving a Sphere of Influence Update for CSA 9, East Davis FPD, and
Springlake FPD as set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this
reference, subject to the following findings and recommendations for each agency set
forth in Exhibit B.

FINDINGS

1. Finding: Approval of the Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update is
consistent with all applicable state laws and local LAFCo policies.

Evidence: The project was prepared consistent with the requirements in the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Act for a Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update and all
applicable Yolo LAFCo policies and adopted Standards for Evaluation. The Municipal Service
Review includes written determinations for each district as required by Section 56430. The

Resolution 2022-07
Adopted June 30, 2022
2 of 30 28



Sphere of Influence Updates include written statements for each applicable district as required
by Section 56425(e). The new Sphere of Influence for CSA 9, East Davis FPD, and Springlake
FPD supports the MSR recommendations to align these district boundaries with city service
areas, strengthening community identities and increasing efficiencies. Changes in fire
protection agency Spheres of Influence will not affect agricultural land or be growth inducing.
The MSR evaluated the existing services and the need for fire protection services in each
community and recommended reorganization where appropriate as indicated in the MSR.

2. Finding: The proposed Municipal Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update is exempt
from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) pursuant to Sections 15061(b)(3) and
Section 15320 of the California Code of Regulations, Title 14, Division 6, Chapter 3 (State
CEQA Guidelines).

Evidence: CEQA requires analysis of agency approvals of discretionary “projects.” A “project,”
under CEQA, is defined as “the whole of an action, which has a potential for resulting in either
a direct physical change in the environment, or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical
change in the environment.” Section 15061 (b)(3) of the CEQA Guidelines describes the
General Rule that CEQA only applies to projects which “have the potential for causing a
significant effect on the environment; where it can be seen with certainty that there is no
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the
activity is not subject to CEQA.” Section 15320 is a Categorical Exemption for reorganization
of local governmental agencies that do not change the geographical area in which previously
existing powers are exercised. Approval of the Municipal Service Review and Sphere of
Influence Update, and the district reorganization that might follow, do not approve any
development project. No physical construction or activity is contemplated as a result of this
action. The Sphere of Influence Update does not change the geographical area in which fire
protection services are exercised. The project, therefore, will not have the potential to result
in individual or cumulative significant effects on the environment. Furthermore, no special
circumstances exist that would create a reasonable possibility that approving the Municipal
Service Review and Sphere of Influence Update would have a significant effect on the
environment. Therefore, the project is exempt from CEQA and no further environmental
review is necessary.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Local Agency Formation Commission, County of Yolo, State of
California, this 30" day of June 2022, by the following vote:

Ayes:

Noes:
Abstentions:
Absent:

Olin Woods, Chair
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission

Resolution 2022-07
Adopted June 30, 2022
3 of 30 29



Attest:

Christine Crawford, Executive Officer
Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission

Approved as to form:

25 >

Eric May, Commjission Counsel

4 of 30

Resolution 2022-07
Adopted June 30, 2022

30



Exhibit A

CSA 9 Sphere of Influence Update

Station No. 3

Springlake Fire

Protection
District
Elkhorn Fire
Protection
District

Station
No. 25
Station
Station No..26
e No&27 e
East Davis Fire
Protection
District
Station No..7Z
Station
No. 28
County
Service
Area #9
No Mans Land
Fire Protection
District
) Fire Stations
N
CSA District Boundary
CSA SOI A
Parcels
o) 0.5 1 2 YDLD

e \Viles  AFCO SO

5 of 30

31




32



East Davis FPD Sphere of Influence Update

w ' COUNTY -
-COUNTY-ROAD27 ROAD <,
, 104 %
8 3 %
a ; i K
< b
2 [ g S i OLD RIVER RD
= 22 = 5
oD [SNo) D
3 ¥ o] :
O I S @
’ /\ COUNTY ROAD 28H /
COUNTY~ROAD>29 COUNTY, ROAD 29 /*/ h\
< 5 il i
$ S COUNTY.ROAD 30 /L,w%c / ifat';; i
d mi > U | ) ¢ ST W
E = \f/ 9
)
o} =(5) A = o .
: e 250 - I
DGy JELLBLVD T cOUN
| (—gY_m £ COVELL BL ‘ opD AN /31
k\m g W/ COVELL BLVD ‘ o UNTY R \
Station ‘3 Davis : '
0 11 < .[/ = -
No21 (= ‘%E‘Fl E8THISY g0 S CHILES % :
:ﬁ:‘:e_r\\_ﬁ\ Z §tat|on No.-2 2 S "D 0 EaSt DaVIS Flre
*—RUSSELL BLVD. TSt COWELL i
NS couE Station ] Protection
HuTehISONDR Statlon Q A No: 24 District :Station
| No/15 ' . Noi28
113 >
2 2
2 Bl
s T
T ,/\
,?g >
a )
2 M 2%
= J
COUNTY , = i
ROAD 104 COUNTY ROAD 35 3
o,
/ -
(o
/ 3
COUNTY.ROADB6.42 %
2 E)
(o) > 2
< 2
0 (=)
| =
)
[}
=
(o)
S
(9, ¢
ES
3
D
S
\/(17
2
&
COUNTY
ROAD 104 P
(/,17,0/‘/
o O,
bt S
@ R0
W
24
Solano County W WILLOW-POINTRy,
i
CLARKSBURG-RD
GAFFNEY-RD——
Q
CENTRAL-AVE %
/ g
<
cogg;g COUNTY,ROAD 155 8 /Z;'
104 & T
5 kg
R HAMILTON-RD I
w
>
<
<
[a)
: al44
5 g
T 2
+-——N-COURTLAND-RD L&
- 6
&
S RIVER RD
COURTLAND-RD
I S,
@ Fire Stations ' A
w
ire N - 5 &
. . L N > )
[ Fire Protection District Boundary z 3 =
"7 7] Fire District SOI 2 2 - SUTTER RD Sacramento
£ County
Parcels 3
o o5 1 2
Miles 7 COUNTY
ROAD 104
6 of 30 23




34



Springlake FPD Sphere of Influence Update

Zamora
Fire ;mt'ec?wn Knights Landing
istri Fire Protection
District
Yolo Fire
Protection
District
Station
No.-11

Willow Oak Fire
Protection

District
Springlake Fire ///A
Protection
District
g
District

Station

No:21 No. 24
Station No. 2 @

(©)

Station
NOZILS (:) Fire Stations
/ N
(| Fire Protection District Boundary A
FireDistrict_SOI
Parcels
blo
0.5 1 2 Yl AFC
Miles O %A

Zof 30 25




36



Exhibit B

Countywide 2022 Fire Protection Agencies MSR Recommendations

Yolo County Firefighters Association (YCFA) Recommendation

1.

The FPDs that use YECA for dispatch should collectively review the response matrix to
ensure the fastest response on all calls (LAFCo’s understanding is this currently occurs
with medical aid calls only).

Yolo County Recommendations

1.

Yolo County should continue to review FPD progress towards implementing its district’s
2022 MSR recommendations as it works with the FPDs on sustainability efforts going
forward.

Yolo County voluntarily provides $150,000 of its Intergovernmental Agreement funding
from the Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation each year to five FPDs ($30,000 each) affected by
the Cache Creek Resort operations. These have been traditionally earmarked for capital
investments; however, the County should consider providing this funding as a pass-
through for more FPD flexibility to meet service needs in their jurisdictions.

Yolo County should work with its contract FPD fire commissions to standardize and
streamline its service contracts with cities to the greatest extent feasible. Financially,
contract FPDs should operate as pass-through districts similar to Springlake FPD and
CSA 9. From a risk perspective, Winters FPD has strong provisions that should be
considered as a model regarding providing contract FPDs return of its original station and
necessary apparatus to minimize risk in the unlikely event a city ever closes its station or
services are terminated.

Yolo County DFS staff should meet each year with each dependent FPD (and independent
FPDs if requested) to review agency finances, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing
actuals to prior years, analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the
reports appear reasonable. In addition, provide DIF reporting training as applicable.

Yolo County DFS should work with districts to develop accounting policies, procedures,
and accounting manuals. Assist districts with interpreting INFOR reports and develop user
friendly reports for fire commissioners and board members. Develop a periodic
report/transactions review process to ensure only and all transactions approved by the
board are included in the financial system.

Broadband Access Recommendations:

6.

Yolo County should consider the lack of broadband service in the Capay Valley area as it
addresses rural access issues. (Capay Valley FPD)

Yolo County should note that rural areas such as the Clarksburg FPD served by California
Broadband Services as the only provider option are being charged relatively exorbitant
rates ($170 for broadband speeds) and additional providers should be encouraged and
incentivized where possible to create market competition. (Clarksburg FPD)

Yolo County should consider the lack of broadband service (and library service) in the
Dunnigan community and outlying areas as it addresses rural access issues. (Dunnigan
FPD)

Yolo County should explore CASF (California Advanced Services Fund) grants to upgrade
infrastructure for the Davis Creek Mobile Home Park with either the existing provider,
AT&T, or Comcast which provides high speed broadband service in the immediate
surrounding vicinity. (East Davis FPD)

8 of 30 37



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Yolo County should consider the lack of broadband service in the Elkhorn area as it
addresses rural access issues. (Elkhorn FPD)

Yolo County should consider the lack of broadband service in the No Man’s Land area as
it addresses rural access issues. (No Man’s Land FPD)

Yolo County Housing and Yolo County should explore CASF (California Advanced
Services Fund) grants to upgrade infrastructure for the El Rio Villa community with either
the existing provider, AT&T, or Wave Broadband, which provides broadband in the City of
Winters. (Winters FPD)

Yolo County should note that rural areas served by Cal.net Inc. as the only broadband
provider potentially are being charged high rates for broadband service and additional
providers should be encouraged and incentivized wherever possible to create market
competition to drive costs down. (Winters FPD)

Yolo County should note that rural areas served by AFES as the only provider option are
being charged relatively exorbitant rates for minimal speeds and additional providers
should be encouraged and incentivized where possible to create market competition. The
Yolo County library in Yolo just recently was connected to AT&T fiber via CENIC. This
may be a potential project funding opportunity to extend service to the rest of the town as
occurred in Knights Landing. (Yolo FPD)

Yolo County should consider the lack of broadband service in the Zamora community and
outlying areas as it addresses rural access issues. (Zamora FPD)

Yolo County should consider the lack of broadband service in the CSA 9 area as it
addresses rural access issues. (CSA 9)

9 of 30 38



Capay Valley FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

1.

The Capay Valley FPD should consider scheduling station improvements, replacing any
apparatus that exceed the recommended 25-year life span, and including these needs in
a CIP.

Capay Valley FPD should provide written evaluations of its level of service, deployment,
and response time objectives on an annual basis at a Fire Commission meeting.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

3.

Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make
the findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees
collected from new development are spent solely on the equipment, apparatus and
facilities indicated in the latest study.

The Capay Valley FPD Fire Commission should receive regular financial reports (quarterly
or mid-year at a minimum) that provide a clear and complete picture of the agency’s assets
and liabilities, fully disclosing both positive and negative financial information.

The Capay Valley FPD should consider developing a formal capital improvement plan to
make sure it can fund needed station improvements and apparatus replacement.

Capay Valley FPD should consider adoption of a special assessment to increase revenues
to provide funding for current staffing, facilities and equipment needs.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

7.

Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are
apparatus/equipment standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative
purchasing. These efficiencies are currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

8.

10.

11.

Capay Valley, Esparto and Madison FPDs should provide for a coordinated and more
uniform level of service and operation through either: (1) a Joint Operation Agreement
(JOA); or (2) agency merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint operations in
each Area is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources, consistent
training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during incident
response. If any of these agencies enter into a JOA and fail to make reasonable efforts in
good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo reorganization to combine FPDs should be
initiated if its determined consolidation would promote better service to the public and be
a more efficient and effective utilization of resources.

Capay Valley FPD has some basic employee related policies and bylaws, however, it
needs more comprehensive policies. LAFCo can provide samples/templates of policies
that every district “should have”.

Yolo County should review agency finances with each dependent FPD each year to review
agency finances, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years,
analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear
reasonable.

Dependent special districts are not legally required to maintain a website. The Capay
Valley FPD has a website but received a 47% transparency score for best practices in
2021. Please see the report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-
transparency-scorecards for where improvements are needed.

10 of 30 39


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

Clarksburg FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

1. The Clarksburg FPD should consider and schedule the replacement of its two water

tenders that exceed the recommended 25-year life span.

In addition to verbal updates at each meeting, the Clarksburg FPD should provide written
evaluations of its level of service, deployment, and response time objectives on an annual
basis.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

3. The amount of revenue the special assessment raises has not changed since 1993.

Clarksburg FPD should consider reviewing current and future expenditures to determine
whether the special assessment should be increased.

Clarksburg FPD should review financial data on a regular basis and identify and
discrepancies. The review should include reconciliations of various accounts, comparing
budgets-to-actual, analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense balances
to the prior year, etc. It also should review monthly the transactions in the County system
to transactions the agency submitted to the County for processing.

Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make
the findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees
collected from new development are spent solely on appropriate facilities.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

6. The Clarksburg FPD should adopt policies related to meeting attendance, conduct,

responsibilities of officers, and personnel (including employee/volunteer promotions,
performance evaluations, drug and alcohol policies, payroll processing, etc.) In addition,
accounting and financial policies should be developed to include general accounting,
processing, and recording of disbursements and receipts, allowable expenditures,
employee and board travel and expense reimbursements, capital assets, debt and
borrowing, credit card use, etc. LAFCo will provide policy templates for FPD use.

The Clarksburg FPD received a 54% best practices transparency score in 2021. Please
see the report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-
scorecards for where improvements are needed.

11 of 30 40


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

Dunnigan FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

1.

Dunnigan FPD should schedule needed station improvements (well, septic, raised bay
doors, hazardous materials handling, etc.) so it can be incorporated into a CIP.

Dunnigan FPD should call ISO to determine its rating or consider having a new rating
done.

Dunnigan FPD should provide written evaluations of its level of service, deployment, and
response time objectives on an annual basis at a Fire Commission meeting.

Complete its NFIRS reporting on an ongoing basis and obtain training if needed.

Dunnigan FPD needs to increase its personnel response, especially considering the call
volume it is handling. More personnel are needed to serve the Dunnigan FPD demands
for service, which will likely require paid staff and increased revenue. It may be difficult for
the voters to support a Proposition 218 assessment to increase Dunnigan FPD revenue
due to the disadvantaged income status of roughly half of its territory.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

6.

10.

Create a capital improvement plan to determine how much funding needs to be set aside
each year and determine whether current revenues are adequate to fund the program.
Develop reserve policies to fund increased services, the CIP, and maintain and adequate
fund balances.

Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make
the findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees
collected from new development are spent solely on appropriate facilities.

The Dunnigan FPD has received over $442,000 from participating in strike teams. This
revenue should not be relied on as stable revenue source to fund ongoing/normal
operating costs.

Dunnigan FPD should reflect in the minutes that the fire commission received and
reviewed the budget status report.

The Dunnigan FPD needs to increase its core revenue and should consider instituting a
special assessment to fund increased staffing, facility and apparatus needs, and reserves.
It may be difficult for the voters to support a Proposition 218 assessment to increase
Dunnigan FPD revenue due to the disadvantaged income status of roughly half of its
territory.

Shared Services and Facilities MSR Recommendations(s)

11.

Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are
apparatus/equipment standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative
purchasing. These efficiencies are currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

12.

Dunnigan, Knights Landing, Yolo and Zamora FPDs should provide for a coordinated and
more uniform level of service and operation through either: (1) a Joint Operation
Agreement (JOA); or (2) agency merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint
operations in each Area is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources,
consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during
incident response. If any of these agencies enter into a JOA and fail to make reasonable
efforts in good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo reorganization to combine FPDs
should be initiated if its determined consolidation would promote better service to the
public and be a more efficient and effective utilization of resources.

12 of 30 41



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Dunnigan FPD should utilize the Yolo County contract service provider to streamline the
Uniform Fire Code plan check process and make it consistent with other unincorporated
areas.

Consider fire commissioner training to clarify commissioner roles, responsibilities,
program requirements and financial management.

Acknowledging core revenue as a limiting factor, Dunnigan FPD should consider hiring
full-time positions as needed to reduce burnout, turnover, and create more department
stability.

The Dunnigan FPD should adopt policies related to meeting attendance, conduct,
responsibilities of officers, and personnel (including employee/volunteer promotions,
performance evaluations, drug and alcohol policies, payroll processing, etc.) In addition,
accounting and financial policies should be developed to include general accounting,
processing, and recording of disbursements and receipts, allowable expenditures,
employee and commissioner travel and expense reimbursements, capital assets, debt and
borrowing, credit card use, etc. LAFCo will provide policy templates for FPD use.

Dunnigan FPD officials and designated staff need to get current and stay current in making
their annual Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures.

Yolo County should review agency finances with each dependent FPD each year to review
agency finances, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years,
analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear
reasonable.

Dependent special districts are not legally required to maintain a website. The Dunnigan
FPD has a website but received a 17% transparency score for best practices in 2020 and
a 0% transparency score in 2021 (the website appeared to have been taken down or
disabled during fall 2021 when websites were scored). Please see the report at
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards for
where improvements are needed.

13 of 30 42


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

East Davis FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

1. The East Davis FPD Chief should provide a written evaluation of the level of service,

deployment, and response time objectives as an agenda item at an East Davis FPD
meeting on an annual basis. The city service provider should report NFIRS data in a
manner that allows it to be separated from city incidents and reported for each FPD
served.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

2. East Davis FPD should amend its reserve policy reducing the current 110% of one year’s

expenditures to, at a minimum, align with government standards (SCO and GFOA). The
District should also consider amending its contract with the City of Davis to simply pass-
through revenues (similar to Springlake FPD’s contract with the City of Davis), which
would allow the fund balance to be eliminated altogether and drawn down over time to
reduce constituent costs.

East Davis FPD should review the County ledgers at least biannually to ensure
transactions are accurately posted to the District’s fund. The review should at least include
a comparison to prior year actuals and a current year budget to actual.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

4. The East Davis FPD sphere of influence should be updated to include the No Man’s Land

FPD territory and the portion of Springlake FPD territory south of County Road 29. Those
areas should then be annexed into the East Davis FPD as part of a reorganization of the
Elkhorn, No Man’s Land, and Springlake FPDs.

East Davis FPD and the City should review the contract terms to consider simplifying the
financial obligations of each agency, including examining the purpose of the District
maintaining a high fund balance. East Davis FPD’s role as a pass-through entity should
be streamlined to the greatest extent feasible.

Dependent districts are not legally required to maintain a website. However, East Davis
FPD maintains a website and received a 25% transparency score for best practices in
2021. Please see the report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-
transparency-scorecards for where improvements are needed.

14 of 30 43


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

Elkhorn FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

1. Elkhorn FPD’s facilities and services should be provided by the cities of West Sacramento
and Woodland, divided geographically to minimize response times.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

2. Should the Elkhorn FPD not be dissolved, it should review financial data on a regular basis
and are discrepancies identified, investigated and corrective action taken in a timely
manner.

3. Should the Elkhorn FPD not be dissolved, it should create a CIP to determine how much
funding needs to be set aside each year and determine whether current revenues are
adequate to fund the program. The District should develop reserve policies to fund
increased services, the CIP, and maintain an adequate fund balance.

4. Should the Elkhorn FPD not be dissolved, it should consider increasing Elkhorn FPD’s
special assessment to provide funding for staffing to improve personnel/apparatus
response and timely apparatus/equipment replacement. However, LAFCo suggests
raising assessments for District landowners may not be reasonable considering much of
the increased demand is being generated outside the FPD.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

5. Elkhorn FPD’s facilities and services should be provided by the cities of West Sacramento
and Woodland, divided geographically to minimize response times.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

6. Elkhorn FPD should be dissolved, and its territory annexed into Springlake FPD (for the
City of Woodland service area) and CSA 9 (for the City of West Sacramento service area),
dividing up the territory geographically to minimize response times.

7. Should the Elkhorn FPD not be dissolved, it should adopt policies relating to
personnel/payroll, general and administrative, board member and meetings, and
segregating financial and accounting duties as soon as possible.

8. Should the Elkhorn FPD not be dissolved, it should ensure the District's records are
maintained in a complete manner and accessible to its staff.

15 of 30 44



Esparto FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Growth and Population MSR Determination Recommendation

1.

The Esparto FPD should participate in the current study funded by Yolo County to
determine if Esparto FPD property assessments need to be increased to cover the
increasing costs of providing fire service to existing and new growth. The Esparto FPD
should support any new Proposition 218 elections to increase Esparto FPD’s ongoing
revenues.

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

2.

3.

Esparto FPD should increase personnel to improve its emergency response for both
existing development and future growth.

In addition to verbal updates at each meeting, the Esparto FPD should provide written
evaluations of its level of service, deployment, and response time objectives on an annual
basis.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

4.

Esparto FPD staff should review financial data on a regular basis and identify and
discrepancies. The review should include reconciliations of various accounts, comparing
budgets-to-actual, analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense balances
to the prior year, etc. It also should review monthly the transactions in the County system
to transactions the agency submitted to the County for processing.

Create a CIP to determine how much funding needs to be set aside each year and
determine whether current revenues are adequate to fund the program. Develop reserve
policies to fund increased services, the CIP, and maintain and adequate fund balances.

Consider increasing Esparto FPD’s special assessment to provide funding for staffing,
facilities and apparatus/equipment needs.

Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make
the findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees
collected from new development are spent solely on appropriate facilities.

Yolo County should include the GASB 68 pension balances and note disclosures for
Esparto FPD in the County’s ACFR.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

9.

Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are
apparatus/equipment standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative
purchasing. These efficiencies are currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

10.

11.

Capay Valley, Esparto and Madison FPDs should provide for a coordinated and more
uniform level of service and operation through either: (1) a Joint Operation Agreement
(JOA); or (2) agency merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint operations in
each Area is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources, consistent
training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during incident
response. If any of these agencies enter into a JOA and fail to make reasonable efforts in
good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo reorganization to combine FPDs should be
initiated if its determined consolidation would promote better service to the public and be
a more efficient and effective utilization of resources.

The Esparto FPD should adopt policies related to meeting attendance, conduct,
responsibilities of officers, and personnel (including employee/volunteer promotions,

16 of 30 45



12.

13.

performance evaluations, drug and alcohol policies, payroll processing, etc.) In addition,
accounting and financial policies should be developed to include general accounting,
processing, and recording of disbursements and receipts, allowable expenditures,
employee and travel and expense reimbursements, capital assets, debt and borrowing,
credit card use, etc. LAFCo will provide policy templates for FPD use.

Yolo County should review agency finances with each dependent FPD each year to review
agency finances, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years,
analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear
reasonable.

Dependent special districts, such as Esparto FPD, are not legally required to maintain a
website. The Esparto FPD has a website but received a 42% best practices transparency
score in 2021. Please see the report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-
website-transparency-scorecards for where improvements are recommended.

17 of 30 46


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

Knights Landing FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

1.

Develop a plan to replace the station bay doors and provide a shower for firefighters to
clean off potentially hazardous residue after incidents and to allow for 24-hour station
coverage.

Knights Landing FPD should consider replacing apparatus that exceeds the
recommended 25-year lifespan which will likely require increased revenue. It may be
difficult for the voters to support a Proposition 218 assessment to increase Knights
Landing FPD revenue due to the disadvantaged income status of most of its population.

Knights Landing FPD should provide written evaluations of its level of service, deployment,
and response time objectives on an annual basis at a Fire Commission meeting. Knights
Landing FPD needs to keep an eye on ensuring adequate personnel responding to fire
calls. If call volume continues to increase, reserves providing regular station coverage may
be needed.

Knights Landing FPD needs to complete its NFIRS reporting on an ongoing monthly basis
and obtain training if needed.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

5.

Create a CIP to determine how much funding needs to be set aside each year and
determine whether current revenues are adequate to fund the program. Develop reserve
policies to fund increased services, the CIP, and maintain and adequate fund balances.

Consider increasing Knights Landing FPD’s special assessment to provide funding for
staffing, facilities and apparatus/equipment needs.

Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make
the findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees
collected from new development are spent solely on appropriate facilities.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

8.

Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are
apparatus/equipment standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative
purchasing. These efficiencies are currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

9.

10.

Dunnigan, Knights Landing, Yolo and Zamora FPDs should provide for a coordinated and
more uniform level of service and operation through either: (1) a Joint Operation
Agreement (JOA); or (2) agency merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint
operations in each Area is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources,
consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during
incident response. If any of these agencies enter into a JOA and fail to make reasonable
efforts in good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo reorganization to combine FPDs
should be initiated if its determined consolidation would promote better service to the
public and be a more efficient and effective utilization of resources.

The Knights Landing FPD should adopt policies related to meeting attendance, conduct,
responsibilities of officers, and personnel (including employee/volunteer promotions,
performance evaluations, drug and alcohol policies, payroll processing, etc.) In addition,
accounting and financial policies should be developed to include general accounting,
processing, and recording of disbursements and receipts, allowable expenditures,
employee and commissioner travel and expense reimbursements, capital assets, debt and
borrowing, credit card use, etc. LAFCo will provide policy templates for FPD use.

18 of 30 47



11. Yolo County should review agency finances with each dependent FPD each year to review
agency finances, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years,

analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear
reasonable.

12. Dependent special districts are not legally required to maintain a website. The Knights
Landing FPD has a website but received a 36% transparency score for best practices in
2021. Please see the report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-
transparency-scorecards for where improvements are needed.

19 of 30 48


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

Madison FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Growth and Population MSR Determination Recommendation

1. The Madison FPD should participate in the current study funded by Yolo County to
determine if property assessments need to be increased to cover the increasing costs of
providing fire service to existing and new growth. The Madison FPD should support any
new Proposition 218 elections to increase ongoing core revenues.

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

2. Although levels of service and performance is discussed at each board meeting, the FPD
Chief should provide a written evaluation of the FPD’s level of service, deployment, and
response time objectives as an agenda item at a board meeting on an annual basis in
compliance with NFPA 1720.

3. Madison FPD has struggled over the last 5 years to respond to both fire and rescue/EMS
calls with enough personnel on average but has improved its adequacy of services and is
operating almost to standards in FY 20/21. Madison FPD needs to keep an eye on its
personnel response to calls to ensure adequate coverage.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

4. Madison FPD should contact the County to seek reimbursement of $22,087 of tribal
mitigation funding that it was allocated but was not properly invoiced.

5. Madison FPD staff should review financial data on a regular basis and identify any
discrepancies. The review should include reconciliations of various accounts, comparing
budgets-to-actual, analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense balances
to the prior year, etc. It also should review monthly the transactions in the County system
to transactions the agency submitted to the County for processing.

6. Consider increasing Madison FPD’s special assessment to provide funding for staffing,
facilities and apparatus/equipment needs.

7. Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make
the findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees
collected from new development are spent solely on appropriate facilities.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

8. Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are
apparatus/equipment standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative
purchasing. These efficiencies are currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

9. Capay Valley, Esparto and Madison FPDs should provide for a coordinated and more
uniform level of service and operation through either: (1) a Joint Operation Agreement
(JOA); or (2) agency merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint operations in
each Area is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources, consistent
training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during incident
response. If any of these agencies enter into a JOA and fail to make reasonable efforts in
good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo reorganization to combine FPDs should be
initiated if its determined consolidation would promote better service to the public and be
a more efficient and effective utilization of resources.

10. Madison FPD should consider nepotism policies, especially for supervisory issues and
segregation of duties for financial transactions.

11. The Madison FPD should adopt policies related to meeting attendance, conduct,
responsibilities of officers, and personnel (including employee/volunteer promotions,

20 of 30 49



12.

13.

14.

performance evaluations, drug and alcohol policies, payroll processing, etc.) In addition,
accounting and financial policies should be developed to include general accounting,
processing, and recording of disbursements and receipts, allowable expenditures,
employee and board travel and expense reimbursements, capital assets, debt and
borrowing, credit card use, etc. LAFCo will provide policy templates for FPD use.

Madison FPD has not been audited since 2012. Madison FPD needs to prioritize securing
an audit as soon as possible for the last 3 FYs per the Yolo County Auditor-Controller.
Going forward, Madison FPD needs to stay current on the two-year audit cycle.

Madison FPD needs to either hire an outside accountant or schedule time with DFS to
evaluate FPD finances and verify the County Department of Financial Services (DFS)
accounting coding is accurate.

The Madison FPD received a 35% transparency score in 2021. Please see the report at
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards  for
where improvements are needed.

21 0of 30 50


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

No Man’s Land FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

1.

Should the No Man’s Land FPD not be dissolved, its Chief should provide a written
evaluation of the level of service, deployment, and response time objectives as an agenda
item at a No Man’s Land FPD meeting on an annual basis. The city service provider should
report NFIRS data in a manner that allows it to be separated from city incidents and
reported for each FPD served.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

2.

3.

Should No Man’s Land FPD not be dissolved, it should develop a financial plan to return
the district to solvency including potentially increasing the Proposition 218 assessment.

Should No Man’s Land FPD not be dissolved, establish financial oversight policies and
procedures that would detect anomalies and potential financial issues in a timely manner.

Should No Man’s Land FPD not be dissolved, review the City of Davis contract terms
related to special assessment billings and collections, and clearly delineate and document
responsibilities of all parties.

Should No Man’s Land FPD not be dissolved, districts that collect an AB 1600
Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make the findings required by
Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees collected from new
development are spent solely on appropriate facilities.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

6.

No Man’s Land FPD should be dissolved and its territory should be annexed into the East
Davis FPD, which is managed directly by the City of Davis and provides the service.

Should the No Man’s Land FPD not be dissolved, Yolo County should consider including
a page on its website regarding the FPD.

22 of 30 51



Springlake FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

1. The Springlake FPD Chief should provide a written evaluation of the level of service,
deployment, and response time objectives as an agenda item at a Springlake FPD
meeting on an annual basis.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

2. Springlake FPD staff should review the County financial reports to detect any omissions,
errors, or anomalies. This review may include comparing current year budget to actual
amounts, comparing current year actuals to prior years’, etc.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

3. The Springlake FPD territory south of County Road 29 should be detached and annexed
into the East Davis FPD, which is managed directly by the City of Davis which provides
the service.

4. The Springlake FPD sphere of influence should be updated to include the portion of
Elkhorn FPD territory within the City of Woodland auto-aid agreement service area.

5. Although dependent districts are not legally required to maintain a website, Springlake
FPD maintains a website and received a 60% transparency score for best practices in
2021. Please see the report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-
transparency-scorecards for where improvements are needed.

23 of 30 52


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

West Plainfield FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

1.

West Plainfield FPD should consider adoption of a special assessment to increase
revenues to provide funding for 24/7 operations, facilities, apparatus replacement,
equipment needs and to maintain adequate reserves.

West Plainfield FPD should consider adopting a develop impact fee.

The West Plainfield FPD should develop an adopt a capital improvement plan that
includes a plan for how the FPD will fund it.

The West Plainfield FPD should update its reserve policy to guide the Fire Commission in
maintenance of adequate reserves.

The West Plainfield FPD Fire Commission should receive regular financial reports
(quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that provide a clear and complete picture of the
agency’s budget status and assets and liabilities, fully disclosing both positive and
negative financial information.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

6.

Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are
apparatus/equipment standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative
purchasing. These efficiencies are currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

7.

10.

11.

Willow Oak and West Plainfield FPDs should provide for a coordinated and more uniform
level of service and operation through either: (1) a Joint Operation Agreement (JOA); or
(2) agency merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint operations in each Area
is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources, consistent
training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during incident
response. If any of these agencies enter into a JOA and fail to make reasonable efforts in
good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo reorganization to combine FPDs should be
initiated if its determined consolidation would promote better service to the public and be
a more efficient and effective utilization of resources.

Once the Area 3 JOA is operating successfully, combining the JOAs for Areas 1 and 3
into one larger JOA should be considered (in the 3 to 5-year timeframe).

The West Plainfield FPD should adopt, or update existing, policies related to meeting
attendance, conduct, responsibilities of officers, and personnel (including
employee/volunteer promotions, performance evaluations, drug and alcohol policies,
payroll processing, etc.) In addition, accounting and financial policies should be developed
to include general accounting, processing, and recording of disbursements and receipts,
allowable expenditures, employee and commission travel and expense reimbursements,
capital assets, debt and borrowing, credit card use, etc. LAFCo will provide policy
templates for FPD use.

Yolo County should review agency finances with each dependent FPD each year to review
agency finances, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years,
analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear
reasonable.

Dependent special districts are not legally required to maintain a website. The West
Plainfield FPD has a website but received a 27% transparency score for best practices in
2021. Please see the report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-
transparency-scorecards for where improvements are needed.

24 of 30 53


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

Willow Oak FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

1.

Willow Oak FPD should provide written evaluations of its level of service, deployment, and
response time objectives to its fire commission on an annual basis.

Willow Oak FPD needs to keep an eye on its personnel response to fire calls to ensure
adequate coverage.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

3.

Create a CIP to determine how much funding needs to be set aside each year and
determine whether current revenues are adequate to fund the program. Develop reserve
policies to fund increased services, the CIP, and maintain and adequate fund balances.

Consider increasing Willow Oak FPD’s special assessment to provide funding for staffing,
facilities and apparatus/equipment needs.

The District has received over $500,000 from participating in strike teams. This revenue
should not be relied on as stable revenue source to fund ongoing/normal operating costs.

Willow Oak FPD should reflect in the minutes that the fire commission received and
reviewed the budget status report.

Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make
the findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees
collected from new development are spent solely on appropriate facilities.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

8.

Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are
apparatus/equipment standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative
purchasing. These efficiencies are currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

9.

10.

11.

12.

Willow Oak and West Plainfield FPDs should provide for a coordinated and more uniform
level of service and operation through either: (1) a Joint Operation Agreement (JOA); or
(2) agency merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint operations in each Area
is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources, consistent
training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during incident
response. If any of these agencies enter into a JOA and fail to make reasonable efforts in
good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo reorganization to combine FPDs should be
initiated if its determined consolidation would promote better service to the public and be
a more efficient and effective utilization of resources.

Once the Area 3 JOA is operating successfully, combining the JOAs for Areas 1 and 3
into one larger JOA should be considered (in the 3 to 5-year timeframe).

The Willow Oak FPD should adopt policies related to fire commission meetings, to include
attendance, conduct, and responsibilities of officers. Even though Willow Oak FPD is a
dependent District and is subject to the County’s accounting policies it should review those
accounting policies and develop ones that are unique to the District. They should include
general accounting, processing and recording of disbursements and receipts, allowable
expenditures, employee and commission travel and expense reimbursements, capital
assets, debt and borrowing, credit card use, etc. LAFCo will provide policy templates for
FPD use.

Yolo County should review agency finances with each dependent FPD each year to review
agency finances, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years,

25 of 30 54



analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear
reasonable.

13. Dependent special districts, such as Willow Oak FPD, are not legally required to maintain
a website. The Willow Oak FPD has a website but received a 20% transparency score in
2021. Please see the report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-
transparency-scorecards for where improvements are needed.

26 of 30 55


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

Winters FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

1.

Consider adoption of a special assessment to increase revenues to provide funding for
current staffing, facilities and equipment needs.

Winters FPD and the City should consider reviewing the annual payment calculations
since the inception of the contract (2011) and develop review procedures to ensure that
Winters FPD pays the proper amount to the City.

Winters FPD should receive financial reports on a quarterly or biannual basis.

Winters FPD and the City should review the contract terms to consider simplifying the
financial obligations of each agency, including examining the purpose of the District
maintaining a relatively high fund balance and to develop reserve policies to document
reserve balances. Winters FPD’s role as a pass-through entity should be streamlined to
the greatest extent feasible.

Consider paying off the CalPERS unfunded accrued liabilities with the excess fund
balance.

Yolo County should include the GASB 68 and GASB 75 balances and note disclosures
for Winters FPD in the County’s ACFR.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

7.

Dependent districts are not legally required to maintain a website. However, Winters FPD
maintains a website and received a 28% transparency score in 2021. Please see the
report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-
scorecards for where improvements are needed.

27 of 30 56


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

Yolo FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

1.

Yolo FPD should consider replacing the apparatus in the fleet that exceeds the
recommended 25-year lifespan.

Yolo FPD needs to complete its NFIRS reporting on an ongoing basis and obtain training
if needed.

Yolo FPD should provide written evaluations of its level of service, deployment, and
response time objectives on an annual basis at a Fire Commission meeting. Personnel
response appears adequate, but the FPD needs to ensure 2 apparatus on scene for fire
calls.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

4.

Include a funding component to the Capital Asset Replacement plan to determine how
much funding needs to be set aside each year and determine whether current revenues
are adequate to fund the program. Develop reserve policies to fund increased services,
the CIP, and maintain an adequate fund balance.

Consider increasing Yolo FPD’s special assessment to provide funding for staffing, and
apparatus/equipment needs.

Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make
the findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees
collected from new development are spent solely on appropriate facilities.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

7.

Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are
apparatus/equipment standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative
purchasing. These efficiencies are currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

8.

10.

11.

Dunnigan, Knights Landing, Yolo and Zamora FPDs should provide for a coordinated and
more uniform level of service and operation through either: (1) a Joint Operation
Agreement (JOA); or (2) agency merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint
operations in each Area is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources,
consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during
incident response. If any of these agencies enter into a JOA and fail to make reasonable
efforts in good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo reorganization to combine FPDs
should be initiated if its determined consolidation would promote better service to the
public and be a more efficient and effective utilization of resources.

Yolo FPD should consider nepotism policies, especially for supervisory issues and
segregation of duties for financial transactions.

Yolo FPD should either hire an outside accountant or schedule time with DFS to evaluate
FPD finances and verify the County Department of Financial Services (DFS) accounting
coding is accurate.

The Yolo FPD received a 74% transparency score in 2021. Please see the report at
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards for
where improvements are needed.

28 of 30 57


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

Zamora FPD 2022 MSR Recommendations

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

1.

3.

Zamora FPD should develop written guidelines and procedures for personnel and
equipment testing, and train personnel in ICS (incident command system) consistent with
other FPDs in the JOA.

Zamora FPD should consider a web-based program for incident reporting and
documentation. National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) reports should be
exported monthly.

The Zamora FPD chief should provide a written evaluation of the level of service,
deployment, and response time objectives as an agenda item at a board meeting on an
annual basis in compliance with NFPA 1720.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

4.

Create a CIP to determine how much funding needs to be set aside each year and
determine whether current revenues are adequate to fund the program. Develop a robust
reserve policy in order to adequately fund the CIP, maintain liquidity and provide for
unexpected loss in revenue and unanticipated expenditures.

Consider increasing Zamora FPD’s special assessment to provide funding for facilities
and apparatus/equipment needs. The assessment has not increased since its inception
in 1993.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

6.

Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are
apparatus/equipment standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative
purchasing. These efficiencies are currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

7.

Dunnigan, Knights Landing, Yolo and Zamora FPDs should provide for a coordinated and
more uniform level of service and operation through either: (1) a Joint Operation
Agreement (JOA); or (2) agency merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint
operations in each Area is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources,
consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during
incident response. If any of these agencies enter into a JOA and fail to make reasonable
efforts in good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo reorganization to combine FPDs
should be initiated if its determined consolidation would promote better service to the
public and be a more efficient and effective utilization of resources.

Zamora FPD needs bylaws, standard operating polices and guidelines, and an employee
handbook. The Zamora FPD should adopt policies related to meeting attendance,
conduct, responsibilities of officers, and personnel (including employee/volunteer
promotions, performance evaluations, drug and alcohol policies, payroll processing, etc.).
In addition, accounting and financial policies should be developed to include general
accounting, processing, and recording of disbursements and receipts, allowable
expenditures, employee and board travel and expense reimbursements, capital assets,
debt and borrowing, credit card use, etc. LAFCo will provide policy templates for FPD use.
In particular, policies for segregation of duties for financial transactions should be included.

Zamora FPD should either hire an outside accountant or schedule time with DFS to
evaluate FPD finances and verify the County Department of Financial Services (DFS)
accounting coding is accurate.

29 of 30 58



County Service Area (CSA) 9 2022 MSR Recommendations

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

1. The CSA 9 sphere of influence should be updated to include the portion of Elkhorn FPD
territory within the City of West Sacramento auto-aid agreement service area.

30 of 30 59



60



ltem 7-ATT C

East Davis County Fire Protection District

c/o DAVIS FIRE DEPARTMENT, STATION 33
425 MACE BOULEVARD
Davis, CA 95618

SERVING EL MACERO, WILLOWBANK, AND YOLO COUNTY

DATE: June 8, 2022
TO: Christine Crawford, Yolo LAFCo Director
FROM: Bill Weisgerber, Chair EDCFPD

SUBJECT: East Davis Fire Protection District Comments—Draft Yolo LAFCo MSR/SOI Study

The comments below are critically significant to the issues and outcomes of Commission action soon to be
taken on the Yolo LAFCo MSR/SOI Study for East Davis County Fire Protection District. It is respectfully
requested that the Commissioners receive them in an expedient manner, for their due consideration.

Please find herein a summary of comments that have been inserted into the companion Draft LAFCo
MSR/SOI Study document for East Davis County Fire Protection District. For convenience, comments are
referenced by page and paragraph (item or bullet) of the Study document and represent a compilation of
feedback from the entire East Davis County Fire Protection District Board.

Page 4 - Capacity and Adequacy of Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s) (L ast bullet,
bottom of page):

MSR Report states the East Davis Chief should provide an annual written evaluation of service per NFPA
1720. However, East Davis contracts for services with the City of Davis FD, a paid City FD which falls under
NFPA 1710 and not the referenced 1720. In either case, NFPA Standards are voluntary, not mandatory.

Page 5 - Financial Ability (Items 4c¢.& 4d.):

As the District’s fiscal agent, the Yolo County DFS should be providing these reports automatically to the
Board. And, as stated in the MSR, East Davis has no employees and typically only has 5 transactions annually.
These include one major invoice for Davis Fire Service; and up to four minor invoices of no more than
$500/each: YCPARMIA Insurance; CPA SCO-prep/filing; CPA Budget prep; Public Notice reimbursement.
As such, why would we need quarterly reports?

Page 6 - Discussion: Financial Background (Item a):

e This is an incorrect interpretation of Section 8 of the agreement with the City.

e The reserve fund is not what is at the “sole discretion” of the District. The repository of reserve funds in a
separate account with the City is what is at the “sole discretion” of the District. Alternatively, the District
has elected to maintain those funds with Yolo County DFS.

e The contract requires the District to maintain this reserve. Reducing it would potentially breach the
contract while exposing the District to risk if there were to be an issue with collecting funds or providing
service, for a given year.

Page 7 - Expenditures:

At the recommendation of the District’s independent CPA, the District is pursuing an amendment to the
formula for invoicing from the City; in which the District would budget and pay the actual amount from the
year preceding the immediate prior year. In the current budget cycle case, the amount owed for fiscal year
2023 would be the “actuals” from fiscal year 2021. This would allow the District to budget a known amount
and not have an unexpected higher invoice from the City.

61



Page 7 - (Item b):

This item affirms the District’s accounting records are under the County financial system, subject to the same

accounting and financial policies as the County. “...Accounting and budget data including all cash receipts

and disbursements are reviewed by the County finance staff before they are posted...”

e It then should be incumbent upon County DFS to provide the financial reports to the District board
automatically--just as they would any other County department.

Page 7 - (Item c):

o Inaccurate. This was not undetected. State Fish and Wildlife has not paid their assessments in 17 years,
and a years-long effort to remedy the situation has been in vain, as the situation remains unchanged. This
past March, Davis FD administration once again invoiced the following delinquent State properties having
compounded delinquent taxes as far back as FY 2004/2005: Sacto/Yolo Port; Reclamation District #9; and
CA State Fish and Game. County DFS does not make the District whole on delinquent State Agencies,
as they do with private parcel owners.

e There was not a net loss. The invoice overage due to lag-time in State reimbursement to the City was
covered by the District Reserve fund. Moreover, this would have been budgeted for had City of Davis
Financial Services made the proper calculations and invoiced with an accurate figure, in a timely manner.

Page 7 - (Item d):

e Again, it should be incumbent upon County DFS to provide the financial reports to the District Board
automatically--just as they would any other County department.

e The District annually confirms with County DFS Property Tax Supervisor, proper posting of Direct
Charge revenue.

e The Board confirms with County DFS accounting staff the posting of the five annual invoices paid.

Page 8 - (Item @) and Financial Ability MSR Determination; Financial Ability MSR

Recommendation(s):

e The District Reserves Fiscal Policy is set at the 110% of one year’s budget, as contingency against
catastrophic hardship (financial or otherwise) that may cause City services to be significantly curtailed
(e.g., brown-out or blackout of Fire Station 33); or cancelled, altogether, due to inability to provide
services.

o If this were to happen, the District’s 110% contingency would be able to fund a bridging effort to
sustain fire services from Station 33 for at least one year’s time, providing opportunity for
alternative solutions to be arranged.

o If reserves are reduced or eliminated (as is being recommended,) the District would be unable to pay for
fire service if such a catastrophe were to occur.

e East Davis has been previously held up as an example of sustainability. Now the ability to maintain that
sustainability is a point of critical contention as the suggested reorganization may threaten the stability of
the District.

e While there is a government recommended standard for reserves, there does not appear to be a rule to
follow, and the Board believes this is just a guideline rather than an actual rule against excess reserve
funds that fails to account for the unique aspects of the District.

Page 9 - (First bullet at top of page):

Per comments from Page 8, the District has only 5 transactions per year. Moreover, as County DFS is the
District’s fiscal agent and fiduciary, it should be incumbent upon County DFS to provide reports to the District
on a regular basis.

Page 10 - Discussion re: Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies (Page 9 Items a and d):
e The District pays a pro rata fair-share for fire service based on ad valorem (AV) taxes, as demonstrated in
the bona fide engineering report and associated ballot language for the Prop 218.

62



e Springlake and No Man’s Land do not pay a proportionate rate for the services that they enjoy and have no
financial sustainability recourse (however, East Davis does).

e Both Springlake and No Man’s Land do not generate enough income to cover the cost of service provided.
Therefore, this is not a case of East Davis paying too much--but rather a case of the other two districts not
paying enough (or their pro rata fair share).

There are built-in cost containment measures in both the East Davis Prop 218 and Contract agreement.

e The formula is very specific and will be further refined as stated in the comments for Page 7.

e The contract inflation clause is also specifically set at 3%, or CPI, whichever IS LESSER.

e This inflation clause has not been exercised in at least the past 7 years and is not likely to be exercised in
the foreseeable future.

Moreover, the absence of a sustainable revenue mechanism without an inflation clause is a direct cause of the
financial instability of some Yolo Rural FPDs as costs are outrunning the revenue to support them. The
revenue mechanism the District has in place is why East Davis is successful.

Any further assumptions on this matter should be held in abeyance until after SCI Consultants have
completed their comprehensive, countywide Rural FPD Prop 218 studly.

MSR statements associated with residents being confused as to what fire district they live in, what fire
department serves them, and which fire commission represents them are specious, contrived, and unfounded.

Page 11 - (First three bullet points):

See previous comments re: contract costs, cost containment measures, and reserve fund balances (from Pages

6, 7, 8, and 10 above).

e The MSR/SOI Study statements regarding a partial solution of adding commissioners to the District
Board, is completely out of touch with real world conditions in these Districts. Springlake struggles to
maintain a quorum and No Man’s Land has never produced a single volunteer commissioner.

o Isthe public to believe that volunteers will now inexplicably appear and be seamlessly galvanized into this
board configuration? These are three different communities with different issues, interests, and intricacies.

e The reorganization being suggested is a dismantling of a successful district that has operated continuously
since 1966 with no significant issues.

e The East Davis Board believes this reorganization will result in the ultimate failure of the District when
undue financial and administrative burdens are imposed by adding two other Districts absent an in-kind
benefit assessment from the additional Districts/parcels or any administrative support from the County.

e The residents in the District are sure to react negatively when they learn that they now must subsidize
service in two other areas—which will be the case as both of those Districts are currently underfunded
and have no Proposition 218 levies.

e Any perceived savings or efficiencies will be overshadowed by the cost and effort of responding to the
outcry by residents and property owners that voted for the East Davis District in its current form.

Page 12 - (Item h) and Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Determination:
The District has no record of being informed of the website transparency score short-comings and can either
remedy those issues or take the site down completely—since it is not required.

Page 13 - Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s):
The purpose of the Prop 218 for the District was (and remains) to ensure that the properties of the District were
paying their pro rata fair-share of the cost of fire service delivery to the community—since pass-through AV
taxes were not providing a sustainable amount.
The Prop 218 process, legitimately included:

e Completion of a bona fide engineering report,

e Conducting of multiple community outreach and informational meetings to educate the electorate, and

63



e A balloted election vote taken by the property owners to tax themselves for fire service.
The reserve fund balance was addressed in the comments for Page 8 of the MSR.

As stated above, the District has no record of being informed of the website transparency score short-comings
and can either remedy those issues or take the site down completely—since it is not required.

Conclusion:

The recommended reorganization will result in the citizens, residents, and property owners of the current
District (s) to not be well-served and will saddle a sustainably successful district and board with assuming the
responsibility and duties of two other districts (not even in the same community) that are currently failing to
meet revenue targets.

e Davis Fire has not expressed any dissatisfaction with managing three contracts and the residents of the
District have not expressed any dissatisfaction or confusion about their fire district, fire services provider,
or their fire board.

e The MSR implies that the City of Davis has a problem because of multiple fire contracts for the three
districts. However, the MSR reorganization will result in both Woodland and Elkhorn having multiple
contracts to manage, which seems contrary to the goal of contract reduction.

e UCD-Fire is also affected by this potential change to their service and revenue from a portion of the
Springlake District—yet this item has not been mentioned or addressed.

e The MSR/SOI Study fails to offer any conclusive proof that the East Davis Fire District needs to be
reorganized and also fails to offer any sort of comprehensive plan for that reorganization.

Perhaps LAFCo can better serve the situation and the people of East County by seeking a way to help the
Springlake and No Man’s Land Fire Districts without causing serious harm to East Davis.

The East Davis Board implores the LAFCo Commissioners to carefully considering these comments and to not
approve the MSR section written for East Davis as these extreme measures are potentially detrimental or even
harmful to the residents of the East Davis County Fire Protection District.

Respectfully submitted on behalf of the entire ECFPD Board,

Bill Weisgerber

Bill Weisgerber, Chair
EDCFPD

Cc: EDCFPD Board
Fire Chief Tenney
Supervisor Provenza
file

64



City of Woodland

COUNCIL MEMBER TOM STALLARD 300 FIRST STREET WOODLAND, CALIFORNIA 95695 (530) 661-5800

June 23, 2022

Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission
625 Court Street Room 203
Woodland, CA 95695

LAFCo,

While | am no longer a sitting member of the Yolo Local Area Formation Commission, | was for the Fire
Protection District Municipal Service Review items on December 9, 2021 and March 31, 2021. | would
like to reiterate the importance of the municipal service review of all dependent and independent
districts, and in particular those providing direct services to our residents. Our citizens and taxpayers
deserve to know how our fire districts are performing, and how to better deliver services.

The Fire Service across our nation, state, and county are all struggling to meet the growing needs of
our communities. An increase year over year in emergency response, increase in costs for goods and
equipment, coupled with a decrease in volunteerism, has taken our fire services to the breaking point.
As a LAFCo Board we must act upon the MRS recommendations to ensure the stability of fire
protection, now and in the future. While | am happy to hear that most districts have already signed
Joint Operations Agreements, more must be done. The fire protection districts in Areas one, two, and
three must continue efforts to pool personnel, apparatus, personnel protective equipment, and training.

Those districts no longer sustainable must be dissolved and the responsibility given to the neighboring
jurisdictions who are already providing the majority, if not all of the fire and emergency response. This
is a statement | do not make lightly, but one out of grave concern out of the lack of timely response,
equipment, and personnel to emergency incidents in their districts.

The cities of West Sacramento and Woodland have been providing automatic response aid to the
Elkhorn FPD since 2015 with no financial compensation. This situation is serious and not sustainable
as noted in a joint memo to the Executive Officer dated April 21, 2021 (attached) asking for resolution
through this MSR process. Dissolving Elkhorn FPD would provide at least some funding to partially
compensate for the service our cities have provided for years and it only makes sense that the contract
districts be adjusted accordingly. Creating one district for each city in Area 4 streamlines contracts and
creates a more efficient relationship with City Staff and its district.

| strongly recommend that the LAFCo board accept and adopt all recommendations as outlined in the
2022 Fire Protection District Municipal Service Review.

Respectfully Submitted,

/

/1 s (,(d/r/:{/

Tom Stallard

65



April 30, 2021

To: Christine Crawford, LAFCo

From: City Manager Ken Hiatt, City of Woodland

City Manager Aaron Laurel, City of West Sacramento

Re: Fire Department Response to Elkhorn

Both the City of Woodland and City of West Sacramento have been reliable partners with the Elkhorn
Fire Protection District, supporting those with emergencies within the boundaries of the District.
However, due to the increasingly disproportionate calls for aid from our Departments to the Elkhorn
District, we are requesting that LAFCo take a serious look at the health of the Elkhorn Fire Protection
District and provide solutions that offset the impacts on the Woodland and West Sacramento Fire
Departments. The current automatic aid agreement is not sustainable given the staffing capabilities of
the Elkhorn Fire Protection District. The burden of response on our Departments is resulting in service
impacts to the residents and businesses within our communities beyond justification. The residents of
the City of Woodland and West Sacramento have unknowingly accepted these impacts.

Attached to this cover letter is a report that provides a synopsis of call data pulled from the Yolo
Emergency Dispatch Agency’s (YECA) Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) system. The data evaluated
indicates that the burden of response to calls for service in the Elkhorn Fire Protection District fall on
both the City of Woodland and the City of West Sacramento. This is because the Elkhorn Fire Protection
District cannot routinely send adequate resources to effectively handle an incident in their own district.
Unfortunately, it is the residents and thousands of travelers, including intra and interstate commerce
who travel on the roadways within the Elkhorn District boundaries that would be negatively affected if
either the WFD or WSFD are unable to respond to incidents within the Elkhorn Fire Protection District.
Both the Woodland and West Sacramento Fire Chiefs have expressed a moral obligation that their fire
departments not only respond, but that they set their personnel up for success and ensure their safety
by sending the appropriate amount of resources to handle the incidents, evident by the automatic aid
agreement.

The City of Woodland and the City of West Sacramento look forward to hearing the solutions LAFCo
provides in order to rectify the issues within the Elkhorn Fire Protection District.

66



Assessment of Elkhorn Fire Protection District

2020 Service Year

The District

The Elkhorn Fire Protection District (ELH) is an independent fire protection district serving the
unincorporated area east of the Yolo Bypass, between Woodland and West Sacramento. The Elkhorn
District is 58 square miles, or 37,000 acres and has a little over 370 residents. Significant target hazards
in the district include the Sacramento River, Interstate 5, and the River Road, which is classified as the
most dangerous roadway in Yolo County.

Automatic aid

Leading up to 2010 the Woodland Fire Department (WFD), and West Sacramento Fire Department
(WSFD) were being requested to provide mutual aid to the Elkhorn Fire Protection District on a regular
basis. These mutual aid requests were being made several minutes after Elkhorn was initially
dispatched and did not respond, or did not have enough resources to effectively respond. Both the
Woodland Fire Department and the West Sacramento Fire Department were concerned over the
significant delay to the emergencies and entered into an automatic aid agreement, which dispatches the
respective department resources to incidents in the district. In 2015 the agreement was updated to
include the amount of apparatus each automatic aid department would provide, essentially increasing
our level of commitment to the district. A copy of the automatic aid agreement has been included for
your review.

In 2020 the Elkhorn Fire Protection District had 111 calls for service within the district boundaries. Of
those 111 calls, the WFD responded to 59, while the WSFD responded to 43 calls for service within the
district boundaries.

Response by Agency

9%

10% 30%

21%

2% 28%

» WFD/ELH = WSFD/ELH = WFD/WSFD/ELH WFD w» WSFD = ELH

Reviewing just the Elkhorn Fire District responses, they were either cancelled enroute, or did not
respond 31% of the time. The cancelation occurs when either WFD or WSFD arrive and can handle the

67



incident, or are ready to return to their respective jurisdiction and ELH has not yet arrived. ELH
responded and handled calls for service on their own 9% of the time. Elkhorn never provided automatic
aid to the City of Woodland or the City of West Sacramento in 2020.

Elkhorn Reponse

9% 15%

16%

60%

= No Reponse = Cancelled = Repsonded w/MA Responded w/o MA

Average Personnel per Incident

Analyzing the CAD call data, and based on the assigned units for each incident, it was determine how
many personnel responded to calls for service in the Elkhorn District from ELH, the WFD, and WSFD.

Average Personnel on Scene by Agency

ELH

WSFD

- TR
i

On average ELH responded 1.2 personnel per incident while WFD responded 5 and WSFD responded
4.2. This covers all call types, including medical aids, vehicle accidents, grass fires, investigations, and
water rescues. In some limited instances, 1.2 personnel can handle a minor medical aid or an
investigation. Unfortunately, both I-5 and the River Road pose a significant risk to motorist, as well as
first responders working on the scene of an incident, requiring more personnel. In a few instances last
year, WFD and WSFD responded to significant incidents together in order to handle the events without
further negatively affecting both the Cities of Woodland and West Sacramento. In some instances,
staffing recalls have been needed to cover the City of Woodland due to incidents occurring in the

68



Elkhorn District. A staffing recall summons off duty personnel to provide station coverage while units are
committed on a significant incident. A staffing recall places an additional financial burden on the City of
Woodland. The West Sacramento Fire Department at times requests the City of Sacramento to assist

with station coverage.

*Note: The data analyzed was done so manually, and is only as accurate as the data collected by YECA.

69



70



Item 7-ATT D
LAFCo Response to East Davis FPD Comments

East Davis FPD Administrative Draft MSR/SOI dated May 31, 2022

1. Page?

XI The subject agency has potentially significant determinations and staff recommends that a
comprehensive MSR IS NECESSARY and has been conducted via this checkilist.

Comment: The Board thinks it is inappropriate for East Davis to be included in the MSR reorganization.

Response: Government Code Section 56425 requires MSR/SOls every five years, as necessary.
According to Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 6.2 “Although MSRs are technically required only when updating
agency SOls, per Government Code § 56430, Yolo LAFCo will typically conduct MSRs on local special
districts even if an SOl Update is not needed because, unlike cities, Yolo County’s special districts tend to
be rural in nature and staffed by limited professional staff or entirely volunteer-run, meaning there is less
oversight to ensure operational adequacy and fiscal sustainability.” Yolo LAFCo adopted its Annual Work
Plan on March 25, 2021 which included an MSR/SOI review of all the 15 FPDs and amended it on June
24, 2021 to prioritize the 15 FPDs at the request of Yolo County. Therefore, LAFCo’s action is to include
the East Davis FPD in this MSR/SOI.

2. Page4
Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

The East Davis FPD Chief should provide a written evaluation of the level of service, deployment, and
response time objectives as an agenda item at an East Davis FPD meeting on an annual basis per NFPA
1720. The city service provider should report NFIRS data in a manner that allows it to be separated from
city incidents and reported for each FPD served.

Comment: East Davis contracts for services with the City of Davis FD, a paid City FD which falls under
NFPA 1710 and not the referenced 1720. In either case, NFPA Standards are voluntary, not mandatory.

Response: The MSR is a recommendation, and hence, is voluntary. The NFPA notes indicate it is a
combination of codes, standards, recommended practices, and guides (“NFPA Standards”). NFPA 1710
5.3.4.1 also states a fire department “shall institute a quality management program to ensure that the
service has met the performance objectives”. Regardless of the applicable standard, East Davis FPD
should receive an annual report from its service provider.

3. Page5

d) Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports (quarterly or mid-year at a minimum)
that provide a clear and complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully disclosing both positive
and negative financial information to the public and financial institutions?

Comment: As the District's fiscal agent, the Yolo County DFS should be providing these reports
automatically to the Board. And, as stated in the MSR, East Davis has no employees and typically only has
5 transactions annually. One major invoice for Davis Fire Service; and up to four minor invoices of no more
than $500/each: YCPARMIA Insurance; CPA SCO-prep/filing; CPA Budget prep; Public Notice
reimbursement. As such, why would we need quarterly reports?

Response: This is a standard question asked of all special districts during the LAFCo reviews. LAFCo
agrees that mid-year reports would be appropriate for the East Davis FPD since it has few transactions and
will change the recommendation from quarterly to midyear.

Page | 1

71



4. Page6
District representatives have indicated that the reserves are required by the agreement with the City.

Ja b

However, Section 8 of the agreement provides that the reserves can be established at the District’s “sole
discretion

Comment: This is an incorrect interpretation of Section 8 of the agreement with the City.

The reserve fund is not what is at the “sole discretion” of the District. The repository of reserve funds in a
separate account with the City is what is at the “sole discretion” of the District. Alternatively, the District has
elected to maintain those funds with Yolo County DFS.

The contract requires the District to maintain this reserve. Reducing it would potentially breach the contract
while exposing the District to risk if there were to be an issue with collecting funds or providing service, for
a given year.

Response: The February 10, 2009 staff report from the Davis Fire Chief to the Davis City Council states
this provision is a new one, requested by the District, as “an opportunity for the District to establish a fiscal
reserve held by the City for the benefit of the District. This provides flexibility for the District should they
choose this path during these unsettling and unpredictable economic times.” Section 8 of the contract
states, the “District may, in its sole discretion, provide funds to the City for the establishment of a fiscal
reserve by the City for the benefit of the District” (emphasis added).

To LAFCo staff, the use of the word “may” indicates this reserve is not required and the purpose of this
provision is to provide the East Davis FPD the opportunity to maintain a reserve with the City, at the District’'s
discretion. In any event, the District does not maintain such a reserve with the City. However, even if the
contract requires a one-year’s reserve, whether maintained by the City or not, no other FPD contracts have
such a provision. There is very little risk that the District will not collect a year’s worth of revenue. Further,
given the past half-century of experience, the City has proven itself a reliable partner, meaning there is little
risk that it will simply stop providing the contracted services. Therefore, the reserve is not necessary and
the District should approach the City to amend the contract if the District feels that such a large reserve is
mandated by the contract. The District is holding reserve funds collected via landowner assessments that
exceed what is necessary, and LAFCo is suggesting those funds be spent down.

5. Page 7, Paragraph 2

The 2021 payment increased 16.5% from fiscal year 2020, due to a delay of the City of Davis receiving
strike team reimbursements from CAL FIRE. Other expenditures include accounting fees, special
assessment enrollment fee, liability insurance, and weed abatement legal notices. The District is in the
process of discussing alternative billing methods with the City of Davis to reduce unexpected changes in
the annual contract billing.

Comment: At the recommendation of the District's independent CPA, the District is pursuing an
amendment to the formula for invoicing from the City; in which the District would budget and pay the actual
amount from the year preceding the immediate prior year. In the current budget cycle case, the amount
owed for fiscal year 2023 would be the “actuals” from fiscal year 2021. This would allow the District to
budget a known amount and not have an unexpected higher invoice from the City.

Response: LAFCo is supportive of this change to the formula, among other contract changes.

6. Page 7, Paragraph 4

The District maintains all funds in the County Treasury and uses the County’s financial system to maintain
its accounting records. Since the District is a dependent district, it is subject to the same accounting and
financial policies as the County. Accounting and budget data including all cash receipts and disbursements
are reviewed by County finance staff before they are posted.

Comment: This item affirms the District’'s accounting records are under the County financial system, subject
to the same accounting and financial policies as the County. “...Accounting and budget data including all

Page | 2

72



cash receipts and disbursements are reviewed by the County finance staff before they are posted...” It then
should be incumbent upon County DES to provide the financial reports to the District board automatically--
just as they would any other County department.

Response: Special districts and County departments are expected to download financial reports
themselves. However, the DFS director indicated it will send reports to districts that request it (so East
Davis FPD can request that from the County if desired). One of the key functions of a special district board
member (which the BOS has delegated to the fire commission) is fiscal responsibility, so these reports
should be checked, and corrections made if needed. DFS staff cannot be expected to be 100% accurate,
as human error sometimes occurs.

7. Page 7, Paragraph 6

In 2019, District commissioners did not detect that in-lieu taxes from State Fish and Wildlife was not posted
to the District’s fund. The error was found and corrected in the subsequent year. Due to delay on the part
of the City of Davis providing information, the District experienced a net loss in fiscal year 2021 that was
not anticipated.

Comment: Inaccurate. This was not undetected. State Fish and Wildlife has not paid their assessments in
17 years, a years-long effort to remedy the situation has been in vain, as the situation remains unchanged.
This past March, Davis FD administration once again invoiced the following delinquent State properties
having compounded delinquent taxes as far back as FY 2004/2005: Sacto/Yolo Port; Reclamation District
#9; and CA State Fish and Game. County DFS does not make the District whole on delinquent State
Adencies, as they do with private parcel owners.

There was not a net loss. The invoice overage due to lag-time in State reimbursement to the City was
covered by the District Reserve fund. Moreover, this would have been budgeted for had City of Davis
Financial Services made the proper calculations and invoiced with an accurate figure, in a timely manner.

Response: LAFCo agrees the State will not pay the assessments on the lands it acquired for the Bypass
and this issue affects several districts. What this statement is saying is that the in-lieu fees received by the
FPD were posted to the wrong fund by DFS and the District did not notice the error.

Regarding net loss, the 5-year trend in the report, which compares the budget to expenditures, shows a
$71,392 net loss in FY 2021. LAFCo agrees there was ample fund balance to cover it, but its factually
correct to state it was a net loss for the fiscal year (i.e., expenses exceeded revenues).

8. Page 7, Paragraph 8

Even though the District has very few expenditures (on average 5 invoices per year) the commissioners
should review financial reports more frequent than the current practice to discuss whether transactions are
accurately posted to the District’s ledgers and to perform a current year budget to actual comparison.

Comment: Again, it should be incumbent upon County DFS to provide the financial reports to the District
board automatically--just as they would any other County department. The District Board annually confirms
with the County DFS Property Tax Supervisor, proper posting of Direct Charge revenue. The District Board
confirms with County DFS accounting staff the posting of the five annual invoices paid.

Response: As noted above, DFS indicated it will provide reports if requested. LAFCo notes the fire
commission confirms direct charge revenue and posting of invoices.

9. Page 8, Paragraph 4

The District does not have equipment or facilities to maintain or replace. The District’s policy is to retain a
total reserve of at least one year’s expenditures plus 10%, which is in excess of recommended government
standards.

Page | 3

73



Comment: The added text is noted in the excerpt above.

Response: Thanks for the clarification. The public draft will reflect this change.

10. Page 8, Paragraph 7

The District’s share of property taxes within its boundaries is approximately 9.6%, while the average for all
rural FPDs in the county is 6.2%.

Comment: This is irrelevant.

Response: LAFCo disagrees this is irrelevant as property taxes provide a significant portion of the District's
core revenue. This fact is provided for informational purposes only and is included in the reports for all the
FPDs.

11. Page 8, Paragraph 8

The District’s policy is to retain at least 110% of one year’s expenditures in reserve, which is in excess of
recommended government standards

Comment: This needs to have a citation.

The District Reserves Fiscal Policy is set at the 110% of one year's budget, as contingency against
catastrophic hardship (financial or otherwise) that may cause City services to be significantly curtailed (e.qg.,
brown-out or blackout of Fire Station 33); or cancelled, altogether, due to inability to provide services. If this
were to happen, the District’'s 110% contingency would be able to fund a bridging effort to sustain fire
services from Station 33 for at least one year’s time, providing opportunity for alternative solutions to be
arranged. If reserves are reduced or eliminated (as is being recommended,) the District would be unable
to pay for fire service in such a catastrophe.

East Davis has been previously held up as an example of sustainability. Now the ability to maintain that
sustainability is a point of critical contention as the suggested reorganization may threaten the stability of
the District.

While there is a government recommended standard for reserves, there does not appear to be a rule to
follow, and the Board believes this is just a guideline rather than an actual rule against excess reserve
funds that fails to account for the unique aspects of the District.

Response:

The City of Davis has served the East Davis FPD continuously since 1966, and there is no indication the
City will not be able to meet its contractual obligations or close/reduce service levels at Station 33. Two
years prior to the expiration of the contract, the parties will conduct a joint review to determine whether to
renew the contract and any necessary changes to the arrangement. This gives the East Davis FPD
sufficient time to prepare for any significant changes to its responsibilities if the City decides to end its
relationship with the District. While there are no hard-and-fast rules about the amount of reserves, LAFCo
strongly recommends the District re-evaluate the need for its disproportionately-large reserve so that the
District is not collecting more in special assessments than necessary to provide its services. Concerns
about the closure of Station 33 can be addressed in other ways, including contract provisions that would
make the station available to the FPD and give infrastructure/apparatus to the District if the City reduces its
operational capacity (as is done in the Winters FPD agreement).

12. Page 8, Paragraph 8

If the contract with the City of Davis were amended and streamlined such that the East Davis FPD operated
as a pass-through agency (similar to Springlake FPD’s contract with the City of Davis), this fund balance
could potentially be eliminated altogether and drawn down to reduce constituent costs

Comment: Any other district would like to enjoy a fund balance that has been carefully planned.
Page | 4

74



Response: Comment noted.

13. Page 8, Last paragraph

East Davis FPD should amend its reserve policy reducing the current 110% of one year’s expenditures to,
at a minimum, align with government standards (SCO and GFOA). The District should also consider
amending its contract with the City of Davis to simply pass-through revenues (similar to Springlake FPD’s
contract with the City of Davis), which would allow the fund balance to be eliminated altogether and drawn
down over time to reduce constituent costs.

Comment: Is this a good example? It is understood they have significant issues (e.g., dwindling funding,
inability to fill board positions).

Response: This statement is referring specifically to contract payment terms being a pass through of
property taxes and assessments collected.

14. Page 9, Paragraph 1

East Davis FPD should review the County ledgers at least quarterly to ensure transactions are accurately
posted to the District’s fund. The review should at least include a comparison to prior year actuals and a
current year budget to actual.

Comment: We get one significant invoice per year. Why is it necessary to review quarterly? Per comments
from Page 8, the District has only 5 transactions per year. Moreover, as County DFS is the District’s fiscal
agent and fiduciary, it should be incumbent upon County DFS to provide reports to the District on a regular
basis.

Response: As previously noted, staff will amend the recommendation for the commission to review
financial reports biannually, not quarterly. The commission has been delegated fiduciary responsibility of
the FPD and the County acts as the treasury. It is important for the Commission to review the transactions,
however minimal, to ensure accuracy. Missing funds were found by LAFCo and had corrections posted.

15. Page 9, Question d)

d) Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to personnel/payroll, general and
administrative, board member and meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among staff
and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct (see suggested policies list)?

Comment: This should be a “No.”

Response: Staff agrees this is a typo and will correct it, thank you.

16. Page 10, 6a paragraph 1

East Davis FPD receives contract services from the City of Davis, as does the neighboring No Man’s Land
and Springlake FPDs. However, the East Davis FPD appears to be paying more for the same service and
its contract provisions are the only one of the three FPDs that do not contain any cost containment
measures that would give the East Davis FPD more certainty for its annual budgets. The East Davis FPD
was unaware of the more advantageous contract provisions negotiated between the City of Davis and the
other FPDs, and the existing governmental structure contributes to this issue.

Comment: The District pays a pro rata fair-share for fire service based on ad valorem (AV) taxes, as
demonstrated in the bona fide engineering report and associated ballot language for the Prop 218.
Springlake and No Man’s Land do not pay a proportionate rate for the services that they enjoy and have no
financial sustainability recourse (however, East Davis does). Both Springlake and No Man’s Land do not
generate enough income to cover the cost of service provided. Therefore, this is not a case of East Davis
paying too much--but rather a case of the other two districts not paying enough (or their pro rata fair share).

Page | 5

75



There are built-in cost containment measures in both the East Davis Prop 218 and contract agreement.
The formula is very specific and will be further refined as stated in the comments for Page 7. The contract
inflation clause is also specifically set at 3%, or CPI, whichever IS LESSER. This inflation clause has not
been exercised in at least the past 7 years and is not likely to be exercised in the foreseeable future.
Moreover, the absence of a sustainable revenue mechanism without an inflation clause is a direct cause of
the financial instability of some Yolo Rural FPDs as costs are outrunning the revenue to support them. The
revenue mechanism the District has in place is why East Davis is successful. Any further assumptions on
this matter should be held in abeyance until after SCI Consultants have completed their comprehensive,
countywide Rural FPD Prop 218 study.

MSR statements associated with residents being confused as to what fire district they live in, what fire
department serves them, and which fire commission represents them are specious, contrived, and
unfounded.

The “advantage” of underpaying for service is detrimental to the entire system.

Response: As noted in the comment, the District pays a pro rata share for fire service based on the
assessed value of its real property compared to that of the City. The East Davis FPD has no control over
the budget for fire services adopted by the City of Davis. The FPD is merely allocated its share based on
assessed valuation. The report’s reference to no cost containment refers to the cost of the contract only,
not the Prop 218 assessment.

17. Page 10, 6a paragraph 2

No Man’s Land FPD was formed in 1974, and the during formation process annexation to the East Davis
FPD was considered, but “the City of Davis has refused to annex the territory to the East Davis Fire District
at this time, and the East Davis Fire Protection District has therefore stated they do not desire to annex the
territory

Comment: Because board members are volunteers from our own district and community.

Response: No response needed.

18. Page 10, 6a paragraph 3

All three FPDs are dependent to Yolo County and serve as funding and service mechanisms of the County,
and it would enhance efficiency, increase accountability for community service needs, and be less
confusing to the public if all the territory served by City of Davis were combined under one district

Comment: Disagree. East Davis district has voted to tax themselves to keep from falling behind. Whereas
other districts have voted down any measures that might mean an increase in taxes. This is why East Davis
is successful while others are not.

Response: The Board of Supervisors, as the ultimate governing body of the three districts around Davis,
has funded a Proposition 218 study and will consider the district funding mechanisms and governance to
provide services to all the unincorporated Davis area constituents in evaluating the MSR’s
recommendations.

19. Page 10, 6a paragraph 4

Reorganization would benefit the East Davis FPD in the following ways:
Comment: The people within East Davis borders who care, know who their board is.

Response: Comment noted.

Page | 6

76



20. Page 11, Paragraph 2

For example, the East Davis FPD’s rates are higher than No Man’s Land and Springlake FPDs and do not
include any cost containment provisions, even though they receive the same level of service from the same
fire department.

Comment: False. Discussed at length re: items on previous page (10).

Response: Staff will clarify this sentence to make it clearer it is referring to contract costs, not the level of
the Prop. 218 assessments.

21. Page 11, Paragraph 2

It appears the contract gives the discretion to the District of whether to maintain the reserve, but East Davis
FPD has maintained the reserves at levels greater than other districts.

Comment: Because other districts couldn’t pass a Prop 218 (what is causing this situation) they are
unsustainable, while East Davis is sustainable.

Response: See response to #18 above.

22. Page 11, Paragraph 3

Expanding the territory of the district will also expand the pool of individuals who might be willing to serve
as commissioners, which could ease the burden on those who have served long terms. It also might allow
the commission to expand its membership from five to seven, which would spread out any administrative
workload handled by the commissioners.

Comment: See previous comments re: contract costs, cost containment measures, and reserve fund
balances (from Pages 6, 7, 8, and 10 above). The MSR/SOI Study statements regarding a partial solution
of adding commissioners to the District Board, is completely out of touch with real world conditions in these
Districts. Springlake struggles to maintain a quorum and No Man’s Land has never produced a single
volunteer commissioner. Is the public to believe that volunteers will now inexplicably appear and be
seamlessly galvanized into this board configuration? These are three different communities with different
issues, interests, and intricacies. The reorganization being suggested is a dismantling of a successful
district that has operated continuously since 1966 with no significant issues. The East Davis Board believes
this reorganization will result in the ultimate failure of the District when undue financial and administrative
burdens are imposed by adding two other Districts— absent an in-kind benefit assessment from the
additional Districts/parcels or any administrative support from the County. The residents in the District are
sure to react negatively when they learn that they now must subsidize service in two other areas—which
will be the case as both of those Districts are currently underfunded and have no Proposition 218 levies.
Any perceived savings or efficiencies will be overshadowed by the cost and effort of responding to the
outcry by residents and property owners that voted for the East Davis District in its current form.

Response: The MSR recommendations are not suggesting a dismantling of the East Davis FPD. LAFCo’s
goal is obviously not the ultimate failure of the District. No financial and little administrative burdens are
being imposed by annexing the territory of the two other districts that receive the same services, and there
are potential solutions to address any administrative burdens (e.g. County staff assistance). The County is
studying a Prop 218 increase to address the funding needs of FPDs, including the areas served by the City
of Davis, so each area of the District will be paying its fair share and areas some areas will not be
“subsidizing” others in the District. It is anticipated the Board of Supervisors, as the ultimate governing body
of the three districts around Davis, will weigh the community benefits with the potential burdens to the
districts in evaluating the MSR'’s recommendations.

Page | 7

77



23. Page 12, item h

Maybe. Dependent districts are not legally required to maintain a website. However, East Davis FPD
maintains a website and received a 25% transparency score for best practices in 2021. Please see the
report posted on the LAFCo website for where improvements are recommended.

Comment: This should be NO. We are not required to have a website but because we do have one are
being criticized by LAFCO.

Response: Websites are an important tool in promoting transparency in government, especially for small
districts. The Website Transparency Scorecard process began at the expressed request via resolution of
all the cities and Yolo County. Best practices are recommended, but the report is clear that none of its
recommendations are legally required.

24. Page 12, Paragraph 7

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Determination

East Davis FPD receives contract services from the City of Davis, as does the neighboring No Man’s Land
and half of Springlake FPDs. However, the East Davis FPD appears to be paying more for the same service
and its contract provisions are the only one of the three FPDs that do not contain any cost
control/containment measures that would give the East Davis FPD more certainty for its annual budgets.
The existing governmental structure contributed to this issue.

Comment: Text edit noted above.
False. See comments on page 10, “Discussion re: Accountability, Structure, and Efficiencies.”

Response: Instead of “half of” staff will state “a portion of”. See response to Comment #16.

25. Page 13, paragraph 2
Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

The East Davis FPD sphere of influence should be updated to include the No Man’s Land FPD territory and
the portion of Springlake FPD territory south of County Road 29. Those areas should then be annexed into
the East Davis FPD as part of a reorganization of the Elkhorn, No Man’s Land, and Springlake FPDs.

Comment: False. The MSR implies that the City of Davis has a problem because of multiple fire contracts
for the three districts. However, the MSR reorganization will result in both Woodland and Elkhorn having
multiple contracts to manage which seems contrary to the goal of contract reduction.

Response: The MSR is not intending to imply the City of Davis has a problem. Rather, staff is suggesting
multiple fire contracts is inefficient and not resulting in the most advantageous contract provisions for the
FPDs. The recommended reorganization would not result in the City of Woodland and Elkhorn FPD having
multiple contracts to manage.

26. Page 13, paragraph 4

Dependent districts are not legally required to maintain a website. However, East Davis FPD maintains a
website and received a 25% transparency score for best practices in 2021. Please see the report at
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards for where
improvements are needed.

Comment: This should be NO. We are not required to have a website but because we do have one are
being criticized by LAFCO. The District has no record of being informed of the website transparency score
short-comings and can either remedy those issues or take the site down completely—since it is not
required.

Page | 8

78


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

Response: See the response to Comment #23. The District has been on the distribution list regarding
Website Transparency effort, which LAFCo has undertaken at the request of the County and the cities.
LAFCo is happy to update the contact information if the District wishes to have someone else receive
natifications in the future.

27. Page 13, Item 7a

Most of the East Davis FPD populated territory is served, however some rural portions are unserved. In the
urbanized portions of the East Davis FPD, El Macero and Willowbank have access to 987 Mbps (or nearly
1 Gbps/”Gig”) speeds while the Davis Creek Mobile Home Park only has access to 10 Mbps download and
1 Mbps upload speeds from AT&T (even though 1 Gig speeds are available from Comcast immediately
surrounding the Park and were likely excluded for economic reasons). Most of the rural areas in the FPD
surrounding these communities are only served by wireless service and far less than the 25/3Mpbs
broadband threshold.

Davis Creek Mobile Home Park is eligible to receive California Advanced Services Fund (CASF)
Infrastructure grants as shown in the map below. Yolo County should explore grants to upgrade
infrastructure with either the existing provider, AT&T, or Comcast which provides high speed broadband
service in the immediate surrounding vicinity.

Comment: This seems irrelevant with regard to discussions of FPD coverage and oversight. No FPDs
have control over internet infrastructure.

Response: Lack of broadband service and access is a significant problem in some portions of the
unincorporated County. Per Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 6.2, the MSR will provide information and
recommendations on the following, among other relevant considerations:

a) Availability of high-performance broadband (i.e. greater than 25Mbps downloads and 3 Mbps
upload) at home, schools, libraries and businesses;

b) Accessibility to affordable broadband (e.g. providers offering low-income programs); and

c¢) Accessibility to training and support to enable digital inclusion.

The MSR does not state that the FPD is responsible for internet infrastructure. Rather, this information is
intended to promote digital access countywide and ensure public safety organizations have the information
and communication access needed to perform the service.

28. Page 15, Item 8a

There were no recommendations from the 2016 MSR specific to the East Davis FPD.

Comment: Nothing has changed since 2016. Begging the question as to why such intrusive
recommendations now?

Response: The MSR provides an opportunity to re-evaluate the efficiency and sensible organization of
local government.

29. Page 16, paragraph 1

] Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update is NOT
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, NO CHANGE to the
agency’s SOl is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE NOT been made.

X Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update IS
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, A CHANGE to the
agency’s SOl is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE been made and are included in this MSR/SOI
study.

Page | 9

79



Comment: Check this box and uncheck the other.

Response: The Commissioners’ position is noted. LAFCo’s direction to staff on March 31, 2022 is to
reorganize the contract districts such that its results in one district for each city.

30. Page 18, item 2b

The SOI would not expand services; rather it better reflects and aligns with the services already provided
by the City of Davis. The City of Davis is best suited to provide services more directly via the East Davis
FPD. Please see MSR item 6a.

Comment: This would place more work on the volunteer Board.

Reserve: The FPD has the financial resources to contract with the City or the County to perform whatever
minimal services the fire commission is unable or unwilling to perform. Even with the expanded service
territory, the demands on the volunteer commissioners would not be disproportionately greater than for
other districts.

31. Page 19, item 3a

The City of Davis already provides fire protection and emergency response services in the SOI territory,
has capacity, and provides adequate services.

Comment: The volunteer board will be impacted. More work thrust upon them for no gain. And the carefully
planned EDCFPD reserves fund will be unnecessarily spent down.

Response: Please see the responses to #11 and #30.

Page | 10

80



YoLo LAFCoO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

AGENCY PROFILE

The Knights Landing Protection District (FPD) was formed in 1942 and is authorized to provide fire
protection and emergency response services. It was formed as a dependent district to Yolo County, which
delegated its decision making to a local Fire Commission with five members, each appointed by the Board
of Supervisors to serve four-year terms.

The District is 23,692 acres in size and serves the unincorporated town of Knights Landing and the
surrounding rural area. The entire District contains 423 residential and 22 commercial addresses and its
residential population is estimated to be 1,058 residents'. However, according to the 2020 Decennial
Census the town of Knights Landing alone has a population of 1,117. Apparently, the town exceeds the
countywide average of 2.5 persons per household.

The Knights Landing FPD has Station 9 located at 42115 Sixth Street in Knights Landing. The District has
7 apparatus and has a volunteer chief that receives a small annual stipend, and assistant chief that

receives-a-smallannual-stipend, a part-time secretary, 0 reserves and 13 volunteers).
The Knights Landing FPD boundary and sphere of influence (SOI) is shown below.

Knights Landing Fire Protection District Boundary and Sphere of Influence

a
Dunnigan Fire Protection District
Station Mo- 12
4
Knights Landing
Fire Protection District
Station,No"9
Station Mo. 11
-
L02)
Zamora
Fire Protection District
i
@ Fire Staton Yolo Fire Protection District _
Fire Protection District Boundary Elkhorn
Sphere of Influence Fire Protection Distrigt
Roads
Parcel Lines Station No. 8
—:2 a"'
Miles Yoto
e RS T R e Springlake LAFCO py 4
Fire Protection District

Adopted by Yolo LAFCo June 23, 2016

" Population estimate is based on the number of residential addresses assigned in 2021 in the FPD territory with a Yolo
County average of 2.5 persons per household.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
8-1
81



82



Item 7-ATT E

Municipal Service Review (MSR)
and

Sphere of Influence (SOI) Update

for the

Fire Protection Agencies

Fire Protection Districts (FPDs) + County Service Area (CSA) 9
LAFCo No. 21-05

Capay Valley FPD
Clarksburg FPD
Dunnigan FPD

East Davis FPD
Elkhorn FPD
Esparto FPD
Knights Landing FPD
Madison FPD

No Man's Land FPD
Springlake FPD
West Plainfield FPD
Willow Oak FPD
Winters FPD

Yolo FPD

Zamora FPD
Garcia Bend CSA 9

Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission
Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

2,
M

83



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

SUBJECT AGENCIES:

Capay Valley FPD

PO Box 6

Brooks, CA 95606

Contact: Jesse Capitanio, Fire Chief
https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/

Dunnigan FPD

PO Box 213

Dunnigan, CA 95937

Contact: David Garrison, Acting Fire Chief
https://dunniganfire.com/

Elkhorn FPD

19396 County Road 124

West Sacramento, CA 95691
Contact: Richard Yeung, Fire Chief

Knights Landing FPD

PO Box 578

Knights Landing CA 95645

Contact: Martin Jones, Fire Chief
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/

No Man’s Land FPD

530 Fifth Street

Davis, CA 95616

Contact: Joseph Tenney, Fire Chief

West Plainfield FPD

24901 County Road 95

Davis, CA 95616

Contact: Cherie Rite, Fire Chief
https://www.wpfd.net/

Winters FPD

700 Main Street

Winters, CA 95694

Contact: Brad Lopez, Fire Chief
http://www.wintersfire.org/

Zamora FPD

PO Box 143

Zamora, CA 95698

Contact: Chase Covington, Fire Chief
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/

Clarksburg FPD

PO Box 513

Clarksburg, CA 95612

Contact: Craig Hamblin, Fire Chief
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/

East Davis FPD

625 Court Street #204

Woodland, CA 95695

Contact: Joseph Tenney, Fire Chief
https://eastdaviscfpd.wordpress.com/

Esparto FPD

PO Box 366

Esparto, CA 95627

Contact: Curtis Lawrence, Fire Chief
https://www.espartofire.org/

Madison FPD

PO Box 12

Madison, CA 95653

Contact: Paul Green, Fire Chief
https://www.madison-fire.com/

Springlake FPD

1000 Lincoln Ave

Woodland, CA 95695
Contact: Eric Zane, Fire Chief
https://www.springlakefpd.org/

Willow Oak FPD

8111 County Road 94B

Woodland, CA 95695

Contact: Marcus Klinkhammer, Fire Chief
http://www.willowoakfire.com/

Yolo FPD

PO Box 466

Yolo, CA 95697

Contact: Dan Tafoya, Fire Chief
https://www.yolofpd.org/

Garcia Bend CSA 9

625 Court Street #204
Woodland, CA 95695

Contact: Steve Binns, Fire Chief

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

84


https://cvfpd.specialdistrict.org/
https://clarksburgfire.specialdistrict.org/
https://dunniganfire.com/
https://eastdaviscfpd.wordpress.com/
https://www.espartofire.org/
https://knightslandingfire.specialdistrict.org/
https://www.madison-fire.com/
https://www.springlakefpd.org/
https://www.wpfd.net/
http://www.willowoakfire.com/
http://www.wintersfire.org/
https://www.yolofpd.org/
https://zamorafire.specialdistrict.org/

YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

CONDUCTED BY:

Yolo Local Agency Formation Commission
625 Court Street, Suite 107

Woodland, CA 95695

(530) 666-8048

www.yololafco.org

Commissioners: Commissioner Alternates:

Olin Woods, Chair, Public Member Richard DeLiberty, Public Member
Norma Alcala, Vice Chair, City Member Angel Barajas, County Member
Wade Cowan, City Member Gloria Partida, City Member

Don Saylor, County Member
Gary Sandy, County Member

Staff:

Christine Crawford, Executive Officer

Terri Tuck, Administrative Specialist/Commission Clerk
Mark Krummenacker, Financial Analyst

Eric May, Commission Counsel

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Many thanks to the Yolo County Firefighters Association Municipal Service Review (MSR) Subcommittee
or “MSR Subcommittee” of fire chiefs who volunteered countless hours to work with LAFCo on this report:

MSR Subcommittee Fire Chiefs:
Marcus Klinkhammer, Willow Oak FPD
Curtis Lawrence, Esparto FPD

Cherie Rita, West Plainfield FPD

Dan Tafoya, Yolo FPD

Eric Zane, Springlake FPD

The MSR Subcommittee was also supported by Mark Burns, Capay Valley FPD fire commissioner, who
used his skills to take the raw data and created an analytics tool at https://yololafco.azurewebsites.net/ with
visual graphs to illustrate response time, personal and apparatus response.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 ii

85


http://www.yololafco.org/
https://yololafco.azurewebsites.net/

YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Contents
MSR/SOI Background and CONEXE .........uuiiiiiiieiriiiiieeeeeeeeeciiteeeeeeeessetrreeeeeeseessssnsaeeeeeesssssssssseeeesssssssssnnes 1-1
Role and ResponSibility OF LAFCO ...iii ettt et e e e e et e e e eeavaeas 1-1
Purpose of a Municipal SErvice REVIEW [MSR) .....oi it 1-1
Purpose of a Sphere of INFIUENCE [SON) ..o e e e e e 1-2
Fire Prot@CHION DISTICTS c...eiiiiiieiteeteee ettt ettt ettt ettt st st e b e sbeesane e 1-2
Existing Fire Protection Districts and GOVEIMGANCE .......oiiicciviiiiciieee ettt 1-3
History of Consolidations and ReorganizatioNs........cc.uvieeeciiiieccieee ettt evre e 1-4
Fire Protection DiISTCT FUNGING ..uuviiieiieeeeee ettt et e e e e e arae e e ennaaee e eeraeas 1-5
Special District FUNAING STATEWIAE ....uuiiiiicice e e e 1-5
PrOPROSTION 172 HISTOIY oot e e e e e ettt e e e e e e eetataaaeaaeeeeeassrrraeaeas 1-5
Local Fire Protection DiStiiCt FUNING ....uvviiiiiiieiieeeee ettt ettt e aavr e 1-6
AdditioNal FINANCIAI SUPDDOI ...ttt e e e et e e e e e e eeeatbareeaaeeeeeasnnes 1-7
Previous 2016 LAFCO MSR/SOI ...ttt ettt st st sttt e 1-8
2016 Governance Findings and RecommendatioNs .........ccccveieeciiiieeciiiee e e 1-8
2016 LAFCo Recommendations Common 1O All FPDS.......iecieercieeriieeieeecieeeiee e esee e 1-9
2022 MSR SUDCOMMITTEE .....iiiiiiieie ettt ettt et st e s e e e 1-9
Dispatch Response Time and Adeguacy: Methodology and Comparative Data................... 1-10
DIiSPATCN COll VOIUME ...eiiiieiiie ettt ettt ettt e ettt e e et e e e eabb e e e snbaeeeessaeeeenssseaeensseeeans 1-10
FPD RESPDONSE TIMIE ..eiiiiiieieeeiieeeeeiiteeeeitte e ettt e eeettteesesbaeeeessaeeeasssseasasssseeeassseeeasssseesenssseesannsseeenns 1-10
FPD AJEQUACY Of RESIIONSE ettt e et e e e e e e et e e e e e e eesanraneeeeas 1-11
Financial Sustainability: Methodology and Comparative Data ........cooccveieeccieiiecieeeeceeeee. 1-12
2022 Governance Recommendations OVEIVIEW ........c.coceereerierienienieeieesiee sttt 1-13
@71 e ][INY 170 (ST} V7Y o] o] foTe o1 o ISR 1-13
Governance Recommendations QUITEACK c....couiiiiiiiiiiiiietceeete ettt 1-16
Overarching MSR RECOMMENUOTIONS ....iiiiiiiiieiciiee ettt e etee e s e taee e e seaeeesesbeeeeennes 1-17
Organization Of this MSR/SOI STUAY ...cceeiiiiieiiiie ettt etee e e te e e s evaae e e eabaaeeennes 1-18
Individual District Studies
Capay Valley FPD -« ceeererinit 2-1
CIAIKSDUIG FPD ...ttt oo ettt e e e e e ok bbbt e e e e e e e e s anbb et e e ee e e e s annbeaeaaaeeeaaannne 3-1
DUNNIGAN FPD ...ttt s bt e e skttt e s kbt e e ottt e e sttt e e e seb et e e anbe e e e s nbaeeesnnnneeeas 4-1
EASE DAVIS FPD ...ttt ettt ettt et e e o4 e ek b ettt e e e e e e e b et e et e e e e e e e n b b be e e e e e e e e aanreeeeeas 5-1
Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

LAFCo No. 21-05 iii

86



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

EIKNOIN FPD ...ttt ettt s ket e ket e skt e s b bt e e s sttt e s bt et e e s nbn e e e s nnneeeas 6-1
ESPAITO FPD ... .ottt et e e et e e e et e et aa e e e et eea e e aaee 7-1
KNIGtS LANAING FPD ....oooiiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e sttt e s bb et e e s nnn e e e s annreee s 8-1
MAAISON FPD ...ttt ettt s e e bt st e st e es s e e ssr e e e n et e nnre e e ne e e nnn e e nnne e e nnreean 9-1
NO MAN'S LANG FPD .....ciiiiiiiieie ettt e bt e e e bt e e e e e e e e e nneas 10-1
SPINGIAKE FPD ..o e e e e e s e e e e e e e e e s et et e et e e e e e santatrraeeeeeeannrrraeaeaaeaean 11-1
WESE PIAINTIEIA FPD .......eiiiiiiiiiie ettt et e e e st e e e sabr e e e e sabneeeeabneeeeanes 12-1
WIlIOW O@K FPD ...ttt s e s st e s n e e s e e n e e nnn e e s re e e nnreeenee s 13-1
L1 (= =3 o o B T O PP PP O PP P PPPPPPPOPPPPIN 14-1
0] [o 3N = T TP PP PP R PPPPPPPRPRI 15-1
ZAMOTA FPD ... 16-1
GarCia Bend CSA 9. .. i 17-1
Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 iv

87



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

MSR/SOI Background and Context

ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY OF LAFCO

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000, as amended (“CKH Act”)
(California Government Code §§56000 et seq.), is LAFCo’s governing law and outlines the requirements
for preparing Municipal Service Reviews (MSRs) for periodic Sphere of Influence (SOI) updates. MSRs
and SOls are tools created to empower LAFCo to satisfy its legislative charge of “discouraging urban
sprawl, preserving open-space and prime agricultural lands, encouraging the efficient provision of
government services, and encouraging the orderly formation and development of local agencies based
upon local conditions and circumstances.” (856301.) CKH Act Section 56301 further establishes that “[o]ne
of the objects of the commission is to make studies and to obtain and furnish information which will
contribute to the logical and reasonable development of local agencies in each county and to shape the
development of local agencies so as to advantageously provide for the present and future needs of each
county and its communities.”

Based on that legislative charge, LAFCo serves as an arm of the State by preparing and reviewing studies
and analyzing independent data to make informed, quasi-legislative decisions that guide the physical and
economic development of the state (including agricultural uses) and the efficient, cost-effective, and reliable
delivery of services to residents, landowners, and businesses. While SOls are required to be updated every
five years, they are not time-bound as planning tools by the statute but are meant to address the “probable
physical boundaries and service area of a local agency.” (§56076.) SOls therefore guide both the near-
term and long-term physical and economic development of local agencies, and MSRs provide the near-
term and long-term time-relevant data to inform LAFCo’s SOI determinations.

As described above, MSRs are designed to equip LAFCo with relevant information and data necessary for
the Commission to make informed decisions on SOls. The CKH Act gives LAFCo broad discretion in
deciding how to conduct MSRs, including geographic focus, scope of study, and the identification of
alternatives for improving the efficiency, cost-effectiveness, accountability, and reliability of public services,
including by consolidating government agencies or functions. The purpose of a MSR in general is to provide
a comprehensive inventory and analysis of the services provided by local municipalities, service areas, and
special districts. A MSR evaluates the structure and operation of the local municipalities, service areas,
and special districts and discusses possible areas for improvement and coordination. The MSR is intended
to provide information and analysis to support a sphere of influence update. A written statement of the
study’s determinations must be made in the following areas:

1. Growth and population projections for the affected area;

2. The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or
contiguous to the sphere of influence;

3. Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure
needs or deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, municipal and industrial
water, and structural fire protection in any disadvantaged, unincorporated communities within or
contiguous to the sphere of influence;

4. Financial ability of agencies to provide services;
Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities;

Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational
efficiencies; and

7. Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-1

88



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

a. Local policy requires the MSR to address broadband availability; and
b. The status of past MSR recommendations.

The MSR is organized according to these determinations listed above. Information regarding each of the
above issue areas is provided in this document.

In 1972, LAFCos were given the power to establish SOls for all local agencies under their jurisdiction. As
defined by the CKH Act, “sphere of influence’ means a plan for the probable physical boundaries and
service area of a local agency, as determined by the commission.” (§56076.) SOls are designed to both
proactively guide and respond to the need for the extension of infrastructure and delivery of municipal
services to areas of emerging growth and development. Likewise, they are also designed to discourage
urban sprawl and the premature conversion of agricultural and open space resources to urbanized uses.

The role of SOls in guiding the State’s growth and development was validated and strengthened in 2000
when the Legislature passed Assembly Bill (AB) 2838 (Chapter 761, Statutes of 2000), which was the result
of two years of labor by the Commission on Local Governance for the 215t Century, which traveled up and
down the State taking testimony from a variety of local government stakeholders and assembled an
extensive set of recommendations to the Legislature to strengthen the powers and tools of LAFCos to
promote logical and orderly growth and development, and the efficient, cost-effective, and reliable delivery
of public services to California’s residents, businesses, landowners, and visitors. The requirement for
LAFCos to conduct MSRs was established by AB 2838 as an acknowledgment of the importance of SOls
and recognition that regular periodic updates of SOIs should be conducted on a five-year basis (856425(g))
with the benefit of better information and data through MSRs (856430(a)).

Pursuant to Yolo County LAFCo policy, an SOI includes an area adjacent to a jurisdiction where
development might be reasonably expected to occur in the next 20 years. A MSR is conducted prior to, or
in conjunction with, the update of a SOI and provides the foundation for updating it.

LAFCo is required to make five written determinations when establishing, amending, or updating an SOI
for any local agency that address the following (856425(c)):

1. The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space lands.
2. The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area.

3. The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides
or is authorized to provide.

4. The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission
determines that they are relevant to the agency.

5. For an update of an SOI of a city or special district that provides public facilities or services related
to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, the present and probable
need for those public facilities and services of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities
within the existing sphere of influence.

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICTS

A fire protection district (FPD) is a California Special District, a form of local government created by a
community election process to provide fire protection, emergency rescue, and emergency medical services,
as set forth in sections 13800-13970 of the California Health and Safety Code (HSC). The Fire Protection
District Law was last updated by the State Legislature in 1987.

Fire districts in California are faced with considerable challenges, including securing adequate sustainable
revenue, public reluctance to tax themselves to fund services, increased calls for service, demand on
automatic/mutual aid, and loss of community volunteer base. The fire season has extended into nearly a

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-2

89



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

year-round event. Agencies that have traditionally relied primarily on volunteers are especially challenged,
as many see declines in volunteer ranks and diminished availability of volunteer firefighters.

With most of the state in a declared drought emergency and record setting years for wildfires, many LAFCos
statewide have either completed or are working on fire district reorganizations in their counties. LAFCos
around the state have seen a significant uptick in applications seeking approval of service contracts, and
more crucially, agency reorganization proposals.

Agencies are passing special taxes and assessments to support a growing trend of moving to paid staffing,
and they are also increasingly looking at “scaling up” by reorganizing with neighboring agencies or entering
into service contracts with other providers.

There is no “one size fits all” approach to fire service from county to county, but it's important to look at the
evolving nature of fire service and get in front of trends. LAFCos are also using the Municipal Service
Review process to identify reorganization opportunities, in some cases taking a leadership role in helping
agencies identify more effective service provision models. This is the approach for the 2022 Yolo LAFCo
Municipal Service Review (MSR) for the Yolo Fire Protection Districts (FPDs).

In Yolo County, there are currently 15 FPDs created between 1927 and 1974 that cover the entire
unincorporated area. Every district is governed by a legislative body known as a “board of directors.” (HSC
§ 13840.) Five of the FPDs are governed by independent boards and the other 10 are dependent, meaning
they are governed by the Board of Supervisors (BOS). (HSC § 13835.) For 9 of these 10 dependent
districts, the Board of Supervisors has delegated its authority to a local “fire commission” to act on its behalf
subject to removal for cause. (HSC § 13844.)

FPD Governance Terms Independent/
Per H&S Code 13844 Dependent
Capay Valley Fire Commission 4 yr terms Dependent
Clarksburg FPD Board of Directors 4 yr terms Independent
Dunnigan Fire Commission 4 yr terms Dependent
East Davis Fire Commission Indefinite Dependent
Elkhorn FPD Board of Directors 4 yr terms Independent
Esparto Fire Commission 4 yr terms Dependent
Knights Landing Fire Commission 4 yr terms Dependent
Madison FPD Board of Directors 4 yrterms Independent
No Man’s Land BOS NA Dependent
Springlake Fire Commission 4 yr terms Dependent
West Plainfield Fire Commission 4 yr terms Dependent
Willow Oak Fire Commission 4 yrterms Dependent
Winters Fire Commission 4 yr terms Dependent
Yolo FPD Board of Directors 4 yrterms Independent
Zamora FPD Board of Directors 4 yrterms Independent
Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-3

90



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Independent and Dependent Fire Protection Districts

—— N
B Ocgercen Cy o
Independert ®  Fre Staben L

4

¢ Miles ‘

o ! i 4 1 1 3 i i ]
Son

History of Consolidations and Reorganizations

Currently in Yolo County, most of the unincorporated area is served by 15 FPDs. While counties are not
required to provide fire protection services in the unincorporated areas, a county Board of Supervisors may
establish a County Service Area (CSA) to provide fire and emergency response services, among others
(Gov't Code § 25213(b)). One such CSA is CSA 9 (also known as “Garcia Bend CSA”), south of West
Sacramento. Together, these 16 districts cover all the unincorporated areas of the County to provide fire
protection and emergency response services.

However, these services have not always been provided by these same 16 districts. FPD boundaries and
governance has evolved over the decades with changing conditions as listed below. And this list may not
be complete since LAFCos were created in 1963 and its records do not go back to 1927.

Year Consolidation/Significant Reorganization

1959 Dissolved Plainfield FPD and annexed into Springlake FPD

1970 Landowner petition to detach 57 acres from Elkhorn FPD and annex to Knights
Landing FPD

1971 River Garden Farms FPD dissolved and annexed to Dunnigan and Knights Landing
FPDs

1979 Clarksburg FPD extended to the Solano County line

1980 East Yolo FPD petition to annex 1,029 acres from Elkhorn FPD

1983 Consolidation of Bryte, Washington, and Westgate FPDs into East Yolo FPD

1987 East Yolo FPD dissolved for the City of West Sacramento incorporation

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-4

91



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FUNDING

Special districts have coped with three decades of tough financial times. In 1977-78, the year before the
voters passed Proposition 13, special districts received $945 million in property tax revenues. In 1978-79,
their property tax revenues dropped to $532 million, a loss of almost 50%. In response to Proposition 13,
legislators encouraged the special districts with the power to raise revenues with user fees and service
charges and to reduce their reliance on property tax revenues. To help local governments weather the fiscal
shock caused by Proposition 13, the state sent more state money to school districts and shifted some of
the schools’ property tax revenues to counties, cities, and special districts. For special districts, these
supplemental property tax revenues went into a Special District Augmentation Fund (SDAF) in each county.
The county boards of supervisors then allocated the SDAF money to the special districts in their counties.
This practice lasted from 1978 to 1992.

Faced with huge budget deficits in 1992-93 and again in 1993-94, the state shifted almost $4 billion in
annual property taxes from local governments (counties, cities, special districts, and redevelopment
agencies) to an Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (ERAF) in each county. The property tax revenue
in the ERAF offsets the State’s constitutional duty to maintain certain funding levels for schools. Enterprise
special districts that collected user fees for their services had better chances of coping with the ERAF shifts
because their fees generate revenues rather than property taxes. The ERAF shifts hit the non-enterprise
districts especially hard because they have few ways to make up for the lost revenues. Special legislation
has granted fiscal relief to some special districts.

To cushion the impact of the shift of property tax funds from local agencies to the ERAF, the State submitted
a proposal for a new sales tax. Proposition 172 (Prop 172), the Local Public Safety Protection and
Improvement Act of 1993, was approved by California voters. It replaced a half-cent sales tax, meaning
taxpayers saw no net increase in their overall tax burden.

Mindful of the substantially larger proportion of ERAF’s impact to counties than to cities and special districts,
the State initially considered allocating all Prop 172 funds only to counties but realized success with the
voters would be enhanced with the support of city officials, so a portion was allocated to cities as well.
According to the Prop 172 analysis by the Legislative Analyst at the time, “the additional sales tax revenues
resulting from this measure are intended to offset part of the $2.3 billion in county and city revenue losses
that resulted from adoption of the State’s 1993-94 budget” that had shifted property tax revenues.

Yolo County lost 65% of its property taxes to fund schools through ERAF, which is an ongoing shift occurring
annually. This shift equaled $40.5 million in fiscal year (FY) 20/21 and the County’s share of Prop 172
replaced $24.5 million of that loss. FPDs are impacted differently by these property tax shifts. For FY 20/21
the ERAF tax shifts for 6 out of the 15 FPDs resulted in additional property tax revenue (ranging from
+13.0% to +106.5% of property tax revenue), while the other 9 FPDs lost revenue (ranging from -3.8% to -
20.0% of property tax revenue).

The purpose of Prop 172 was not increasing overall public safety funding, but to maintain public safety
funding levels in spite of property tax shifts. The monies are collected and allocated to each county based
on its proportionate share of statewide taxable sales. The FPDs are eligible to receive Prop 172 funding
and board of supervisors determine the allocation to local public safety in their county. Most counties do
not allocate Prop 172 funds for fire protection if it did not provide fire protection funding at the time Prop
172 was implemented. However, over the years some additional counties have begun to distribute some
Prop 172 funds to FPDs and currently it is estimated 43 of 58 counties do so.

Proposition 1A (2004) made it much harder for the state to shift property taxes and other local revenues
away from counties, cities, and special districts. These constitutional protections restore some fiscal stability
to special districts.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-5

92



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Local Fire Protection District Funding

FPDs are all funded from property tax revenue and some have augmented revenue by passing a special
benefit assessment on parcels in their service territory. Some FPDs also have Development Impact Fees
(DIF) adopted for new development, but such revenue is not consistent and has restrictions on how it can
be used.

The total assessed value used to determine property tax collections varies across the FPDs and revenue
collected has been reduced for many agricultural parcels by the Williamson Act program. Proposition 13 in
1978 and AB 8 that implemented it locked in the percentage of the property tax revenue received by the
FPDs. The actual tax rate areas vary within each district, but the percentage in the graph below shows the
average assessed property value of each FPD.

FY 2021 Assessed Value by Fire Protection District
$900,000,000

$800,000,000
$700,000,000
$600,000,000

$500,000,000

$400,000,000

$300,000,000

$200,000,000

$100,000,000 I
o ]

Capay Clarksburg Dunnigan East Davis Elkhom  Esparto  Knights Madison No Mans Springlake West Willow  Winters Yolo Zamora
7.6% 1.9% 4.9% 9.6% 3.2% 3.9% Landing 6.3% Land 7.4% Plainfield Oak 11.8% 3.7% 7.0%
6.8% 2.1% 13.8% 4.7%

Note: % for each FPD indicates the average share of the 1% property taxes received by the district

The bar graph below shows the core revenue (i.e., reliable revenue not including DIF, grants, CAL FIRE,
etc.) for each FPD.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-6

93



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Fiscal Year 2021 Core Revenues by FPD

$900,000
$800,000
$700,000
$600,000

$500,000

$400,000
$300,000

==
=i
$200,000
o I I I l I I
50 =
Cagay arksburg  Dumnigan | EastDuvis  Elheer Espant S adiser West  wRowOm  Wistess Zamon
snifing faimbeid

W Special assetament 3L 663 63,719 75,547 15,234 3,522 16,255 &9 6457 58,781 39,429

W Moperty taxe PYR N 57,500 200 1 “n? TR 197.04 De. 787 154 754 0837 ORI T 220.0%) YOA 408 e 122,731

Additional Financial Support
In addition to property tax and special assessment revenue, many FPDs have received a significant amount
of direct funding support through grant funding from the Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation, funding from Yolo
County (tribal mitigation, Cache Creek mitigation, and the Rural Initiatives program), and state and federal
grants as shown in the table below.

FPD Funding from Other Agencies —5 Year (FY 2017-2021) Total

YDWN Direct County Other State/Federal
Funding Tribal County Grants
Mitigation Funding
Capay Valley $ 224431 | $ 220,000 | $ 0| $ 14,000
Clarksburg - - - 66,172
Dunnigan - - 50,000 -
East Davis - - - -
Elkhorn - - - 67,157
Esparto 143,333 131,650 32,500 -
Knights Landing - - - 101,757
Madison 148,333 110,413 32,500 14,737
No Man’s Land - - 16,000 -
Springlake - - - -
West Plainfield 147,000 - 88,000 120,882
Willow Oak 450,000 127,170 32,177 12,792
Winters - - - -
Yolo 250,000 132,500 32,500 101,062
Zamora - - 50,000 68,690
TOTAL $1,363,097 $721,733 $333,677 $567,249
Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-7

94



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

In addition to FPD direct funding, the Yolo County Board of Supervisors approved several funding items to
assist fire prevention and FPD needs in its FY 2021/22 budget:

$200,000 for immediate wildfire season needs, developed a framework for fire districts to apply for
funding in October 2021, and granted funds to 14 of the fire districts in December 2021;

$300,000 of funding to prepare Proposition 218 studies for each FPD to improve fire service
revenues. The selected consultant (SCI Consulting) has begun this process and it is anticipated
that the 218 studies will be completed by the end of calendar year 2022; and

$550,000 (which is expected to be carried forward to FY 2022/23) to assist with the implementation
of LAFCo’s MSR/SOI recommendations at the direction of the Board of Supervisors.

PREVIOUS 2016 LAFCO MSR/SOI

LAFCo’s last review of FPDs was prepared by Citygate Associates and adopted by LAFCo in 2016. The
MSR identified the following key FPD challenges: rising costs and stagnant revenues, a shrinking volunteer
labor pool, and increased demands for service.

The two complaints staff heard the most from FPD representatives about the 2016 MSR are: (1) the
consultant's misunderstanding of the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA) data regarding
missed calls; and (2) the FPDs financial projections penalized them for having reserve apparatus (i.e.,
maintenance costs were included for unused reserve apparatus). These issues undermined confidence in
(and FPD acceptance of) the report and its recommendations. However, many of the 2016 MSR findings
and recommendations for shared services and governance remain valid today, including:

Despite a continual recruitment effort, most Yolo County fire protection districts struggle to
maintain an adequate roster of volunteer firefighters able to devote the time to maintain training
requirements and also be available to regularly respond to emergency incidents. (Finding #4)

Elkhorn FPD should consider a contract for service with the City of Woodland and/or the City
of West Sacramento to achieve long-term fiscal sustainability and continuity of services.
(Recommendation #8)

Esparto and Madison FPDs should consider consolidating into a single district to enhance
operational and fiscal efficiencies. (Recommendation #13)

Services could be enhanced across all of the districts by creating a cooperative countywide
regional fire service framework (Finding #14)
o Training oversight
o Common training and performance standards
o Standardization of fire apparatus design specifications
o Cooperative purchasing, including debt funding or lease purchasing of fire apparatus
and other capital equipment
Shared reserve apparatus
Shared volunteer firefighters
o Weekday staffing of selected districts with stipended firefighters to provide regional on-
duty response coverage

o O

Creation of a cooperative countywide regional fire service framework could provide a structure
that, in addition to potentially providing funding to support capital infrastructure replacement,
could also provide other operational and support benefits to rural fire districts without loss of
local control (Finding #40)

The rural fire districts should consider exploring feasibility and support to expand the authority
and powers of the West Valley Regional Fire Training Consortium, or the Yolo County Fire

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-8

95



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Chiefs Association, to provide a cooperative countywide regional fire service framework
(Recommendation #14)

Unfortunately, no action has been taken by the FPDs on any of these recommendations listed above since
the 2016 MSR. Therefore, these issues remain and are addressed again, albeit with a different strategy,
with this 2022 MSR.

Below are the recommendations from the 2016 LAFCo MSR that were common to all FPDs, along with
their respective status. The recommendations particular to individual FPDs are discussed in each individual
FPD section of the report. The MSR’s most far-reaching recommendation was to have an overarching joint
powers agency (JPA) or association help with common FPD issues to achieve regional efficiencies, but it
never occurred. Hopefully, the more incremental, regional approach of this 2022 MSR/SOI will help scale
up the FPDs to be more efficient and resilient to withstand changing times.

1. The Yolo County Fire Chiefs Association “No Response” policy could be enhanced by requiring
acknowledgement of a dispatch by radio or telephone within a specified time period (e.g., 90
seconds) of the dispatch notification, indicating the district’s ability to respond, before the next
closest department is dispatched. (Status: completed)

2. The Yolo County Fire Chiefs Association considers requesting that YECA track the calls where the
next fire district responds in place of the responsible fire district and a regular periodic report of
“missed calls” from YECA. (Status: completed)

3. Within available funding, fire apparatus should be considered for replacement after not more than
25 years of service life. (Status: some FPDs cannot afford to maintain all apparatus within 25
years of service life)

4. The 11 districts that provide direct fire protection services should consider adopting a standardized
fire apparatus inventory with common design specifications and equipment when purchasing new
apparatus. (Status: not completed. FPDs often purchase used apparatus and every chief has
a preference, but some standardization within reason could occur)

5. The rural fire districts should consider exploring feasibility and support to expand the authority and
powers of the West Valley Regional Fire Training Consortium or the Yolo County Fire Chiefs
Association to provide a cooperative countywide regional fire service framework. (Status: not
completed)

6. The 11 districts that provide direct fire protection services should consider adopting a standardized
fire apparatus inventory with common design specifications and equipment when purchasing new
apparatus. (Status: not completed. FPDs often purchase used apparatus and every chief has
a preference, but some standardization within reason could occur)

2022 MSR SUBCOMMITTEE

The Yolo County Firefighters Association (YCFA) formed a volunteer subcommittee of fire chiefs to work
with LAFCo providing critical fire professional expertise to assist LAFCo staff in preparing this report in-
house. The MSR Subcommittee was invaluable and contributed to this report in the following ways:

¢ |dentified the key information needed from each FPD to MSR review;

o Developed recommended guidelines for evaluation: response times, response adequacy in terms
of minimum numbers of personnel and apparatus on scene;

e Recruited a fire commissioner with skills to perform data analytics and visualize the data for the
MSR; and

e Governance recommendations.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-9

96



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

DISPATCH RESPONSE TIME AND ADEQUACY: METHODOLOGY
AND COMPARATIVE DATA

FPD call volume has gone up over the last three years (some quite significantly) for all but one of the FPDs,
by an average of 28%. Over this time medical calls were up while fire calls were down, which may reflect
COVID surges, people on lockdown and more careful about drought conditions. Increased traffic along
some corridors is also likely a contributing factor. If this trend continues, staff changes may be required to
service increasing demand.

Dispatch call volume and percentage increase is shown for each FPD in the table below.
FPD Dispatch Call Volume and % Increase Over Last 3 FYs

FPD Est. Total Total Total Dispatch

Residential | Dispatch | Dispatch | Dispatch | % Change

Population | FY 18/19 | FY 19/20 | FY 20/21 | over 3 FYs
Capay Valley FPD 1,130 144 188 194 35%
Clarksburg FPD 1,260 209 261 268 28%
Dunnigan FPD 1,110 388 574 551 42%
East Davis FPD 2,075 324 312 297 -8%
Elkhorn FPD 128 95 114 168 77%
Esparto FPD 3,122 460 532 589 28%
Knights Landing FPD 1,058 232 303 325 40%
Madison FPD 962 266 299 321 21%
No Man's Land FPD 82 13 6 15 15%
Springlake FPD 6,587 208 225 240 15%
West Plainfield FPD 752 140 194 233 66%
Willow Oak FPD 2,502 467 484 554 19%
Winters FPD 5,845 215 223 301 40%
Yolo FPD 970 381 407 458 20%
Zamora FPD 335 113 137 152 35%
TOTAL/AVERAGE 27,918 3,655 4,259 4666 | 28%

LAFCo worked with the MSR Subcommittee appointed by the Yolo County Firefighters Association to
determine adequate response times and the adequacy of response in terms of numbers of personnel and
apparatus on scene.

The subcommittee indicated that the response times in NFPA 1720 are intended for structure fires only and
indicate the time for all responding apparatus and personnel to arrive on scene. So instead, the MSR
Subcommittee developed response time goals for fire calls (9 minutes) and rescue/emergency medical
service (EMS) calls (6 minutes) for the first responding unit to arrive on scene. LAFCo recognizes it may
be more difficult for volunteer and/or more rural FPDs to meet this goal, however as the MSR Subcommittee
indicated, it represents a goal to focus on.

FPD response time averages for each calendar year are included in each report. The following data outliers
were omitted:

e Any apparatus which went enroute, was cancelled and then went enroute again, as this gave an
inflated response time.
e Any instances where an apparatus’ enroute time matched it's on-scene time; and

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-10

97



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

e Any instances where apparatus was enroute but didn’t show arrival after 30 minutes (because
occasionally with the intensity on scene, responders forget to record arrival time).

In terms of the adequacy of response, it was decided by consensus of the MSR Subcommittee that the
following response numbers are deemed an adequate response. These numbers represent the initial
response needed to respond initially to a call. This was done to have objective data metrics for analysis
and is based on the chiefs’ combined experience and the assumption that additional staff would arrive after
initial assessment via mutual/auto aid as needed.

Types of Calls Personnel | Apparatus
Fire Calls (100 Series) 4 2
Rescue/EMS Calls (300 Series) 3 1

The following performance data is based on FPD self-reported incident response data. In most cases, the
data came directly from the National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) reports for each FPD. But it
the case of Dunnigan, Yolo, and Zamora the data was reported directly to LAFCo in the same manner.
Contract FPDs served by local cities are not included.

The tables below are sorted based on the average number of personnel responding to each type of call
(highest to lowest). The FPDs that do not meet the recommended minimum standards are highlighted in
yellow. Other information regarding FPD revenue, population, staffing, and dispatch numbers are included
for informational purposes. It is interesting to note there is not a direct correlation between revenue and
response, nor a volunteer staff versus paid staff model. There is no one answer, and each FPD is unique,
but the strength of community (i.e., local events, volunteerism, people who remain local during daytime
hours and do not commute out of the area, etc.) seems more indicative of effective response than any other
factor. As the strength of a community and its population’s involvement declines, FPDs must shift to a paid
(stipended volunteer or full-time employee) staffing model.

FY 20/21 Fire Incident Response (100 Series)

Avg. No. Est. Total Total % Enroutes
Total No. | Avg. No. of FY21 Residential Station Dispatch Total Inside Outside Missed
FPD Incidents Personnel Apparatus Revenue Pop Staffing Numbers Jurisdiction Jurisdiction Inside FPD
Capay Valley 16 7.31 3.56 $ 345,054 1,130 On Call 194 149 45 0.7%
Clarksburg 31 6.52 3.26 $ 185,488 1,260 On Call 268 250 18
West Plainfield 20 4.50 3.30 S 436,438 752 Full Time 24/7 233 180 53
Zamora 11 4.45 1.55 $ 163,500 335 On Call 152 110 42 1.8%
Yolo 141 4.08 1.60 $ 273,598 970 Part Time 458 278 180
Esparto 30 4.07 2.23 S 378,394 3,122 Part Time 589 469 120 0.2%
Madison 29 3.97 2.31 S 325,805 962 Part Time 321 175 146
Willow Oak 34 3.76 2.12 S 750,321 2,502 Full Time 24/7 554 382 172
Knights Landing 22 3.05 2.50 S 144,191 1,058 On Call 325 167 158 3.0%
Dunnigan 100 2.61 1.49 S 560,178 1,110 Full Time 24/7 551 498 53 0.4%
Elkhorn 8 1.50 1.50 S 112,436 128 On Call 168 150 18 6.7%

Highlighted FPDs are not meeting min of 4 personnel

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-11

98



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

FY 20/21 Rescue/EMS Incident Response (300 Series)

Avg. No. Est. Total Total % Enroutes
Total No. Avg. No. of FY21 Residential Station Dispatch Total Inside Outside Missed
FPD Incidents Personnel Apparatus Revenue Pop Staffing Numbers Jurisdiction Jurisdiction Inside FPD
Clarksburg 96 5.82 2.59 $ 185,488 1,260 On Call 268 250 18
Yolo 216 4.40 1.65 $ 273,598 970 Part Time 458 278 180
Capay Valley 48 3.92 2.23 $ 345,054 1,130 On Call 194 149 45 0.7%
Zamora 55 3.82 1.05 $ 163,500 335 On Call 152 110 42 1.8%
Willow Oak 155 3.29 1.67 $ 750,321 2,502 Full Time 24/7 554 382 172
West Plainfield 67 3.10 2.07 S 436,438 752 Full Time 24/7 233 180 53
Knights Landing 48 3.10 2.25 S 144,191 1,058 On Call 325 167 158 3.0%
Madison 103 2.91 1.73 S 325,805 962 Part Time 321 175 146
Dunnigan 267 2.50 1.29 S 560,178 1,110 Full Time 24/7 551 498 53 0.4%
Esparto 317 2.37 1.68 S 378,394 3,122 Part Time 589 469 120 0.2%
Elkhorn 55 1.16 1.15 S 112,436 128 On Call 168 150 18 6.7%

Highlighted FPDs are not meeting min of 3 personnel

FINA

NCIAL SUSTAINABILITY: METHODOLOGY AND

COMPARATIVE DATA

Fourteen of the 15 FPDs are financially stable on an annual revenue/expenditure, cash flow basis. No
Man’s Land FPD is the only FPD operating in the negative or “in the red” on an annual basis. Where financial
sustainability issues show up for the 11 FPDs that provide direct services (i.e., not the contract FPDSs) is

keeping

up with apparatus and command vehicle replacement and being able to save enough funds for

timely replacement. This is an especially volatile cost climate in 2022 with supply chain issues driving up
costs and high inflation. To determine whether the FPD’s have adequate fund balances/reserves as of June
30, 2021, LAFCo used the following methodology to calculate recommended fund balances/reserves:

Capital Asset Replacement Reserve. The purpose of this calculation is to provide a high-level
estimate to determine whether the District was on schedule to replace apparatus according to the
recommended life of 25 years for apparatus and a life of 15 years for command vehicles. The
estimated cost of replacement are estimates from the MSR Subcommittee. The calculation was
based on depositing 1/25 or 1/15 of the estimated replacement cost each fiscal year after the year
of acquisition, rounded to the nearest $10,000. The calculation does not factor prices change or
inflation. It is intended get a high-level view whether the district has been setting aside enough
money to replace vehicles according to recommended lifespan.

General reserve. The State Controller's Manual of Accounting Standards and Procedures for
Counties (including dependent districts) 2021 Item 7.06 recommends a general reserve be
established to cover potential cash shortfalls. FPDs receive most of its revenue from current
secured property taxes and special assessments of which both are collected and distributed to
districts using the same process. Districts receive 50% of these revenue in Dec/Jan, 45% in
Apr/May and the remaining 5% in June. FPDs are operating from July to December with little
revenue being received. The purpose of the General Reserve is to provide cash/liquidity during this
July to December period. The calculation is 50% of current secured taxes and 50% of special
assessments realized in fiscal year 2021.

Unassigned Fund Balance. As recommended by the Fund Balance Guidelines for the General
Fund dated September 30, 2015, Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA)
recommendation is to have an amount approximating 2 months of operating expenditures in
unassigned fund balance to cover a revenue shortage and/or unanticipated expenditures. This
amount is calculated by requiring an unassigned fund balance to equal 15% of fiscal year 2021
expenditures, excluding capital expenditures and deducted strike team reimbursements.

Recommended Fund Balance. The total of all the above.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-12

99



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

2022 GOVERNANCE RECOMMENDATIONS OVERVIEW

Overall Strategy/Approach

The scope of this discussion is framed by the following determinations required for each MSR (collectively
referred to as “governance” recommendations):

e Shared Services and Facilities: “Status of, and opportunities for, shared services and facilities”

e Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies: “Accountability for community service needs, including
governmental structure and operational efficiencies”

Given the adequacy, deficiencies, and needs of fire services provided by each FPD, the MSR
Subcommittee met five times in January 2022 to develop draft governance recommendations.

The MSR Subcommittee was guided by the following values and principles:
¢ What promotes the best service to the public?
e What is the most efficient and effective utilization of our resources?
e Whatis the “right” balance of economies of scale versus flexibility to address local conditions?

Below is an explanation of the overall approach and strategy. Individual recommendations for each FPD
to implement this strategy are included in each individual section of this MSR/SOI as applicable.

The 15 FPDs are separated into Areas 1-5 with recommendations for each. The base map shows a heat
map representing calls for service, a data visualization technique that shows the magnitude and spatial
distribution of calls for service. Below this map a narrative follows that explains what is recommended for
each of Areas 1-5 shown.

Fire Service Areas 1-5

DRAFT FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY

Fire Service Areas 1-S [ote: Does rot kctude Dins dispench @ta) 9
P Aleas p :
-t T 5

) trtng Poe Froteetis Dty 1
0 4 - 16 Mias

—

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

1-13

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

100



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Recommendations for Fire Service Areas 1-3

Fire Service Areas (“Areas”) 1-3 include FPDs that provide direct services (i.e., have their own personnel
and equipment and do not contract with cities for service). Staff recommends the FPDs in each Area
develop governance solutions that will provide for a coordinated and more uniform level of service and
operation. The governance solution for each Area could take a variety of forms including: Joint Operation
Agreements (JOAs), contracts for services, Joint Powers Agreements/Agencies (JPAs), or agency
merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint operations in each Area is to achieve a similar service
standard, efficient use of resources, consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved
coordination during incident response.

The selection for FPDs for each area were based on geography, history of working together formally or
informally, and the fire service principle of “span of control.” Span of control refers to the number of
individuals or resources that one supervisor can manage effectively during an incident. The optimal span
of control is one supervisor to five subordinates (1:5) but can range from 1:3 to 1:7. For the MSR, this
principle is being used instead as the ideal number of stations in Areas 1-3 for coordination purposes.

Area 1 FPDs (FY 20/21)

Est. Dispatches Paid Fire Reserves
Resida ntial Total Insida Core Ending Fund Station Parsonnal  with
FPD Area (ac) Pop. Dispatches Jurisdiction Revenue Balance 150 Coverage (FTE) stipend Volunteers
Capay Valley D 110,345 1,130 154 149 5214,5901 51,220,126 8 On Call 1.5 0 17
Esparto D 48,161 3,122 589 49 298,188 5 B10,273 5/10 Regular Hours 2.5 6 21
Madison | 42,325 962 321 175 5254,074 5 493,678 5/10 Regular Hours 2.0 12 12
Area 2 FPDs (FY 20/21)
Est. Dispatches Paid Fire Reserves
Residential Total Inside Core Ending Fund Station Personnel  with
FPD Area (ac) Pop. Dispatches Jurisdiction Revenue Balance 1SO Coverage (FTE) stipend Volunteers
Dunnigan D 70,351 1,110 551 498 $209,196 $ 514,613 NP Full Time 24/7 0 0 31
Knights Landing D 23,692 1,058 325 167 $119,981 $ 381,193 5/5Y On Call 0 0 13
Yolo | 33,584 970 458 278 $192,180 $ 241,560 4/4Y Regular Hours 1.0 0 21
Zamora | 33,709 335 152 110 $157,907 $ 648,080 8b/10 On Call 0 0 13
Area 3 FPDs (FY 20/21)
Est. Dispatches Paid Fire Reserves
Residential  Total Inside Core Ending Fund Station Personnel  with
FPD Area (ac) Pop. Dispatches Jurisdiction Revenue Balance 1SO Coverage (FTE) stipend Volunteers
West Plainfield D 21,221 752 233 180 $370,093 $ 385,631 3/3Y Full Time 24/7 3.75 3 19
Willow Oak D 21,546 2,502 554 382 $453,387 S 865485 3/3Y Full Time 24/7 4.0 15 16

The recommendation is for the FPDs to sign JOAs for each Area to share staff, apparatus, training,
reporting, and standardization. These JOAs would create the framework for what's called a “functional
consolidation” in LAFCo terminology, meaning the FPDs in an Area are operating together for many
practical purposes, but not a legal consolidation of the agencies. A JOA could lay the groundwork for a later
consolidation or it may suffice long-term.

The matrix below shows the efficiencies that could be achieved with either a JOA or consolidation. Most
efficiencies can be achieved with a JOA, so legal consolidation may not be worth the cost and effort
depending on the situation.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI

LAFCo No. 21-05

1-14

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

101



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Joint Operations Agreement Versus Legal Consolidation

Status Joint Consolidation
Quo Operations (or Dissolution/
Agreement Annexation)
Improved station coverage
Shared paid personnel, reserves and
' v v
volunteers
Shared reserve apparatus
Standardization (equipment, UFC, training,

. - v v
testing, policies, and procedures)
Cooperative Purchasing
Consolidated FPD board/commission

: v
(1 instead of 3)
Reduced administration costs
(1 insurance, incident reporting, SCO
report, website, budget, AP, grants, etc.
instead of 3)

Easier to Undo NA

Recommendations for Fire Service Area 4
The FPDs in this area include Elkhorn FPD, the four contract FPDs, and CSA 9.

Area 4 FPDs (FY 20/21)

Est. Dispatches

Residential Total Inside Core Ending Fund

FPD Area (ac) Pop. Dispatches Jurisdiction Revenue Balance
East Davis D 29,143 2,075 297 297 $824,863 $1,432,155
Elkhorn | 30,703 128 168 150 $111,853 S 365,374
NoMansland D 35,639 82 15 15 S 26,896 S 2,879

Springlake D 32,545 6,587 240 240 $556,024 S -
Winters D 50,528 1,015 301 301 $375,948 $ 500,005

Paid Fire Reserves

Station Personnel  with
1SO Coverage (FTE) stipend Volunteers
NA (City) City Contract NA NA NA
NR On Call 0 0 8
NA (City) City Contract NA NA NA
NA (City) City Contract NA NA NA
NA (City) City Contract NA NA NA

It is recommended Elkhorn FPD be dissolved and its service territory be divided between the cities of West
Sacramento (by annexation into CSA 9) and Woodland (by annexation into Springlake FPD) for services
per the 2015 auto aid agreement boundary.

LAFCo also recommends the following reorganization of the contract districts around Davis and Woodland:

(i)
(ii)

Springlake FPD detach its territory south of County Road 29 and that area be annexed to East

Davis FPD.

No Man’s Land FPD be dissolved and annexed to East Davis FPD.

The result is the reduction of five districts into three districts that align to each city service territory, as shown
below. Winters FPD would remain as is because it already aligns to its city service area.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

1-15

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

102



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Area 4 Recommended Reorganization

Famona Fre
o Prstection
Dratrct 7
Yolo Fire
Protection

Distnct

'e

aewtaie Otacn

Existing FPD Boundaries and Propased SOI

N

e rves o A l
B wet e rerwets e Jone 0] Contrg Pre Ptmton Deatts

W~ eatew e Saw ‘
LR T

33 65 13 Mins

Recommendations for Fire Service Area 5

Clarksburg FPD’s land-locked geography limits its ability to share services and operations with other FPDs.
Therefore, it is recommended to remain as-is.

Area 5 FPD (FY 20/21)

Est. Dispatches Paid Fire Reserves
Residential Total Inside Core Ending Fund Station Personnel  with
FPD Area (ac) Pop. Dispatches Jurisdiction Revenue Balance 1SO Coverage (FTE) stipend Volunteers
Clarksburg I 34,665 1,260 268 250 $178,969 $ 853,612 5/8 On Call 0 0 20

Governance Recommendations Outreach

Once the FPD MSR Subcommittee arrived at the draft recommendation in January, LAFCo staff organized
and presented at many outreach meetings to share the information as quickly as possible and obtain FPD
and community feedback. Presentations were provided to all FPD Boards/Commissions (sometimes twice)
except for Zamora FPD, which declined the presentation.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-16

103



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Date Meeting

February 8 Yolo County Firefighters Association
February 17 Winters FPD

February 17 East Davis FPD

February 21 Area 1 (Capay, Esparto & Madison FPDs)
February 28 Area 3 (West Plainfield & Willow Oak FPDs)

March 2 East Davis FPD

March 3 Clarksburg FPD

March 7 Yolo FPD

March 9 Elkhorn FPD

March 9 Dunnigan FPD

March 11 Yolo Managers (city/county managers)
March 14 Madison FPD

March 14 Knights Landing FPD

March 25 City of Winters

As of June 2022, all FPDs in Areas 1-3 have already signed JOAs or are in the process of doing so. LAFCo
applauds the FPDs for their work towards this effort. Recommendations are included for each of these
FPDs to ensure they continue to contribute to these JOAs.

OVERARCHING MSR RECOMMENDATIONS

During this MSR/SOI process, several issues came up that span many or all of the FPDs and that should
be implemented.

YCFA Recommendation

o The FPDs that use YECA for dispatch should collectively review the response matrix to ensure the
fastest response on all calls (LAFCo’s understanding is this currently occurs with medical aid calls

only).
Yolo County Recommendations

e Yolo County should continue to review FPD progress towards implementing its district's 2022 MSR
recommendations as it works with the FPDs on sustainability efforts going forward.

e Yolo County voluntarily provides $150,000 of its Intergovernmental Agreement funding from the
Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation each year to five FPDs ($30,000 each) affected by the Cache Creek
Resort operations. These have been traditionally earmarked for capital investments; however, the
County should consider providing this funding as a pass-through for more FPD flexibility to meet
service needs in their jurisdictions.

¢ Yolo County should work with its contract FPD fire commissions to standardize and streamline its
service contracts with cities to the greatest extent feasible. Financially, contract FPDs should
operate as pass-through districts similar to Springlake FPD and CSA 9. From a risk perspective,
Winters FPD has strong provisions that should be considered as a model regarding providing
contract FPDs return of its original station and necessary apparatus to minimize risk in the unlikely
event a city ever closes its station or services are terminated.

e Yolo County DFS staff should meet each year with each dependent FPD (and independent FPDs
if requested) to review agency finances, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior
years, analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear
reasonable. In addition, provide DIF reporting training as applicable.

e Yolo County DFS should work with districts to develop accounting policies, procedures, and
accounting manuals. Assist districts with interpreting INFOR reports and develop user friendly

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-17

104



YoLo LAFCo MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW /SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

reports for fire commissioners and board members. Develop a periodic report/transactions review
process to ensure only and all transactions approved by the board are included in the financial
system.

ORGANIZATION OF THIS MSR/SOI STUDY

This report has been organized in a checklist format to focus the information and discussion on key issues
that may be particularly relevant to the subject agency while providing required LAFCo’s MSR and SOI
determinations. There is one section per district. The checklist questions are based on the Cortese-Knox-
Hertzberg Act, the LAFCo MSR Guidelines prepared by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research,
and Yolo LAFCo’s local policies and procedures. This report provides the following for each district:

. Provides a description of the subject agency;

. Provides any new information since the last MSR and a determination regarding the need to update
the SOI;

. Provides MSR and SOl draft determinations for public and Commission review; and

. Identifies any other issues that the Commission should consider in the MSR/SOI.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05 1-18

105



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

AGENCY PROFILE

The Capay Valley Fire Protection District (Capay Valley FPD) was formed in 1927 and is authorized to
provide fire protection and emergency response services. It was formed as a dependent district to Yolo
County, which delegated its decision making to a local Fire Commission with five members, each appointed
by the Board of Supervisors to serve four-year terms.

The Capay Valley FPD is 110,345 acres in size and serves the unincorporated communities of Brooks,
Guinda, Rumsey, and the surrounding rural area. The entire Capay Valley FPD territory is located within
state and federal responsibility areas. CAL FIRE has a legal responsibility to provide fire protection on all
State Responsibility Area (SRA) lands, which are defined based on land ownership, population density and
land use. CAL FIRE does not have responsibility for densely populated areas, incorporated cities,
agricultural lands, or lands administered by the federal government.

Capay Valley FPD contains 452 residential and 23 commercial addresses and its residential population is
estimated to be 1,130 residents!. The Capay Valley FPD has three stations: Station 21 located at 13635
Highway 16 in Brooks; Station 22 located at 7447 Highway 16 in Guinda; and Station 23 located at 3794
Highway 16 in Rumsey. The District has 7 apparatus has 1 part-time paid staff, O reserves and 18 volunteers
(19 firefighters total). It also shares a full-time firefighter employed by Esparto FPD, which Capay Valley
FPD uses 3 days per week.

The Capay Valley FPD boundary and sphere of influence (SOI) is shown below. The SOl area was adopted
by LAFCo in 2016 to accommodate a territory swap with Esparto FPD to facilitate more efficient response.

Capay Valley Fire Protection District Boundary and Sphere of influence

.. 4 = oo

L .

Adopted by Yalo LAFCo June 23, 2016

1 Population estimate is based on addresses assigned in 2021 in the FPD territory with a Yolo County average of 2.5
persons per household.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
2-1
106



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW

POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT MSR DETERMINATIONS

The MSR determinations checked below are potentially significant, as indicated by “yes” or “maybe”
answers to the key policy questions in the checklist and corresponding discussion on the following pages.
If most or all of the determinations are not significant, as indicated by “no” answers, the Commission may
find that a MSR update is not warranted.

Growth and Population XI Shared Services

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities

X  Accountability
Capacity, Adequacy & Infrastructure to Provide X
X

Broadband Access

Status of Previous MSR
Recommendations

Services

X X OO

Financial Ability

LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW:

[ ] On the basis of this initial evaluation, the required determinations are not significant and staff
recommends that an MSR is NOT NECESSARY. The subject agency will be reviewed again in five
years per Government Code Section 56425(qg).

[XI The subject agency has potentially significant determinations and staff recommends that a
comprehensive MSR IS NECESSARY and has been conducted via this checklist.

1. GROWTH AND POPULATION
Growth and population projections for the affected area. YES MAYBE NO

a) Will development and/or population projections over the next 5-10 O] ] X
years impact the subject agency’s service needs and demands?

b) Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s ] ] X
services?

Discussion:

a) Will development and/or population projections over the next 5-10 years impact the subject agency’s service
needs and demands?

No. The population for Capay Valley FPD is currently estimated to be 1,130. The unincorporated towns
of Brooks-Tancred has a population of 120, Guinda has a population of 245, and Rumsey has a
population of 91 per the 2020 Census. None of these towns have municipal water or sewer systems,
and therefore, cannot support significant growth.

However, according to data from the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), Capay Valley
FPD calls have increased. Over the last three fiscal years, total calls that resulted in dispatched
apparatus/responders were 144 in FY 18/19, 188 in FY 19/20 and 194 in FY 20/21, a 35% increase in
only three years.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
2-2
107



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b) Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s services?

No. Inthe 2016 MSR, a boundary swap was recommended with Esparto FPD to provide a more efficient
response time, however, both FPDs have entered into a Joint Operations Agreement (JOA) and are
working together and coordinating operations. Also, Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA)
dispatch response matrixes can be changed anytime regardless of boundaries. Therefore, boundary
changes are no longer necessary.

Growth and Population MSR Determination

The population for Capay Valley FPD is currently estimated to be 1,130. The unincorporated towns do not
have municipal water or sewer systems, and therefore, cannot support significant growth. However,
according to data from the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), Capay Valley FPD calls
have increased. Over the last three fiscal years, total calls that resulted in dispatched apparatus/responders
were 144 in FY 18/19, 188 in FY 19/20 and 194 in FY 20/21, a 35% increase in only three years. Capay
Valley FPD has entered into a JOA with Esparto FPD, therefore a boundary swap recommended in the
2016 MSR is no longer needed. Changes in service demand does not suggest a change in the District’s
services.

2. DISADVANTAGED UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES

The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the
sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers,
municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, are
there any ‘inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted
Commission policy) within or adjacent to the subject agency’s ] ] X
sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or
less of the statewide median household income) that do not
already have access to public water, sewer and structural fire
protection?

b) If “yes” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such
that it can extend service to the disadvantaged unincorporated O] ] X
community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it
is either not needed or not applicable.

Discussion:

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire
protection, are there any “inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted Commission policy) within or
adjacent to the subject agency’s sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or less of the
statewide median household income) that do not already have access to public water, sewer and structural
fire protection?

No. The Capay Valley FPD territory is not disadvantaged ? and all “inhabited unincorporated
communities” countywide receive structural fire protection services.

b) If “yes” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such that it can extend service to the
disadvantaged unincorporated community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it is either not
needed or not applicable.

2 CALAFCO Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities for State, RSG Inc. GIS Layer, dated December 10, 2021

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

2-3
108



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Not applicable.

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities MSR Determination

The Capay Valley FPD territory is not disadvantaged per the 2020 Census and all “inhabited unincorporated
communities” countywide receive structural fire protection services. Therefore, there is no concern that
Capay Valley is either not receiving fire protection services or not receiving similar services due to
disadvantaged economic issues in the Capay Valley FPD community.

3. CAPACITY AND ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES

Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or
deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire
protection in any disadvantaged, unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and
capacity of agency facilities to meet existing service needs for ] X n
which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve
(including deficiencies created by new state regulations)?

b) Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan ] ] X
in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e.,
number of staff and/or contracts).

c) Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability

to meet the service demand of reasonably foreseeable future 0 O X
growth?
d) Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its ] ] X

assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

e) Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged
unincorporated communities related to sewers, municipal and O] O] X
industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous
to the agency’s sphere of influence?

Discussion:

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and capacity of agency facilities to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve (including deficiencies
created by new state regulations)?

Maybe.
Fire Station

Station 21 (Brooks) was built in the early 1970s, Station 22 (Guinda) was built in 1940, and Station 23
(Rumsey) was built in 2003. Station 22 in Guinda is the primary station used by the District. Since the
station is 80 years old, it needs improvements. Capay Valley FPD is seeking a DWR grant for a new
transfer pump for its water storage tanks. The leach lines for the septic system were recently found to
be non-functional due to tree root infiltration which will require either replacement or extensive repair.
Also, new concrete work is needed in the station, which is estimated to cost approximately $120,000.
It is also seeking FEMA funds for an exhaust source capture system for diesel exhaust and hopes to
build personnel sleeping quarters in the station to facilitate 24-hour staffing in the future.

Station 21 (Brooks) has a water tender housed there. Capay Valley FPD is assessing the best location
for additional apparatus in Brooks given the location of firefighters’ residences and most common types

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
2-4
109



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

of emergency calls in the area. Station 23 (Rumsey) is also a less-frequently used volunteer station.

Capay Valley FPD also has an auto aid agreement with the Yocha Dehe Fire Department.

Station 22 in Guinda is shown below.

Apparatus:

The table below lists the CVFCD apparatus.

Use Apparatus Type Age Reserve?

Structure Fires Engine 22 1 7 No
Engine 23 2 26 No

Wildlands Fires Brush 222 3 1 No
Brush 22 6 5 No
Brush 21 3 20 Yes

Water Tenders Water 222 Tactical 1 0 No
Water-22 Tactical 1 21 No
Water 21 Tactical 1 30 Yes

Command/Utility None

Other Apparatus None

One of Capay Valley FPD’s apparatus exceeds the recommended 25-year life span. However, it is
located at the volunteer station, is scheduled to be the next replacement vehicle, and the Chief reports
it is completely reliable at this time.

All Capay Valley FPD apparatus receive annual service, regularly scheduled rig checks, and annual
pump testing. Hoses and ladders are currently not tested regularly. Capay Valley FPD currently
supplies all responding members with appropriate, up-to-date personal protective equipment (PPE).
PPE is regularly inspected and follows a PPE replacement schedule. All self-contained breathing
apparatus (SCBA) receive annual flow testing and all bottles are current in hydro date. Capay Valley
FPD operates adequate communications equipment including radios with current programing that

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI

LAFCo No. 21-05

2-5

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

110



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

meets the needs for incident response. All apparatus seats have a dedicated radio which are older but
are serviceable and compatible with CAL FIRE.

ISO Rating

The Insurance Services Office, Inc. (ISO) evaluates fire departments for the purpose of establishing
insurance premiums, called “ISO ratings”. An ISO fire rating is a score from 1 to 10 that indicates how
well-protected a community is by the fire department and will affect insurance rates. Capay Valley
FPD’s ISO rating is 8. In the ISO rating scale, a lower number is better: 1 is the best possible rating,
while a 10 means the fire department did not meet ISO's minimum requirements. ISO generally assigns
Class 10 to properties beyond 5 road miles of a fire station.

Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet existing service needs for which the agency
does not have a plan in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e., number of staff and/or
contracts).

No.

Staff, Coverage and Training

The Capay Valley FPD 1 paid staff, O reserves and 18 volunteers (19 firefighters total). Its part-time
paid firefighter staffs Guinda Station 22 3 days a week during the daytime hours. The station is also
staffed by a volunteer firefighter an additional 3-4 days a week during daytime hours to provide 6-7 day
a week coverage for the Capay Valley. All volunteers respond on-call 24/7 when available.

All new staff members are provided a handbook that documents and ensures all members are getting
base level minimum training to respond to incidents adequately and safely. Incident Command System
(ICS) basic training is a requirement before responders can respond to incidents, and it is included in
new staff member handbooks. Capay Valley FPD participates in the Yolo County Firefighters
Association Training Program. Responding firefighters are fit tested on an annual basis.

Capay Valley FPD has written operating policies and guidelines for its staff. Esparto and Capay Valley
FPDs are working toward standardizing written operating policies and guidelines due to the two districts
entering into a JOA.

Incident Reporting

Capay Valley FPD utilizes Emergency Reporting web-based program for reporting and documentation.
National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) reports are exported monthly, although staff indicated
the data is not complete until the last two fiscal years. Jennifer Bowman at Cal Stats (California Incident
Data and Statistics Program) confirmed for the Chief that Capay Valley FPD’s call information since
2006 was properly submitted and is in the State database, but it did not make it into NFIRS for some
reason. The Chief will ask for it to be updated manually, but it will not be timely enough to be included
in this report.

Capay Valley FPD has had 5 missed calls in the last three FYs and has exceeded the benchmarks
determined by the Fire Chiefs MSR Subcommittee for average number of personnel and apparatus
every year for the past 5 FYs.

Below is Capay Valley FPD’s NFIRS response data for the last five FYs:

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

2-6
111



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Capay Valley FPD Capay Valley FPD
300 (EMS) Series Incidents 100 (Fire) Series Incidents

Mrimum Peaponee (4 Persorne’

g nolm nofm
—e ° R
o @

As noted above, the graphs above only show NFIRS data for the last two fiscal years. However for the
years provided, Capay Valley FPD exceeds recommended personnel and apparatus response for both

rescue/EMS and fire calls.

Response Time and Missed Calls

The MSR Subcommittee developed response time goals for rescue/emergency medical service (EMS)
calls (6 minutes) and fire calls (9 minutes) for the first responding unit to arrive on scene. LAFCo
recognizes it may be more difficult for volunteer and/or more rural FPDs to meet this goal, however as
the MSR Subcommittee indicated, it represents a goal to focus on. FPD response time averages? for
the 2019 — 2021 calendar years are shown below.

Capay Valley FPD
300 (EMS) Response Time Average

3 Based on YECA data. For a list of the data outliers omitted, please reference the methodology discussion on page 1-
10 of this MSR/SOI.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

LAFCo No. 21-05
2-7
112



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

c)

d)

Capay Valley FPD
100 (Fire) Response Time Average

According to YECA data, Capay Valley FPD has 2 missed calls (or 2.1%) in FY 18/19, 2 missed calls
(or 1.4%) in FY 19/20, and 1 missed call (or 0.7%) in FY 20/21.

Annual Performance Evaluation

NFPA requires FPDs to evaluate its level of service, deployment, and response time objectives on an
annual basis. Although Capay Valley FPD may discuss levels of service and performance verbally at
fire commission meetings, it would be a good practice to provide a written evaluation of the Capay
Valley FPD’s level of service, deployment, and response time objectives on an annual basis.

Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability to meet the service demand of reasonably
foreseeable future growth?

No. Please see the response to la.
Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

No. The Capay Valley FPD borders the Coastal Range and is included in the State Responsibility Area.
Fires in 2020 significantly impacted the valley and Capay Valley FPD was the first line of defense before
CalFire came on scene. There has been a significant wildfire every season in recent years except 2021.
That said, Capay Valley FPD has included this high fire risk in its assessment of infrastructure and
service needs. It has the apparatus and hose length to address significant wildfire risk. Most of the
Capay Valley FPD ranges from medium to very high fire hazard severity zones.

Capay Valley FPD’s goal in its 5-year plan is to increase staffing and improve preparedness in the
community. The Capay Valley Emergency Response Auxiliary (CVERA) operates under the Capay
Valley FPD umbrella to help ready and educate the community regarding defensible space, go bags,
etc. Capay Valley FPD is also working with the Yolo County Fire Safe Council.

Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged unincorporated communities related to
sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous to the agency’s
sphere of influence?

No. Not applicable. Please see the response to 2a.

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Determination

Capay Valley FPD has some potential deficiencies in needed station improvements, especially to its Guinda
Station 22 and has one apparatus that exceed the recommended 25 years of age limit (at 26 years of age
but is still reliable). However, there are no deficiencies in agency service. NFIRS data provided indicate
Capay Valley FPD exceeds recommended personnel and apparatus response for both rescue/EMS and

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

2-8
113



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

fire calls. It has missed 5 calls in the last 3 fiscal years. Response time issues are somewhat understandable
considering the geography of the District. Yocha Dehe Fire Department also responds to calls when it can
via an auto aid agreement with Capay Valley FPD. There are no growth issues in the community that are
anticipated to increase demand, although call volume is going up despite population remaining relatively
constant or even going down. Climate adaptation is significantly affecting the Capay Valley FPD’s service
needs but it is planning, responding, and adapting to these changes. There are no deficiencies related to
disadvantaged unincorporated communities.

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

The Capay Valley FPD should consider scheduling station improvements, replacing any apparatus
that exceed the recommended 25-year life span, and including these needs in a CIP.

Capay Valley FPD should provide written evaluations of its level of service, deployment, and
response time objectives on an annual basis at a Fire Commission meeting.

4. FINANCIAL ABILITY

Financial ability of agencies to provide services.

a)

Is the subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does
the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues? Is revenue growth
not keeping pace with increased costs?

b)

Can the subject agency improve its use of generally accepted
accounting principles including: summaries of all fund balances,
summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of
reserves, and any un-funded obligations (i.e. pension/retiree
benefits)? Does the agency need accounting and/or financial
policies that guide the agency in how financial transactions are
recorded and presented?

<)

Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular
basis and are discrepancies identified, investigated and corrective
action taken in a timely manner? The review may include
reconciliations of various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual,
analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense
balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s
financial system and the County Treasury, does the agency
review monthly the transactions in the County system to
transactions the agency submitted to the County for processing?

d)

Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports
(quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that provide a clear and
complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully
disclosing both positive and negative financial information to the
public and financial institutions?

e)

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being
reliable? For example, is a large percentage of revenue coming
from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

Is the organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level
of service, necessary infrastructure maintenance, replacement
and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the
schedules of similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule
include a specific amount identified for capital asset replacement
(tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

YES MAYBE NO
0 0 X
0 0 X
0 X 0
0 0 X
0 0 X
X 0 0

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

2-9

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

114



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

g) Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against
unexpected events or upcoming significant costs (excluding
capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Has the agency identified and X n ]
quantified what the possible significant risks and costs of
infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency have a
reserve policy?

h) Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s
debt at an unmanageable level? Does the agency need a clear O O X
debt management policy, if applicable?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
2-10
115



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

CAPAY VALLEY HRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenue
Property taxes, in-lieu taxes and HOPTR $ 153,406 $ 157,224  $ 169,834 $ 179,036 $ 184,901
Developmentimpact fees 16,905 10,017 11,837 15,134 33,265
Interest 4,493 11,135 28,683 34,373 1,369
Intergovernmental grants - - - - 14,000
County tribal mitigation 100,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000
Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation funding 6,667 - - 199,431 18,333
CAFire 55,919 - 10,296 13,970 62,918
Other revenue - 60,000 - - 268
Total Revenue 337,390 268,376 250,650 471,944 345,054
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits 50,945 29,662 34,014 36,835 70,982
Services and supplies 131,726 30,978 55,536 60,867 91,137
Contributions to volunteers 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000
Capital Assets:
Buildings and improvements - - - - 14,000
Equipment - 5 - 392,241 -
Total Expenditures 196,671 74,640 103,550 503,943 190,119
Net income (loss) 140,719 193,736 147,100 (31,999) 154,935
Beginning Fund Balance 615,635 756,354 950,090 1,097,190 1,065,191

Ending Fund Balances

Fund Balances

$ 756,354 $ 950,090 $ 1,097,190 $ 1,065191 $ 1,220,126

Restricted - Development impact fees $ 51,633 $ 59,668 $ 67,557 $ 83,197 $ 117,561
Assigned - Capital asset replacement 273,412 367,842 72,165 103,334 434,417
Assigned - General reserve 56,269 56,269 56,269 56,269 106,269
Unassigned 375,040 466,311 901,199 822,391 561,879
Total Fund Balances $ 756,354 $ 950,090 $ 1,097,190 $ 1,065,191 $ 1,220,126
Y-T-Y Change in total Fund Balances
Amount Increase (Decrease) $ 140,719 $ 193,736 $ 147,100 $ (31,999) $ 154,935
Percentage Increase (Decrease) 22.86% 25.61% 15.48% -2.92% 14.55%
Property Tax Analysis
a. Assessed Value (AV) $201,924,046 $210,112,318 $220,443,515 $233,335,507 $241,013,568
b. Y-T-Y Percentage change in AV 3.13% 4.06% 4.92% 5.85% 3.29%
c. Currentsecured, unsecured and HOF $ 149,767 $ 155,222 $ 167,828 $ 177,347 $ 183,346
d. District share of general 1% levy (c/a) 7.4170% 7.3876% 7.6132% 7.6005% 7.6073%

Discussion:

a) Isthe subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues?
Is revenue growth not keeping pace with increased costs?

No. The Capay Valley FPD’s core annual revenues (property taxes, and tribal mitigation) have
remained stable and total fund balance has steadily increased over the past five years. The increased
operating expenditures in 2017 and 2021 were due to participating in strike teams. Expenditures
relating to strike teams are reimbursed by the State. Total fund balance has increased from $615,635
to $1,220,126 of that $1,102,565 can be used by the District for any purpose. The remaining $117,561
is unexpended development impact fees that can only be expended on equipment and facilities that
the District requires to provide services to new development within its service area.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

LAFCo No. 21-05

2-11
116



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

c)

d)

Revenue

Capay Valley FPD’s revenue consists of property taxes, development impact fees, interest, tribal
mitigation funds from the County, grants from Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation and other miscellaneous
revenue. Like other rural fire districts, Capay Valley FPD relies primarily on a share of the general 1%
property tax levy for the majority of its revenue. In fiscal year 2021, property taxes of $184,901
comprised 54% of total revenues. The District's share of property taxes within its boundaries is
approximately 7.6%, while the average for all FPDs in the county is 6.2%. The District has not yet levied
a special assessment. Since 2006 the District has been receiving development impact fees (DIF) which
can only be used by the District to acquire equipment and facilities to service new development. Since
inception of adopting development impact fees, the Capay Valley FPD has collected $242,478 through
FY 2021. Over the past 5 years the District has collected $87,158 of DIF. The District is one of the five
FPDs that since 2004 receives tribal mitigation funding from the County annually. Over the past five
years the District has received $220,000 of $220,000 it was entitled to receive. According to
administrative procedures adopted by the County Administrator’s Office, the funds are to be used to
purchase “equipment and capital assets”. In addition, over the past 5 years the Capay Valley FPD has
received State OES funding of $14,000, grants from the Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation totaling $224,431,
strike team reimbursements of $143,103 and other revenue totaling $60,268.

Expenditures
District expenditures, excluding capital expenditures increased little from 2017 through 2021, with the

exception of increased operating expenditures in 2017 and 2021 due to participating in strike teams.

Capital expenditures
2020: $392,241 Type 3 Freightliner Engine

Currently annual District revenues have exceeded expenditures by, on average, about $120,000 per
year.

Can the subject agency improve its use of generally accepted accounting principles including: summaries of
all fund balances, summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of reserves, and any un-funded
obligations (i.e. pension/retiree benefits)? Does the agency need accounting and/or financial policies that
guide the agency in how financial transactions are recorded and presented?

No. The Capay Valley FPD maintains all funds in the County Treasury and uses the County’s financial
system to maintain its accounting records. Since the Capay Valley FPD is a dependent district, it is
subject to the same accounting and financial policies of the County. Accounting and budget data
including all cash receipts and disbursements are reviewed by County finance staff before they are
posted.

Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular basis and are discrepancies identified,
investigated and corrective action taken in a timely manner? The review may include reconciliations of
various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual, analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and
expense balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s financial system and the County
Treasury, does the agency review monthly the transactions in the County system to transactions the agency
submitted to the County for processing?

Maybe. During fiscal year 2018 the County incorrectly recorded tribal fund revenue of $8,185.80 that
was intended for another district. This error was not detected by the District or County DFS. Also, in
fiscal year 2021 the District's PSPS grant was not recognized as revenue (removed from unearned
income) and a vehicle purchased in 2020 was not removed from CIP. If needed, the District should be
trained in understanding how to read the County financial reports. These errors were detected during
the MSR process.

Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports (quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that
provide a clear and complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully disclosing both positive and
negative financial information to the public and financial institutions?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

2-12
117



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

f)

9)

h)

No. District staff creates and presents financial reports based on best available information since the
County has often closed out periods late. When the County has closed a fiscal period and distributed
final reports to CVFPD staff emails them to the Board.

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being reliable? For example, is a large percentage
of revenue coming from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

No. Revenues are reliable, with the majority coming from property taxes and county apportioned revenues
such as interest and tribal mitigation funds.

Is the organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level of service, necessary infrastructure
maintenance, replacement and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the schedules of
similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule include a specific amount identified for capital asset
replacement (tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

Yes. Capay Valley FPD’s revenue does not provide for sufficient funding for capital asset replacement. See
49 below.

Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against unexpected events or upcoming significant
costs (excluding capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Has the agency identified and quantified what the
possible significant risks and costs of infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency have a reserve
policy?

Yes. The CVFPD has a total fund balance of $1,220,126 as of June 30, 2021, which is $493,874 below
the recommended total fund balance of $1,714,000. The recommended fund balance is the total of 3
components as follows:

o Capital asset replacement. Using estimated apparatus replacement costs, this estimate
divides this cost by the recommended life of each apparatus and assumes a straight-line
projection and contribution to a capital asset replacement sinking fund.

e General reserve. This is the total of 50% of current secured taxes and 50% of special
assessments to maintain liquidity from July through December each year when no
tax/assessment revenue is received.

e Unassigned fund balance. GFOA recommendation of 15% of operating expenditures to
mitigate revenue shortages and/or unanticipated expenditures.

The June 30,2021 actual and estimated recommended fund balances amounts are as follows:

6/30/2021 6/30/2021
Actual Recommended Excess/
Balance Balance (Shortage)

Apparatus Replacement
Dewelopment impact fees 434,417
Other funds 117,561
551,978 1,610,000 (1,058,022)

General resene 106,269 87,000 19,269
Unassigned 561,879 17,000 544,879
Total Recommended Fund Balance $ 1,220,126 $ 1,714,000 $ (493,874)

In addition, CVFPD does not have formal reserves policies. The District’s 5-year plan does not quantify
in dollar amounts the District’'s current or future needs.

Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s debt at an unmanageable level? Does the
agency need a clear debt management policy, if applicable?

No. The District does not have any debt, nor does it provide any post-retirement benefits to employees.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

2-13
118



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Financial Ability MSR Determination

Due to conservative budget practices Capay Valley FPD is currently financial stable. The District’s core
annual revenues (property taxes, interest, and tribal mitigation) have remained stable and total fund balance
has steadily increased over the past five years. Annual District revenues have exceeded expenditures by,
on average, about $120,000 per year. The CVFPD has a total fund balance of $1,220,126 as of June 30,
2021, which is $493,874 below the recommended total fund balance of $1,714,000.

Recently, Capay Valley FPD staff have begun to review financial data on a regular basis for any
discrepancies. In addition, the Capay Valley FPD fire commission should receive regular financial reports
(quarterly or mid-year at a minimum). The District has facility and equipment needs that could negatively
impact services if not taken care of in the near future. Although the District has a healthy fund balance as
of June 30, 2021, the District has current facility and equipment needs that may be in excess of the current
fund balance. The 5-year plan does not quantify in dollar amounts the District’s current or future needs. The
District does not have formal reserves policies. Additional funding may be required to fund these needs and
maintain adequate reserve balances.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

e Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make the
findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees collected from
new development are spent solely on the equipment, apparatus and facilities indicated in the latest
study.

e The Capay Valley FPD Fire Commission should receive regular financial reports (quarterly or mid-
year at a minimum) that provide a clear and complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities,
fully disclosing both positive and negative financial information.

e The Capay Valley FPD should consider developing a formal capital improvement plan to make sure
it can fund needed station improvements and apparatus replacement.

e Capay Valley FPD should consider adoption of a special assessment to increase revenues to
provide funding for current staffing, facilities and equipment needs.

5. SHARED SERVICES AND FACILITIES
Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services
or facilities with neighboring, overlapping or other organizations O X [
that are not currently being utilized?

Discussion:

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services or facilities with neighboring, overlapping
or other organizations that are not currently being utilized?

Maybe. Capay Valley FPD and Esparto FPD have entered into a JOA and are working towards
standardizing written operating policies and guidelines. It also has mutual/auto aid agreements with
surrounding fire departments.

The goal for coordinated/joint operations is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of
resources, consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during
incident response. Additional things that should be included as a required element of the JOA is:

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
2-14
119



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

e Apparatus/equipment standardization,
e Shared reserve apparatus, and
e Cooperative purchasing

Shared Services MSR Determination

Capay Valley FPD and Esparto FPD have entered into a JOA and are working towards standardizing written
operating policies and guidelines. It also has mutual/auto aid agreements with surrounding fire departments.
The goal for coordinated/joint operations is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources,
consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during incident response.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

e Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are apparatus/equipment
standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative purchasing. These efficiencies are
currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

6. ACCOUNTABILITY, STRUCTURE AND EFFICIENCIES
Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational efficiencies.

YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s
governmental structure or operations that will increase accountability ] X ]
and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public,
service inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?

b) Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining
board members? Is there a lack of board member training regarding O O X
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

c) Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a
lack of staff member training regarding the organization’s program O O X
requirements and financial management?

d) Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to
personnel/payroll, general and administrative, board member and
meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among X O O
staff and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct (see
suggested policies list)?

e) Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making O] O] X
their Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures?

f) Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial
reports that meet California State Controller requirements? Are the ] ] X
same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not
reviewed in an open meeting?

g) If the agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have
a qualified external person review agency finances each year (at a
minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior O ¢ [
years, analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining
if the reports appear reasonable?

h) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a
website  (see  https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government- O BJ O
website-transparency-scorecards)?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

2-15
120


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Discussion:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s governmental structure or operations that will
increase accountability and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public, service
inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?

Maybe. Capay Valley FPD has already entered into a JOA with Esparto FPD designed to improve
operations and efficiencies. The recommendation below is to ensure Capay Valley FPD continues to
maintain standing in good faith to achieve JOA goals.

Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining board members? Is there a lack of board
member training regarding the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

No. The Capay Valley community is engaged in FPD activities and the fire commission is relatively
stable. Four of the five fire commission seats are filled and LAFCo staff's understanding is there an
appointment in process. There does not appear to be an issue with maintaining fire commission
members.

Name / Title Start End
Mark Burns / 09/24/2019 07/01/2023
Dawnmarie Eason / 06/29/2021 3/01/2024
Wyatt Cline / 12/15/2020 01/01/2025
Judith Redmond / 09/28/2021 09/01/2025
Vacant Seat #1 / 04/01/2026

Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a lack of staff member training regarding
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

No. The longtime chief of the Capay Valley FPD retired in May 2022 and the commission has promoted
existing personnel into the chief position. The Capay Valley FPD has a strong group of volunteers that
live and work locally and are available to respond to calls. The chief reports that it's difficult to find
volunteers that do not commute outside the valley and it's sometimes hard to find weekend staffing
from April-October.

Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to personnel/payroll, general and
administrative, board member and meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among staff
and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct?

Yes. The District has some employee related policies and commission bylaws. Since Capay Valley
FPD is a dependent district, it also must comply with the County’s accounting policies. However, it still
needs more comprehensive policies. LAFCo can provide samples/templates of policies that every
district “should have”.

Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making their Statement of Economic Interests
(Form 700) disclosures?

No. Capay Valley FPD complies with Conflict-of-Interest Code requirements and is current with
commission and staff Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures.

Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial reports that meet California State Controller
requirements? Are the same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not reviewed in an
open meeting?

No. The dependent FPD’s (including Capay Valley FPD) are included in the annual audit of the County’s
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The Capay Valley FPD is reported as a discretely
presented component unit. According to the State Controller’s Office, the County’s audited ACFR meets
the general audit requirements and the ACFR satisfies the requirements of Government 269094.

4 Per email dated July 6, 2021 from Sandeep Singh, Manager, Local Government Policy Section Office of State
Controller, Local Government Programs and Services Division

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

2-16
121



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

g) If the agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have a qualified external person review
agency finances each year (at a minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years,
analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable?

Maybe. Capay Valley FPD is audited annually as part of the County’s ACFR but it does not include
individual review of the dependent FPDs, just the aggregate total balance of all dependent FPDs (so
review is at a high level and not detailed). Yolo County should review agency finances with each
dependent FPD each year, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years, analyzing
significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable.

h) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a website (see
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards)?

Maybe. Websites are not legally required for dependent districts, but highly encouraged. The Capay
Valley FPD received a 47% best practices transparency score in 2021. Please see the report posted
on the LAFCo website for where improvements are needed.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Determination

There are no recommended changes to Capay Valley FPD’s governmental structure or operations that will
increase accountability and efficiency. Capay Valley FPD has already entered into a JOA with Esparto FPD
designed to improve operations and efficiencies. The recommendation below is to ensure Capay Valley
FPD continues to maintain standing in good faith to achieve JOA goals. Capay Valley FPD is effective in
its current structure operating with a mostly volunteer model. There are no issues with maintaining fire
commissioners and staff. Commissioners and key staff are trained regarding the organization’s program
requirements and financial management. Capay Valley FPD has some basic policies but should consider
adopting additional policies regarding meeting attendance, conduct, responsibilities of officers, personnel,
and accounting/financial procedures. CVPFD is current in making its Statement of Economic Interests
(Form 700) disclosures and as a dependent FPD Yolo County performs its audits. Although it’s not legally
required, Capay Valley FPD should consider establishing a website presence for transparency purposes.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

e Capay Valley, Esparto and Madison FPDs should provide for a coordinated and more uniform level
of service and operation through either: (1) a Joint Operation Agreement (JOA); or (2) agency
merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint operations in each Area is to achieve a similar
service standard, efficient use of resources, consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization,
and improved coordination during incident response. If any of these agencies enter into a JOA and
fail to make reasonable efforts in good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo reorganization to
combine FPDs should be initiated if its determined consolidation would promote better service to
the public and be a more efficient and effective utilization of resources.

e Capay Valley FPD has some basic employee related policies and bylaws, however, it needs more
comprehensive policies. LAFCo can provide samples/templates of policies that every district
“should have”.

e Yolo County should review agency finances with each dependent FPD each year to review agency
finances, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years, analyzing significant
differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable.

e Dependent special districts are not legally required to maintain a website. The Capay Valley FPD
has a website but received a 47% transparency score for best practices in 2021. Please see the
report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards for where
improvements are needed.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
2-17
122


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

7.

BROADBAND ACCESS

Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy.

Per Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 6.2 “it is the intent of Yolo LAFCo to comprehensively review broadband access
in MSRs of local agencies that either serve communities and/or provide emergency services where broadband
connection is critical (i.e. cities, CSDs, CSAs, FPDs and RDs).”

YES MAYBE NO
a) Is there a lack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) ] X ]
available in the community?
b) Is there a lack of low-income subscription rates and/or digital ] ] X
literacy programs available?
Discussion:
a) Isthere alack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) available in the community?

Maybe. Much of the Capay Valley is reported to have service from Frontier Communications at 115
Mbps download and 7 Mbps upload speeds®. However, there are some pockets in valley in Brooks,
Guinda and all of Rumsey that only have access to mobile internet up to 9.7/2.8 download/upload
speeds. According to the CPUC Broadband Mapping Program, broadband adoption at 25/3 Mbps is
low at only 20%-40%, so that may suggest this map is distorted by census tracts and broadband speeds
are not as widely available as shown. The Capay Valley FPD Chief indicates residents can call for
service okay and Esparto Broadband also provides a wireless signal from Bald Mountain.

5 CPUC Broadband Mapping Program data as of December 31, 2019. Speeds provided are maximum advertised
speeds and not necessarily typical speeds experienced by the subscriber.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

2-18
123



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b) Is there a lack of low-income subscription rates and/or digital literacy programs available?

No. Frontier Communications offers a low-income subscription rate of $9.25 per month. Yolo County
Library staff provide one-on-one computer assistance, with even with basic functions like setting up an
email account® and generally help troubleshoot technology challenges. Information and instruction
about basic computer/tablet/smartphone use is offered in ESL conversation clubs, classes and in Yolo
Reads Adult and Family Literacy program. The library also provides hotspots and Chromebooks for
those that need these items. The library does not have a formalized technology curriculum, although
there have been discussions regarding adding it as a service.

Broadband Access MSR Determination

According to the CPUC Broadband Mapping Program, much of the Capay Valley is reported to have service
from Frontier Communications at 115 Mbps download and 7 Mbps upload speeds. Frontier
Communications offers a low-income subscription rate of $9.25 per month. However, there are some
pockets in valley in Brooks, Guinda and all of Rumsey that only have access to mobile internet up to 9.7/2.8
download/upload speeds. And more significantly, broadband adoption at 25/3 Mbps is low at only 20%-
40%, suggesting the CPUC data is either distorted by census tracts or inaccurate and broadband speeds
are not as widely available as shown. The Capay Valley FPD Chief indicates residents can call for service
sufficiently and Esparto Broadband also provides a wireless signal from Bald Mountain.

Broadband Access MSR Determination Recommendation

e Yolo County should consider the lack of broadband service in the Capay Valley area as it addresses
rural access issues.

6 Email from Mark Fink, Yolo County Librarian on May 26, 2021

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
2-19
124



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

8. STATUS OF PREVIOUS MSR RECOMMENDATIONS
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR X ] ]
that have not been implemented?

Discussion:

a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR that have not been implemented?

Yes.

2016 MSR Recommendations Specific to the Capay Valley FPD and Status

1. All of the districts (except Clarksburg, Dunnigan, West Plainfield, and Yolo FPDs with existing fiscal
policies and/or capital renewal/replacement plans) should develop and adopt written fiscal policies
addressing budgeting, procurement, reserve funds, fiscal audits, and capital renewal/replacement
planning in conformance with recognized industry best fiscal practices.

Status: Capay Valley FPD policies have not been adopted. Please see the response to item 6d.
Status of Previous Recommendations MSR Determination

The 2016 LAFCo MSR included only one recommendation specific to Capay Valley FPD. It pointed out the
need for the District to adopt fiscal policies. This has not yet occurred but should be resolved via the JOA’s
efforts to adopt consistent and comprehensive policies. A recommendation to adopt polices has been
reiterated in the Financial Ability section.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

2-20
125



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

On the basis of the Municipal Service Review:

= Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update is NOT
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, NO CHANGE
to the agency’s SOI is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE NOT been made.

] Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update IS
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, A CHANGE to
the agency’s SOl is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE been made and are included in
this MSR/SOI study.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
2-21
126



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

AGENCY PROFILE

The Clarksburg Fire Protection District (FPD) was formed on December 17, 1946 and is authorized to
provide fire protection and emergency response services. It was formed, and has continuously remained,
as an independent district with a five-member Board of Directors, each member appointed by the Board of
Supervisors to serve four-year terms.

The Clarksburg FPD is 34,665 acres in size and serves the unincorporated town of Clarksburg and the
surrounding rural area as shown in the map below. The Clarksburg FPD territory is predominantly
agricultural with approximately 95 percent of the land under Williamson Act contracts. The Clarksburg FPD
contains 504 residential and 16 commercial addresses, and its residential population is estimated to be
1,260 residents!. The Clarksburg FPD station is located at 52902 Clarksburg Avenue, in Clarksburg. The
Clarksburg FPD houses 7 apparatus and is staffed by 23 volunteer firefighters. There are no full-time paid
positions or reserve staff. The Chief and Board Secretary receive minimal monthly stipends for their
services.

The Clarksburg FPD boundary and sphere of influence (SOI) is shown below. The SOl is coterminous with
the District boundary.

Clarksburg Fire Protection District Boundary and Sphere of Influence*

i 9
No Man's Land Fire Protection District
Station No. 40
Clarksburg Fire Protection District
|
@ Fresote |
Fire Frozection Oistrict Scundary
Roaas
Parcel Lines. v!
| spees e o o v e | Co M
* Note: Sphere of Influence is coterminous with boundary Adopted by Yolo LAFCo June 23, 2016

1 Population estimate is based on the number of residential addresses assigned in 2021 in the FPD territory with a Yolo
County average of 2.5 persons per household.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-1
127



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW

POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT MSR DETERMINATIONS

The MSR determinations checked below are potentially significant, as indicated by “yes” or “maybe”
answers to the key policy questions in the checklist and corresponding discussion on the following pages.
If most or all of the determinations are not significant, as indicated by “no” answers, the Commission may
find that a MSR update is not warranted.

Growth and Population [l Shared Services

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities

X Accountability
Capacity, Adequacy & Infrastructure to Provide X
X

Broadband Access

Status of Previous MSR
Recommendations

Services

X X OO

Financial Ability

LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW:

[ ] On the basis of this initial evaluation, the required determinations are not significant, and staff
recommends that an MSR is NOT NECESSARY. The subject agency will be reviewed again in five
years per Government Code Section 56425(qg).

[XI The subject agency has potentially significant determinations and staff recommends that a
comprehensive MSR IS NECESSARY and has been conducted via this checklist.

1. GROWTH AND POPULATION
Growth and population projections for the affected area. YES MAYBE NO

a) Will development and/or population projections over the next 5-10 O] ] X
years impact the subject agency’s service needs and demands?

b) Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s ] ] X
services?

Discussion:

a) Will development and/or population projections over the next 5-10 years impact the subject agency’s service
needs and demands?

No. The resident population in the Clarksburg FPD is currently estimated to be 1,260 and has limited
infill growth opportunities. Except for the town of Clarksburg which has a residential population of 402
per the 2020 Census, it is entirely zoned for agricultural use.

According to data from the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), Clarksburg FPD calls
have increased significantly. Over the last three fiscal years, total calls that resulted in Clarksburg FPD
dispatched apparatus/responders were 209 in FY 18/19, 261 in FY 19/20 and 268 in FY 20/21, a 28%
increase in only three years.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-2
128



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b) Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s services?

No. Increased service demand does not suggest a change in the agency’s services or boundaries. The
Clarksburg FPD territory is relatively landlocked between the City of West Sacramento (and County
Service Area #9) to the north, the County boundary to the south, the Sacramento River to the east and
the Sacramento River Deep Water Ship Channel to the west.

Growth and Population MSR Determination

The resident population in the Clarksburg FPD is currently estimated to be 1,260 and has limited infill growth
opportunities. Except for the town of Clarksburg which has a residential population of 402 per the 2020
Census, it is entirely zoned for agricultural use. Over the last three fiscal years, total calls that resulted in
Clarksburg FPD dispatched apparatus/responders were 209 in FY 18/19, 261 in FY 19/20 and 268 in FY
20/21, a 28% increase in only three years. Increased service demand does not suggest a change in the
agency’s services or boundaries.

2. DISADVANTAGED UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES

The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the
sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers,
municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, are
there any ‘inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted
Commission policy) within or adjacent to the subject agency’s | ] X
sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or
less of the statewide median household income) that do not
already have access to public water, sewer and structural fire
protection?

b) If “ves” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such
that it can extend service to the disadvantaged unincorporated O] ] X
community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it
is either not needed or not applicable.

Discussion:

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire
protection, are there any “inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted Commission policy) within or
adjacent to the subject agency’s sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or less of the
statewide median household income) that do not already have access to public water, sewer and structural
fire protection?

No. The Clarksburg FPD territory is not disadvantaged? and all “inhabited unincorporated communities”
countywide receive structural fire protection services.

b) If “yes” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such that it can extend service to the
disadvantaged unincorporated community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it is either not
needed or not applicable.

Not applicable.

2 CALAFCO Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities for State, RSG Inc. GIS Layer, dated December 10, 2021

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-3
129



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities MSR Determination

The Clarksburg FPD territory is not disadvantaged, and all “inhabited unincorporated communities”
countywide receive structural fire protection services. Therefore, there is no concern that Clarksburg is
either not receiving fire protection services or not receiving similar services due to disadvantaged economic
issues in the Clarksburg FPD community.

3. CAPACITY AND ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES

Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or
deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire
protection in any disadvantaged, unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and
capacity of agency facilities to meet existing service needs for ] X n
which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve
(including deficiencies created by new state regulations)?

b) Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan ] ] X
in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e.,
number of staff and/or contracts).

c) Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability

to meet the service demand of reasonably foreseeable future O O X
growth?
d) Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its ] ] X

assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

e) Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged
unincorporated communities related to sewers, municipal and ] ] X
industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous
to the agency’s sphere of influence?

Discussion:

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and capacity of agency facilities to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve (including deficiencies
created by new state regulations)?

Maybe.
Fire Station

The original fire station was constructed in 1947 and the Clarksburg FPD recently completed
improvements to it in 2015. Clarksburg FPD also purchased a quarter-acre lot and built an additional
station annex in 2016 to house apparatus and equipment. The station has a well it's been using for
water with no issues. But its sewer system is a septic system (as is typical in Clarksburg), and therefore,
will not currently support the station to be equipped with a shower. The firehouse could use cement or

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

3-4
130



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

blacktop aprons in front of the main firehouse, an apparatus exhaust system if overnight coverage were
ever needed, and a sewer system that can support showers and washing machines.

Apparatus and Equipment:

The table below lists the Clarksburg FPD apparatus.

Use Apparatus Type Age Reserve?
(yrs)

Structure Fires Engine 40 | 19 No
Engine 240 | 12 No

Wildlands Fires Grass 240 /11 12 No
Grass 40 1/l 1 No

Water Tenders Water 40 4,000 gallon 36 No
Water 240 2,000 gallon 26 No

Other Apparatus Squad 40 Medical/Rescue 5 No

All Clarksburg FPD apparatus receive rig checks weekly or more often, regular scheduled maintenance
service, and inspection. ISO typically requires department pump testing, but because Clarksburg FPD
apparatus carries much more water than is required, it has not required pump testing. Preventative
maintenance is performed at manufacturer's specified intervals by licensed vendors. In addition,
Clarksburg firefighters inspect and document the fitness of all apparatus on a weekly basis. If
deficiencies are noted that apparatus is immediately referred for corrective maintenance. Periodically,
each apparatus has a 29-point inspection performed at a California Highway Patrol certified terminal.
Clarksburg FPD currently supplies all responding members with appropriate, current personal
protective equipment (PPE). All PPE is within recommended service life and checked yearly. All self-
contained breathing apparatus (SCBA) receive annual flow testing. All apparatus has a mounted radio,
and each volunteer has a personal radio always accessible. Radios are sent in for repair/maintenance
as needed.

Two of Clarksburg FPD’s apparatus (water tenders) exceed the recommended 25-year life span.
Clarksburg FPD indicates additional funding is needed to be able to replace apparatus in a timelier
manner and keep pace with increasing costs. The 4,000-gallon water tender should be replaced with a
3,000-gallon water tender for safety and staffing issues because its weight and handling make the
apparatus difficult to drive (currently only 4 personnel out of 23 can operate this water tender with its
13-speed manual transmission). The 2,000-gallon water tender is starting to age out and is scheduled
to be replaced altogether or with a new chassis.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-5
131



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

ISO Rating

The Insurance Services Office, Inc. (ISO) evaluates fire departments for the purpose of establishing
insurance premiums, called “ISO ratings”. An ISO fire rating is a score from 1 to 10 that indicates how
well-protected a community is by the fire department and will affect insurance rates. Clarksburg FPD’s
ISO rating is 5/8. The first number refers to the classification of properties within 5 road miles of a fire
station and within 1,000 feet of water supply. The second number applies to properties within 5 road
miles of a fire station but beyond 1,000 feet of water supply. In the ISO rating scale, a lower number is
better: 1 is the best possible rating, while a 10 means the fire department did not meet ISO's minimum
requirements. 1ISO generally assigns Class 10 to properties beyond 5 road miles of a fire station.

b) Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet existing service needs for which the agency
does not have a plan in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e., number of staff and/or
contracts).

No.

Staff, Coverage and Training

The Clarksburg FPD station houses 7 apparatus and has 0 paid staff, O reserves and 23 volunteers.
The station is not staffed on a regular schedule and responds to calls as needed.

Clarksburg FPD has written operational guidelines and procedures and reports having sufficient training
to ensure personnel are competent and safe to execute operations. The Clarksburg FPD trains incident
response personnel in ICS (incident command system). Most Clarksburg FPD training is done locally
by volunteers with specialized training in the areas of engineering, fire suppression, medical aid, and
other areas related to fire operations because it is not practical to regularly participate in the Yolo
County Firefighters Association Training Program due to the Clarksburg FPD’s geographic isolation. In
addition, the Clarksburg FPD utilizes Vector Solutions, an online training program to provide education
in the areas of fire suppression, driver safety, emergency medical response (EMS), and related
mandatory requirements. Related mandatory requirements include, but are not limited to, Ethics
Training, Bloodborne Pathogens, and the Health Information Portability and Privacy Act (HIPPA). All
personnel are fit tested on an annual basis.

Incident Reporting and Adequacy of Services

Clarksburg FPD documents calls via FirePrograms Software of Ocala Florida and files quarterly reports
with the National Fire Information Reporting System (NFIRS). This software is also utilized to generate
local reports for staff and the Governing Board. Clarksburg FPD has had 0 missed calls in the last three
FYs and has exceeded the benchmarks determined by the Fire Chiefs MSR Subcommittee for average
number of personnel and apparatus every year for the past 5 FYs. Standards for the number of
personnel and apparatus were determined by the Fire Chiefs MSR Subcommittee for fire and
rescue/EMS calls®.

Below is Clarksburg FPD’s NFIRS response data for the last five fiscal years:

3 By consensus of the Yolo Fire Chief's MSR Subcommittee, it was determined the minimum adequate response for a
fire call is 4 personnel and 2 apparatus, and for a rescue/EMS call is 3 personnel and 1 apparatus.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

3-6
132



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Clarksburg FPD Clarksburg FPD
300 (EMS) Series Incidents 100 (Fire) Series Incidents

bl

Data for the last five FYs indicate that Clarksburg FPD is responding with more than adequate
personnel and apparatus to rescue/EMS calls (which outnumber fire calls by 3:1 in FY 2020/21). This
data is among the highest response in the unincorporated County.

w4 Pwa

Response Time and Missed Calls

The MSR Subcommittee developed response time goals for rescue/emergency medical service (EMS)
calls (6 minutes) and fire calls (9 minutes) for the first responding unit to arrive on scene. LAFCo
recognizes it may be more difficult for volunteer and/or more rural FPDs to meet this goal, however as
the MSR Subcommittee indicated, it represents a goal to focus on. FPD response time averages* for
the 2019 — 2021 calendar years are shown below.

Clarksburg FPD
300 (EMS) Response Time Average

4 Based on YECA data. For a list of the data outliers omitted, please reference the methodology discussion on page 1-
10 of this MSR/SOI.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-7
133



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

d)

e)

Clarksburg FPD
100 (Fire) Response Time Average

Clarksburg FPD has 0 missed calls in the last three fiscal years.

Annual Performance Evaluation

NFPA requires FPDs to evaluate its level of service, deployment and response time objectives on an
annual basis. Although Clarksburg FPD discusses levels of service and performance verbally at each
board meeting, it would be a good practice to provide a written evaluation of the Clarksburg FPD’s level
of service, deployment and response time objectives on an annual basis.

Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability to meet the service demand of reasonably
foreseeable future growth?

No. Clarksburg is not anticipated to have significant growth. Please see the response to 1(a).
Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

No. The FPDs collectively report that climate change is not a factor in the valley and is only an issue
for those FPDs that border the Coastal Range. Many FPDs actually benefit financially from staff and
apparatus reimbursement revenue for supporting CalFire during wildfire events. Clarksburg FPD staff
indicates that the drought has shifted many agricultural lands to drip irrigation systems which result in
less weeds that can become a fire hazard.

Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged unincorporated communities related to
sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous to the agency’s
sphere of influence?

No. Not applicable. Please see the response to 2a.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

3-8
134



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Determination

Clarksburg FPD has some potential deficiencies in needed station improvements and has two water tenders
that exceed the recommended 25 years of age limit. However, there are no deficiencies in agency service.
Incident response data indicates the Clarksburg FPD can respond to calls more than sufficiently with
volunteer staff. Data for the last five FYs indicate that Clarksburg FPD is responding with more than
adequate personnel and apparatus to rescue/EMS calls (which outnumber fire calls by 3:1 in FY 2020/21).
This data is among the highest response in the unincorporated County. The Clarksburg FPD shared that
during a wind event on January 26, 2021 it had 19-20 volunteers in action and responded to over 25 calls
with electrified wires in one day. On another occasion when the power was out for four days, the FPD
deployed its water trucks so residents could access water.

There are no growth issues in the community that are anticipated to increase demand, although call volume
is going up despite population remaining relatively constant or even going down. Climate adaptation is not
significantly affecting the Clarksburg FPD’s service needs and there are no deficiencies related to
disadvantaged unincorporated communities.

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

e The Clarksburg FPD should consider and schedule the replacement of its two water tenders that
exceed the recommended 25-year life span.

e In addition to verbal updates at each meeting, the Clarksburg FPD should provide written
evaluations of its level of service, deployment, and response time objectives on an annual basis.

4. FINANCIAL ABILITY
Financial ability of agencies to provide services.
YES MAYBE NO

a) Is the subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does
the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues? Is revenue growth O O X
not keeping pace with increased costs?

b) Can the subject agency improve its use of generally accepted
accounting principles including: summaries of all fund balances,
summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of
reserves, and any un-funded obligations (i.e. pension/retiree O O X
benefits)? Does the agency need accounting and/or financial
policies that guide the agency in how financial transactions are
recorded and presented?

c) Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular
basis and are discrepancies identified, investigated and corrective
action taken in a timely manner? The review may include
reconciliations of various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual,
analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense [ [ [
balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s
financial system and the County Treasury, does the agency
review monthly the transactions in the County system to
transactions the agency submitted to the County for processing?

d) Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports
(quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that provide a clear and
complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully O O X
disclosing both positive and negative financial information to the
public and financial institutions?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-9
135



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

e) Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being
reliable? For example, is a large percentage of revenue coming 0 0 X
from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

f) Isthe organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level
of service, necessary infrastructure maintenance, replacement
and/or any needed expansion? Is the rate/fee schedule fee
inconsistent with the schedules of similar local agencies? Does X O O
the rate/fee schedule include a specific amount identified for
capital asset replacement (tied to a capital improvement plan with
implementation policies)?

g) Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against
unexpected events or upcoming significant costs (excluding
capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Has the agency identified and X ] O]
quantified what the possible significant risks and costs of
infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency have a
reserve policy?

h) Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s
debt at an unmanageable level? Does the agency need a clear 0 O X
debt management policy, if applicable?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-10
136



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Discussion:

Financial Background

CLARKSBURG FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenue
Property taxes, in-lieu tax and HOPTR $ 81,674 $ 82,755 $ 91,961 $ 95,120 $ 97,306
Development impact fees 551 1,935 855 20,473 2,499
Interest 3,082 5,448 14,820 20,414 1,058
Intergovernmental grants - 10,585 45,215 8,910 1,462
Special assessment 81,600 81,602 81,605 81,715 81,663
CA Fire 28,624 13,616 51,017 3,490 -
Other revenue 5 - - - 1,500
Total Revenue 195,536 195,941 285,473 230,122 185,488
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits 31,532 22,600 46,212 18,023 14,966
Senices and supplies 68,088 134,314 81,923 45,369 55,192
Contributions to wlunteers 4,400 4,800 4,800 5,200 4,906
Other expenditures 170 147 176 179 168
Capital Assets:
Buildings and improvements 28,346 = - - -
Equipment 197,439 - - - -
Total Expenditures 329,975 161,861 133,111 68,771 75,232
Net income (loss) (134,439) 34,080 152,362 161,351 110,256
Beginning Fund Balance 530,002 395,563 429,643 582,005 743,356
Ending Fund Balances $ 395,563 $ 429,643 $ 582,005 $ 743,356 $ 853,612
Fund Balances
Restricted - Development impact fees $ 87,953 $ 2,669 $ (4,411) $ 18,473 $ 21,166
Assigned - Capital asset replacement 142,925 233,353 435,589 524,210 598,153
Assigned - General resenve 138,394 138,394 41,934 41,934 41,934
Unassigned 26,291 55,227 108,893 158,739 192,359
Total Fund Balances $ 395,563 $ 429,643 $ 582,005 $ 743,356 $ 853,612
Y-T-Y Change in total Fund Balances
Amount Increase (Decrease) $ (134,439) $ 34,080 $ 152,362 $ 161,351 $ 110,256
Percentage Increase (Decrease) -25.37% 8.62% 35.46% 27.72% 14.83%
Property Tax Analysis
a. Assessed Value (AV) $ 431,412,298 $ 446,042,751 $ 469,042,144 $ 485,758,219 $ 492,943,371
b. Y-T-Y Percentage change in AV 4.12% 3.39% 5.16% 3.56% 1.48%
c. Current secured, unsecured, HOPTR $ 79,815 $ 81,658 $ 91,302 $ 94,395 $ 95,799
d. District share of general 1% lewy (c/a) 1.8501% 1.8307% 1.9466% 1.9433% 1.9434%
Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-11

137



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

a)

b)

c)

Is the subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues?
Is revenue growth not keeping pace with increased costs?

No. The Clarksburg FPD’s total core revenues (property taxes and special assessments) have
increased, on average, by 4.5% a year, and total fund balances have steadily grown over the past five
years (21% on average). Total fund balance has increased from $530,002 to $853,612 of which
$832,446 can be used by the District for any purpose (includes assigned and unassigned fund
balances. The remaining $21,166 is unexpended development impact fees that can only be expended
on equipment and facilities that the Clarksburg FPD requires to provide services to new development
within its service area. However, the amount of revenue the special assessment raises has not changed
since 1993. Clarksburg FPD should consider reviewing current and future expenditures to determine
whether the special assessment should be increased.

Revenue

Clarksburg Fire Protection Clarksburg FPD’s revenue consists of property taxes, special assessments,
development impact fees, interest, grants and other miscellaneous revenue. Like other rural fire
districts, Clarksburg PFD relies primarily on a share of the general 1% property tax levy for the majority
of its revenue. In fiscal year 2021, property taxes of $97,306 comprised 52% of total revenues. The
Clarksburg FPD’s share of property taxes within its boundaries is approximately 1.94%, significantly
below the average for all rural FPDs in the county of 6.2%. The Clarksburg FPD has also levied a
special assessment since 1989. In 2021 special assessment revenue was $81,663 which accounted
for 44% of total revenue. The annual special assessment revenue has increased $37,349 since
inception in 1989, however, over the past five years the special assessment revenue has not increased
at all. Since 2001 the Clarksburg FPD also began receiving development impact fees (DIF) which is
required for all new development. The DIF can only be used by the Clarksburg FPD to acquire
equipment and facilities to service new development. Over the past 5 years the District has collected
$26,313 of DIF. In addition, over the past 5 years Clarksburg FPD has received $66,172 in state and
federal grants, strike team reimbursements of $96,747 and other revenue totaling $1,500.

Expenditures

Clarksburg FPD expenditures, excluding capital expenditures have remained relatively flat over the
past 5 years, not including reimbursable expenditures related to grants and strike team activities. Fiscal
year 2021 expenditures totaled $75,232, of that $9,966, or 13% of total expenditures was for stipends
for the fire chief and the assistant chief/secretary. Another $5,000 of salary and benefits is for workers
compensation that mostly covers the volunteer firefighters. The bulk of the expenditures, $55,192 or
73% of the total, was for services and supplies, general operating costs of the District, which includes
maintenance of equipment and the firehouse, supplies, insurance, etc. Other costs of $5,074 includes
$4,906 paid to the volunteer association and $168 for tax assessments.

Capital Expenditures

2017: $28,346 Final expenditures to complete the new firehouse
2017: $197,439 New light rescue squad

Can the subject agency improve its use of generally accepted accounting principles including: summaries of
all fund balances, summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of reserves, and any un-funded
obligations (i.e. pension/retiree benefits)? Does the agency need accounting and/or financial policies that
guide the agency in how financial transactions are recorded and presented?

No. The District maintains all funds in the County Treasury and uses the County’s financial system to
maintain its accounting records. Although the District is independent, it follows the same accounting
policies the County adheres to. Accounting and budget data, including all cash receipts and
disbursements, are reviewed by County finance staff before being posted to the County’s financial
system.

Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular basis and are discrepancies identified,
investigated and corrective action taken in a timely manner? The review may include reconciliations of
various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual, analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

3-12
138



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

d)

e)

f)

g)

expense balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s financial system and the County
Treasury, does the agency review monthly the transactions in the County system to transactions the agency
submitted to the County for processing?

Yes. Accounting transactions over the years have been recorded to the proper accounts in a very
consistent manner. However, the 2016-17 $30,000 addition to capital asset reserves, the $8,000
decrease to DIF reserve, and the 2017-18 $36,000 addition to capital asset reserves were not recorded
until 2018-19 when it was discovered. The 2019-20 $43,827 additions to capital asset reserve have not
been recorded. Although County DFS made the error, agencies need to review the reports regularly to
ensure accuracy.

Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports (quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that
provide a clear and complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully disclosing both positive and
negative financial information to the public and financial institutions?

No. The Clarksburg FPD includes mid-year (December) and end of year (June) financial reviews as
part of the board meetings. At this time, Infor reports (trial balance, general ledger, budget report) are
distributed to each board member for discussion, particularly related to budget compliance. Typically,
at the May meeting the Board considers budget revisions that consider actual year-to-date expenditures
and any changes to revenues.

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being reliable? For example, is a large percentage
of revenue coming from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

No. Revenues are reliable, with the majority coming from property taxes and special assessments.

Is the organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level of service, necessary infrastructure
maintenance, replacement and/or any needed expansion? Is the rate/fee schedule fee inconsistent with the
schedules of similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule include a specific amount identified for
capital asset replacement (tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

Yes. Please see item 3a. Clarksburg FPD regularly reviews current and estimated future expenditures
to determine whether the special assessment should be increased to fund needed apparatus
replacement and potentially other station improvements. Clarksburg FPD has adopted a funding plan
through 2037 to ensure continued financial resources are available. However as of June 30, 2021 the
District’s total fund balance of $853,612 is over $1 million less than minimum recommended total fund
balance of $1,894,000 primarily due to underfunding the capital asset replacement reserve (see 4g)
below).

Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against unexpected events or upcoming significant
costs (excluding capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Does the agency need to identify and quantify what the
possible significant risks and costs of infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency need a reserve
policy?

Yes. The Clarksburg FPD has a total fund balance of $853,612 as of June 30, 2021, which is
$1,040,388 below the recommended total fund balance of $1,894,000. The minimum recommended
fund balance is the total of 3 components as follows:

o Capital asset replacement. Using estimated apparatus replacement costs, this estimate
divides this cost by the recommended life of each apparatus and assumes a straight-line
projection and contribution to a capital asset replacement sinking fund.

e General reserve. This is the total of 50% of current secured taxes and 50% of special
assessments to maintain liquidity from July through December each year when no
tax/assessment revenue is received.

e Unassigned fund balance. GFOA recommendation of 15% of operating expenditures to
mitigate revenue shortages and/or unanticipated expenditures.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

3-13
139



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

The June 30,2021 actual and estimated recommended fund balance amounts are as follows:

6/30/2021 6/30/2021
Actual Recommended Excess/

Balance Balance (Shortage)
Apparatus Replacement
Development impact fees 21,166
Other funds 598,153
619,319 1,808,000 (1,188,681)
General reserve 41,934 75,000 (33,066)
Unassigned 192,359 11,000 181,359

Total Recommended Fund Balance $ 853,612 $ 1,894,000 $ (1,040,388)

i) Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s debt at an unmanageable level? Does the
agency need a clear capital financing and debt management policy, if applicable?

No. The agency does not have any debt, nor does it provide any post-retirement benefits to employees.

Financial Ability MSR Determination

Clarksburg FPD is in a stable financial position and its conservative financial practices have enabled it to
accumulate an unrestricted fund balance of $832,446 as of June 30, 2021 and has no debt. Excluding one-
time expenditures, such as purchases of equipment, the Clarksburg FPD generally operates in the black.
The Clarksburg FPD has a total fund balance of $853,612 as of June 30, 2021, which is $1,040,388 below
the recommended total fund balance of $1,894,000. Annual net income after expenditures averaged over
$114,000 for the past four years. The Clarksburg FPD board receives regular financial reports. To improve
the financial information provided by the County, staff should review the ledger more thoroughly to ensure
accuracy and mitigate against potentially making a financial decision based on inaccurate data. Clarksburg
FPD should consider reviewing current and future expenditures to determine whether the special
assessment should be increased to fund needed apparatus replacement and potentially other station
improvements. To maintain the high degree of liquidity the Clarksburg FPD will need to consider using a
combination of increased revenues and debt financing to purchase updated apparatus. Overall, Clarksburg
FPD’s board and staff have consistently maintained a financially stable local agency.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

e The amount of revenue the special assessment raises has not changed since 1993. Clarksburg
FPD should consider reviewing current and future expenditures to determine whether the special
assessment should be increased.

e Clarksburg FPD should review financial data on a regular basis and identify and discrepancies.
The review should include reconciliations of various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual,
analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense balances to the prior year, etc. It also
should review monthly the transactions in the County system to transactions the agency submitted
to the County for processing.

e Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make the
findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees collected from
new development are spent solely on appropriate facilities.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-14
140



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

5. SHARED SERVICES AND FACILITIES
Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.
YES MAYBE NO
a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services
or facilities with neighboring, overlapping or other organizations O O X
that are not currently being utilized?
Discussion:

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services or facilities with neighboring, overlapping

or other organizations that are not currently being utilized?

No. Clarksburg FPD’s landlocked geography limits its ability to share services with neighboring FPDs.
Most Clarksburg FPD training is done locally by volunteers with specialized training in the areas of
engineering, fire suppression, medical aid, and other areas related to fire operations because it is not
practical to regularly participate in the Yolo County Firefighters Association Training Program due to
the Clarksburg FPD’s geographic isolation. Mutual and auto aid agreements already cover the
countywide FPDs for incident response. Clarksburg FPD would like to participate in any shared services
that makes sense, such as pooled purchasing.

Shared Services MSR Determination

Clarksburg FPD’s landlocked geography limits its ability to share services with neighboring FPDs. Mutual
and auto aid agreements already cover the countywide FPDs for incident response. Clarksburg FPD would
like to participate in any shared services that benefit from economies of scale with the Yolo County
Firefighters Association and/or FPD JOAs that makes sense, such as pooled purchasing.

6.

ACCOUNTABILITY, STRUCTURE AND EFFICIENCIES

Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational efficiencies.

YES MAYBE NO

a)

Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s

governmental structure or operations that will increase accountability O] O] X
and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public,

service inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?

b)

Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining
board members? Is there a lack of board member training regarding O O X
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

c)

Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a
lack of staff member training regarding the organization’s program O O X
requirements and financial management?

d)

Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to

personnel/payroll, general and administrative, board member and

meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among BJ O O
staff and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct (see

suggested policies list)?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

3-15
141



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making N N X
their Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures?

Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial

reports that meet California State Controller requirements? Are the O] O] X
same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not

reviewed in an open meeting?

9)

If the agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have

a qualified external person review agency finances each year (at a

minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior O O X
years, analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining

if the reports appear reasonable?

h)

Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a
website  (see  https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government- BJ O O
website-transparency-scorecards)?

Discussion:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s governmental structure or operations that will
increase accountability and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public, service
inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?

No. Clarksburg FPD’s structure is operationally accountable and efficient as it is.

Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining board members? Is there a lack of board
member training regarding the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

No. All Clarksburg FPD Board seats are filled and there does not appear to be an issue with maintaining
members. There have only been 3 member changes in the past 5 years.

Name / Title Start End

Steve Pylman / 04/07/2020 07/01/2022
Mark Pruner / 11/20/2018 12/01/2022
Joseph Gomes / 02/23/2021 02/01/2025
Nancy Kirchhoff / 02/23/2021 03/01/2025
John Webber, Jr. / 02/23/2021 03/01/2025

Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a lack of staff member training regarding
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

No. The Clarksburg FPD chief and assistant chief positions have been stable for many years. It has 22
volunteer firefighters that live in the community that are committed. Clarksburg FPD is aware of the
need and is working on succession planning.

Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to personnel/payroll, general and
administrative, board member and meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among staff
and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct?

Yes. The Clarksburg FPD has a written “Administrative Code (AC) of the Clarksburg Fire Protection
Clarksburg FPD”, last update May 2020. This document includes the following, mission statement,
district responsibilities, purpose, board of commissioners, conflict of interest, billing and purchasing,
firehouse use, training, drills, job descriptions, personnel recruitment, and retention, hiring policy, driver
safety, equipment, communications, fire scene, traffic safety, meetings and use of private vehicle.

The Clarksburg FPD should include, within the Board of Commissioners section of the AC, policies
related to attendance at meetings, meeting conduct, responsibilities of officers, etc. In addition, the
District should adopt additional policies and procedures related to personnel and payroll including
employee/volunteer promotions, performance evaluations, drug and alcohol policies, payroll

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

3-16
142


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

processing, etc. Also, accounting, and financial policies should be developed to include general
accounting, processing and recording of disbursements and receipts, allowable expenditures,
employee and board travel and expense reimbursements, capital assets, debt and borrowing, credit
card use, etc. Sample policies will be provided for FPD use.

e) Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making their Statement of Economic Interests
(Form 700) disclosures?

No. The Yolo County Board of Supervisors is the conflict-of-interest code reviewing body for these
districts. Review occurs every two years and was last approved on October 6, 2020. The Clarksburg
FPD is current on filing Form 700s5.

f) Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial reports that meet California State Controller
requirements? Are the same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not reviewed in an
open meeting?

No. The Clarksburg FPD is on a 2-year audit cycle and is current on its independent audits.

g) If the agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have a qualified external person review
agency finances each year (at a minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years,
analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable?

No. The FPD reviews the ledgers periodically and discuss the ledgers at length at board meetings.

h) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a website (see
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards)?

Yes. The Clarksburg FPD received a 54% best practices transparency score in 2021. Please see the
report posted on the LAFCo website for where improvements are needed.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Determination

There are no recommended changes to Clarksburg FPD’s governmental structure or operations that will
increase accountability and efficiency. Clarksburg FPD is highly effective in its current structure operating
with a volunteer model. There are no issues with maintaining board members and staff. Board members
and key staff are trained regarding the organization’s program requirements and financial management.
Clarksburg FPD has some basic policies but should consider adopting additional policies regarding meeting
attendance, conduct, responsibilities of officers, personnel, and accounting/financial procedures. CPFD is
current in making its Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures and is current in its
independent audits. Clarksburg FPD should improve its website transparency (see the latest website
transparency scorecard posted on the LAFCo website for details).

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

e The Clarksburg FPD should adopt policies related to meeting attendance, conduct, responsibilities
of officers, and personnel (including employee/volunteer promotions, performance evaluations,
drug and alcohol policies, payroll processing, etc.) In addition, accounting and financial policies
should be developed to include general accounting, processing, and recording of disbursements
and receipts, allowable expenditures, employee and board travel and expense reimbursements,
capital assets, debt and borrowing, credit card use, etc. LAFCo will provide policy templates for
FPD use.

e The Clarksburg FPD received a 54% best practices transparency score in 2021. Please see the
report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards for where
improvements are needed.

5 Per email from Liz Mahovlich, Yolo County Clerk/Recorder’s office on October 18, 2021.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

3-17
143


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

7. BROADBAND ACCESS
Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy.

Per Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 6.2 “it is the intent of Yolo LAFCo to comprehensively review broadband access
in MSRs of local agencies that either serve communities and/or provide emergency services where broadband
connection is critical (i.e. cities, CSDs, CSAs, FPDs and RDs).”

YES MAYBE NO

a) Is there a lack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) ] X ]
available in the community?

b) Is there a lack of low-income subscription rates and/or digital X O] ]

literacy programs available?

Discussion:
a) Isthere alack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) available in the community?

Maybe. Most of the Clarksburg FPD territory is serviced by California Broadband Services with fixed
wireless speeds up to 40 Mbps download and 20 Mbps upload speeds®. However, according to the
provider’s website, a service plan to achieve download speeds of 25 Mbps or higher would cost $170
per month, which is relatively exorbitant. Frontier Communications also has DSL service in some
portions of the town of Clarksburg at either 18/1 Mbps or 6/1 Mbps depending on location, however,
Frontier has effectively abandoned any upgrades to this service.

The Clarksburg FPD station has been provided internet from a wireless signal provided by the County
to the FPD tower that is then directed to the County library in Clarksburg. Clarksburg FPD has facilitated
internet services at Clarksburg library for many years. But now that the County is working on a project
to bring fiber to the library, the Clarksburg FPD is concerned the signal will be taken down. The
Clarksburg FPD’s station and reverse 911 system uses the internet, so this is an issue that needs to
be resolved so there is no impact to public safety. However, the County confirmed it will be stopping
the signal from the station to the library, but the signal to the station will continue and not be taken
down’.

6 CPUC Broadband Mapping Program data as of December 31, 2019. Speeds provided are maximum advertised
speeds and not necessarily typical speeds actually experienced by the subscriber.

7 Email from Lee Gerney, Yolo County IT Director June 10, 2022.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-18
144



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b) Is there a lack of low-income subscription rates and/or digital literacy programs available?

Yes. California Broadband Services is the only service provider that can provide speeds at 25/3 Mbps
and its subscription rates are very high at $170 per month. Frontier has low-income subscription rates,
but its advertised speeds are either 18/1 Mbps or 6/1 Mbps depending on location. According to the
CPUC Broadband Mapping Program, broadband adoption at 25/3 Mbps is high at 80%.

Yolo County Library staff provide one-on-one computer assistance, with even with basic functions like
setting up an email account® and generally help troubleshoot technology challenges. Information and
instruction about basic computer/tablet/smartphone use is offered in ESL conversation clubs, classes
and in Yolo Reads Adult and Family Literacy program. The library also provides hotspots and
Chromebooks for those that need these items. The library does not have a formalized technology
curriculum, although there have been discussions regarding adding it as a service.

8 Email from Mark Fink, Yolo County Librarian on May 26, 2021

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-19
145



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Broadband Access MSR Determination

The Clarksburg FPD territory is mostly covered by broadband level service; however, it is relatively
exorbitant and low-income subscription rates are not available. California Broadband Services provides
fixed wireless speeds up to 40Mbps download and 20 Mbps upload speeds. However, according to the
provider’'s website, a service plan to achieve 25Mbps or higher with data caps would cost $170 per month.
According to the CPUC Broadband Mapping Program, broadband adoption for the area is high at 80%.

Broadband Access MSR Recommendation

e Yolo County should note that rural areas such as the Clarksburg FPD served by California
Broadband Services as the only provider option are being charged relatively exorbitant rates ($170
for broadband speeds) and additional providers should be encouraged and incentivized where
possible to create market competition.

8. STATUS OF PREVIOUS MSR RECOMMENDATIONS
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR ] X ]
that have not been implemented?

Discussion:
a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR that have not been implemented?

Maybe.

2016 MSR Recommendations Specific to the Clarksburg FPD and Status

1. Clarksburg and West Plainfield FPDs should consider reducing annual expenditures, seeking
additional revenues, or a combination of both to achieve long-term fiscal sustainability.

Status: The Clarksburg FPD is financially stable. However, the amount of revenue the special
assessment raises has not changed since 1993. Clarksburg FPD should consider reviewing current
and future expenditures to determine whether the special assessment should be increased. See
the response to item 4a.

Status of Previous Recommendations MSR Determination

The 2016 MSR recommended Clarksburg FPD consider reducing annual expenditures and/or seeking
additional revenues to achieve long-term fiscal sustainability. The Clarksburg FPD is currently financially
stable. However, the amount of revenue the special assessment raises has not changed since 1993.
Clarksburg FPD should consider reviewing current and future expenditures to determine whether the
special assessment should be increased. This recommendation is reiterated in the Financial Ability section.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-20
146



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

On the basis of the Municipal Service Review:

= Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update is NOT
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, NO CHANGE
to the agency’s SOl is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE NOT been made.

] Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update IS
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, A CHANGE to
the agency’s SOl is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE been made and are included in
this MSR/SOI study.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
3-21
147



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

AGENCY PROFILE

The Dunnigan Fire Protection District (FPD) was established in 1927 and is authorized to provide fire
prevention and protection and emergency response services. It was formed as a dependent district to Yolo
County, which delegated its decision-making authority to a local Fire Commission with five members, each
appointed by the Board of Supervisors to serve four-year terms.

The Dunnigan FPD is 70,351 acres in size and serves a largely rural area, which includes the
unincorporated community of Dunnigan, where the District’s station is located. The Dunnigan FPD territory
is generally located in northeastern Yolo County, extending north to the Colusa County line and east to the
Sacramento River. Dunnigan FPD is bordered on the west by the Capay Valley FPD and to the south by
the Esparto, Zamora, and Knights Landing FPDs. The District contains 444 residential and 22 commercial
addresses, and the population is estimated to be 1,110 residents®. The Dunnigan Fire Station is located at
9145 Main Street, in Dunnigan. The District has 6 apparatus and 1 command vehicle. The FPD has a
volunteer chief that receives a minimal stipend, a part-time clerk. There are 24 firefighters total (2 within the
District and 22 reserves).

The Dunnigan FPD boundary and sphere of influence (SOI) is shown below. The SOI is coterminous with
the district boundary.

Dunnigan Fire Protection District Boundary and Sphere of Influence*

Station'No. 12

Dunnigan Fire Protection District Knights Landing

Fire Protection District

Capay Valley
Fire Protection District
_ Station No. 11
“w

a

Zamora Fire Protection District

| 4 Fire staton

Fire Protecson Dis¥ict Boundary Esparto Fire Protection District
| Roads
Parcel Lines o Yolo Fire Protection District
| et i
Lo
= SatonNo 25
* Note: Sphere of Influence is coterminous with boundary Adopted by Yolo LAFCo June 23, 2016

1 Population estimate is based on the number of residential addresses assigned in 2021 in the FPD territory with a Yolo
County average of 2.5 persons per household.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
4-1
148



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW

POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT MSR DETERMINATIONS

The MSR determinations checked below are potentially significant, as indicated by “yes” or “maybe”
answers to the key policy questions in the checklist and corresponding discussion on the following pages.
If most or all of the determinations are not significant, as indicated by “no” answers, the Commission may
find that a MSR update is not warranted.

Growth and Population XI Shared Services

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities

X  Accountability
Capacity, Adequacy & Infrastructure to Provide X
X

Broadband Access

Status of Previous MSR
Recommendations

Services

X X X KX

Financial Ability

LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW:

[ ] On the basis of this initial evaluation, the required determinations are not significant and staff
recommends that an MSR is NOT NECESSARY. The subject agency will be reviewed again in five
years per Government Code Section 56425(qg).

[XI The subject agency has potentially significant determinations and staff recommends that a
comprehensive MSR IS NECESSARY and has been conducted via this checklist.

1. GROWTH AND POPULATION
Growth and population projections for the affected area. YES MAYBE NO

a) Will development and/or population projections over the next 5-10 O] X ]
years impact the subject agency’s service needs and demands?

b) Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s ] ] X
services?

Discussion:

a) Will development and/or population projections over the next 5-10 years impact the subject agency’s service
needs and demands?

Maybe. The population for Dunnigan FPD is currently estimated to be 1,110 and there are no new large
growth areas designated or anticipated by the County that would compromise service levels. However,
there is highway commercial development anticipated along I-5 and Dunnigan FPD has a Development
Impact Fee.

The recent Department of Finance Population Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the State (Report E-
1) estimates are not useful for unincorporated population projections for this MSR due to COVID. In
2021, the unincorporated population is estimated to have declined by -14.8%. In 2022, it is estimated
to have increased +26.5%. This has been mostly attributed to the UC Davis student population being

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
4-2
149



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

sent home for online classes and then brought back in person again, so the data is too skewed to be
meaningful for FPD population change.

The data that is more applicable to fire service demand is call data, which has increased more than
population countywide. Over the last three fiscal years, total calls that resulted in dispatched
apparatus/responders were 388 in FY 18/19, 574 in FY 19/20 and 551 in FY 20/21, a 42% increase in
only three years.

b) Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s services?
No. Population changes would not require a change to the Dunnigan FPD boundary or SOI.
Growth and Population MSR Determination

The population for Dunnigan FPD is currently estimated to be 1,110 and there are no new large growth
areas designated or anticipated by the County that would compromise service levels. However, there is
highway commercial development anticipated along I-5 and Dunnigan FPD has a development impact fee
(DIF). Over the last three fiscal years, total calls that resulted in dispatched apparatus/responders were 388
in FY 18/19, 574 in FY 19/20 and 551 in FY 20/21, a 42% increase in only three years. Dunnigan FPD’s
call volume in FY 20/21 was the 3™ highest at 551 dispatches (including mutual aid calls). The difference
is the FPDs with comparable/higher call volume have 2.5 — 4 FTE paid staff each.

2. DISADVANTAGED UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES

The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the
sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers,
municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, are
there any ‘inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted
Commission policy) within or adjacent to the subject agency’s ] X ]
sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or
less of the statewide median household income) that do not
already have access to public water, sewer and structural fire
protection?

b) If “ves” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such
that it can extend service to the disadvantaged unincorporated O] ] X
community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it
is either not needed or not applicable.

Discussion:

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire
protection, are there any “inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted Commission policy) within or
adjacent to the subject agency’s sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or less of the
statewide median household income) that do not already have access to public water, sewer and structural
fire protection?

Maybe. Although all territory countywide receives structural fire protection services, Dunnigan FPD may
not receive equal access to services due to its disadvantaged status. It appears the Dunnigan FPD is
receiving a lower level of service as compared to other FPDs which is likely due in part to its
disadvantaged status and corresponding lack of funding. For more information regarding service
issues, please see item 3e.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

4-3
150



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b) If “yes” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such that it can extend service to the
disadvantaged unincorporated community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it is either not
needed or not applicable.

No. All territory countywide receives structural fire protection services, therefore, the Dunnigan FPD
boundaries do not need to be changed.

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities MSR Determination

Dunnigan FPD boundaries do not need to be changed because all territory countywide receives structural
fire protection services, although Dunnigan FPD may not receive equal access to and revenue for needed
services due to its disadvantaged status. It appears the Dunnigan FPD is receiving a lower level of service
as compared to other FPDs which is likely due in part to its lack of funding. Support of a Proposition 218 is
likely affected by the disadvantaged income status of roughly half of its territory.

3. CAPACITY AND ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES

Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or
deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire
protection in any disadvantaged, unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and
capacity of agency facilities to meet existing service needs for X ] ]
which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve
(including deficiencies created by new state regulations)?

b) Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan X ] ]
in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e.,
number of staff and/or contracts).

c) Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability

to meet the service demand of reasonably foreseeable future O X O
growth?
d) Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its ] ] X

assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

e) Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged
unincorporated communities related to sewers, municipal and X ] ]
industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous
to the agency’s sphere of influence?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
4-4
151



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Discussion:

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and capacity of agency facilities to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve (including deficiencies
created by new state regulations)?

Yes.

Fire Stations

The Dunnigan FPD has one station located at 29145 Main Street, Dunnigan. Station 12 is having well
and septic issues. The District is moving forward with eminent domain to acquire land needed for the
new leach field lines and well. Yolo County is assisting with grants to help with these costs, but the
anticipated Dunnigan FPD costs are currently unknown. Additional station needs identified are raising
the doors on the station and installing a new sensitive material secured area.

Apparatus

Dunnigan FPD has 6 apparatus (plus a new engine in process) and 1 command vehicle as follows.
However, the new Chief has submitted a draft 5-year plan that would reduce this number to 5 apparatus
and 1 command unit with one Type-I engine moving to reserve status.

Use Apparatus Type Age (yrs) | Reserve? (Y/N)
Engine 212* (new) | 0 No
Engine 212 (donated) | 17 Yes
Engine 12 Il 17 No
Wildlands Fires Grass 12 1] 33 Yes
Brush 12 V 14 No
Squad 12 VI 1 No
Water Tenders Water 12 | 23 No
Command/Utility | C 1200 12 No

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

4-5

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

152



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

*  Engine 212 was totaled in an accident in 2021 and a 17 year old donated engine will replace it
July 2022 temporarily. A new engine will be ordered through insurance and the donated engine
will become reserve apparatus.

All Dunnigan FPD apparatus receive regular maintenance service, regularly scheduled rig checks, and
annual pump testing. Hoses and ladders are tested every two years; however, the ladders were last
tested in 2019.

The FPD currently supplies all responding members with appropriate, in-date personal protective
equipment (PPE). PPE is regularly inspected and follows a PPE replacement schedule. All self-
contained breathing apparatus (SCBA) receive annual flow testing and all bottles are current in hydro
date. Dunnigan FPD operates adequate communications equipment including radios; but they need to
be updated. Dunnigan FPD does not have portable radios for every seat, but enough for responding
personnel.

ISO Rating

The Insurance Services Office, Inc. (ISO) evaluates fire departments for the purpose of establishing
insurance premiums, called “ISO ratings”. An ISO fire rating is a score from 1 to 10 that indicates how
well-protected a community is by the fire department and will affect insurance rates. It's unknown if the
Dunnigan FPD has an ISO rating. The new Chief has been unable to determine if the FPD has been
rated and will call ISO to begin the process anew.

b) Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet existing service needs for which the agency
does not have a plan in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e., number of staff and/or
contracts).

Yes.

Staff, Coverage and Training

The Dunnigan FPD station has essentially volunteer staff of 24 firefighters total. The Chief receives a
small stipend and some of the reserves (drivers only) receive a small stipend for an overnight shift.
Dunnigan FPD is staffed by 2-3 volunteer personnel 24 hours per day, 7 days per week.

Dunnigan FPD has written guidelines and procedures and reports having a training program that
ensures personnel are competent and safe to execute operations. The FPD trains all incident response
personnel in ICS (incident command system) and participates in the Yolo County Firefighters
Association Training Program. Responding personnel are fit tested on an annual basis.

Incident Reporting and Adequacy of Services

Dunnigan FPD recently transitioned to and utilizes ESO web-based program for reporting and
documentation. National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) reports are exported quarterly.
Regarding the adequacy of response, standards for the number of personnel and apparatus were
determined by the Fire Chiefs MSR Subcommittee for fire and rescue/EMS calls?.

2 By consensus of the Yolo Fire Chief's MSR Subcommittee, it was determined the minimum adequate response for a
fire call is 4 personnel and 2 apparatus, and for a rescue/EMS call is 3 personnel and 1 apparatus.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
4-6
153



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Below is Dunnigan FPD’s NFIRS response data for the last five fiscal years:

Dunnigan FPD Dunnigan FPD

300 (EMS) Series Incidents 100 (Fire) Series Incidents
Eswmintsgin e TR RO B_____ - [ 253 | 25|
13 | 121 ’.n 149
o'n oo oo BN BB s on on S BB
[ n =] #

Dunnigan FPD incident data was apparently provided at least in part to NFIRS, but not signed off by
the Chief so it was not completed in the system. The above graphs data that was provided to LAFCo
directly for the last one plus FYs. The data shows that the Dunnigan FPD is unable to respond with the
recommended minimum of 3 personnel to rescue/EMS calls (which outnumber fire calls by roughly 3:1)
and 4 personnel to fire calls. Other FPDs typically have more personnel on fire calls as compared to
rescue/EMS calls, which suggests volunteers are coming from the community to help. However, these
response numbers are similar for both types of calls which may indicate there are 2 or 3 volunteers
onsite at any given time (not all cleared to drive apparatus), and there is not as much community
volunteer support to augment fire calls. Dunnigan FPD needs to increase its personnel response,
especially considering the call volume it is handling.

Response Time and Missed Calls

The MSR Subcommittee developed response time goals for rescue/emergency medical service (EMS)
calls (6 minutes) and fire calls (9 minutes) for the first responding unit to arrive on scene. LAFCo
recognizes it may be more difficult for volunteer and/or more rural FPDs to meet this goal, however as
the MSR Subcommittee indicated, it represents a goal to focus on. FPD response time averages? for
the 2019 — 2021 calendar years are shown below.

3 Based on YECA data. For a list of the data outliers omitted, please reference the methodology discussion on page 1-
10 of this MSR/SOI.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
4-7
154



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

c)

d)

Dunnigan FPD
300 (EMS) Response Time Average

Dunnigan FPD
100 (Fire) Response Time Average

Dunnigan FPD had 0 missed calls in FY 18/19, 1 missed call (or 0.2%) in FY 19/20, and 2 missed calls
(or 0.4%) in FY 20/21.

Annual Performance Evaluation

NFPA requires FPDs to evaluate its level of service, deployment, and response time objectives on an
annual basis. From review of the meeting minutes, it does not appear this review is occurring.
Therefore, establishing this review and evaluation process at least on an annual basis is a
recommendation.

Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability to meet the service demand of reasonably
foreseeable future growth?

Maybe. Dunnigan FPD is struggling to respond to the calls it has with sufficient personnel. Call volume
has increased significantly at 42% over the last three years. More personnel, likely paid staff, is needed
to serve the Dunnigan FPD demands for service. Please also see the response to 1(a).

Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

No. The FPDs collectively report that climate change is not a factor in the valley and is only an issue
for those FPDs that border the Coastal Range. Many FPDs benefit financially from staff and apparatus
reimbursement revenue for supporting CalFire during wildfire events. The drought is affecting the
District’s well. According to the Chief it is an older well that is not very deep, and 3-5 years ago started
showing signs of inadequacy. But the FPD is already aware and addressing this issue.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

4-8
155



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

e) Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged unincorporated communities related to
sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous to the agency’s
sphere of influence?

Yes. The eastern half of the Dunnigan FPD is disadvantaged (see the response to 2a). While the
Dunnigan FPD receives structural fire protection services, the level of service (measured by number of
personnel responding) is lower than compared to other FPDs that are not disadvantaged. Dunnigan
FPD’s core revenues are relatively low, yet in FY 20/21 it had the highest number of dispatches of all
the FPDs inside its jurisdiction (i.e., not including mutual aid calls). Dunnigan FPD needs increased
personnel, which will likely require increased revenue. Some Dunnigan FPD fire commissioners and
personnel express skepticism the voters will approve a Proposition 218 assessment to increase its
revenue. Support of a Proposition 218 is likely affected by the disadvantaged income status of roughly
half of its territory.

- o Mavs Land

Firs Protection
Core Revenue per Fire Protection District FY 20/21 0
0§ Twe Steen Core Revene ] 1648 - T 0w N Clarkeburg Mes

ns - teezy I OTAG - G4 Pratectitn
[ RER TR Vi
175 15 Mo
L A 1 1 i 'y re J

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Determination

Station 12 is having well and septic issues and is eminent domain proceedings to acquire land to
accommodate new systems. Yolo County has assisted with preparing grant applications. All Dunnigan FPD
apparatus receive regular maintenance service, regularly scheduled rig checks, and annual pump testing.
The FPD currently supplies all responding members with appropriate, in-date personal protective
equipment (PPE). Dunnigan FPD is not ISO rated and will reach out to ISO to begin the process.

The Dunnigan FPD station has 24 firefighters total which are essentially volunteer staff with some minimal
stipends. Dunnigan FPD is staffed by 2-3 volunteer personnel 24 hours per day, 7 days per week. DPFD
response times comply with NFPA 1720 standards. However, incident response data indicates Dunnigan
FPD is struggling to respond to calls with sufficient personnel. Call volume has increased significantly at
42% over the last three years. More personnel, likely paid staff, is needed to serve the Dunnigan FPD high
demands for service. But Dunnigan FPD’s core revenues are relatively low, even though in FY 20/21 it had
the highest number of dispatches of all the FPDs inside its jurisdiction (i.e., not including mutual aid calls).
Dunnigan FPD needs increased personnel, which will likely require increased revenue. Some Dunnigan
FPD fire commissioners and personnel have expressed skepticism the voters will approve a Proposition

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

4-9
156



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

218 assessment to increase its revenue. Support of a Proposition 218 would likely be affected by the
disadvantaged income status of roughly half of its territory.

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

Schedule needed station improvements (well, septic, raised bay doors, hazardous materials

handling, etc.) so it can be incorporated into a CIP.

Call ISO to determine its rating or consider having a new rating done.

Provide written evaluations of its level of service, deployment, and response time objectives on an

annual basis at a Fire Commission meeting.

Complete its NFIRS reporting on an ongoing basis and obtain training if needed.

Dunnigan FPD needs to increase its personnel response, especially considering the call volume it
is handling. More personnel are needed to serve the Dunnigan FPD demands for service, which
will likely require paid staff and increased revenue. It may be difficult for the voters to support a
Proposition 218 assessment to increase Dunnigan FPD revenue due to the disadvantaged income

status of roughly half of its territory.

4. FINANCIAL ABILITY

Financial ability of agencies to provide services.

a)

Is the subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does
the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues? Does revenue
growth keep pace with increased costs?

b)

Can the subject agency improve its use of generally accepted
accounting principles including: summaries of all fund balances,
summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of
reserves, and any un-funded obligations (i.e. pension/retiree
benefits)? Does the agency need accounting and/or financial
policies that guide the agency in how financial transactions are
recorded and presented?

Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular
basis and are discrepancies identified, investigated and corrective
action taken in a timely manner? The review may include
reconciliations of various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual,
analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense
balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s
financial system and the County Treasury, does the agency
review monthly the transactions in the County system to
transactions the agency submitted to the County for processing?

d)

Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports
(quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that provide a clear and
complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully
disclosing both positive and negative financial information to the
public and financial institutions?

e)

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being
reliable? For example, is a large percentage of revenue coming
from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

YES MAYBE NO
O 0 X
0 0 X
X 0 0
0 0 X
X 0 0

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

4-10

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

157



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

f) Isthe organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level
of service, necessary infrastructure maintenance, replacement
and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the X 0 0
schedules of similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule
include a specific amount identified for capital asset replacement
(tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

g) Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against
unexpected events or upcoming significant costs (excluding
capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Has the agency identified and X ] ]
quantified what the possible significant risks and costs of
infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency have a
reserve policy?

h) Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s
debt at an unmanageable level? Does the agency need a clear O O X
debt management policy, if applicable?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
4-11
158



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Financial Background

DUNNIGAN FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenue
Property tax, in-lieu tax, HOPTR $ 164,246 $ 173,943 $ 198,941 $ 198,307 $ 209,196
Development impact fees 24,381 19,376 18,732 6,856 12,747
Licenses and permits 5,296 19,649 17,312 25,807 37,715
Interest 1,132 3,507 8,962 13,008 (2,656)
County tribal mitigation - - 50,000 - -
CA Fire 4,773 37,037 53,033 50,392 297,567
Other revenue 1,743 11,395 7,275 3,953 5,609
Total Revenue 201,571 264,907 354,255 298,323 560,178
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits 51,489 107,876 136,633 87,520 255,165
Services and supplies 56,096 116,302 117,172 173,922 176,001
Debt service (principal and interest) 65,372 6,528 - - -
Capital Assets:
Equipment - - - - 61,087
Total Expenditures 172,957 230,706 253,805 261,442 492,253
Net income (loss) 28,614 34,201 100,450 36,881 67,925
Beginning Fund Balance 246,542 275,156 309,357 409,807 446,688
Ending Fund Balances $ 275,156 $ 309,357 $ 409,807 $ 446,688 $ 514,613
Fund Balances
Restricted - Development impact fee $ 35916 $ 41434 $ 40,751 $ 40,415 $ 8,715
Assigned - Capital asset replacemen 117,300 177,534 203,196 258,031 30,693
Assigned - General reserve 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000 6,000
Unassigned 115,940 84,389 159,860 142,242 469,205
Total Fund Balances $ 275,156 $ 309,357 $ 409,807 $ 446,688 $ 514,613
Y-T-Y Change in total Fund Balances
Amount Increase (Decrease) $ 28,614 $ 34,201 $ 100,450 $ 36,881 $ 67,925
Percentage Increase (Decrease) 11.61% 12.43% 32.47% 9.00% 15.21%
Property Tax Analysis
a. Assessed Value (AV) $347,555,132 $369,904,793 $407,460,103 $403,296,128 $423,936,432
b. Y-T-Y Percentage change in AV 6.87% 6.43% 10.15% -1.02% 5.12%
c. Current secured, unsecured and + $ 160,377 $ 169,721 % 197,395 $ 196,034 $ 205,886
d. District share of general 1% levy 4.6144% 4.5882% 4.8445% 4.8608% 4.8565%

Discussion:

a)

Is the subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues?
Does revenue growth keep pace with increased costs?

No. The District’s core revenues (property taxes) have increased from $164,246 in 2017 to $209,196
in 2021, an average of 6% per year. Although total fund balances have increased from $246,542 as of
June 30, 2016 to $514,613 as of June 30, 2021, it appears the fund balance has increased due to
income from participating in strike teams, which is not a reliable revenue source (and requires the initial

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

4-12

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

159



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

outlay of funds and a reimbursement process). Over the past five years strike team reimbursements
totaled $442,802, while over this same period fund balance has increased $268,071. As of June 30,
2021, total fund balance was $514,613 of which $505,898 can be used for any purpose. The remaining
$8,715 is unexpended development impact fees that can only be expended on equipment and facilities
that the District requires in order to provide services to new development within its service area.

Revenue

Dunnigan Fire Protection District’'s revenue consists of property taxes, development impact fees,
inspection fees related to new development, interest, a grant from the County and other miscellaneous
revenue. Like other rural fire districts, Dunnigan PFD relies primarily on a share of the general 1%
property tax levy for the majority of its revenue. In fiscal year 2021, property taxes of $209,196
comprised 80% of total revenues (excluding CalFire reimbursements). The District’'s share of property
taxes within its boundaries is approximately 4.9%, while the average for all rural FPDs in the county is
6.2%. The District began receiving development impact fee (DIF) revenue in fiscal year 2005. The fee
is required to be paid by developers for all new development within the district and can only be used
by the District to fund equipment and facilities to service new development. From inception to June 30,
2021 the district has received $243,246 from development impact fees of which $82,092 has been
collected over the past 5 years. In 2019 the District received a one-time grant in the amount of $50,000
from the County to finance repairs to the training hall. In addition, over the past 5 years Dunnigan FPD
has received, inspection fees of $105,779, strike team reimbursements of $442,802 and other revenue
totaling $29,975.

Expenditures
The District expenditures appear to have remained steady over the past five years, excluding

expenditures related to strike teams. Salaries and benefits include pay for two part-time employees,
shift pay to firefighters and strike team pay as presented in the table below.

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Chief 4,821 4,802 4,800 5,571 6,026
Clerk 12,728 12,677 12,672 14,097 15,263
Shift pay 30,508 66,318 50,711 67,852 84,798
Strike Teams 3,432 24,079 68,450 0 149,078

51,489 107,876 136,633 87,520 255,165

Service and supplies have increased due to participation in strike teams. In 2018 the District paid off a
loan from the County.

Capital expenditures
2021: $61,087, 2020 Ram 5500, Squad 12

The main core revenue of the district is property tax revenue which comprises about 80% of fiscal year
2021 total revenue, excluding CalFire reimbursements. Property tax receipts have increased on
average 6% a year. Without additional revenue sources the district cannot support increased paid
staffing to improve response performance calls, existing facility needs and replacement of apparatus.

Can the subject agency improve its use of generally accepted accounting principles including: summaries of
all fund balances, summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of reserves, and any un-funded
obligations (i.e. pension/retiree benefits)? Does the agency need accounting and/or financial policies that
guide the agency in how financial transactions are recorded and presented?

No. The district maintains all funds in the County Treasury and uses the County’s financial system to
maintain its accounting records. Since the district is a dependent district, it is subject to the same
accounting and financial policies of the County. Accounting and budget data including all cash receipts
and disbursements are reviewed by DFS staff before posting to the financial system.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

4-13
160



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

d)

e)

f)

9)

Does the agency staff fail to review financial data on a regular basis and are discrepancies identified,
investigated and corrective action taken in a timely manner? The review may include reconciliations of
various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual, analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and
expense balances to the prior year, efc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s financial system and the County
Treasury, does the agency review monthly the transactions in the County system to transactions the agency
submitted to the County for processing?

No. District staff reviews financial reports, provided by the County, on a regular basis. Staff regularly
reports financial information to the commission to request budget amendments, transfer reserves, etc.

Does the agency board fail to receive regular financial reports (quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that
provide a clear and complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully disclosing both positive and
negative financial information to the public and financial institutions?

No. Although not noted in the minutes, the commission receives a monthly financial report that includes
budget-to-actual data and other balances.

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being reliable? For example, is a large percentage
of revenue coming from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

Yes. Of the revenues received in 2021 approximately 56% are reliable. This includes only property
taxes. The other 44% includes, permit inspection fees, development impact fees, interest, CalFire
reimbursements and other revenue which are not considered reliable. Over the past 5 years the District
received $442,802 for participating in strike teams which was 26% of total revenue the past 5 years.
The District received $297,567 in fiscal year 2021. A large portion of the increases in fund balance over
the past 5 years is attributable to strike team reimbursements and cannot be counted on annually to
fund ongoing operating expenditures.

Is the organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level of service, necessary infrastructure
maintenance, replacement and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the schedules of
similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule include a specific amount identified for capital asset
replacement (tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

Yes. The District has many current needs such as additional paid staff to improve call responses,
facility repairs, apparatus replacement and to maintain adequate reserves. Also see 4Q).

Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against unexpected events or upcoming significant
costs (excluding capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Does the agency need to identify and quantify what the
possible significant risks and costs of infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency need a reserve
policy?

Yes. The District does not have any written reserve polices or a capital improvement plan. In addition,
the District’s total fund balance as of June 30, 2021 is $514,613 and is over $1,000,000 below the
minimum recommended fund balance. The minimum recommended fund balance is the total of 3
components as follows:

o Capital asset replacement. Using estimated apparatus replacement costs, this estimate
divides this cost by the recommended life of each apparatus and assumes a straight-line
projection and contribution to a capital asset replacement sinking fund.

e General reserve. This is the total of 50% of current secured taxes and 50% of special
assessments to maintain liquidity from July through December each year when no
tax/assessment revenue is received.

e Unassigned fund balance. GFOA recommendation of 15% of operating expenditures to
mitigate revenue shortages and/or unanticipated expenditures.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

4-14
161



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

The June 30,2021 actual and estimated recommended fund balances amounts are as follows:

6/30/2021 6/30/2021
Actual Recommended Excess/

Balance Balance (Shortage)
Apparatus Replacement
Development impact fees 8,715
Other funds 30,693
39,408 1,413,000 (1,373,592)
General resernve 6,000 98,000 (92,000)
Unassigned 469,205 20,000 449,205

Total Recommended Fund Balance $ 514,613 $ 1,531,000 $ (1,016,387)

i) Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s debt at an unmanageable level? Does the
agency need a clear capital financing and debt management policy, if applicable?

No. As of June 30, 2021, the District did not have any debt, nor is liable for any unfunded pension
and/or other postemployment benefits (OPEB), such as retiree health insurance. In fiscal year 2018
the district paid off the remaining balance of a loan from the County.

Financial Ability MSR Determination

The District has operated at a net gain over the past 5 years and has a total available fund balance of
$514,613. The District’s only core revenues (property taxes) grew on average only 6% a year and total fund
balances have increased by $268,071. Much of the growth in fund balance can be attributable to strike
team reimbursements. Over the past 5 years the District received $442,802 for participating in strike teams
which was 26% of total revenue the past 5 years, cannot be counted on annually to fund ongoing operating
expenditures. In addition, the District has staffing, facility and equipment needs which will require additional
revenue to fund on an ongoing basis. The District does not have any written reserve polices or a capital
improvement plan. In addition, the District’s total fund balance as of June 30, 2021 of $514,613 is over
$1,000,000 below the minimum recommended fund balance. The Dunnigan FPD needs to increase its core
revenue, but it may be difficult for the voters to support a Proposition 218 assessment to increase Dunnigan
FPD revenue due to the disadvantaged income status of roughly half of its territory.

The District does not have written reserve policies nor a capital improvement plan. Dunnigan FPD maintains
its funds in the County Treasury and uses the County’s financial system to maintain its accounting records.
Dunnigan FPD fire commission receives financial reports at each meeting, but this needs to be reflected
on meeting agendas and minutes. As a dependent district, Dunnigan FPD is included in the County’s
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR).

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

¢ Create a capital improvement plan to determine how much funding needs to be set aside each year
and determine whether current revenues are adequate to fund the program. Develop reserve
policies to fund increased services, the CIP, and maintain and adequate fund balances.

e Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make the
findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees collected from
new development are spent solely on appropriate facilities.

e The Dunnigan FPD has received over $442,000 from participating in strike teams. This revenue
should not be relied on as stable revenue source to fund ongoing/normal operating costs.

e Dunnigan FPD should reflect in the minutes that the fire commission received and reviewed the
budget status report.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
4-15
162



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

e The Dunnigan FPD needs to increase its core revenue and should consider instituting a special
assessment to fund increased staffing, facility and apparatus needs, and reserves. It may be
difficult for the voters to support a Proposition 218 assessment to increase Dunnigan FPD revenue
due to the disadvantaged income status of roughly half of its territory.

5. SHARED SERVICES AND FACILITIES
Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services
or facilities with neighboring, overlapping or other organizations X O [
that are not currently being utilized?

Discussion:

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services or facilities with neighboring, overlapping
or other organizations that are not currently being utilized?

Yes. LAFCo recommends Dunnigan FPD along with Knights Landing, Yolo and Zamora FPDs scale
up its services and operate more as a regional unit via a JOA. These FPDs signed a JOA in May 2022
and need to work towards standardizing written operating policies and guidelines. It also has
mutual/auto aid agreements with surrounding fire departments.

The goal for coordinated/joint operations is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of
resources, consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during
incident response. Additional things that should be included as a required element of the JOA is:

e Apparatus/equipment standardization,
e Shared reserve apparatus, and
e Cooperative purchasing

Shared Services MSR Determination

LAFCo recommends Dunnigan FPD along with Knights Landing, Yolo and Zamora FPDs scale up its
services and operate more as a regional unit via a JOA. The FPDs have recently signed a JOA in May 2022
and need to work towards standardizing written operating policies and guidelines. It also has mutual/auto
aid agreements with surrounding fire departments. The goal for coordinated/joint operations is to achieve
a similar service standard, efficient use of resources, consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization,
and improved coordination during incident response.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

e Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are apparatus/equipment
standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative purchasing. These efficiencies are
currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

4-16
163



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

6. ACCOUNTABILITY, STRUCTURE AND EFFICIENCIES
Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational efficiencies.
YES MAYBE NO
a) Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s
governmental structure or operations that will increase accountability X ] ]
and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public,
service inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?
b) Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining
board members? Is there a lack of board member training regarding O X O
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?
c) Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a
lack of staff member training regarding the organization’s program X O O
requirements and financial management?
d) Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to
personnel/payroll, general and administrative, board member and
meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among X O O
staff and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct (see
suggested policies list)?
e) Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making X O] ]
their Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures?
f) Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial
reports that meet California State Controller requirements? Are the ] ] X
same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not
reviewed in an open meeting?
g) If the agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have
a qualified external person review agency finances each year (at a
minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior O ¢ [
years, analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining
if the reports appear reasonable?
h) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a
website  (see  https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government- O BJ O
website-transparency-scorecards)?

Discussion:

a) Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s governmental structure or operations that will
increase accountability and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public, service
inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?

Yes. Dunnigan FPD entered into a JOA May 2022 with Knights Landing, Yolo and Zamora FPDs
designed to improve operations and efficiencies. The recommendation below is to ensure Dunnigan
FPD enters into the JOA and maintains standing in good faith to achieve JOA goals.

Another Dunnigan FPD issue regarding service inefficiencies is the Uniform Fire Code (UFC) plan
check process. All the other FPDs except Dunnigan FPD use the Yolo County contract service provider
for plan checks for a uniform process (except the FPDs that contract with cities for service that then
utilize the cities for plan check). Customers complain of slow service and rigid UFC interpretations with
Dunnigan FPD. LAFCo recommends Dunnigan FPD utilize the Yolo County contract service provider
to streamline the plan check process and make it consistent with other unincorporated areas.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

LAFCo No. 21-05

4-17
164


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

d)

f)

9)

Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining board members? Is there a lack of board
member training regarding the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

Maybe. A Dunnigan FPD fire commission vacancy was just recently filled after one seat had remained
vacant for over two years. A review of Dunnigan FPD meeting minutes over the five-year review period
indicated the commission had to cancel meetings multiple times for lack of a quorum.

Name / Title Start End
Tim Hornbuckle / 01/28/2020 12/01/2023
Neil Busch / 09/01/2020 08/01/2024
John Reyes / 03/09/2021 11/01/2024
Anita Tatum / 10/12/2021 04/01/2025
John Keeble / 03/22/2022 06/01/2025

Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a lack of staff member training regarding
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

Yes. As discussed in the capacity section, in FY 2020/21 the Dunnigan FPD had more calls in
jurisdiction than any other FPD countywide and is managing this demanding workload with a volunteer
chief earning a minimal annual stipend and a combination of reserves/volunteers. The previous chief
resigned in January 2022 and the commission recently appointed a longstanding Dunnigan FPD
firefighter volunteer as Acting Chief. Dunnigan FPD should consider funding full-time positions as
needed to reduce burnout, turnover, and create more department stability.

Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to personnel/payroll, general and
administrative, board member and meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among staff
and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct?

Yes. Dunnigan FPD has a comprehensive employee handbook. Dunnigan FPD should adopt policies
related to fire commission meetings, to include attendance, conduct, and responsibilities of officers.
Even though Dunnigan FPD is a dependent District and is subject to the County’s accounting policies
it should review those accounting policies and develop ones that are unique to the District. They should
include general accounting, processing and recording of disbursements and receipts, allowable
expenditures, employee and commission travel and expense reimbursements, capital assets, debt and
borrowing, credit card use, etc. LAFCo will provide policy templates for FPD use.

Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making their Statement of Economic Interests
(Form 700) disclosures?

Yes. As of May 11, 2022, one Dunnigan FPD fire commissioner and the new Acting Chief were not
current on their 2021 Form 700 disclosures. DPFD is working to get these filings submitted.

Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial reports that meet California State Controller
requirements? Are the same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not reviewed in an
open meeting?

No. The dependent FPD’s (including Dunnigan FPD) are included in the annual audit of the County’s
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The FPD is reported as a blended component unit
and accounted for as a special revenue fund. According to the State Controller’s Office, the County’s
audited ACFR meets general audit requirements and the ACFR satisfies the requirements of
Government Code 269094,

If the agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have a qualified external person review
agency finances each year (at a minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years,
analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable?

4 Per email dated July 6, 2021 from Sandeep Singh, Manager, Local Government Policy Section Office of State
Controller, Local Government Programs and Services Division

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

4-18
165



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Maybe. Dunnigan FPD is audited annually as part of the County’s ACFR but it does not include
individual review of the dependent FPDs, just the aggregate total balance of all dependent FPDs (so
review is at a high level and not detailed). Yolo County should review agency finances with each
dependent FPD each year, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years, analyzing
significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable.

h) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a website (see
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards)?

Maybe. The Dunnigan FPD received a 17% transparency score in 2020 and a 0% transparency score
in 2021. The FPDs website seems to have been taken down or disabled during fall 2021 when websites
were scored. However, the FPD is a dependent district and is not required by law to have its own
website. Please see the latest report posted on the LAFCo website for where improvements are
needed.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Determination

Dunnigan FPD entered into a JOA with Knights Landing, Yolo and Zamora FPDs in May 2022 designed to
improve operations and efficiencies. Fire Commissioner training may be useful to clarify commissioner
roles, responsibilities, program requirements and financial management because the previous Chief had a
difficult relationship with (and by some accounts was not very transparent with) the commission. As
discussed in the capacity section, in FY 2020/21 the Dunnigan FPD had more calls in jurisdiction than any
other FPD countywide and is managing this demanding workload with a volunteer chief earning a minimal
annual stipend and a combination of reserves/volunteers. As funding allows, Dunnigan FPD should
consider hiring full-time positions as needed to reduce burnout, turnover, and create more department
stability.

The District has a comprehensive employee handbook and since Dunnigan FPD is a dependent district it
is assumed to comply with the County’s accounting policies. However, the district does not have any polices
governing the fire commissioners, administrative and financial policies. Not all Dunnigan FPD officials are
current on their 2021 Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures. Dunnigan FPD is audited
annually as part of the County’s ACFR but it does not include individual review of the dependent FPDs.
Yolo County should review agency finances with each dependent FPD each year to review agency
finances, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years, analyzing significant differences
or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable. As a dependent district, Dunnigan FPD is
not required to have a website but it has had one in years past. If the FPD decides to re-establish a website,
it should review LAFCo’s website transparency report for best practices.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

¢ Dunnigan, Knights Landing, Yolo and Zamora FPDs should provide for a coordinated and more
uniform level of service and operation through either: (1) a Joint Operation Agreement (JOA); or
(2) agency merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint operations in each Area is to
achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources, consistent training/testing/reporting,
standardization, and improved coordination during incident response. If any of these agencies enter
into a JOA and fail to make reasonable efforts in good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo
reorganization to combine FPDs should be initiated if its determined consolidation would promote
better service to the public and be a more efficient and effective utilization of resources.

¢ Dunnigan FPD utilize the Yolo County contract service provider to streamline the Uniform Fire Code
plan check process and make it consistent with other unincorporated areas.

e Dunnigan FPD fire commissioner training may be useful to clarify commissioner roles,
responsibilities, program requirements and financial management.

e Acknowledging core revenue as a limiting factor, Dunnigan FPD should consider hiring full-time
positions as needed to reduce burnout, turnover, and create more department stability.

e The Dunnigan FPD should adopt policies related to meeting attendance, conduct, responsibilities
of officers, and personnel (including employee/volunteer promotions, performance evaluations,

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
4-19
166


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

drug and alcohol policies, payroll processing, etc.) In addition, accounting and financial policies
should be developed to include general accounting, processing, and recording of disbursements
and receipts, allowable expenditures, employee and commissioner travel and expense
reimbursements, capital assets, debt and borrowing, credit card use, etc. LAFCo will provide policy
templates for FPD use.

e Dunnigan FPD officials and designated staff need to get current and stay current in making their
annual Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures.

e Yolo County should review agency finances with each dependent FPD each year to review agency
finances, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years, analyzing significant
differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable.

e Dependent special districts are not legally required to maintain a website. The Dunnigan FPD has
a website but received a 17% transparency score for best practices in 2020 and a 0% transparency
score in 2021 (the website appeared to have been taken down or disabled during fall 2021 when
websites were scored). Please see the report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-
website-transparency-scorecards for where improvements are needed.

7. BROADBAND ACCESS
Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy.

Per Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 6.2 “it is the intent of Yolo LAFCo to comprehensively review broadband access
in MSRs of local agencies that either serve communities and/or provide emergency services where broadband
connection is critical (i.e. cities, CSDs, CSAs, FPDs and RDs).”

YES MAYBE NO

a) Is there a lack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) X ] ]
available in the community?

b) Is there a lack of low-income subscription rates and/or digital O] X ]

literacy programs available?

Discussion:
a) Isthere alack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) available in the community?

Yes. The town of Dunnigan is provided broadband service by AT&T but only mobile service is available
at the Station. In some portions of the outlying residential areas, AT&T DSL will provide 25/3 Mbps
(areas shown in green below), but the majority of Dunnigan FPD territory is underserved or unserved>®.
Therefore, broadband speeds of 25/3 Mbps is not generally available in the Dunnigan FPD territory.

5 CPUC Broadband Mapping Program data as of December 31, 2019. Speeds provided are maximum advertised
speeds and not necessarily typical speeds actually experienced by the subscriber.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
4-20
167


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b) Is there a lack of low-income subscription rates and/or digital literacy programs available?

Maybe. AT&T offers low-income subscription rates, but broadband adoption remains an issue.
According to the CPUC California Interactive Broadband Map, broadband adoption at 25/3 Mbps is
only 20% to 40%. At any speed, its only 40% to 60%.

Yolo County Library staff provide one-on-one computer assistance, with even with basic functions like
setting up an email account and generally help troubleshoot technology challenges. Information and
instruction about basic computer/tablet/smartphone use is offered in ESL conversation clubs, classes
and in Yolo Reads Adult and Family Literacy program. The library also provides hotspots and
Chromebooks for those that need these items. The library does not have a formalized technology
curriculum, although there have been discussions regarding adding it as a service. However, there is
no library in Dunnigan and the closest are either 15 miles away in Yolo or 17 miles away in Knights
Landing.

Broadband Access MSR Determination

The town of Dunnigan is provided broadband service by AT&T but only mobile service is available at the
Station. In some portions of the outlying residential areas, AT&T DSL will provide 25/3 Mbps, but the
majority of Dunnigan FPD territory is underserved or unserved. AT&T offers low-income subscription rates,
but broadband adoption remains an issue. According to the CPUC California Interactive Broadband Map,
broadband adoption at 25/3 Mbps is only 20% to 40%. At any speed, its only 40% to 60%. Digital literacy
programs are offered by Yolo County libraries, however, there is no library in Dunnigan and the closest are
either 15 miles away in Yolo or 17 miles away in Knights Landing.

Broadband Access MSR Recommendation

e Yolo County should consider the lack of broadband service (and library service) in the Dunnigan
community and outlying areas as it addresses rural access issues.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
4-21
168



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

8. STATUS OF PREVIOUS MSR RECOMMENDATIONS
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR X ] ]
that have not been implemented?

Discussion:
a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR that have not been implemented?

2016 MSR Recommendations and Status

e Dunnigan FPD should consider reducing its annual operating costs significantly in order to achieve
long-term fiscal sustainability.

¢ Dunnigan, Knights Landing, and Madison FPDs should consider seeking a benefit assessment to
facilitate long-term fiscal viability.

Status of Previous Recommendations MSR Determination

Dunnigan FPD did reduce its annual operating costs by reducing salaries but did not seek a benefit
assessment for long-term viability. And currently, the Dunnigan FPD is struggling to respond to its high call
volume with sufficient personnel, so it needs to increase operating costs. Dunnigan FPD needs an increase
in its core revenue to respond to its service demand. Although as discussed in the capacity section,
Dunnigan FPD’s ability to obtain support for a benefit assessment may be hampered by the disadvantaged
economic status of roughly half the territory.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

4-22
169



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY
On the basis of the Municipal Service Review:

= Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update is NOT
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, NO CHANGE
to the agency’s SOl is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE NOT been made.

] Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update IS
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, A CHANGE to
the agency’s SOl is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE been made and are included in
this MSR/SOI study.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
4-23
170



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

AGENCY PROFILE

The East Davis Fire Protection District (FPD) was formed in 1953 and is authorized to provide fire protection
and emergency response services. It was formed as a dependent district to Yolo County. As such, the
District’'s governing body is the Yolo County Board of Supervisors, which delegated its decision-making
authority to a local Fire Commission with five members, each appointed by the Board of Supervisors with
indefinite terms.

In 1966, the District began contracting with the City of Davis for services, ceding its employees and
ownership of its facilities/equipment to the City. The District is one of three fire protection districts
encompassing the unincorporated areas around Davis, each of which contract with the City of Davis for
services.

The District is 29,143 acres in size and serves the unincorporated communities of El Macero, Willowbank
and Davis Creek Mobile Home Park and the surrounding rural areas east of Davis. The District contains
830 residential and 2 commercial addresses and its population is estimated to be 2,075 residents.?

The East Davis FPD boundary and sphere of influence (SOI) is shown below. The SOI is coterminous with
the district boundary.

East Davis Fire Protection District Boundary and Sphere of Influence*

strig

East Davis Fire Protection District

Ybio
I = — No Mans Land Fire Protection Distric LAFC’O Hq

e .‘-Iult“ Sphere of Influence s \L:;ll|1"l;Vlli w:lvl- L'u.n.av.',;lv Aaoplea by V0|6 L_AFCVOV}LII:\E 23, Eﬂlﬁ

1 Population estimate is based on the number of residential addresses assigned in 2021 in the FPD territory with a Yolo
County average of 2.5 persons per household.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
5-1
171



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW

POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT MSR DETERMINATIONS

The MSR determinations checked below are potentially significant, as indicated by “yes” or “maybe”
answers to the key policy questions in the checklist and corresponding discussion on the following pages.
If most or all of the determinations are not significant, as indicated by “no” answers, the Commission may
find that a MSR update is not warranted.

Growth and Population [l Shared Services

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities Accountability

X
Capacity, Adequacy & Infrastructure to Provide X Broadband Access
[

Status of Previous MSR
Recommendations

Services

X OO0

Financial Ability

LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW:

[ ] On the basis of this initial evaluation, the required determinations are not significant and staff
recommends that an MSR is NOT NECESSARY. The subject agency will be reviewed again in five
years per Government Code Section 56425(qg).

[XI The subject agency has potentially significant determinations and staff recommends that a
comprehensive MSR IS NECESSARY and has been conducted via this checklist.

1. GROWTH AND POPULATION
Growth and population projections for the affected area. YES MAYBE NO

a) Will development and/or population projections over the next 5-10 O] ] X
years impact the subject agency’s service needs and demands?

b) Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s ] ] X
services?

Discussion:

a-b) Will development and/or population projections over the next 5-10 years impact the subject agency’s service
needs and demands? Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s services?

No. The population for East Davis FPD is currently estimated to be 2,075 and there are no significant
growth areas designated by the County. As the City of Davis annexes territory, it is detached from the
District.

Service to East Davis FPD territory is dispatched by the City of Davis. Total calls that resulted in
dispatched apparatus/responders were 324 in FY 18/19, 312 in FY 19/20 and 297 in FY 20/21, an 8%
decrease over three years (the only FPD countywide that experienced a decrease in call volume).
Growth and population projections are not suggesting a change in agency services.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
5-2
172



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Growth and Population MSR Determination

The population for East Davis FPD is currently estimated to be 2,075 and there are no significant growth
areas designated by the County. The East Davis FPD is dispatched by the City of Davis. Total calls that
resulted in dispatched apparatus/responders were 324 in FY 18/19, 312 in FY 19/20 and 297 in FY 20/21,
an 8% decrease over three years (the only FPD countywide that experienced a decrease in call volume).
Growth and population projections are not suggesting a change in agency services.

2.

DISADVANTAGED UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES

The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the
sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a)

If the subject agency provides services related to sewers,

municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, are

there any “inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted

Commission policy) within or adjacent to the subject agency’s ] ] X
sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or

less of the statewide median household income) that do not

already have access to public water, sewer and structural fire

protection?

b)

If “yes” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such

that it can extend service to the disadvantaged unincorporated ] O] X
community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it

is either not needed or not applicable.

Discussion:

a)

b)

If the subject agency provides services related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire
protection, are there any “inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted Commission policy) within or
adjacent to the subject agency’s sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or less of the
statewide median household income) that do not already have access to public water, sewer and structural
fire protection?

No. The East Davis FPD territory does not appear to contain any disadvantaged unincorporated
communities.? Davis Creek Mobile Home Park is likely a disadvantaged community (but may not be
showing in the data due to census block size), but it receives City fire protection services on par with
all the FPD territory. All “inhabited unincorporated communities” countywide receive structural fire
protection services.

If “ves” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such that it can extend service to the
disadvantaged unincorporated community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it is either not
needed or not applicable.

Not applicable.

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities MSR Determination

All “inhabited unincorporated communities” countywide receive structural fire protection services. The Davis
Creek Mobile Home Park is likely a disadvantaged community, but it receives city fire protection services.

2 CALAFCO Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities for State, RSG Inc. GIS Layer, dated December 10, 2021

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

5-3
173



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

3. CAPACITY AND ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES

Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or
deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire
protection in any disadvantaged, unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and
capacity of agency facilities to meet existing service needs for ] ] X
which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve
(including deficiencies created by new state regulations)?

b) Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan ] ] X
in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e.,
number of staff and/or contracts).

c) Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability

to meet the service demand of reasonably foreseeable future O O X
growth?
d) Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its ] ] X

assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

e) Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged
unincorporated communities related to sewers, municipal and ] ] X
industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous
to the agency’s sphere of influence?

Discussion:

a-e)No. East Davis FPD has not provided direct services since 1966 and has contracted with the City of
Davis for fire protection and emergency response services for 56 years. The current agreement for
services was executed in 2009 and expires on June 30, 2029. It is intended to provide for services long
term and can be terminated with 4 years’ written notice.

Staff and coverage, training, fire station, apparatus, and equipment are all provided by a city fire
department which must adhere to higher performance standards. Both National Fire Protection
Association (NFPA) 1720 and 1710 are standards concerning personnel deployment and response
times to fires and medical emergencies: NFPA 1720 is designed primarily for communities with
volunteer firefighters. NFPA 1710 is designed primarily for communities with career, or paid, firefighters.

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Determination

The East Davis FPD has not provided direct services since 1966 and has contracted with the City of Davis
for fire protection and emergency response services for 56 years. The current agreement for services was
executed in 2009 and expires on June 30, 2029. City fire departments must adhere to higher performance
standards (NFPA 1710) than rural departments (NFPA 1720). There are no deficiencies in infrastructure,
equipment, capacity, and services for current and future needs.

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

e The East Davis FPD Chief should provide a written evaluation of the level of service, deployment,
and response time objectives as an agenda item at an East Davis FPD meeting on an annual basis.
The city service provider should report NFIRS data in a manner that allows it to be separated from
city incidents and reported for each FPD served.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
5-4
174



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

4. FINANCIAL ABILITY

Financial ability of agencies to provide services.

a)

Is the subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does
the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues? Does revenue
growth keep pace with increased costs?

b)

Can the subject agency improve its use of generally accepted
accounting principles including: summaries of all fund balances,
summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of
reserves, and any un-funded obligations (i.e. pension/retiree
benefits)? Does the agency need accounting and/or financial
policies that guide the agency in how financial transactions are
recorded and presented?

c)

Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular
basis and are discrepancies identified, investigated and corrective
action taken in a timely manner? The review may include
reconciliations of various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual,
analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense
balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s
financial system and the County Treasury, does the agency
review monthly the transactions in the County system to
transactions the agency submitted to the County for processing?

d)

Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports
(quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that provide a clear and
complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully
disclosing both positive and negative financial information to the
public and financial institutions?

e)

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being
reliable? For example, is a large percentage of revenue coming
from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

Is the organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level
of service, necessary infrastructure maintenance, replacement
and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the
schedules of similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule
include a specific amount identified for capital asset replacement
(tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

9)

Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against
unexpected events or upcoming significant costs (excluding
capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Has the agency identified and
quantified what the possible significant risks and costs of
infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency have a
reserve policy?

h)

Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s
debt at an unmanageable level? Does the agency need a clear
debt management policy, if applicable?

YES MAYBE NO
0 0 X
0 0 X
X 0 0
X 0 0
0 0 X
0 0 X
0 0 X
0 0 X

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

175



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Discussion:

Financial Background

EAST DAVIS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenue
Property taxes, in-lieu taxes, HOPTR $ 524,706 $ 535,400 $ 567,655 $ 585,091 $ 614,057
Interest 8,803 19,058 49,165 44,480 2,359
Special assessment 204,649 210,514 210,921 210,806 210,806
Total Revenue 738,158 764,972 827,741 840,377 827,222
Expenditures
Contract payment to City of Davis 671,182 716,829 707,494 758,632 883,689
Other services and supplies 3,992 1,595 1,250 1,854 1,739
Contributions to other agencies - - - 31,273 13,186
Total Expenditures 675,174 718,424 708,744 791,759 898,614
Netincome (loss) 62,984 46,548 118,997 48,618 (71,392)
Beginning Fund Balance 1,226,400 1,289,384 1,335,932 1,454,929 1,503,547
Ending Fund Balances $ 1289384 $ 1335932 $ 1454929 $ 1503547 $ 1,432,155
Fund Balances
Assigned - Other $ 1038817 $ 1,053199 $ 1,077,023 $ 1,099,718 $ 1,111,240
Assigned - General reserve 185,359 185,359 185,359 185,359 185,359
Assigned - Encumbrances - - 64,171 - -
Unassigned 65,208 97,374 128,376 218,470 135,556
Total Fund Balances $ 1289384 $ 1335932 $ 1454929 $ 1503547 $ 1,432,155
Y-T-Y Change in total Fund Balances
Amount Increase (Decrease) $ 62,984 $ 46,548 $ 118,997 $ 48,618 $ (71,392)
Percentage Increase (Decrease) 5.14% 3.61% 8.91% 3.34% -4.75%
Property Tax Analysis
a. Assessed Value (AV) $ 522,278,656 $ 548,053,986 $ 561,937,435 $ 592,076,811 $ 619,566,844
b. Y-T-Y Percentage change in AV 4.56% 4.94% 2.53% 5.36% 4.64%
c. Current secured, unsecured and HOPT $ 498,854 $ 520,788 $ 542,523 $ 570,343 $ 597,587
d. District share of general 1% levy (c/a) 9.5515% 9.5025% 9.6545% 9.6329% 9.6452%

a)

Is the subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues?
Does revenue growth keep pace with increased costs?

No. The District’s total revenues and total fund balances have steadily grown over the past five years
and are keeping pace with increasing costs. Due to a delay of receiving strike team reimbursements
from the State, the City of Davis contract payment was unexpectedly higher than normal in 2021. The
reimbursements were received in 2022 and will be credited against 2022 costs. The District’s total fund
balance as of June 30, 2021 is $1,432,155. Total fund balance has increased from $1,226,400 to
$1,432,155, which is available to the District for any purpose.

Revenue

East Davis FPD’s revenue consists of property taxes, special assessments, and interest. Like other
rural fire districts, East Davis FPD relies primarily on a share of the general 1% property tax levy for the
majority of its revenue. In fiscal year 2021, property taxes of $614,057 comprised 74% of total revenues.
The District's share of property taxes within its boundaries is approximately 9.6%, while the average

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

5-6
176



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

d)

f

for all rural FPDs in the county is 6.2%. The District has levied a special assessment since 1985. In
2021 special assessment revenue was $210,806 which accounted for $25% of total revenue.

Expenditures
The District contracts for fire services with the City of Davis which is the primary expenditure of the

District. In fiscal year 2021 the contract payment to the City was over 98% of total expenditures. Since
2017 the annual contract payment has averaged a 7.3% increase, however, the 2021 payment
increased 16.5% from fiscal year 2020, due to a delay of the City of Davis receiving strike team
reimbursements from CAL FIRE. Other expenditures include accounting fees, special assessment
enrollment fee, liability insurance, and weed abatement legal notices. The District is in the process of
discussing alternative billing methods with the City of Davis to reduce unexpected changes in the
annual contract billing.

Does the subject agency need to use generally accepted accounting principles including: summaries of all
fund balances, summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of reserves, and any un-funded
obligations (i.e. pension/retiree benefits)? Does the agency have accounting and/or financial policies that
guide the agency in how financial transactions are recorded and presented?

No. The District maintains all funds in the County Treasury and uses the County’s financial system to
maintain its accounting records. Since the District is a dependent district, it is subject to the same
accounting and financial policies as the County. Accounting and budget data including all cash receipts
and disbursements are reviewed by County finance staff before they are posted.

Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular basis and are discrepancies identified,
investigated and corrective action taken in a timely manner? The review may include reconciliations of
various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual, analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and
expense balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s financial system and the County
Treasury, does the agency review monthly the transactions in the County system to transactions the agency
submitted to the County for processing?

Yes. In 2019, District commissioners did not detect that in-lieu taxes from State Fish and Wildlife was
not posted to the District’'s fund. The error was found and corrected in the subsequent year. Due to
delay on the part of the City of Davis providing information, the District experienced a net loss in fiscal
year 2021 that was not anticipated. The FPD indicates it is working with the City to resolve the potential
for this situation to occur again. Please see also item 4a. The District relies on an external consultant
once a year during the budget process to review transactions.

Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports (quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that
provide a clear and complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully disclosing both positive and
negative financial information to the public and financial institutions?

Yes. Even though the District has very minimal accounting transactions which includes property tax,
special assessment, and interest revenue postings and on average 5 invoices per year, the
commissioners should review financial reports more frequent than the current practice to discuss
whether transactions are accurately posted to the District’s ledgers and to perform a current year budget
to actual comparison. The fire commission reviews the annual State Controller’s Financial Transactions
report which is also prepared by an external CPA.

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being reliable? For example, is a large percentage
of revenue coming from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

No. Revenues are reliable. All of the revenue is from property taxes, special assessments, and interest
earned on surplus funds held by the County Treasury. All revenues are collected and allocated by the
County. The District currently is not billing exempt parcels.

Is the organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level of service, necessary infrastructure
maintenance, replacement and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the schedules of
similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule include a specific amount identified for capital asset
replacement (tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

5-7
177



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

9)

No. The East Davis FPD does not maintain facilities or equipment. Currently the District has an
accumulated a fund balance of $1,432,155. The District, by contract, shares the increases in the net
cost of the City of Davis Fire Department, after reductions for revenue from No Man’s Land and
Springlake FPDs, based on the District’s share of the total assessed value of the District and the City,
which is currently about 6%.

Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against unexpected events or upcoming significant
costs (excluding capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Does the agency need to identify and quantify what the
possible significant risks and costs of infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency need a reserve
policy?

No. East Davis FPD has a total fund balance of $1,432,155 as of June 30, 2021, which is $902,155 in
excess of the minimum recommended total fund balance of $530,000. The minimum recommended
fund balance is the total of 2 components as follows?3:

e General reserve. This is the total of 50% of current secured taxes and 50% of special
assessments to maintain liquidity from July through December each year when no
tax/assessment revenue is received.

e Unassigned fund balance. GFOA recommendation of 15% of operating expenditures to
mitigate revenue shortages and/or unanticipated expenditures.

The June 30,2021 actual and estimated recommended fund balances amounts are as follows:

6/30/2021 6/30/2021
Actual Recommended Excess/

Balance Balance (Shortage)
General resene $ 185359 $ 395,000 $ (209,641)
Other resenve 1,111,240 - 1,111,240
Unassigned 135,556 135,000 556

Total Recommended Fund Balance $ 1,432,155 $ 530,000 $ 902,155

The total recommended fund balance as of June 30, 2021 is $530,000, based on a general reserve
balance of $395,000 (50% of current secured taxes and 50% of special assessments) and an
unassigned fund balance of $135,000 (15% of expenditures). The District’s fund balance is currently
over $900,000 in excess of the recommended fund balance.

District representatives have indicated that the reserves are required by the agreement with the City.
However, Section 8 of the agreement provides that the reserves can be established at the District's
“sole discretion.” If the contract with the City of Davis were amended and streamlined such that the
East Davis FPD operated as a pass-through agency (similar to Springlake FPD’s contract with the City
of Davis), this fund balance could potentially be eliminated altogether.

Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s debt at an unmanageable level? Does the
agency need a clear capital financing and debt management policy, if applicable?

No. The District does not have any debt.

Financial Ability MSR Determination

The District’s total revenues and total fund balances have steadily grown over the past five years and are
keeping pace with increasing costs. Like other rural fire districts, East Davis FPD relies primarily on a share

3 See the Financial Sustainability Methodology on Page 1-12.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

5-8
178



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

of the general 1% property tax levy for the majority of its revenue. In fiscal year 2021, 74% of total revenues
($614,057) came from property taxes. The District's share of property taxes within its boundaries is
approximately 9.6%, while the average for all rural FPDs in the county is 6.2%. The other 25% ($210,806)
of revenue comes from a special assessment levied since 1985. In fiscal year 2021 the contract payment
was over 98% of total expenditures. The District, by contract, shares the increases in the net cost of the
City of Davis Fire Department, after reductions for revenue from No Man’s Land and Springlake FPDs,
based on the District’'s share of the total assessed value of the District and the City, which is currently about
6%. Since 2017 the annual contract payment has averaged a 7.3% increase, however, the 2021 payment
increased 16.5% from fiscal year 2020, due to a delay of the City of Davis receiving strike team
reimbursements from CAL FIRE.

The District’s total fund balance as of June 30, 2021 is $1,432,155, currently over $900,000 in excess of
the recommended best practices. The District’s policy is to retain at least 110% of one year’s expenditures
in reserve, which is in excess of recommended government standards. East Davis FPD does not maintain
facilities or equipment, and it can reduce its fund balance without impairing its operational capacity. If the
contract with the City of Davis were amended and streamlined such that the East Davis FPD operated as
a pass-through agency (similar to Springlake FPD’s contract with the City of Davis), this fund balance could
potentially be eliminated altogether and drawn down to reduce constituent costs. The District maintains all
funds in the County Treasury and uses the County’s financial system to maintain its accounting records.
Since the East Davis FPD is a dependent district, it is subject to the same accounting and financial policies
as the County and is included in the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

e East Davis FPD should amend its reserve policy reducing the current 110% of one year’s
expenditures to, at a minimum, align with government standards (SCO and GFOA). The District
should also consider amending its contract with the City of Davis to simply pass-through revenues
(similar to Springlake FPD’s contract with the City of Davis), which would allow the fund balance to
be eliminated altogether and drawn down over time to reduce constituent costs.

e East Davis FPD should review the County ledgers at least biannually to ensure transactions are
accurately posted to the District’'s fund. The review should at least include a comparison to prior
year actuals and a current year budget to actual.

5. SHARED SERVICES AND FACILITIES
Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services
or facilities with neighboring, overlapping or other organizations O O X
that are not currently being utilized?

Discussion:

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services or facilities with neighboring, overlapping
or other organizations that are not currently being utilized?

No. The East Davis FPD shares services and contracts with the City of Davis for fire protection and
emergency response services.

Shared Services MSR Determination

The East Davis FPD shares services and contracts with the City of Davis for fire protection and emergency
response services.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
5-9
179



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

6. ACCOUNTABILITY, STRUCTURE AND EFFICIENCIES
Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational efficiencies.
YES MAYBE NO
a) Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s
governmental structure or operations that will increase accountability X ] ]
and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public,
service inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?
b) Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining
board members? Is there a lack of board member training regarding O O X
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?
c) Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a
lack of staff member training regarding the organization’s program L O X
requirements and financial management?
d) Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to
personnel/payroll, general and administrative, board member and
meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among O O X
staff and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct (see
suggested policies list)?
e) Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making ] ] X
their Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures?
f) Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial
reports that meet California State Controller requirements? Are the ] ] X
same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not
reviewed in an open meeting?
g) If the agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have
a qualified external person review agency finances each year (at a
minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior O [ [
years, analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining
if the reports appear reasonable?
h) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a
website  (see  https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government- O X O
website-transparency-scorecards)?

Discussion:

a) Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s governmental structure or operations that will
increase accountability and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public, service
inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?

Yes. East Davis FPD receives contract services from the City of Davis, as does the neighboring No
Man’s Land and Springlake FPDs. However, the East Davis FPD appears to be paying more for the
same service (on a per dispatch basis) and its contract provisions are the only one of the three FPDs
that do not contain any cost containment measures that would give the East Davis FPD more certainty
for its annual budgets. The East Davis FPD was unaware of the more advantageous contract provisions
negotiated between the City of Davis and the other FPDs, and the existing governmental structure
contributes to this issue.

Among the purposes of LAFCo is to review and provide information to shape the development of local
agencies to advantageously provide for the present and future needs of each county and its

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

LAFCo No. 21-05

5-10
180


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

communities. The fire service provider landscape has changed significantly since the FPDs around
Davis were originally formed decades ago. East Davis FPD began contracting for City of Davis services
in 1966. No Man’s Land FPD was formed in 1974, and the during formation process annexation to the
East Davis FPD was considered, but “the City of Davis has refused to annex the territory to the East
Davis Fire District at this time, and the East Davis Fire Protection District has therefore stated they do
not desire to annex the territory.”* Consequently, No Man’s Land FPD was formed as a separate FPD
to contract with the City of Dixon for services. However, in 1997 the service provider for No Man’s Land
FPD changed to the City of Davis. Springlake FPD originally contracted for services with the City of
Woodland for the entirety of its territory, and then changed service providers to the City of Davis in 1985
for everything south of County Road 29 to improve response.

Therefore since 1985, the reasons the FPDs around Davis were organized as three separate districts
have changed and all three FPDs have been receiving the same services from the City of Davis. All
three FPDs are dependent to Yolo County and serve as funding and service mechanisms of the County,
and it would enhance efficiency, increase accountability for community service needs, and be less
confusing to the public if all the territory served by City of Davis were combined under one district. East
Davis FPD is the agency best suited to provide this function.

Reorganization would benefit the East Davis FPD in the following ways:

e Reorganizing each district's boundaries to coincide with the city providing services will improve
transparency and accountability. By having one district contracting with each city, residents will
better be able to identify the district they are in and the fire department that serves them. Residents
also would be able to more easily determine which fire commission represents them.

e By reducing the number of FPDs the City of Davis serves from three to one, reorganization will
streamline the City’s administrative costs of providing fire services to the rural areas. Davis will only
have to manage one contract, provide fiscal services for one district, and report to one fire
commission. This streamlining could allow the East Davis FPD to negotiate a lower rate, thus
reducing constituents’ annual assessments.

¢ Reducing the number of contracts that need to be negotiated will avoid inconsistencies from one
district to the next. For example, the East Davis FPD’s contract costs appear higher on a per
dispatch basis than No Man’s Land and Springlake FPDs and do not include any cost containment
provisions, even though they receive the same level of service from the same fire department. As
another example, East Davis FPD is the only contract district whose contract provides for an
optional reserve of a full year of service costs. It appears the contract gives the discretion to the
District of whether to maintain the reserve, but East Davis FPD has maintained the reserves at
levels greater than other districts. Eliminating or reducing the reserve requirement would allow East
Davis FPD to reduce the assessment charged to residents in its current service territory over a
period of time as the reserve is drawn down. (The reserves would not be used to reduce
assessments in any newly-annexed territory.)

e The volunteer fire commissioners perform an important service, especially when it comes to
oversight of the City’s performance. Expanding the territory of the district will also expand the pool
of individuals who might be willing to serve as commissioners, which could ease the burden on
those who have served long terms. It also might allow the commission to expand its membership
from five to seven, which would spread out any administrative workload handled by the
commissioners. While expanding the territory might result in a marginal increase in the fire
commission’s responsibilities, the time commitment to serve in the position would still be
significantly less than for commissioners serving a district that has its own infrastructure and
personnel.

4 LAFCo Report on Formation of No-man’s Land FPD, January 11, 1974.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
5-11
181



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

9)

Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining board members? Is there a lack of board
member training regarding the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

No. All of the fire commission seats are filled as appointed by the Board of Supervisors with indefinite
terms (the only FPD in the county with indefinite terms). Review of the minutes indicate one
commissioner seat was unfilled from May 18, 2017 to October 15, 2020 but have remained filled for
some time.

Name / Title Start End
Michael McMahon / 01/2%9/2013
Dave Robert / 09/15/2015
William Weisgerber / 04/05/2016
John Lindsey / 09/12/2017
Tad Henderson / 06/23/2020

Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a lack of staff member training regarding
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

No. City staff perform the FPD services and functions.

Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to personnel/payroll, general and
administrative, board member and meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among staff
and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct?

No. East Davis FPD is audited annually and day-to-day operations are managed by City staff which
has financial staff to review District finances. The City maintains policies to manage all FPD services
and functions. The District has a Policy and Procedure Manual (V2019.1) which includes basic fire
commission and financial policies.

Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making their Statement of Economic Interests
(Form 700) disclosures?

No. The Yolo County Board of Supervisors is the conflict of interest code reviewing body for these
districts. Review occurs every two years and was last approved on October 6, 2020. Districts can be
exempt from filing conflict of interest disclosures if: there are no “designated employees”®; it is within a
year of being inoperative; or the district does not have decision making authority and its annual
operating budget is less than $150,000 per year. The BOS has determined the East Davis FPD is
exempt from filing Form 700s.

Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial reports that meet California State Controller
requirements? Are the same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not reviewed in an
open meeting?

No. The dependent FPDs (including East Davis FPD) are included in the annual audit of the County’s
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The County’s audited ACFR meets general audit
requirements and the ACFR satisfies the requirements of Government Code 26909.

If the agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have a qualified external person review
agency finances each year (at a minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years,
analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable?

No. The East Davis FPD is audited annually as part of the County’s ACFR and it contracts with an
external CPA to help assist with preparing the annual budget, review year end close, and prepare and
submit the annual SCO Financial Transactions Report.

5 “Designated employees” is defined by Government Code sections 82019 and 87302(a).

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

5-12
182



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

h) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a website (see
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards)?

Maybe. Dependent districts are not legally required to maintain a website. However, East Davis FPD
maintains a website and received a 25% transparency score for best practices in 2021. Please see the
report posted on the LAFCo website for where improvements are recommended.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Determination

East Davis FPD receives contract services from the City of Davis, as does the neighboring No Man’s Land
and a portion of Springlake FPDs. However, the East Davis FPD appears to be paying more for the same
service on a per dispatch basis and its contract provisions are the only one of the three FPDs that do not
contain any cost control/containment measures that would give the East Davis FPD more certainty for its
annual budgets. The existing governmental structure contributes to this issue.

The fire service provider landscape has changed significantly since these three FPDs were originally
formed, and since 1985 the reasons the FPDs are organized as three separate agencies has changed and
all three FPDs have been receiving the same services from the City of Davis. All three FPDs are dependent
to Yolo County and serve as funding and service mechanisms of the County and East Davis FPD is the
agency best suited to provide these services. Reorganization would result in the following benefits: (1)
Transparency, accountability and less public confusion regarding which fire commission serves them; (2)
Streamline the number of FPDs the City of Davis serves, promoting efficiency; (3) Reducing the number
and inconsistency of service contracts for the same level of services, potentially allowing the East Davis
FPD to reduce or eliminate its reserve saving money for its constituents; and (4) Expanding the pool of
individuals who might be willing to serve as commissioners and potential to expand the fire commission
from 5 to 7 members which could ease the burden by spreading out any administrative workload handled
by the commissioners.

All of the fire commission seats are filled as appointed by the Board of Supervisors with indefinite terms.
The dependent FPD’s (including East Davis FPD) are included in the annual audit of the County’s Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). it contracts with an external CPA to help assist with preparing
the annual budget, review year end close and prepare and submit the annual SCO Financial Transactions
Report. Dependent districts are not legally required to maintain a website; however, East Davis FPD
maintains a website and received a 25% transparency score for best practices in 2021.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

e The East Davis FPD sphere of influence should be updated to include the No Man’s Land FPD
territory and the portion of Springlake FPD territory south of County Road 29. Those areas should
then be annexed into the East Davis FPD as part of a reorganization of the Elkhorn, No Man’s
Land, and Springlake FPDs.

e East Davis FPD and the City should review the contract terms to consider simplifying the financial
obligations of each agency, including examining the purpose of the District maintaining a high fund
balance. East Davis FPD’s role as a pass-through entity should be streamlined to the greatest
extent feasible.

e Dependent districts are not legally required to maintain a website. However, East Davis FPD
maintains a website and received a 25% transparency score for best practices in 2021. Please see
the report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards for
where improvements are needed.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
5-13
183


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

7. BROADBAND ACCESS
Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy.

Per Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 6.2 “it is the intent of Yolo LAFCo to comprehensively review broadband access
in MSRs of local agencies that either serve communities and/or provide emergency services where broadband
connection is critical (i.e. cities, CSDs, CSAs, FPDs and RDs).”

YES MAYBE NO

a) Is there a lack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) ] X ]
available in the community?

b) Is there a lack of low-income subscription rates and/or digital ] ] X

literacy programs available?

Discussion:
a) Isthere a lack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) available in the community?

Maybe. Most of the East Davis FPD populated territory is served, however some rural portions are
unserved. In the urbanized portions of the East Davis FPD, El Macero and Willowbank have access to
987 Mbps (or nearly 1 Gbps/’Gig”) speeds while the Davis Creek Mobile Home Park only has access
to 10 Mbps download and 1 Mbps upload speeds from AT&T (even though 1 Gig speeds are available
from Comcast immediately surrounding the Park and were likely excluded for economic reasons). Most
of the rural areas in the FPD surrounding these communities are only served by wireless service and
far less than the 25/3Mpbs broadband threshold.

Davis Creek Mobile Home Park is eligible to receive California Advanced Services Fund (CASF)
Infrastructure grants as shown in the map below. Yolo County should explore grants to upgrade
infrastructure with either the existing provider, AT&T, or Comcast which provides high speed broadband
service in the immediate surrounding vicinity.

b) Is there a lack of low-income
subscription rates and/or digital literacy
programs available?

No. According to the CPUC Broadband
Mapping Program, broadband adoption is
60% or greater for the FPD territory.

Comcast currently offers the Internet
Essentials program for low-income
households that may qualify if a
subscriber is eligible for public assistance
programs like the National School Lunch
Program, Housing Assistance, Medicaid,
SNAP, SSI and others. The program
includes 50/5 Mbps internet service for
$9.95 a month plus tax, no
activation/equipment rental fees, an
option to purchase a computer for just
$149.99 plus tax, access to free Internet
training online, in print and in person, a
Wireless Gateway in-home WiFi at no

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
5-14
184



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

additional cost, and access to Xfinity WiFi Hotspots.

AT&T offers a similar program for low-income households that includes 25 Mbps download speeds for
$10.00 per month with free installation, in-home Wi-Fi®, no deposit and no annual contract.

Yolo County Library staff provide one-on-one computer assistance, with even with basic functions like
setting up an email account® and generally help troubleshoot technology challenges. Information and
instruction about basic computer/tablet/smartphone use is offered in ESL conversation clubs, classes
and in Yolo Reads Adult and Family Literacy program. The library also provides hotspots and
Chromebooks for those that need these items. The library does not have a formalized technology
curriculum, although there have been discussions regarding adding it as a service.

Broadband Access MSR Determination

Overall, broadband access in the East Davis FPD does not appear to be an issue that would disrupt fire
protection and emergency services. According to the CPUC Broadband Mapping Program, broadband
adoption is greater than 60% for the FPD territory.

Although El Macero and Willowbank have access to 987 Mbps (or nearly 1 Gbps/’Gig”) speeds, the Davis
Creek Mobile Home Park only has access to 10 Mbps download and 1 Mbps upload speeds from AT&T
even though 1 Gig speeds are available from Comcast immediately surrounding the Park and were likely
excluded for economic reasons. Most of the rural areas in the FPD surrounding these communities are only
served by wireless service and far less than the 25/3Mpbs broadband threshold. Davis Creek Mobile Home
Park is likely a disadvantaged unincorporated community that has internet service provided by AT&T but
at less than 50% of the minimum standard, which should be addressed.

Broadband Access MSR Recommendation

e Yolo County should explore CASF (California Advanced Services Fund) grants to upgrade
infrastructure for the Davis Creek Mobile Home Park with either the existing provider, AT&T, or
Comcast which provides high speed broadband service in the immediate surrounding vicinity.

8. STATUS OF PREVIOUS MSR RECOMMENDATIONS
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR ] ] X
that have not been implemented?

Discussion:

a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR that have not been implemented?
No. There were no recommendations from the 2016 MSR specific to the East Davis FPD.

Status of Previous Recommendations MSR Determination

There were no recommendations from the 2016 MSR specific to the East Davis FPD.

6 Email from Mark Fink, Yolo County Librarian on May 26, 2021

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
5-15
185



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY
On the basis of the Municipal Service Review:

] Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update is NOT
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, NO CHANGE
to the agency’s SOI is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE NOT been made.

X Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOI Update IS
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, A CHANGE to
the agency’s SOl is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE been made and are included in
this MSR/SOI study.

East Davis Fire Protection District
and Proposed Sphere of Influence
® { g 6
s )
a2 Pt West
East Davis Fire Pecgamento
Protection 5
District Statior
o
]
i
E i £
‘ B
O) Fre Sutions N H 2
Fire Protection District Boundary }\ Z b
Fire Dstrict SO0 £ e
Mo Yol
‘—":_Mu\n LAFCo Pt vy
Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

LAFCo No. 21-05
5-16
186



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT SOl DETERMINATIONS

The SOI determinations below are potentially significant issues, as indicated by “yes” or “maybe” answers
to the key policy questions in the checklist and corresponding discussion on the following pages.

] Present and Planned Land Uses

L] Need for Public Facilities and Services

] Capacity and Adequacy of Provide Services
L] Social or Economic Communities of Interest
] Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities

1. PRESENT AND PLANNED LAND USES
The present and planned land uses in the area, including agricultural and open-space lands.
YES MAYBE NO

a) Would the SOI conflict with planned, orderly and efficient patterns
of urban development? Would the SOI impact the identity of any ] ] X
existing communities (e.g. community boundaries, postal zones,
school, or other service boundaries)?

b) Would the SOI result in the loss of prime agricultural land or open ] ] X
space?
c) Would the SOI conflict with any natural or made-made boundaries O] ] X

that would impact where services can reasonably be extended?

d) Is there a conflict with the adopted SACOG Metropolitan ] ] X
Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy?

Discussion:

a-d)Would the SOI conflict with planned, orderly and efficient patterns of urban development? Would the SOI impact
the identity of any existing communities (e.g. community boundaries, postal zones, school, or other service
boundaries)? Would the SOI result in the loss of prime agricultural land or open space? Would the SOI conflict
with any natural or made-made boundaries that would impact where services can reasonably be extended? Is
there a conflict with the adopted SACOG Metropolitan Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy?

No. The SOl is for fire protection and emergency response services only and would not affect present
and planned land uses.

Present and Planned Land Uses SOI Determination

The SOl is for fire protection and emergency response services only and would not affect present and
planned land uses.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
5-17
187



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

2.

NEED FOR PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES

The present and probable need for public facilities and services in the area.

YES MAYBE NO

a)

Would the SOI conflict with the Commission’s goal to increase
efficiency and conservation of resources by providing essential O O X
services within a framework of controlled growth?

b)

Would the SOI expand services that could be better provided by ] ] X
a city or another agency?

Does the SOI represent premature inducement of growth or ] ] X
facilitate conversion of agriculture or open space lands?

d)

Are there any areas that should be removed from the SOI because
existing circumstances make development unlikely, there is not O O BJ
sufficient demand to support it?

e)

Have any agency commitments been predicated on expanding

the agency’s SOI such as roadway projects, shopping centers, ] ] X
educational facilities, economic development or acquisition of

parks and open space?

Discussion:

a)

b)

c)

d)

Would the SOI conflict with the Commission’s goal to increase efficiency and conservation of resources
by providing essential services within a framework of controlled growth?

No. The SOI promotes the Commission’s goal to increase efficiency and would not promote growth.
The SOI Update is intended to improve accountability for community service needs, including
governmental structure and operational efficiencies.

Would the SOI expand services that could be better provided by a city or another agency?

No. The SOI would not expand services; rather it better reflects and aligns with the services already
provided by the City of Davis. The City of Davis is best suited to provide services more directly via the
East Davis FPD. Please see MSR item 6a.

Does the SOI represent premature inducement of growth or facilitate conversion of agriculture or open
space lands?

No. The SOI would not result in growth or conversion of agricultural or open space land.

Are there any areas that should be removed from the SOI because existing circumstances make
development unlikely, there is not sufficient demand to support it?

No. The SOI Update is for fire protection and emergency response, which is provided countywide
regardless of development demand.

Have any agency commitments been predicated on expanding the agency’s SOl such as roadway
projects, shopping centers, educational facilities, economic development or acquisition of parks and
open space?

No. Not applicable.

Need for Public Facilities and Services SOI Determination

The SOI would not expand services. It reflects and aligns FPD boundaries with the services already
provided by the City of Davis. Services for No Man’s Land FPD and the portion of Springlake FPD south of
CR 29 have already evolved to the best service provider, the City of Davis. The SOI would align FPD

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

5-18
188



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

boundaries to catch up with the evolution of fire service. The SOl promotes the Commission’s goal to
increase efficiency provide services more directly via the East Davis FPD (please also see MSR item 6a).

3. CAPACITY AND ADEQUACY OF PROVIDED SERVICES

The present capacity of public facilities and adequacy of public services that the agency provides or is authorized
to provide.

YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity to provide
adequate services in the proposed SOI territory and ability to O O X
extend services?

Discussion:

a) Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity to provide adequate services in the proposed SOl territory
and ability to extend services?

No. The City of Davis already provides fire protection and emergency response services in the SOI
territory, has capacity, and provides adequate services.

Capacity and Adequacy of Provided Services SOI Determination

The City of Davis already provides fire protection and emergency response services in the SOI territory,
has capacity, and provides adequate services.

4. SOCIAL OR ECONOMIC COMMUNITIES OF INTEREST

The existence of any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission determines that
they are relevant to the agency.

YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any social or economic communities of interest in the
area if the commission determines that they are relevant to the O [ ¢
agency (see also MSR checklist question 2b)?

Discussion:

a) Are there any social or economic communities of interest in the area if the commission determines that they
are relevant to the agency (see also MSR checklist question 2b)?

No. Not applicable.
Social or Economic Communities of Interest SOl Determination

There are no social or economic communities of interest in the SOI area.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
5-19
189



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

5. DISADVANTAGED UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES

For an update of an SOI of a city or special district that provides public facilities or services related to sewers,
municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, the present and probable need for those public
facilities and services of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within the existing sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) If the subject agency provides public services related to sewers,
municipal and industrial water or structural fire protection (same
as MSR checklist question 2a) does the proposed SOI exclude n ] X
any disadvantaged unincorporated community (per MSR checklist
question 2b) where it either may be feasible to extend services or
required to be included under SB 244?

Discussion:

a) If the subject agency provides public services related to sewers, municipal and industrial water or structural fire
protection (same as MSR checklist question 2a) does the proposed SOI exclude any disadvantaged
unincorporated community (per MSR checklist question 2b) where it either may be feasible to extend services or
required to be included under SB 2447

Not applicable. There are no disadvantaged unincorporated communities in the SOI territory, and all
unincorporated territory receives fire protection services. The SOI Update is intended to improve
accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational
efficiencies.

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities SOI Determination

There are no disadvantaged unincorporated communities in the SOI territory, and all unincorporated
territory receives fire protection services. The SOl Update is intended to improve accountability for
community service needs, including governmental structure and operational efficiencies.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
5-20
190



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

AGENCY PROFILE

The Elkhorn Fire Protection District (Elkhorn FPD) was formed in 1965 and is authorized to provide fire
protection and emergency response services. It was formed as an independent district with a five-member
board, each appointed by the Board of Supervisors to serve four-year terms.

The District is 30,703 acres in size and does not serve any unincorporated towns. The District contains 51
residential and 2 commercial addresses and its population is estimated to be 128 residents!. However, the
FPD estimates the population is closer to 80-90 residents. Elkhorn FPD also has several high-volume traffic
corridors through its territory, the I-5 bridge over the Sacramento River and Old River Road. The Elkhorn
FPD Station 47 is located at 19756 Old River Road, northeast of West Sacramento, which houses 5
apparatus and has 0 paid staff, 0 reserves and 10 volunteer firefighters.

The FPD boundary and sphere of influence (SOI) is shown below. The SOI is coterminous with the district
boundary.

Elkhorn Fire Protection District Boundary and Sphere of Influence*

%
%

20

>
0
)
2

Q.
Yolo <
Fire Protection District
Springlake
Fire Protection @
District
Elkhorn

Fire Protection District

-

Station No. 47

Springlake
Fire Protection

District

: B
East Davis =
Fire Protection District

Station No. 44
@

Yolo
Station No. 43

* Note: Sphere of Influence is coterminous with boundary Adopted by Yolo LAFCo June 23, 2016

1 Population estimate is based on the number of residential addresses assigned in 2021 in the FPD territory with a Yolo
County average of 2.5 persons per household.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

6-1
191



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW

POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT MSR DETERMINATIONS

The MSR determinations checked below are potentially significant, as indicated by “yes” or “maybe”
answers to the key policy questions in the checklist and corresponding discussion on the following pages.
If most or all of the determinations are not significant, as indicated by “no” answers, the Commission may
find that a MSR update is not warranted.

Growth and Population XI Shared Services

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities

X  Accountability
Capacity, Adequacy & Infrastructure to Provide X
X

Broadband Access

Status of Previous MSR
Recommendations

Services

X X 0OKX

Financial Ability

LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW:

[ ] On the basis of this initial evaluation, the required determinations are not significant and staff
recommends that an MSR is NOT NECESSARY. The subject agency will be reviewed again in five
years per Government Code Section 56425(qg).

[XI The subject agency has potentially significant determinations and staff recommends that a
comprehensive MSR IS NECESSARY and has been conducted via this checkilist.

1. GROWTH AND POPULATION
Growth and population projections for the affected area. YES MAYBE NO

a) Will growth and/or population projections over the next 5-10 years X ] ]
impact the subject agency’s service needs and demands?

b) Do changes in demand suggest a change in the agency’s X ] ]
services?

Discussion:

a) Will growth and/or population projections over the next 5-70 years impact the subject agency’s service needs
and demands?

Yes. The population for Elkhorn FPD is currently estimated to be 80-90 people. The FPD territory has
limited development and growth opportunities. Except for the Elkhorn Station, it is entirely zoned for
agricultural use. However, according to data from the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency
(YECA), Elkhorn FPD calls have increased significantly. Over the last three fiscal years, total
dispatched calls were 95 in 2018/19, 114 in 2019/20 and 168 in 2020/21, which is a 77% increase in
dispatch volume. Increased demand for emergency services is attributable to growth outside of the
District along I-5 and Old River Road traffic corridors through the District. Population growth and
corresponding demand for services from that population within the District is expected to be minimal.
But continued traffic growth will impact the District’'s demands.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
6-2
192



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b) Do changes in demand suggest a change in the agency’s services?

Yes. As discussed in the Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services Section (ltems 3a
and 3b), Elkhorn FPD is not adequately responding to its current demand and should cede its services
to the cities of Woodland and West Sacramento. The Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies Section
(Item 6a) recommends the Elkhorn FPD should be dissolved and its territory annexed into districts
already served by these cities.

Growth and Population MSR Determination

The population for Elkhorn FPD is currently estimated to be 80-90 and has limited development and growth
opportunities. According to data from the Yolo Emergency Communications Agency (YECA), Elkhorn FPD
demand for service/call volume has increased significantly. Over the last three fiscal years, total dispatched
calls were 95 in 2018/19, 114 in 2019/20 and 168 in 2020/21, which is a 77% increase in dispatch volume.
Most of dispatches are responding to traffic accidents passing through the District. As discussed in the
Capacity and Adequacy of Services section, Elkhorn FPD is not adequately responding to its current
demand and should cede its services to the cities of Woodland and West Sacramento. The Elkhorn FPD
should be dissolved and its territory annexed into districts already served by these cities.

2. DISADVANTAGED UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES

The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the
sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers,
municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, are
there any ‘inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted
Commission policy) within or adjacent to the subject agency’s ] ] X
sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or
less of the statewide median household income) that do not
already have access to public water, sewer and structural fire
protection?

b) If “yes” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such
that it can extend service to the disadvantaged unincorporated O] ] X
community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it
is either not needed or not applicable.

Discussion:

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire
protection, are there any “inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted Commission policy) within or
adjacent to the subject agency’s sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or less of the
statewide median household income) that do not already have access to public water, sewer and structural
fire protection?

No. The Elkhorn FPD territory is not disadvantaged?, and all “inhabited unincorporated communities”
countywide receive structural fire protection services.

b) If “yes” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such that it can extend service to the
disadvantaged unincorporated community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it is either not
needed or not applicable.

2 CALAFCO Statewide DUC Map using American Community Survey 5-Year Data (2015-19) Updated March 2022

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
6-3
193



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities MSR Determination

Not applicable.

The Elkhorn FPD territory is not disadvantaged and all “inhabited unincorporated communities” countywide
receive structural fire protection services.

3. CAPACITY AND ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES

Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or
deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire
protection in any disadvantaged, unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence.

YES

MAYBE

NO

a)

Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and
capacity of agency facilities to meet existing service needs for
which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve
(including deficiencies created by new state regulations)?

O

X

O

b)

Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan
in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e.,
number of staff and/or contracts).

<)

Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability
to meet the service demand of reasonably foreseeable future
growth?

d)

Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its
assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

e)

Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged
unincorporated communities related to sewers, municipal and
industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous
to the agency’s sphere of influence?

Discussion:

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and capacity of agency facilities to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve (including deficiencies

created by new state regulations)?

Maybe. One of Elkhorn FPD’s apparatus exceeds the recommended 25-year lifespan.

Fire Station

The Elkhorn FPD Station 47 was built in 1999 and is located at 19756 Old River Road. The Station
includes an office space, sleeping facilities, a bathroom including a shower, and a kitchen. There are

no major capital improvements planned or needed for the fire station

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

6-4

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

194



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Apparatus:

EFPD has five apparatus as listed below.

Use Apparatus Type Age Reserve?
(yrs)

Structure Fires Engine-47 1 20 No

Wildlands Fires Grass — 47* 3 0 No
Squad-47 6 3 No
Squad-247 7 32 Yes

Water Tenders Water-47 Tender 43 No

Command/Utility None

Other Apparatus None

* Delivery of new grass rig delayed until summer 2022.

A new grass rig was ordered and is expected June 2022. However, the Elkhorn FPD still has a water
tender that is 43 years old and the FPD indicates it plans to replace it in the next year or two. The Chief
indicates the water tender has minimal hours and is mechanically sound. This is the next truck planned
for replacement. Therefore, one of the four key apparatus exceed the recommended 25-year lifespan
and should be scheduled for replacement as funding allows. According to the Chief, all Elkhorn FPD
apparatus receive quarterly checks and scheduled maintenance service. Hoses and ladders are tested
regularly and are usually tested during training.

Elkhorn FPD currently supplies all responding members with appropriate, in-date personal protective
equipment (PPE). SCBAs receive annual flow testing and all SCBA bottles are within required hydro
testing requirement. Personnel are fit tested on an annual basis.

Elkhorn FPD operates adequate communications equipment including radios in each apparatus with
current programing that meets the needs for incident response. All apparatus have one portable radio
on board and extras are charged and available at the station. All volunteers have their own portable
devices.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
6-5
195



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

ISO Rating

The Insurance Services Office, Inc. (ISO) evaluates fire departments for the purpose of establishing
insurance premiums, called “ISO ratings”. An ISO fire rating is a score from 1 to 10 that indicates how
well-protected a community is by the fire department and will affect insurance rates. The first number
refers to the classification of properties within 5 road miles of a fire station and within 1,000 feet of water
supply. The second number applies to properties within 5 road miles of a fire station but beyond 1,000
feet of water supply. In the ISO rating scale, a lower number is better: 1 is the best possible rating,
while a 10 means the fire department did not meet ISO's minimum requirements. ISO generally assigns
Class 10 to properties beyond 5 road miles of a fire station. Elkhorn FPD is not rated.

Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet existing service needs for which the agency
does not have a plan in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e., number of staff and/or
contracts).

Yes. As discussed below, personnel and apparatus response are significantly below recommended
levels and Elkhorn FPD has also had a significant number of missed calls.

Staff, Coverage and Training

The Elkhorn FPD has 10 volunteers and its station is not staffed regularly. Elkhorn FPD signed an auto
aid agreement with the cities of Sacramento, West Sacramento and Woodland that have been in effect
since 2015. Elkhorn FPD has written operating policies and guidelines for its staff. All response
personnel receive base level minimum training to respond to incidents adequately and safely. Incident
Command System (ICS) basic training is a requirement before responders can respond to incidents.
Elkhorn FPD volunteers participate in the Yolo County Firefighters Association (YCFA) Training
Program when available. Responding personnel are fit tested on an annual basis.

Incident Reporting and Adequacy of Services

Elkhorn FPD utilizes Emergency Reporting web-based program for reporting and documentation to the
National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS). Regarding the adequacy of response, standards for
the number of personnel and apparatus were determined by the YCFA MSR Subcommittee for fire and
rescue/ EMS calls®.

Below is Elkhorn FPD’s NFIRS response data for the last five fiscal years:

3 By consensus of the Yolo County Firefighters Association MSR Subcommittee, it was determined the minimum
adequate response for a fire call is 4 personnel and 2 apparatus, and for a rescue/EMS call is 3 personnel and 1

apparatus.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

LAFCo No. 21-05

6-6
196



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Elkhorn FPD = Elkhorn FPD =
300 (EMS) Series Incidents 100 (Fire) Series Incidents
7 ¥ = m om o m
oo o Dm ay W s o'n I wis B

The data Elkhorn FPD reported to NFIRS is for the last three fiscal years only and it indicates Elkhorn
FPD is not able to respond to rescue/EMS or fire calls with adequate personnel and apparatus on
scene. It shows a significant uptick in rescue/EMS calls which correlates to anecdotal reports that traffic
accidents on I-5 and Old River Road are increasing significantly. The District lost 4 volunteer firefighters
in 2018 and is rebuilding its staff. Rescue/EMS calls outnumber fire calls by nearly 7:1. Elkhorn FPD
officials have expressed the challenge to access calls on I-5 quickly (after Caltrans installed a
continuous center median divider) and respond with sufficient trained personnel to be safe on the
accident scene. However, the District in recent years has added 4 volunteers to the department. It has
also been able to staff the department during red flag warning days, and extreme weather days during
the winter.

Response Time and Missed Calls

The MSR Subcommittee developed response time goals for rescue/emergency medical service (EMS)
calls (6 minutes) and fire calls (9 minutes) for the first responding unit to arrive on scene. LAFCo
recognizes it may be more difficult for volunteer and/or more rural FPDs to meet this goal, however as
the MSR Subcommittee indicated, it represents a goal to focus on. FPD response time averages* for
the 2019 — 2021 calendar years are shown below.

4 Based on YECA data. For a list of the data outliers omitted, please reference the methodology discussion on page 1-
10 of this MSR/SOI.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

6-7
197



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Elkhorn FPD
300 (EMS) Response Time Average

I e o B e o o B S e

Elkhorn FPD
100 (Fire) Response Time Average

According to YECA data, Elkhorn FPD has had 48 missed calls over the last three FYs as reported by
YECA (24 or 27% of calls in FY 18/19, 14 or 13.1% of calls in FY 19/20, and 10 or 6.7% of calls in FY
20/21).

FPD Level of Service Evaluation

NFPA 1720 requires FPDs to evaluate its level of service, deployment, and response time objectives
on an annual basis. Elkhorn FPD should provide a written evaluation of the FPD’s level of service,
deployment, and response time objectives on an annual basis, ideally as an agenda item at a board
meeting.

c) Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability to meet the service demand of reasonably
foreseeable future growth?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

6-8
198



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Yes. Please see the response to 1(a). Elkhorn FPD is not adequately responding to its current demand
as discussed above. An increase in future call volume may exacerbate poor level of service.

d) Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

No. The FPDs collectively report that climate change is not a factor in the valley and is only an issue
for those FPDs that border the Coastal Range.

e) Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged unincorporated communities related to
sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous to the agency’s
sphere of influence?

No. Not applicable.
Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Determination

The nature of emergency response has changed significantly since the Elkhorn FPD was formed in 1965.
Development outside the FPD territory has occurred generating increased traffic on I-5 and modern
navigation software directs trips down Old River Road to bypass it. Elkhorn FPD officials have expressed
the challenge to access calls on 1-5 quickly (after Caltrans installed a continuous center median divider)
and respond with sufficient trained personnel to be safe on the accident scene. In 2015, Elkhorn FPD signed
an auto aid agreement with the cities of Sacramento, West Sacramento, and Woodland.

The Elkhorn FPD has five apparatus total, one of which is a reserve apparatus. Its grass rig was replaced
in 2022 but still has a water tender that exceeds the recommended 25-year lifespan. Elkhorn FPD is not
ISO rated.

The Elkhorn FPD has 10 volunteers and the station is not staffed regularly, but it does cover the station
during projected extreme weather forecasts (e.g., heavy winds and rain during the winter and red flag days
of high winds and extreme fire danger in the summer). YECA reports a 77% increase in dispatches for the
FPD in just the last three fiscal years. The NFIRS data also shows a significant uptick in rescue/EMS calls
which now outnumber fire calls by nearly 7:1. Elkhorn FPD reported NFIRS data indicates it is not able to
respond to rescue/EMS or fire calls with adequate personnel and apparatus on scene. Elkhorn FPD has
missed 14% of its calls (within jurisdiction) over the last three FYs as reported by YECA.

Elkhorn FPD has a relatively low number of volunteers and without much resident population to draw from,
the next step to adequately respond to calls would be a stipended reserve program, which would require
an increase in the FPD’s assessment to pay for it (and needed replacement apparatus). However, the
increased service demand is being generated primarily from traffic accidents from vehicles originating
outside the FPD passing through the District. The cities of West Sacramento and Woodland are already
covering Elkhorn FPD’s calls under its auto aid agreement such that the Elkhorn FPD service is now
redundant and inferior to the cities’ service. Elkhorn FPD has done a remarkable job with its limited
resources for decades, but it can’t keep up with changing conditions and increasing service demand (as
evidenced by the 2016 LAFCo recommendation that it should contract for services from nearby cities).
Therefore, LAFCo recommends service would be better provided by the cities of Woodland and West
Sacramento.

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

e Elkhorn FPD’s facilities and services should be provided by the cities of West Sacramento and
Woodland, divided geographically to minimize response times.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
6-9
199



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

4. FINANCIAL ABILITY

Financial ability of agencies to provide services.

a)

Is the subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does
the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues? Does revenue
growth not keep pace with increased costs?

b)

Can the subject agency improve its use of generally accepted
accounting principles including: summaries of all fund balances,
summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of
reserves, and any un-funded obligations (i.e. pension/retiree
benefits)? Does the agency need accounting and/or financial
policies that guide the agency in how financial transactions are
recorded and presented?

c)

Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular
basis and are discrepancies identified, investigated and corrective
action taken in a timely manner? The review may include
reconciliations of various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual,
analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense
balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s
financial system and the County Treasury, does the agency
review monthly the transactions in the County system to
transactions the agency submitted to the County for processing?

d)

Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports
(quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that provide a clear and
complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully
disclosing both positive and negative financial information to the
public and financial institutions?

e)

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being
reliable? For example, is a large percentage of revenue coming
from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

Is the organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level
of service, necessary infrastructure maintenance, replacement
and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the
schedules of similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule
include a specific amount identified for capital asset replacement
(tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

9)

Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against
unexpected events or upcoming significant costs (excluding
capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Has the agency identified and
quantified what the possible significant risks and costs of
infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency have a
reserve policy?

h)

Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s
debt at an unmanageable level? Does the agency need a clear
debt management policy, if applicable?

YES MAYBE NO
0 X 0
0 0 X
0 X 0
0 0 X
0 0 X
X 0 0
X 0 0
0 0 X

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

6-10

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

200



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Financial Background

ELKHORN FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenue
Property taxes, in-lieu taxes, HOPTR $ 47,993 $ 49,968 3 48,759 $ 46,416 3 48,134
Interest 1,307 3,705 9,694 8,722 583
Intergovernmental grants 67,157 - - - -
Special assessment 68,409 67,364 67,368 67,368 63,719
Other revenue 1,048 - - 1,500 -
New debt - - 118,214 - -
Total Revenue 185,914 121,037 244,035 124,006 112,436
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits (insurance only) 2,920 2,411 2,415 2,452 2,440
Services and supplies 25,039 21,007 28,870 39,384 42,056
Debt service (principal and interest) - - 42,913 85,828 -
Contributions to volunteers - - - 440 4,960
Capital Assets:
Equipment 74,619 - 171,409 40,000 -
Total Expenditures 102,578 23,418 245,607 168,104 49,456
Net income (loss) 83,336 97,619 (1,572) (44,098) 62,980
Beginning Fund Balance 167,109 250,445 348,064 346,492 302,394
Ending Fund Balances $ 250,445 $ 348,064 $ 346,492 $ 302,394 $ 365,374
Fund Balances
Unassigned 250,445 $ 348,064 $ 346,492 $ 302,394 $ 365,374
Total Fund Balances 250,445 $ 348,064 $ 346,492 $ 302,394 $ 365,374
Y-T-Y Change in total Fund Balances
Amount Increase (Decrease) $ 83336 $ 97619 $ (1,572) $ (44,098) $ 62,980
Percentage Increase (Decrease) 49.87% 38.98% -0.45% -12.73% 20.83%
Property Tax Analysis
a. Assessed Value (AV) $ 157,006,973 $ 166,721,325 $ 152,447,122 $ 145,506,183 $150,192,450
b. Y-T-Y Percentage change in AV -2.41% 6.19% -8.56% -4.55% 3.22%
¢. Current secured, unsecured and HOP1 $ 48,182 $ 50,258 $ 48599 $ 46,401 $ 47,972
d. District share of general 1% levy (c/a) 3.0688% 3.0145% 3.1879% 3.1889% 3.1940%

Discussion:

a) Isthe subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues?
Does revenue growth not keep pace with increased costs?

Maybe. The District’s is currently financially stable in that total revenues exceed expenses each year.
However, total core revenues (property taxes and special assessments) have decreased slightly on

average 0.79% a year.

Generally, it is expected that there would be at least a modest increase in core

revenues since property taxes generally increase year over year, however most of the Elkhorn FPD
territory is under Williamson Act contracts. In addition, operating expenditures, excluding debt service

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

LAFCo No. 21-05

6-11
201



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

c)

d)

and capital expenditures have increased on average 14% per year. Although the 5-year trend shows
the District has operated in the black and fund balance has increased by $198,265, expenditures for
services and supplies are increasing and may slowly erode annual gains and eventually decrease the
fund balance. Total fund balance as of June 30, 2021 is $365,374 of which all can be used for any
purpose (unrestricted).

Revenue

Elkhorn FPD’s revenue consists of property taxes, special assessments, interest, a grant in 2017, and
other miscellaneous revenue. Like other rural fire districts, Elkhorn FPD relies primarily on a share of
the general 1% property tax levy for the majority of its revenue. In fiscal year 2021, property taxes of
$48,134 comprised 43% of total revenues. The District’s share of property taxes within its boundaries
is approximately 3.2%, while the average for all rural FPDs in the county is 6.2%. The District has levied
a special assessment since 2016. In 2021, special assessment revenue was $63,719 which accounted
for $57% of total revenue. However, special assessment revenue has declined from $68,409 in 2017
to $63,719 in 2021. Other revenues over the past 5 years include a federal grant that the City of West
Sacramento applied for on behalf of multiple departments in the amount of $67,157, and other revenue
totaling $2,548.

Expenditures
District operating expenditures (i.e., services and supplies), increased an average of 14% a year.

Capital expenditures

2017 $ 74,619 (10) SCBA units (90% funded from grant)
2019 $171,409 Ford F-550 Type 6 Squad 47
2020 $ 40,000 2001 Type 1 Engine 47

The District mostly relies partly on the acquisition of used apparatus.

District revenue is not keeping pace with increasing operating costs and capital asset replacement.

Does the subject agency need to use generally accepted accounting principles including: summaries of all
fund balances, summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of reserves, and any un-funded
obligations (i.e. pension/retiree benefits)? Does the agency have accounting and/or financial policies that
guide the agency in how financial transactions are recorded and presented?

No. The District relies on the County’s Department of Financial Services to record transactions in
accordance to generally accepted accounting principles. Beginning in March 2022, the District hired an
external accountant to process accounts payable. The financial transactions processed by the external
accountant will be forwarded to the County to be recorded in the County’s financial system which will
still be the official books of the District. The responsibilities of the external accountant, the County and
the District should be set forth in a Memorandum of Understanding.

Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular basis and are discrepancies identified,
investigated and corrective action taken in a timely manner? The review may include reconciliations of
various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual, analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and
expense balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s financial system and the County
Treasury, does the agency review monthly the transactions in the County system to transactions the agency
submitted to the County for processing?

Maybe. Elkhorn FPD recently hired an accountant to process accounts payable. Information is given to
the County to record in the County’s financial system. Staff still needs to review the County’s financial
reports for the items noted above. The FPD indicates it is in the process of generating standard
procedures and policies relating to this issue.

Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports (quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that
provide a clear and complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully disclosing both positive and
negative financial information to the public and financial institutions?

No. The Fire Chief emails reports provided by the County to the board as they become available. The
reports include a current year budget to actual comparison (Infor GL293), trial balance (Infor GL291),

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

6-12
202



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

e)

f)

9)

i)

General Ledger (Infor GL290) and balance sheet (Infor GL292). The receipt and review of the financial
reports by the District’'s board is not noted in the minutes.

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being reliable? For example, is a large percentage
of revenue coming from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

No. Revenues are reliable with the majority coming from property taxes, special assessments, and
interest that are all collected and allocated by the County. However, revenue is decreasing.

Is the organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level of service, necessary infrastructure
maintenance, replacement and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the schedules of
similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule include a specific amount identified for capital asset
replacement (tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

Yes. The District’s core revenues have decreased slightly over the past 5 years while expenditures
have increased on average 14% per year. In addition, revenues have not been sufficient to accumulate
funds to replace apparatus within the recommended life of the apparatus. Fund balance as of June 30,
2021 of $365,374 is approximately $965,000 below the minimum recommended amount.

Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against unexpected events or upcoming significant
costs (excluding capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Does the agency need to identify and quantify what the
possible significant risks and costs of infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency need a reserve
policy?

Yes. The District does not have a reserve policy nor a capital improvement plan (CIP). The District is
working with outside counsel and its accountant to create a reserve policy. Total fund balance of
$365,374 is approximately $965,000 below the minimum recommended amount. The minimum
recommended fund balance is the total of 3 components as follows:

o Capital asset replacement. Using estimated apparatus replacement costs, this estimate
divides this cost by the recommended life of each apparatus and assumes a straight-line
projection and contribution to a capital asset replacement sinking fund.

e General reserve. This is the total of 50% of current secured taxes and 50% of special
assessments to maintain liquidity from July through December each year when no
tax/assessment revenue is received.

e Unassigned fund balance. GFOA recommendation of 15% of operating expenditures to
mitigate revenue shortages and/or unanticipated expenditures.

The June 30,2021 actual and estimated minimum recommended fund balance amounts are as follows:

6/30/2021 6/30/2021
Actual Recommended Excess/
Balance Balance (Shortage)

Apparatus Replacement
Dewelopment impact fees -
Other funds -
- 1,269,000 (1,269,000)

General reserve - 55,000 (55,000)
Unassigned 365,374 7,000 358,374
Total Recommended Fund Balance $ 365,374 $ 1,331,000 $ (965,626)

Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s debt at an unmanageable level? Does the
agency need a clear capital financing and debt management policy, if applicable?

No. The District does not have any debt, including pension and OPEB liabilities.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

6-13
203



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Financial Ability MSR Determination

The District currently is not generating sufficient revenue to fund increasing operating expenditures and
apparatus replacement in the long-term. Core revenues have declined slightly over the past 5 years while
operating expenditures have increased on average 14% per year. Total fund balance has increased by
$198,265 from $167,109 to $365,374. However, total fund balance is approximately $965,000 below a
recommended best practice amount which includes funds that should be set aside for apparatus
replacement, liquidity needs, and for unanticipated expenditures or decrease in revenue. Additional
revenue will be required to replace apparatus as recommended and to hire staff for station coverage
appropriately to improve call performance. The District has recently hired an external accountant to process
accounts payable but will continue using the County’s financial system as the official accounting records.
The District board receives financial reports, but it is not noted in the minutes.

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

e Should the Elkhorn FPD not be dissolved, it should review financial data on a regular basis and are
discrepancies identified, investigated and corrective action taken in a timely manner.

e Should the Elkhorn FPD not be dissolved, it should create a CIP to determine how much funding
needs to be set aside each year and determine whether current revenues are adequate to fund the
program. The District should develop reserve policies to fund increased services, the CIP, and
maintain an adequate fund balance.

e Should the Elkhorn FPD not be dissolved, it should consider increasing Elkhorn FPD’s special
assessment to provide funding for staffing to improve personnel/apparatus response and timely
apparatus/equipment replacement. However, LAFCo suggests raising assessments for District
landowners may not be reasonable considering much of the increased demand is being generated
outside the FPD.

5. SHARED SERVICES AND FACILITIES
Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services
or facilities with neighboring, overlapping or other organizations ¢ [ O
that are not currently being utilized?

Discussion:

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services or facilities with neighboring, overlapping
or other organizations that are not currently being utilized?

Yes. The cities of West Sacramento and Woodland are already assisting in covering Elkhorn FPD’s
calls under its 2015 auto aid agreement and the Elkhorn FPD service is now redundant and inferior to
the cities’ service. Therefore, LAFCo recommends service would be better provided by the cities of
Woodland and West Sacramento.

Shared Services MSR Determination

The cities of West Sacramento and Woodland are already responding to calls in Elkhorn FPD’s service
area under the 2015 auto aid agreement and the Elkhorn FPD service is now redundant and inferior to the
cities’ service. Therefore, LAFCo recommends service would be better provided by the cities of Woodland
and West Sacramento.

Shared Services MSR Recommendation

e Elkhorn FPD’s facilities and services should be provided by the cities of West Sacramento and
Woodland, divided geographically to minimize response times.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

6-14
204



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

6. ACCOUNTABILITY, STRUCTURE AND EFFICIENCIES
Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational efficiencies.
YES MAYBE NO
a) Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s
governmental structure or operations that will increase accountability X ] ]
and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public,
service inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?
b) Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining
board members? Is there a lack of board member training regarding O O X
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?
c) Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a
lack of staff member training regarding the organization’s program L X O
requirements and financial management?
d) Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to
personnel/payroll, general and administrative, board member and
meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among X O O
staff and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct (see
suggested policies list)?
e) Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making ] ] X
their Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures?
f) Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial
reports that meet California State Controller requirements? Are the ] ] X
same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not
reviewed in an open meeting?
g) If the agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have
a qualified external person review agency finances each year (at a
minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior O [ [
years, analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining
if the reports appear reasonable?
h) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a
website  (see  https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government- O O X
website-transparency-scorecards)?

Discussion:

a) Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s governmental structure or operations that will
increase accountability and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public, service
inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?

Yes. The cities of West Sacramento and Woodland are already covering Elkhorn FPD’s calls under its
2015 auto aid agreement and the Elkhorn FPD service is now redundant and inferior to the cities’
service. Therefore, LAFCo recommends service would be better provided by the cities of Woodland
and West Sacramento. This would result in the City of Woodland providing service outside its
jurisdictional boundary to portions of both the Springlake and Elkhorn FPDs and the City of West
Sacramento providing service to a portion of the Elkhorn FPD and the Garcia Bend County Service
Area (CSA) 9. The simplest governmental structure to be accountable and provide for community
service needs in an efficient manner would be to consolidate service territory served by each city under
one district. Such a structure would be more uniformly accountable for community service needs and
Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

LAFCo No. 21-05

6-15
205


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

c)

d)

f)

9)

efficient. Therefore, LAFCo recommends the Elkhorn FPD be dissolved and its service territory be
annexed into Springlake FPD (for the City of Woodland service area) and CSA 9 (for the City of West
Sacramento service area), dividing up the territory geographically to minimize response times.

Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining board members? Is there a lack of board
member training regarding the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

No. All the FPD board seats are filled. The Fire Chief recently left the FPD board because there was
concern the position of fire chief might be incompatible with membership on the district board (see 84
Cal. Op. Att'y Gen. 94 (2001); 66 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 176 (1983); but see 76 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 38
(1993)).”

Name / Title Start End

Gary MclLaughlin / 01/28/2020 03/01/2024
Brent Noble / 01/28/2020 03/01/2024
William Mattos / 05/19/2020 06/01/2024
Paul Berg / 02/22/2022 01/01/2026
Thomas Kane / 05/10/2022 05/01/2026

If the Elkhorn FPD were dissolved and annexed into other districts, Elkhorn FPD board members may
be eligible to serve on the Springlake FPD Fire Commission.

Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a lack of staff member training regarding
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

Maybe. The District's volunteer Chief has served in this role for decades and provides financial
management and accountability. However, there is an issue with not having enough volunteer
personnel (see Capacity section).

In addition, the Elkhorn FPD’s previous legal counsel, which kept the Elkhorn FPD records, has been
slow to respond to the Chief's numerous requests for records to provide to LAFCo. Elkhorn FPD files
were finally returned to the Chief and the meeting minutes are incomplete. Minutes were missing for
any meetings in FY 18/19, FY 19/20, and only one set of minutes for FY 20/21. However, the District
has new counsel, and is in the process of a general governance update and clean up in response to
these issues.

Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to personnel/payroll, general and
administrative, board member and meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among staff
and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct?

Yes. The Chief has indicated the Elkhorn FPD does not have any such policies, but with new legal
counsel it is working on them.

Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making their Statement of Economic Interests
(Form 700) disclosures?

No. Elkhorn FPD has been exempted from needing to file Statements of Economic Interests.

Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial reports that meet California State Controller
requirements? Are the same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not reviewed in an
open meeting?

No. The most recent audit provided by the Elkhorn FPD is for fiscal years 2014 through 2018. The
Elkhorn FPD is required to conduct an audit every five years. The same auditors were used for the last
two audit cycles covering 10 years.

If the agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have a qualified external person review
agency finances each year (at a minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years,
analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

6-16
206



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

No. Elkhorn FPD has hired an outside accountant to evaluate and manage FPD finances and verify the
County Department of Financial Services (DFS) accounting coding is accurate. The District contracts
with an audit firm to prepare and submit the annual State Controller’s Financial Transactions Report,
however there is not a discussion of the District’s financial condition between the report preparer and
the District.

h) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a website (see
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards)?

No. The Elkhorn FPD does not have a website, but it has adopted resolutions of hardship each year,
so it remains in compliance with state law.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Determination

Fire protection and emergency response services in Elkhorn FPD’s service territory would be better
provided by the cities of Woodland and West Sacramento. This would result in the City of Woodland
providing service outside its jurisdictional boundary to portions of both the Springlake and Elkhorn FPDs
and the City of West Sacramento providing service to a portion of the Elkhorn FPD and the Garcia Bend
County Service Area (CSA) 9. The simplest governmental structure to be accountable and provide for
community service needs in an efficient manner would be to consolidate service territory served by each
city under one district. Such a structure would be more uniformly accountable for community service needs
and efficient.

All the FPD board seats are filled and if the Elkhorn FPD were dissolved and annexed into other districts,
Elkhorn FPD board members may be eligible to serve on the Springlake FPD Fire Commission to represent
the territory’s interests. The Elkhorn FPD’s Chief has served this role for decades and provides financial
management and accountability, however, there is an issue with not having a sufficient number of volunteer
personnel although the District is apparently working on it. Accountability is also hampered by the slow
responsiveness of Elkhorn FPD’s prior legal counsel and the lack of minutes for meetings in FY 18/19, FY
19/20, and only one set of minutes for FY 20/21.

The Elkhorn FPD is required to conduct its audits on a five-year cycle and is current in its audits, last
completed through 2018. The Elkhorn FPD does not have a website, but it has adopted resolutions of
hardship each year, so it remains in compliance with state law.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

e Elkhorn FPD should be dissolved and its territory annexed into Springlake FPD (for the City of
Woodland service area) and CSA 9 (for the City of West Sacramento service area), dividing up the
territory geographically to minimize response times.

e Should the Elkhorn FPD not be dissolved, it should adopt policies relating to personnel/payroll,
general and administrative, board member and meetings, and segregating financial and accounting
duties as soon as possible.

e Should the Elkhorn FPD not be dissolved, it should ensure the District’s records are maintained in
a complete manner and accessible to its staff.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
6-17
207


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

7. BROADBAND ACCESS
Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy.

Per Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 6.2 “it is the intent of Yolo LAFCo to comprehensively review broadband access
in MSRs of local agencies that either serve communities and/or provide emergency services where broadband
connection is critical (i.e. cities, CSDs, CSAs, FPDs and RDs).”

YES MAYBE NO

a) Is there a lack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) X ] ]
available in the community?

b) Is there a lack of low-income subscription rates and/or digital ] X n

literacy programs available?

Discussion:
a) Isthere alack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) available in the community?

Yes. Broadband is not available at the Elkhorn FPD Station nor most of its territory. According to the
CPUC Interactive Broadband Map, the green area between I-5 and West Sacramento is provided fixed
wireless broadband by either GeoLinks at 1 gig or Success.Net at 50/10 Mbps. Mobile/cellular data
from AT&T is available at 46/7 Mbps. The Elkhorn FPD cited lack of broadband in its hardship resolution
for why it was unable to provide a website.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
6-18
208



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Broadband Access MSR Determination

b) Is there a lack of low-income
subscription rates and/or digital literacy
programs available?

Maybe. GeolLinks does not provide
service cost information on its website.
AT&T offers an Affordable Connectivity
Program that allows  qualified
households to lower their wireless
costs by $30 per month. According to
the CPUC Broadband Mapping
Program, broadband adoption is
between 60% to 80% for the Elkhorn
FPD territory.

Yolo County Library staff provide one-
on-one computer assistance, with
even with basic functions like setting
up an email account® and generally

help troubleshoot technology
challenges. Information and instruction
about basic

computer/tablet/smartphone use is
offered in ESL conversation clubs,
classes and in Yolo Reads Adult and
Family Literacy program. The library
also provides hotspots and
Chromebooks for those that need
these items. The library does not have
a formalized technology curriculum,
although there have been discussions
regarding adding it as a service.
However, the closest libraries are 10
miles away in either West Sacramento
or Woodland.

Broadband is not available at the Elkhorn FPD Station nor most of its territory. According to the CPUC
Interactive Broadband Map, the green area between I-5 and West Sacramento is provided fixed wireless
broadband by either GeoLinks at 1 gig or Success.Net at 50/10 Mbps. Mobile/cellular data from AT&T is
available at 46/7 Mbps. Costs for GeoLinks is not available, Succeed.net is $80/month for a broadband
speed plan, and AT&T offers a $30 reduction in its mobile plan for low-income households. The Elkhorn
FPD cited lack of broadband in its hardship resolution for why it was unable to provide a website.

Broadband Access MSR Recommendation

e Yolo County should consider the lack of broadband service in the Elkhorn area as it addresses

rural access issues.

5 Email from Mark Fink, Yolo County Librarian on May 26, 2021

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

6-19

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

209



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

8. STATUS OF PREVIOUS MSR RECOMMENDATIONS
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR X ] ]
that have not been implemented?

Discussion:

a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR that have not been implemented?

2016 MSR Recommendations Specific to the Elkhorn FPD

o All of the districts (except Clarksburg, Dunnigan, West Plainfield, and Yolo FPDs with existing fiscal
policies and/or capital renewal/replacement plans) should develop and adopt written fiscal policies
addressing budgeting, procurement, reserve funds, fiscal audits, and capital renewal/replacement
planning in conformance with recognized industry best fiscal practices.

e Elkhorn FPD should consider a contract for service with the City of Woodland and/or the City of
West Sacramento to achieve long-term fiscal sustainability and continuity of services.

e Elkhorn, Knights Landing, Madison, and Yolo FPDs should consider seeking grant funding for
apparatus replacement to facilitate long-term fiscal viability.

Status of Previous Recommendations MSR Determination

Elkhorn FPD has not adopted fiscal policies and a capital renewal/replacement plan as recommended in
the 2016 MSR, although with new counsel and accountant the District is apparently working on these items.
A contract for service with the cities of West Sacramento and Woodland has not been executed. Elkhorn
FPD received approximately $61,000 of grant funding in 2017 and none in the 2018-2021 fiscal years.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

6-20
210



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY
On the basis of the Municipal Service Review:

= Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update is NOT
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, NO CHANGE
to the agency’s SOI is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE NOT been made.

] Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update IS
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, A CHANGE to
the agency’s SOl is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE been made and are included in
this MSR/SOI study.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
6-21
21



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

AGENCY PROFILE

The Esparto Fire Protection District (FPD) was formed in 1931 and is authorized to provide fire protection
and emergency response services. It was formed as a dependent district to Yolo County, which delegated
its decision making to a local fire commission with five members, each appointed by the Board of
Supervisors to serve four-year terms.

The District is 48,162 acres in size and serves the unincorporated towns of Esparto, Capay and the
surrounding rural area. The District contains 1,249 residential addresses, however 12 of these residential
addresses includes 113 existing multi-family units (for 1,350 total residential units). Therefore, its residential
population is estimated to be 3,780 residents! , Esparto also serves as a regional hub and has a daily influx
of additional population to attend work, schools, sports events, and shopping/dining and includes 42
commercial addresses. The Esparto FPD station is located at 16960 Yolo Avenue in Esparto, which houses
8 apparatus has 2.5 paid staff, 4 reserves and 23 volunteers (29 staff in total including 23 firefighters).

The Esparto FPD boundary and sphere of influence (SOI) is shown below. The SOI area was adopted by
LAFCo in 2016 to accommodate a territory swap with Capay Valley FPD to facilitate more efficient dispatch.

Esparto Fire Protection District Boundary and Sphere of Influence

Dunnigan Hre Protection District

Jalley Fire Protectian District
Capay Valley Fire Protection District

Esparto Fire Protection District

Madison Fire Protection District

Yolo
Winters Fire Protection District MFCO M

Adopted by Yolo LAFCo June 23, 2016

1 Population estimate is based on the number of residential addresses assigned in 2021 in the FPD territory with a Yolo
County average of 2.5 persons per household.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

7-1
212



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW

POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT MSR DETERMINATIONS

The MSR determinations checked below are potentially significant, as indicated by “yes” or “maybe”
answers to the key policy questions in the checklist and corresponding discussion on the following pages.
If most or all of the determinations are not significant, as indicated by “no” answers, the Commission may
find that a MSR update is not warranted.

Growth and Population XI Shared Services

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities

X  Accountability
Capacity, Adequacy & Infrastructure to Provide []
X

Broadband Access

Status of Previous MSR
Recommendations

Services

X X 0OKX

Financial Ability

LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW:

[ ] On the basis of this initial evaluation, the required determinations are not significant and staff
recommends that an MSR is NOT NECESSARY. The subject agency will be reviewed again in five
years per Government Code Section 56425(qg).

[XI The subject agency has potentially significant determinations and staff recommends that a
comprehensive MSR IS NECESSARY and has been conducted via this checkilist.

1. GROWTH AND POPULATION

Growth and population projections for the affected area. YES MAYBE NO
a) Will development and/or population projections over the next 5-10 X ] ]
years impact the subject agency’s service needs and demands?
b) Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s O] O] X
services?
Discussion:

a) Will development and/or population projections over the next 5-10 years impact the subject agency’s service
needs and demands?

Yes. The population for Esparto FPD is currently estimated to be 3,780. The town of Esparto has a
population of 3,572 per the 2020 Census and is the only town in the County currently experiencing
significant development-related growth. There are three subdivisions, an apartment complex, and two
large County funded facilities planned for Esparto. The residential development equals 350-400
additional units, which would increase the population of Esparto by roughly 1,000 people and increase
the size of the town by approximately 26%. Esparto FPD has an adopted development impact fee to
cover the costs of providing additional service to new development but it only covers one-time capital
expenses for new development. Because the Esparto FPD collects on average 3.9% of property taxes
generated in the District (which is relatively low as compared to FPD average of 6.2%), the additional
property tax revenues may not adequately cover the costs of serving new growth.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-2
213



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Over the last three fiscal years, total calls that resulted in Esparto FPD dispatched apparatus/personnel
were 460 in FY 18/19, 532 in FY 19/20 and 589 in FY 20/21, a 28% increase in only three years.

b) Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s services?

No. Population changes would not necessarily trigger an SOI or boundary change. In the 2016 MSR,
a boundary swap was recommended with Capay Valley FPD to provide a more efficient response time.
However, in 2021 both FPDs entered into a Joint Operations Agreement (JOA) and are working
together and coordinating operations. As discussed in the Shared Services section, a JOA with Capay
Valley FPD and hopefully Madison FPD as well would scale-up fire services to operate more as a
regional unit for support and resiliency purposes. Therefore, changes in service demand do not suggest
a change in the agency’s services or boundaries.

Growth and Population MSR Determination

The population for Esparto FPD is currently estimated to be 3,780. However, there are three subdivisions,
an apartment complex, and two large county-funded facilities planned for Esparto. The residential
development equals 350-400 additional units, which would increase the population of Esparto by roughly
1,000 people and increase the size of the town by 26% and will impact Esparto FPD’s service needs and
demands. The Esparto FPD has an adopted development impact fee to cover the costs of providing
additional equipment to new development but it only covers one-time capital expenses. For ongoing
increased revenue, because the Esparto FPD collects on average 3.9% of property taxes generated in the
District (which is relatively low as compared to other FPDs), the additional property tax revenues may not
adequately cover the costs of serving new growth.

Population changes will not necessarily trigger an SOI or boundary change. The JOA with Capay Valley
FPD that will hopefully include Madison FPD as well would scale-up fire services to operate more as a
regional unit for support and resiliency purposes. Therefore, changes in service demand do not suggest a
change in the agency’s services or boundaries.

Growth and Population MSR Determination Recommendation

e The Esparto FPD should participate in the current study funded by Yolo County to determine if
Esparto FPD property assessments need to be increased to cover the increasing costs of providing
fire service to existing and new growth. The Esparto FPD should support any hew Proposition 218
elections to increase Esparto FPD’s ongoing revenues.

2. DISADVANTAGED UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES

The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the
sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers,
municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, are
there any ‘inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted
Commission policy) within or adjacent to the subject agency’s O] O] X
sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or
less of the statewide median household income) that do not
already have access to public water, sewer and structural fire
protection?

b) If “ves” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such
that it can extend service to the disadvantaged unincorporated O] ] X
community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it
is either not needed or not applicable.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-3
214



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Discussion:

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire
protection, are there any “inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted Commission policy) within or
adjacent to the subject agency’s sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or less of the
statewide median household income) that do not already have access to public water, sewer and structural
fire protection?

No. A smaller, less populated portion of the Esparto FPD on the edge of town is considered
disadvantaged? as shown below, however, all “inhabited unincorporated communities” countywide
receive structural fire protection services.

b) If “yes” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such that it can extend service to the
disadvantaged unincorporated community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it is either not
needed or not applicable.

Not applicable.

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities MSR Determination

A small portion of the Esparto FPD territory is disadvantaged, however, all “inhabited unincorporated
communities” countywide receive structural fire protection services. Therefore, there is no concern that
Esparto, Capay, and the outlying areas are either not receiving fire protection services or not receiving
similar services due to disadvantaged economic issues in the Esparto FPD community.

2 CALAFCO Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities for State, RSG Inc. GIS Layer, dated December 10, 2021

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-4
215



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

3. CAPACITY AND ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES

Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or
deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire
protection in any disadvantaged, unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and
capacity of agency facilities to meet existing service needs for ] ] X
which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve
(including deficiencies created by new state regulations)?

b) Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan X ] O]
in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e.,
number of staff and/or contracts).

c) Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability
to meet the service demand of reasonably foreseeable future
growth?

d) Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its
assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

e) Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged
unincorporated communities related to sewers, municipal and O] O] X
industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous
to the agency’s sphere of influence?

Discussion:

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and capacity of agency facilities to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve (including deficiencies
created by new state regulations)?

No.
Fire Station

The Esparto FPD station was constructed in 1970 and is in good condition. It is connected to municipal
water and sewer service provided by the Esparto Community Services District. The station could use
some additional storage structures as some of the apparatus is currently housed in a covered carport.
The Esparto FPD does own additional land on the town block that could be used to construct an
additional storage building.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-5
216



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Apparatus and Equipment:

The table below lists the Esparto FPD’s 8 apparatus.

Use Apparatus Type Age (yrs) | Reserve? (Y/N)

Structure Fires Engine-19 1 17 No
Engine-219 1 8 No

Wildlands Fires Brush-193 3 27 No

Water Tenders Water-19 Tactical -2 4 No
Water-219 2 26 Maybe

Command/Utility 1900 N/A 1 No
Utility-19 N/A 6 No

Other Apparatus Squad-19 Light 22 No

Rescue

All Esparto FPD apparatus receive annual service, regularly scheduled rig checks, and annual pump
testing. Hoses and ladders are tested every two years and were last tested on December 14, 2021.
Esparto FPD currently supplies all responding members with appropriate, current personal protective
equipment (PPE). PPE is regularly inspected and follows a PPE replacement schedule. All self-
contained breathing apparatus (SCBA) receive annual flow testing, which was last performed on June
24, 2021. All bottles are current in hydro date and are due for testing in October 2026.

Esparto FPD operates adequate communications equipment including radios with current programing
that meets the needs for incident response. Currently, not all apparatus seats have a dedicated radio,
but Esparto FPD was recently awarded two grant funding awards to purchase new radios. This funding
will supply every seat with a dedicated radio. All apparatus does have mobile radios installed. Please
update info if needed

3 Replacement on order for 2022.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

7-6
217



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

ISO Rating

The Insurance Services Office, Inc. (ISO) evaluates fire departments for the purpose of establishing
insurance premiums, called “ISO ratings”. An ISO fire rating is a score from 1 to 10 that indicates how
well-protected a community is by the fire department and will affect insurance rates. Esparto FPD’s ISO
rating is 5/8B. The first number refers to the classification of properties within 5 road miles of a fire
station and within 1,000 feet of water supply. The second number applies to properties within 5 road
miles of a fire station but beyond 1,000 feet of water supply. In the ISO rating scale, a lower number is
better: 1 is the best possible rating, while a 10 means the fire department did not meet ISO's minimum
requirements. 1ISO generally assigns Class 10 to properties beyond 5 road miles of a fire station.

b) Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet existing service needs for which the agency
does not have a plan in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e., number of staff and/or
contracts).

Yes.

Staff, Coverage and Training

The Esparto FPD has 2.5 paid staff, 4 reserves and 23 volunteers (29 staff in total including 23
firefighters). Esparto Station 19 is staffed Monday through Friday, 8am-5pm with two full-time
employees and Saturday, Sunday with one Full-time employee. In addition to paid staff, 50% of the
time there is 1 reserve Monday-Friday, 8am-5pm. Outside of these hours, Esparto is covered by
volunteers.

Esparto FPD has written operating policies and guidelines for its staff. Esparto and Capay Valley FPDs
are working toward standardizing written operating policies and guidelines due to the two districts
entering into a JOA. All new staff members are provided a handbook that documents and ensures all
members are getting base level minimum training to respond to incidents adequately and safely.
Incident Command System (ICS) basic training is a requirement before responders can respond to
incidents, and it is included in new staff member handbooks. Esparto FPD patrticipates in the Yolo
County Firefighters Association Training Program. Responding personnel are fit tested on an annual
basis.

Incident Reporting and Adequacy of Services

Esparto FPD utilizes Emergency Reporting web-based program for reporting and documentation.
National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS) reports are exported quarterly. Regarding the
adequacy of response, standards for the number of personnel and apparatus were determined by the
Fire Chiefs MSR Subcommittee for fire and rescue/EMS calls®.

4 By consensus of the Yolo Fire Chief's MSR Subcommittee, it was determined the minimum adequate response for a
fire call is 4 personnel and 2 apparatus, and for a rescue/EMS call is 3 personnel and 1 apparatus.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-7
218



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Below is Esparto FPD’s NFIRS response data for the last five fiscal years:

Esparto FPD Esparto FPD
300 (EMS) Series Incidents 100 (Fire) Series Incidents

&~

e
\

e (2

En
[ [ am |
(o ‘n' m"m'ﬁ"“'
1 II lll

The above graphs show that Esparto FPD has not been able to respond to rescue/EMS calls (which is
much more common by a factor of more than10 to 1) with enough personnel, on average, in the last
two fiscal years. This suggests that more staffing is needed.

Response Time and Missed Calls

The MSR Subcommittee developed response time goals for rescue/emergency medical service (EMS)
calls (6 minutes) and fire calls (9 minutes) for the first responding unit to arrive on scene. LAFCo
recognizes it may be more difficult for volunteer and/or more rural FPDs to meet this goal, however as
the MSR Subcommittee indicated, it represents a goal to focus on. FPD response time averages® for
the 2019 — 2021 calendar years are shown below.

Esparto FPD
300 (EMS) Response Time Average

5 Based on YECA data. For a list of the data outliers omitted, please reference the methodology discussion on page 1-
10 of this MSR/SOI.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

7-8
219




YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Esparto FPD
100 (Fire) Response Time Average

T Recommended Irmmn“!

Esparto FPD had 0 missed calls in FY 18/19 and 18/20, and 1 missed call (or 0.2%) in FY 20/21.

Annual Performance Evaluation

NFPA requires FPDs to evaluate its level of service, deployment and response time objectives on an
annual basis. Although Esparto FPD discusses levels of service and performance verbally at each
commission meeting, it would be a good practice to provide a written evaluation of the Esparto FPD’s
level of service, deployment and response time objectives on an annual basis.

c) Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability to meet the service demand of reasonably
foreseeable future growth?

Maybe. Currently with current staffing levels. Esparto FPD is close to meeting the existing demands.
Staff response has been trending down in recent years. With future growth it is anticipated that more
full-time staffing will be required to adequately serve corresponding increased demand. Please see the
response to la.

d) Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

No. The Esparto FPD borders the Coastal Range and the western roughly half of the District is included
in the State Responsibility Area and is mostly rated a moderate fire hazard risk for valley floor areas
and very high risk for the mountainous areas. There has been a significant wildfire every season in
recent years except 2021. Esparto FPD has included this high fire risk in its assessment of infrastructure
and service needs. Esparto FPD has received revenue in some years from staff and apparatus
reimbursement revenue for supporting CalFire during wildfire events. Esparto FPD is also working with
the Yolo County Fire Safe Council.

e) Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged unincorporated communities related to
sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous to the agency’s
sphere of influence?

No. Not applicable. Please see the response to 2a.
Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Determination

Esparto FPD’s apparatus includes two that exceed the recommended 25 years of age, but one replacement
has already been ordered and the other may become surplus equipment. The station may need additional
storage for apparatus. Esparto FPD’s ISO rating is 5/8B. Esparto FPD has not been able to respond to
rescue/EMS calls (which is much more common by a factor of more than 10 to 1) with enough personnel,
on average, in the last two fiscal years. This suggests that more staffing is currently needed and with future
growth in the pipeline it is anticipated that even more full-time staffing will be required to adequately serve
corresponding increased demand. Esparto FPD has had 1 missed call in the last three FYs. Esparto FPD

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-9
220



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

has considered climate adaptation and included this high fire risk in its assessment of infrastructure and
service needs. There are no fire service deficiencies related to disadvantaged unincorporated communities.

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

Esparto FPD should increase personnel to improve its emergency response for both existing

development and future growth.

In addition to verbal updates at each meeting, the Esparto FPD should provide written evaluations
of its level of service, deployment, and response time objectives on an annual basis.

4. FINANCIAL ABILITY

Financial ability of agencies to provide services.

a)

Is the subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does
the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues? Does revenue
growth keep pace with increased costs?

b)

Can the subject agency improve its use of generally accepted
accounting principles including: summaries of all fund balances,
summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of
reserves, and any un-funded obligations (i.e. pension/retiree
benefits)? Does the agency need accounting and/or financial
policies that guide the agency in how financial transactions are
recorded and presented?

c)

Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular
basis and are discrepancies identified, investigated and corrective
action taken in a timely manner? The review may include
reconciliations of various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual,
analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense
balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s
financial system and the County Treasury, does the agency
review monthly the transactions in the County system to
transactions the agency submitted to the County for processing?

d)

Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports
(quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that provide a clear and
complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully
disclosing both positive and negative financial information to the
public and financial institutions?

e)

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being
reliable? For example, is a large percentage of revenue coming
from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

Is the organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level
of service, necessary infrastructure maintenance, replacement
and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the
schedules of similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule
include a specific amount identified for capital asset replacement
(tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

YES MAYBE NO
0 0 X
X 0 0
0 X 0
0 0 X
0 0 X
X 0 0

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

7-10

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

221



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

g) Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against
unexpected events or upcoming significant costs (excluding
capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Has the agency identified and X n ]
quantified what the possible significant risks and costs of
infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency have a
reserve policy?

h) Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s
debt at an unmanageable level? Does the agency need a clear O X O
debt management policy, if applicable?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-11
222



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Discussion:
ESPARTO FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenue
Property taxes, in-lieu taxes, HOPTR $ 157,985 $ 164,203 $ 175,861 $ 183,638 $ 192,642
Development impact fees 33,284 15,932 13,451 19,796 12,716
Interest 3,075 5,728 16,829 21,385 413
County tribal mitigation 12,500 29,352 29,809 29,990 29,999
Other County funding - - - - 32,500
Y ocha Dehe Wintun Nation funding - 115,000 - 20,000 8,333
Special assessment 61,074 59,997 60,301 76,020 75,547
CA Fire - - 80,485 13,091 26,132
Other revenue 15 25,525 1,339 72 112
Total Revenue 267,933 415,737 378,075 363,992 378,394
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits 115,913 80,386 89,680 105,033 145,443
Services and supplies 72,183 90,250 104,961 105,345 142,391
Contributions to volunteers 21,496 12,946 15,014 20,328 12,236
Capital Assets:
Buildings and improvements - 40,053 - - -
Equipment - 209,522 - 59,539 31,560
Total Expenditures 209,592 433,157 209,655 290,245 331,630
Net income (loss) 58,341 (17,420) 168,420 73,747 46,764
Beginning Fund Balance 480,421 538,762 521,342 689,762 763,509
Ending Fund Balances $ 538,762 $ 521,342 $ 689,762 $ 763,509 $ 810,273
Fund Balances
Restricted - Dev impact fees $ 69,066 $ 85973 % 77524 % 49,014 % 62,316
Assigned - Capital asset replacement 135,636 255,703 321,454 593,461 633,034
Assigned - General reserve 11,626 11,626 11,626 11,626 11,626
Unassigned 322,434 168,039 279,158 109,408 103,297
Total Fund Balances $ 538,762 $ 521,341 $ 689,762 $ 763,509 $ 810,273
Y-T-Y Change in total Fund Balances
Amount Increase (Decrease) $ 58,341 $ (17,420) $ 168,420 $ 73,747 % 46,764
Percentage Increase (Decrease) 12.14% -3.23% 32.31% 10.69% 6.12%
Property Tax Analysis
a. Assessed Value (AV) $ 409,931,778  $ 430,898,187 $ 447,698,563 $ 466,859,421 $ 487,499,225
b. Y-T-Y Percentage change in AV 8.84% 5.11% 3.90% 4.28% 4.42%
c. Current taxes and HOPTR $ 154,623 $ 161,865 $ 173625 $ 180,759 $ 188,801
d. Share of general 1% levy (c/a) 3.7719% 3.7565% 3.8782% 3.8718% 3.8728%

a) Isthe subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues?
Does revenue growth keep pace with increased costs?

No. The District’s total core revenues (property taxes, tribal mitigation, special assessments) and total
fund balances have steadily grown over the past five years. Total fund balance has increased from
$480,421 to $810,273 of that $747,957 can be used by the District for any purpose. The remaining

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-12
223



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

$62,316 is unexpended development impact fees that can only be expended on equipment and facilities
that the District requires in order to provide services to new development within its service area.

Revenue

Esparto Fire Protection District’s revenue consists of property taxes, special assessments development
impact fees, interest, grants from the County and the Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation and other
miscellaneous revenue. Like other rural fire districts, Esparto PFD relies primarily on a share of the
general 1% property tax levy for the majority of its revenue. In fiscal year 2021, property taxes of
$192,642 comprised 55% of total revenues (excluding strike team reimbursements). The District’s
share of property taxes within its boundaries is approximately 3.8%, while the average for all FPDs in
the county is 6.2%. The District has also levied a special assessment since 1989. In 2021 special
assessment revenue of $75,547 accounted for 21% of total revenue. Since 1990 the District has
imposed development impact fees (DIF) which can only be used by the District to acquire equipment
and facilities to service new development. Over the past 5 years the District has collected $95,179 of
DIF. The District is one of the five FPDs that since 2004 receives tribal mitigation funding annually from
the County. Over the past five years the District has received $131,650 of $132,500 it was entitled to.
According to administrative procedures adopted by the County Administrator’'s Office, the funds are to
be used to purchase “equipment and capital assets”. In addition, over the past 5 years the Esparto FPD
has received other County funding of $32,500, grants from the Yocha Dehe Wintun Nation totaling
$143,333, strike team reimbursements of $119,708 and other revenue totaling $27,063.

Expenditures
District expenditures, excluding capital expenditures increased little from 2017 through 2020. However,

in 2021 salary and benefits increased 38% due to staffing reorganization; hired full-time chief and
replaced part-time secretary with full-time firefighter. Services and supplies increased by 35% due to
deferred maintenance and improvements to transition facilities to 24-hour service. In addition, the
District paid the volunteers $82,020 over the past 5 years for answering calls and other stipends.

The District participates in the California Public Employees Retirement System. Retirements
expenditures are as follows:

2017 $9,036
2018 4,811
2019 8,158
2020 9,974
2021 11,082
Capital expenditures
2018: $40,053, new roof for station, $209,522 for a water tanker
2020: $59,539, 4x4 pickup
2021: $31,560, off road vehicle funded by County

District revenue growth has kept pace with expenditures.

Can the subject agency improve its use of generally accepted accounting principles including: summaries of
all fund balances, summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of reserves, and any un-funded
obligations (i.e., pension/retiree benefits)? Does the agency need accounting and/or financial policies that
guide the agency in how financial transactions are recorded and presented?

Yes. The Esparto FPD maintains all funds in the County Treasury and uses the County’s financial
system to maintain its accounting records. Since the FPD is a dependent district, it is subject to the
same accounting and financial policies of the County. Accounting and budget data including all cash
receipts and disbursements are reviewed by County finance staff before they are posted.

However, balances and note disclosures required by Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — An Amendment of GASB
Statement No. 27”, are not recorded in the District's accounting records and the required note

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

7-13
224



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

d)

e)

f)

9)

disclosures describing the plan and other plan information are not included in the County’s Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). These balances, if material, and known by the District’s
commissioners may change funding priority decisions.

Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular basis and are discrepancies identified,
investigated and corrective action taken in a timely manner? The review may include reconciliations of
various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual, analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and
expense balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s financial system and the County
Treasury, does the agency review monthly the transactions in the County system to transactions the agency
submitted to the County for processing?

Maybe. While reviewing fiscal year 2018 accounting data it was noted that $12,305 of County tribal
mitigation funded was erroneously posted to expenditure accounts instead to the proper revenue
account. This error was not detected before year-end closing was completed and now cannot be
corrected.

Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports (quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that
provide a clear and complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully disclosing both positive and
negative financial information to the public and financial institutions?

No. According to the Chief, the fire commission is provided a financial report at every meeting, but it’s
not noted in the minutes. In addition to the financial report the commissioners review and approve the
annual budget, monthly listing of claims and notifications of receipts of miscellaneous revenue.

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being reliable? For example, is a large percentage
of revenue coming from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

No. Revenues are reliable, with the majority coming from property taxes and special assessments.

Is the organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level of service, necessary infrastructure
maintenance, replacement and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the schedules of
similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule include a specific amount identified for capital asset
replacement (tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

Yes. The District is working on station upgrades to allow for 24-hour operations. including the hiring of
a full-time fire fighter requiring additional resources. These future additional expenditures have not been
factored into the analysis. In addition, the District’s funds set aside for capital asset replacement is
over $1,100,000 less than the minimum recommended amount. See also 4g below.

Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against unexpected events or upcoming significant
costs (excluding capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Has the agency identified and quantified what the
possible significant risks and costs of infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency have a reserve
policy?

Yes. The District does not have any reserve polices and the June 30, 2021 fund balance is over
$1,100,000 less than the minimum recommended amount of $1,969,000. The recommended fund
balance is the total of 3 components as follows:

o Capital asset replacement. Using estimated apparatus replacement costs, this estimate
divides this cost by the recommended life of each apparatus and assumes a straight-line
projection and contribution to a capital asset replacement sinking fund.

e General reserve. This is the total of 50% of current secured taxes and 50% of special
assessments to maintain liquidity from July through December each year when no
tax/assessment revenue is received.

e Unassigned fund balance. GFOA recommendation of 15% of operating expenditures to
mitigate revenue shortages and/or unanticipated expenditures.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

7-14
225



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

The June 30,2021 actual and estimated minimum recommended fund balances amounts are as follows:

6/30/2021 6/30/2021
Actual Recommended Excess/

Balance Balance (Shortage)
Apparatus Replacement
Development impact fees 62,316
Other funds 633,034
695,350 1,799,000 (1,103,650)
General resernve 11,626 129,000 (117,374)
Unassigned 103,297 41,000 62,297

Total Recommended Fund Balance $ 810,273 $ 1,969,000 $ (1,158,727)

h) Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s debt at an unmanageable level? Does the
agency need a clear debt management policy, if applicable?

Maybe. The Esparto FPD participates in the California Public Employees Retirement System
(CalPERS) to provide retirement benefits to eligible employees. The County has elected not to
calculate and record the District's pension liability, deferred outflows, deferred inflows, or pension
expense required by Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68 as this information
has previously deemed immaterial to the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report taken as a
whole. As a result, these numbers are not available to include in this report.

However, as of the June 30, 2020 actuarial valuation prepared by CalPERS the plan had only 1 retired
and 2 active participants. The plan is 76% funded and future rates estimated by CalPERS do not
increase in the short term. According to CalPERS 2019 Annual Review of Funding Levels and Risks
the big risk is continuing employer rate increases. Required employer contributions will increase over
the next few years while the cost of recent rate changes and investment losses are being phased in. In
4-5 years, required contributions are expected to decrease due to the continual decrease in normal
cost as Classic members retire or terminate and are replaced by PEPRA members and required
payments toward existing unfunded accrued bases will gradually be eliminated as individual unfunded
actuarial liability bases are fully paid off. In the long-term, required employer contributions will trend
toward the employer portion of the normal cost and all plans will gradually increase to around 100%
funded over the next 25-30 years.

Due to the low number of participants, especially retired participants, it is not expected that future rates
or the future liability will significantly impact the District.

Financial Ability MSR Determination

Due to conservative budget practices Esparto FPD is currently financial stable. The District’s total annual
ongoing operating revenues (property taxes, interest, tribal mitigation, special assessments) and total fund
balances have steadily grown over the past five years. Total fund balance has increased from $480,421 to
$810,273 of that $747,957 can be used by the District for any purpose. However, the available fund balance
is less than what appears to be needed, mostly due to underfunding of the capital asset replacement
reserve. The District does not have any reserve polices and the June 30, 2021 fund balance is over
$1,100,000 less than the minimum recommended amount of $1,969,000. The Capacity and Adequacy of
Services Section also recommends that increased staffing is needed. The District does not have formal
reserve policies. Additional funding may be required to fund these needs and maintain adequate reserve
balances. Esparto FPD maintains its funds in the County Treasury and uses the County’s financial system
to maintain its accounting records. Esparto FPD fire commission receives financial reports at each meeting,
but this needs to be reflected on meeting agendas and minutes. As a dependent district, Esparto FPD is
included in the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), however, Esparto FPD is a
CALPERS member and required disclosures are not included. Due to the low number of participants,
especially retired participants, it is not expected that future rates or the future liability will significantly impact
Esparto FPD.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-15
226



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

e Esparto FPD staff should review financial data on a regular basis and identify and discrepancies.
The review should include reconciliations of various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual,
analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense balances to the prior year, etc. It also
should review monthly the transactions in the County system to transactions the agency submitted
to the County for processing.

e Create a CIP to determine how much funding needs to be set aside each year and determine
whether current revenues are adequate to fund the program. Develop reserve policies to fund
increased services, the CIP, and maintain and adequate fund balances.

e Consider increasing Esparto FPD’s special assessment to provide funding for staffing, facilities and
apparatus/equipment needs.

¢ Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make the
findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees collected from
new development are spent solely on appropriate facilities.

e Yolo County should include the GASB 68 pension balances and note disclosures for Esparto FPD
in the County’s ACFR.

5. SHARED SERVICES AND FACILITIES
Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.

YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services
or facilities with neighboring, overlapping or other organizations O BJ O
that are not currently being utilized?

Discussion:

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services or facilities with neighboring, overlapping
or other organizations that are not currently being utilized?

Maybe. LAFCo recommends Esparto FPD, Capay Valley FPD and Madison FPD scale up its services
and operate more as a regional unit via a JOA. Esparto FPD and Capay Valley FPD have already
entered into a JOA and are working towards standardizing written operating policies and guidelines. It
also has mutual/auto aid agreements with surrounding fire departments. It is hoped that the Madison
FPD joins the JOA as well.

The goal for coordinated/joint operations is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of
resources, consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during
incident response. Additional things that should be included as a required element of the JOA is:

e Apparatus/equipment standardization,
e Shared reserve apparatus, and
e Cooperative purchasing

Shared Services MSR Determination

LAFCo recommends Esparto FPD, Capay Valley FPD and Madison FPD scale up its services and operate
more as a regional unit via a JOA. Esparto FPD and Capay Valley FPD have already entered into a JOA
and are working towards standardizing written operating policies and guidelines. It also has mutual/auto aid
agreements with surrounding fire departments. It is hoped that the Madison FPD joins the JOA as well. The

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

7-16
227



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

goal for coordinated/joint operations is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources,
consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during incident response.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

e Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are apparatus/equipment
standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative purchasing. These efficiencies are
currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

6. ACCOUNTABILITY, STRUCTURE AND EFFICIENCIES
Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational efficiencies.
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s
governmental structure or operations that will increase accountability ] X 0
and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public,
service inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?

b) Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining
board members? Is there a lack of board member training regarding ] ] X
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

c) Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a
lack of staff member training regarding the organization’s program O] Ol O]
requirements and financial management?

d) Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to
personnel/payroll, general and administrative, board member and
meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among X O] O]
staff and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct (see
suggested policies list)?

e) Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making ] ] X
their Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures?

f) Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial
reports that meet California State Controller requirements? Are the ] ] X
same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not
reviewed in an open meeting?

g) Ifthe agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have
a qualified external person review agency finances each year (at a
minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior O] X O]
years, analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining
if the reports appear reasonable?

h) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a
website (see https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government- X O O
website-transparency-scorecards)?

Discussion:

a) Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s governmental structure or operations that will
increase accountability and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public, service
inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?

Maybe. Esparto FPD has already entered into a JOA with Capay Valley FPD designed to improve
operations and efficiencies. The recommendation below is to ensure Esparto FPD continues to
maintain standing in good faith to achieve JOA goals.

b) Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining board members? Is there a lack of board
member training regarding the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-17
228


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

d)

f)

g)

No. All five fire commission seats are filled and there does not appear to be an issue with onboarding
and maintaining fire commission members.

Name / Title Start End
David Schwenger / 02/19/2019 03/01/2023
Mitch Roath / 09/24/2019 09/01/2023
John Hulsman, Jr. / 12/17/2019 01/01/2024
Rudy Lucero / 03/09/2021 03/01/2025
Barry Burns / 09/28/2021 09/01/2025

Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a lack of staff member training regarding
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

No. Esparto FPD staff positions are filled and there does not appear to be any issues with turnover.
Esparto FPD provides resources and training to personnel in fire/emergency response operations and
financial management.

Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to personnel/payroll, general and
administrative, board member and meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among staff
and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct?

Yes. The District has a comprehensive employee handbook and since Esparto FPD is a dependent
district it is assumed to comply with the County’s accounting policies. However, the District does not
have any polices governing the fire commissioners, such as selection of commissioners, chair
responsibilities, attendance at meetings, meeting conduct, brown act, travel, and expense
reimbursements, etc. The District should have general and administrative policies such as records
retention and storage, use of vehicles, webpage, whistleblower, nepotism and disaster planning, the
District should also consider financial polices such as the investment of surplus funds, reserves, fee
setting and periodic fee review, allowable expenditures, budget preparation and budget to actual
review, debt and borrowing, credit card use, periodic financial reporting to the commissioners, etc.
LAFCo will provide samples/templates.

Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making their Statement of Economic Interests
(Form 700) disclosures?

No. Esparto FPD complies with Conflict-of-Interest Code requirements and is current with commission
and staff Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures.

Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial reports that meet California State Controller
requirements? Are the same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not reviewed in an
open meeting?

No. The dependent FPD’s (including Esparto FPD) are included in the annual audit of the County’s
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The FPD is reported as a blended component unit
and accounted for as a special revenue fund. According to the State Controller’s Office, the County’s
audited ACFR meets general audit requirements and the ACFR satisfies the requirements of
Government Code 269098.

If the agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have a qualified external person review
agency finances each year (at a minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years,
analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable?

Maybe. Esparto FPD is audited annually as part of the County’s ACFR but it does not include individual
review of the dependent FPDs, just the aggregate total balance of all dependent FPDs (so review is at
a high level and not detailed). Yolo County should review agency finances with each dependent FPD

6 Per email dated July 6, 2021 from Sandeep Singh, Manager, Local Government Policy Section Office of State
Controller, Local Government Programs and Services Division

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

7-18
229



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

each year, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years, analyzing significant
differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable.

h) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a website (see
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards)?

Maybe. Dependent special districts are not legally required to maintain a website. The Esparto FPD
has a website but received a 42% transparency score for best practices in 2021. Please see the report
posted on the LAFCo website for where improvements are recommended.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Determination

There are no recommended changes to Esparto FPD’s governmental structure or operations that will
increase accountability and efficiency. Esparto FPD has already entered into a JOA with Capay Valley FPD
designed to improve operations and efficiencies. The recommendation below is to ensure Esparto FPD
continues to maintain standing in good faith to achieve JOA goals. Esparto FPD is effective in its current
structure and there are no issues with maintaining fire commissioners and staff. Commissioners and key
staff are trained regarding the organization’s program requirements and financial management. Esparto
FPD has some basic policies but should consider adopting additional policies regarding meeting
attendance, conduct, responsibilities of officers, personnel, and accounting/financial procedures. EPFD is
current in making its Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures and as a dependent FPD,
Yolo County performs its audits. Although it's not legally required, the Esparto FPD has a website but
received a 42% best practices transparency score in 2021.

Accountability, Structure and Efficiencies MSR Recommendation(s)

e Capay Valley, Esparto and Madison FPDs should provide for a coordinated and more uniform level
of service and operation through either: (1) a Joint Operation Agreement (JOA); or (2) agency
merger/consolidation. The goal for coordinated/joint operations in each Area is to achieve a similar
service standard, efficient use of resources, consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization,
and improved coordination during incident response. If any of these agencies enter into a JOA and
fail to make reasonable efforts in good faith to promote these goals, a LAFCo reorganization to
combine FPDs should be initiated if its determined consolidation would promote better service to
the public and be a more efficient and effective utilization of resources.

e The Esparto FPD should adopt policies related to meeting attendance, conduct, responsibilities of
officers, and personnel (including employee/volunteer promotions, performance evaluations, drug
and alcohol policies, payroll processing, etc.) In addition, accounting and financial policies should
be developed to include general accounting, processing, and recording of disbursements and
receipts, allowable expenditures, employee and travel and expense reimbursements, capital
assets, debt and borrowing, credit card use, etc. LAFCo will provide policy templates for FPD use.

e Yolo County should review agency finances with each dependent FPD each year to review agency
finances, comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior years, analyzing significant
differences or changes, and determining if the reports appear reasonable.

o Dependent special districts, such as Esparto FPD, are not legally required to maintain a website.
The Esparto FPD has a website but received a 42% best practices transparency score in 2021.
Please see the report at https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-
scorecards for where improvements are recommended.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-19
230


https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards
https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government-website-transparency-scorecards

YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

7. BROADBAND ACCESS
Any other matter related to effective or efficient service delivery, as required by commission policy.

Per Yolo LAFCo Project Policy 6.2 “it is the intent of Yolo LAFCo to comprehensively review broadband access
in MSRs of local agencies that either serve communities and/or provide emergency services where broadband
connection is critical (i.e. cities, CSDs, CSAs, FPDs and RDs).”

YES MAYBE NO

a) Is there a lack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) ] ] X
available in the community?

b) Is there a lack of low-income subscription rates and/or digital ] ] X

literacy programs available?

Discussion:
a) Isthere a lack of high-performance broadband (25/3 Mbps) available in the community?

No. The town of Esparto is provided broadband service by Esparto Broadband, Inc. at either 100 Mbps
download and 10 Mbps upload speeds or 50 Mbps download and 5 Mbps upload speeds depending
on location”: The town of Capay has service from either Frontier Communications at 115 Mbps
download and 7 Mbps upload speeds or Esparto Broadband, Inc. at 50 Mbps download and 5 Mbps
upload speeds depending on the location. The rural areas are mostly covered by Winters Broadband
LLC at 25 Mbps download speed and 6 Mbps upload speed. Therefore, broadband speeds of 25/3
Mbps is generally available in the Esparto FPD territory.

7 CPUC Broadband Mapping Program data as of December 31, 2019. Speeds provided are maximum advertised
speeds and not necessarily typical speeds actually experienced by the subscriber.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-20
231



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b) Is there a lack of low-income subscription rates and/or digital literacy programs available?

No. However, according to the CPUC Broadband Mapping Program, broadband adoption at 25/3 Mbps
is low at only 20%-40% for the Esparto FPD territory.

As a small local provider, Esparto Broadband, Inc. does not offer low-income subscription rates, but its
25 Mbps “Light” plan is offered at $41.00 per month. Much of Esparto is also covered by AT&T at slower
speeds, which offers a program for low-income households that includes 25 Mbps download speeds
for $10.00 per month with free installation, in-home Wi-Fi®, no deposit and no annual contract. Frontier
Communications offers a low-income subscription rate of $9.25 per month.

Yolo County Library staff provide one-on-one computer assistance, with even with basic functions like
setting up an email account® and generally help troubleshoot technology challenges. Information and
instruction about basic computer/tablet/smartphone use is offered in ESL conversation clubs, classes
and in Yolo Reads Adult and Family Literacy program. The library also provides hotspots and
Chromebooks for those that need these items. The library does not have a formalized technology
curriculum, although there have been discussions regarding adding it as a service.

Broadband Access MSR Determination

Broadband access in the Esparto FPD does not appear to be an issue that would disrupt fire protection and
emergency services. Broadband speeds of 25/3 Mbps is generally available in the Esparto FPD territory by
multiple providers. However, according to the CPUC Broadband Mapping Program, broadband adoption at
25/3 Mbps is low at only 20%-40%. Frontier Communications as a national internet service provider is
required to offer low-income subscription rates, while a small local provider such as Esparto Broadband,
Inc. is not. However, for low-income residents AT&T is also available as a secondary option in most of
Esparto.

8. STATUS OF PREVIOUS MSR RECOMMENDATIONS
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR X ] ]
that have not been implemented?

Discussion:
a) Are there any recommendations from the agency’s previous MSR that have not been implemented?

2016 MSR Recommendations Specific to the Esparto FPD and Status

1. Allof the districts (except Clarksburg, Dunnigan, West Plainfield, and Yolo FPDs with existing fiscal
policies and/or capital renewal/replacement plans) should develop and adopt written fiscal policies
addressing budgeting, procurement, reserve funds, fiscal audits, and capital renewal/replacement
planning in conformance with recognized industry best fiscal practices.

Status: Esparto FPD is working on written policies, however, per this 2016 recommendation they
have not been adopted yet.

2. Esparto FPD should consider reducing the size of its fire apparatus inventory to facilitate long-term
fiscal sustainability.

Status: The Esparto FPD has reduced the size of its fire apparatus inventory since the 2016 MSR.

8 Email from Mark Fink, Yolo County Librarian on May 26, 2021

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-21
232



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

3. Esparto and Madison FPDs should consider consolidating into a single district to enhance
operational and fiscal efficiencies.

Status: In lieu of a legal consolidation, Esparto FPD has invited Madison FPD to join the JOA, which
would be considered a “functional consolidation”.

Status of Previous Recommendations MSR Determination

Esparto FPD has complied with two of the three recommendations. It has reduced its fire apparatus reserve
inventory since the 2016 MSR and has invited Madison FPD to participate in a JOA which would be
considered a “functional consolidation”. Esparto FPD has not adopted written fiscal policies addressing
budgeting, procurement, reserve funds, fiscal audits, and capital renewal/replacement planning in
conformance with recognized industry best fiscal practices.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-22
233



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

On the basis of the Municipal Service Review:

= Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update is NOT
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, NO CHANGE
to the agency’s SOI is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE NOT been made.

] Staff has reviewed the agency’s Sphere of Influence and recommends that a SOl Update IS
NECESSARY in accordance with Government Code Section 56425(g). Therefore, A CHANGE to
the agency’s SOl is recommended and SOI determinations HAVE been made and are included in
this MSR/SOI study.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
7-23
234



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

AGENCY PROFILE

The Knights Landing Protection District (FPD) was formed in 1942 and is authorized to provide fire
protection and emergency response services. It was formed as a dependent district to Yolo County, which
delegated its decision making to a local Fire Commission with five members, each appointed by the Board
of Supervisors to serve four-year terms.

The District is 23,692 acres in size and serves the unincorporated town of Knights Landing and the
surrounding rural area. The entire District contains 423 residential and 22 commercial addresses and its
residential population is estimated to be 1,058 residents!. However, according to the 2020 Decennial
Census the town of Knights Landing alone has a population of 1,117. Apparently, the town exceeds the
countywide average of 2.5 persons per household.

The Knights Landing FPD has Station 9 located at 42115 Sixth Street in Knights Landing. The District has
7 apparatus and has a volunteer chief, and assistant chief that receives a small annual stipend, a part-time
secretary, 0 reserves and 13 volunteers).

The Knights Landing FPD boundary and sphere of influence (SOI) is shown below.

Knights Landing Fire Protection District Boundary and Sphere of Influence

o
Dunnigan Rre Protaction District
b
-
Knights Landing
Fire Protection District
o .
o
k-4
Zamor
f Protectio t
L

® ' Yolo Fre Protection District

Tue Ivat [ -y El

Sphere ol Fire Protection D cf

Lo

Pa

‘!' >
T B L e Springlake LAFCD v
Fire Protection District h-'

Adopted by Yolo LAFCo June 23, 2016

1 Population estimate is based on the number of residential addresses assigned in 2021 in the FPD territory with a Yolo
County average of 2.5 persons per household.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
8-1
235



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW

POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT MSR DETERMINATIONS

The MSR determinations checked below are potentially significant, as indicated by “yes” or “maybe”
answers to the key policy questions in the checklist and corresponding discussion on the following pages.
If most or all of the determinations are not significant, as indicated by “no” answers, the Commission may
find that a MSR update is not warranted.

Growth and Population XI Shared Services

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities

X  Accountability
Capacity, Adequacy & Infrastructure to Provide X
X

Broadband Access

Status of Previous MSR
Recommendations

Services

X X X KX

Financial Ability

LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW:

[ ] On the basis of this initial evaluation, the required determinations are not significant and staff
recommends that an MSR is NOT NECESSARY. The subject agency will be reviewed again in five
years per Government Code Section 56425(qg).

XI The subject agency has potentially significant determinations and staff recommends that a
comprehensive MSR IS NECESSARY and has been conducted via this checkilist.

1. GROWTH AND POPULATION
Growth and population projections for the affected area. YES MAYBE NO

a) Will growth and/or population projections over the next 5-10 years O] X ]
impact the subject agency’s service needs and demands?

b) Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s ] ] X
services?

Discussion:

a) Will growth and/or population projections over the next 5-70 years impact the subject agency’s service needs
and demands?

Maybe. The population has not changed significantly, but the call volume has gone up 40% over the
last three years. The population for Knights Landing FPD is currently estimated to be 1,058 and some
additional infill development is anticipated, but not significant development that would compromise
service levels. The FPD does have a development impact fee to cover the costs of providing additional
service to new development, but it has not generated significant revenue until FY 2020/21 due to FEMA
flood zone reclassification.

The data that is more applicable to fire service demand is call data, which has increased more than
population countywide. Over the last three fiscal years, total calls that resulted in dispatched

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
8-2
236



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

apparatus/responders were 232 in FY 18/19, 303 in FY 19/20 and 325 in FY 20/21, a 40% increase in
only three years.

b) Do changes in service demand suggest a change in the agency’s services?

No. Knights Landing FPD has been impacted by providing significant aid responding to calls across the
county border to Robbins FPD in Sutter County. However, these issues would not be helped by a
change in agency boundaries. There has been some discussion about Robbins FPD wanting to
consolidate with Knights Landing FPD, however, LAFCo recommends this not be considered until
Robbins FPD is more stable and has services to offer/share.

Growth and Population MSR Determination

The population for Knights Landing FPD is currently estimated to be 1,058 and some additional infill
development is anticipated, but not significant development that would compromise service levels.
However, over the last three fiscal years, total calls that resulted in dispatched apparatus/responders were
232in FY 18/19, 303 in FY 19/20 and 325 in FY 20/21, a 40% increase in only three years. Knights Landing
FPD has been impacted by providing significant aid responding to calls across the county border to Robbins
FPD in Sutter County. However, these issues would not be helped by a change in agency boundaries.
There has been some discussion about Robbins FPD wanting to consolidate with Knights Landing FPD,
however, LAFCo recommends this not be considered, if at all, until Robbins FPD is more stable and has
services to offer/share.

2. DISADVANTAGED UNINCORPORATED COMMUNITIES

The location and characteristics of any disadvantaged unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the
sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers,
municipal and industrial water, or structural fire protection, are
there any “inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted
Commission policy) within or adjacent to the subject agency’s O] X O]
sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or
less of the statewide median household income) that do not
already have access to public water, sewer and structural fire
protection?

b) If “yes” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such
that it can extend service to the disadvantaged unincorporated ] ] X
community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it
is either not needed or not applicable.

Discussion:

a) If the subject agency provides services related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, or structural fire
protection, are there any “inhabited unincorporated communities” (per adopted Commission policy) within or
adjacent to the subject agency’s sphere of influence that are considered “disadvantaged” (80% or less of the
statewide median household income) that do not already have access to public water, sewer and structural
fire protection?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
8-3
237



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Maybe. Although all territory countywide receives structural fire protection services, Knights Landing
FPD may not receive equal access to services due to its disadvantaged status?. Knights Landing FPD
is struggling to fund apparatus replacement and has lower revenue as compared to other FPDs with a
similar call volume which is likely due in part to its disadvantaged status and corresponding lack of
funding. For more information regarding service issues, please see item 3e.

b) If “yes” to a), it is feasible for the agency to be reorganized such that it can extend service to the
disadvantaged unincorporated community? If “no” to a), this question is marked “no” because it is either not
needed or not applicable.

No. All territory countywide receives structural fire protection services, therefore, the Knights Landing
FPD boundaries do not need to be changed.

Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities MSR Determination

Knights Landing FPD boundaries do not need to be changed because all territory countywide receives
structural fire protection services, although Knights Landing FPD may not receive equal access to and
revenue for needed services due to its disadvantaged status. Knights Landing FPD is struggling to fund
apparatus replacement and has lower revenue as compared to other FPDs with a similar call volume, which
is likely due in part to its disadvantaged status and corresponding lack of funding. Support of a Proposition
218 increase would likely be affected by the disadvantaged income status of roughly half of its territory.

2 CALAFCO Disadvantaged Unincorporated Communities for State, RSG Inc. GIS Layer, dated December 10, 2021

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
8-4
238



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

3. CAPACITY AND ADEQUACY OF PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SERVICES

Present and planned capacity of public facilities, adequacy of public services, and infrastructure needs or
deficiencies including needs or deficiencies related to sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire
protection in any disadvantaged, unincorporated communities within or contiguous to the sphere of influence.

YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and
capacity of agency facilities to meet existing service needs for X ] ]
which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve
(including deficiencies created by new state regulations)?

b) Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan ] X O]
in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e.,
number of staff and/or contracts).

c) Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability

to meet the service demand of reasonably foreseeable future O X O
growth?
d) Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its ] ] X

assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

e) Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged
unincorporated communities related to sewers, municipal and X ] ]
industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous
to the agency’s sphere of influence?

Discussion:

a) Are there any deficiencies in the infrastructure, equipment, and capacity of agency facilities to meet
existing service needs for which the agency does not have a plan in place to resolve (including deficiencies
created by new state regulations)?

Yes.
Fire Stations

The Knights Landing FPD Station No. 9 is located at 42115 Sixth Street in Knights Landing which
houses 5 apparatus, a utility vehicle and a boat. The station appears to be in mostly adequate condition,
but it needs new bay doors and has never had the plumbing completed for a functional shower for
personnel to clean off residue after an incident or to support 24-hour station coverage. Knights Landing
FPD attempted to purchase a surplus property going up for auction in town to provide sleeping quarters,
office, and storage space, but unfortunately the opportunity fell through.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

8-5
239



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Apparatus:

Knights Landing FPD has 5 apparatus, 1 command/utility vehicle, and 1 boat for response on the
Sacramento River as follows:

Station 9 (Volunteer) Apparatus

Use Apparatus Type Age (yrs) | Reserve? (Y/N)

Structure Fires Engine 9 1 24 No

Engine 209 2 12 No
Wildlands Fires Brush 9 5 1 No
Water Tenders Water Tender 9 Water Tender 47 No
Command/Utility Utility Command Utility 16 No
Other Apparatus Squad 9 Light Rescue 26 Yes

Boat 9 Boat 41 No

All Knights Landing FPD apparatus receive regular maintenance service, regularly scheduled rig
checks, and annual pump testing. Hoses are tested annually, and ladders are tested every other year.
Of the 7 apparatus/vehicles, 3 are over the recommended 25-year lifespan (although 1 of those is
surplus/reserve) and 1 engine is 24 years old.

The FPD currently supplies all responding members with appropriate, in-date personal protective
equipment (PPE). PPE is regularly inspected and follows a PPE replacement schedule. All self-
contained breathing apparatus (SCBA) receive annual flow testing and bottles every 5 years
conforming to NFPA standards. Knights Landing FPD operates adequate communications equipment
including radios that it keeps updated every year. All apparatus has a mobile radio and portable radios
for every seat.

ISO Rating

Knights Landing FPD’s ISO rating is 05/5Y and was last reviewed in 2017. The Insurance Services
Office, Inc. (ISO) evaluates fire departments for the purpose of establishing insurance premiums, called
“ISO ratings”. An ISO fire rating is a score from 1 to 10 that indicates how well-protected a community
is by the fire department and will affect insurance rates. The first number refers to the classification of
properties within 5 road miles of a fire station and within 1,000 feet of water supply. The second number
applies to properties within 5 road miles of a fire station but beyond 1,000 feet of water supply. In the

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
8-6
240



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

ISO rating scale, a lower number is better: 1 is the best possible rating, while a 10 means the fire
department did not meet ISO's minimum requirements. ISO generally assigns Class 10 to properties
beyond 5 road miles of a fire station.

Are there any deficiencies in the adequacy of services to meet existing service needs for which the agency
does not have a plan in place to resolve? Also note how services are provided (i.e., number of staff and/or
contracts).

Maybe.
Staff, Coverage and Training

The District has a chief that receives a small stipend, and assistant chief (unpaid) O reserves and 13
volunteers (14 firefighters total). The station is not staffed on a regular basis. Knights Landing FPD has
written guidelines and procedures and reports having a training program that ensures personnel are
competent and safe to execute operations. The FPD trains all incident response personnel in ICS
(incident command system) and participates in the Yolo County Firefighters Association Training
Program. Responding personnel are fit tested on an annual basis.

Incident Reporting and Adequacy of Services

Knights Landing FPD utilizes Emergency Reporting web-based program for reporting and
documentation. However, the Knights Landing FPD reports it needs to get the reports uploaded to the
National Fire Incident Reporting System (NFIRS). Regarding the adequacy of response, standards for
the number of personnel and apparatus were determined by the Fire Chiefs MSR Subcommittee for
fire and rescue/EMS calls®.

Below is Knights Landing FPD’s NFIRS response data for the last five fiscal years:

Knights Landing FPD Knights Landing FPD
300 (EMS) Series Incidents 100 (Fire) Series Incidents

]
Il

Data was not available for the first FY, but data for the last four FYs indicate that Knights Landing FPD
is responding with adequate personnel and apparatus to rescue/EMS calls (which outnumber fire calls
by 2:1 in FY 2020/21) and is struggling to respond with sufficient personnel to fire calls.

Response Time and Missed Calls

The MSR Subcommittee developed response time goals for rescue/emergency medical service (EMS)
calls (6 minutes) and fire calls (9 minutes) for the first responding unit to arrive on scene. LAFCo
recognizes it may be more difficult for volunteer and/or more rural FPDs to meet this goal, however as

3 By consensus of the Yolo Fire Chief's MSR Subcommittee, it was determined the minimum adequate response for a
fire call is 4 personnel and 2 apparatus, and for a rescue/EMS call is 3 personnel and 1 apparatus.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

8-7
241



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

the MSR Subcommittee indicated, it represents a goal to focus on. FPD response time averages* for
the 2019 — 2021 calendar years are shown below.

Knights Landing FPD
300 (EMS) Response Time Average

Knights Landing FPD
100 (Fire) Response Time Average

2010 2020

Knights Landing FPD has had 20 missed call in the last three fiscal years as reported by YECA (7
calls/5.7% of calls in FY 18/19, 8 calls/5.0% of calls in FY 19/20, and 5 calls/3% of calls in FY 20/21).

4 Based on YECA data. For a list of the data outliers omitted, please reference the methodology discussion on page 1-
10 of this MSR/SOI.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

8-8
242



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

c)

d)

e)

FPD Level of Service Evaluation

NFPA requires FPDs to evaluate its level of service, deployment, and response time objectives on an
annual basis. From talking to the Chief, it does not appear this review is occurring. Therefore,
establishing this review and evaluation process at least on an annual basis is a recommendation.

Are there any issues regarding the agency’s capacity and ability to meet the service demand of reasonably
foreseeable future growth?

Maybe. Please see the response to la.
Is the agency needing to consider climate adaptation in its assessment of infrastructure/service needs?

No. The FPDs collectively report that climate change is not a factor in the valley and is only an issue
for those FPDs that border the Coastal Range. Some FPDs benefit financially from staff and apparatus
reimbursement revenue for supporting CalFire during wildfire events, but Knights Landing FPD has not
had sufficient coverage to enable it to take advantage of these revenue opportunities.

Are there any service needs or deficiencies for disadvantaged unincorporated communities related to
sewers, municipal and industrial water, and structural fire protection within or contiguous to the agency’s
sphere of influence?

Yes. The northern half of the Knights Landing FPD (including the community) is disadvantaged (see
the response to 2a). Knights Landing FPD is struggling to fund apparatus replacement and has lower
revenue as compared to other FPDs with a similar call volume, which is likely due in part to its
disadvantaged status and corresponding lack of funding. Knights Landing FPD’s core revenues are
relatively low, yet in FY 20/21 it had the 5" highest number of dispatches of all the FPDs. Knights
Landing FPD needs updated apparatus and may need increased personnel, which will likely require
increased revenue. Support of a Proposition 218 increase would likely be affected by the disadvantaged
income status of most of its population.

[ o Mars Land
Fire Protection
Core Revenue per Fire Protection District FY 20/21 L
% o lhem Ciore Revenue - “: : % " N Clurkatzwy Fig
nem o tsem Datrct
o e
175 5 Mo
L " 1 ' i 'y e J

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Determination

The Knights Landing FPD Station No. 9 is located at 42115 Sixth Street in Knights Landing which houses
5 apparatus, a utility vehicle, and a boat. The station appears to be in mostly adequate condition, but it
needs new bay doors and has never had the plumbing completed for a functional shower for personnel to

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

8-9
243



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

clean off residue after an incident or to support 24-hour station coverage. Of the 7 apparatus/vehicles, 3
are over the recommended 25-year lifespan (although 1 of those is surplus/reserve) and 1 engine is 24
years old. The FPD currently supplies all responding members with appropriate, in-date personal protective
equipment (PPE). PPE is regularly inspected and follows a PPE replacement schedule. Knights Landing
FPD’s ISO rating is 05/5Y and was last reviewed in 2017.

Knights Landing FPD does not staff its station with regular schedule, operates its station on volunteer basis
and personnel respond to calls as needed. It pays its chief a small stipend, pays for a part-time secretary,
but otherwise is staffed with all volunteers. Knights Landing FPD has written guidelines and procedures
and reports having a training program that ensures personnel are competent and safe to execute
operations. Knights Landing FPD utilizes Emergency Reporting web-based program for reporting and
documentation but needs to update it monthly to NFIRS. Data for the last four FYs indicate that Knights
Landing FPD is responding with adequate personnel and apparatus to rescue/EMS calls (which outnumber
fire calls by 2:1 in FY 2020/21) and is struggling to respond with sufficient personnel to fire calls. The
northern half of the Knights Landing FPD (including the community) is disadvantaged. Knights Landing FPD
is struggling to fund apparatus replacement and has lower revenue as compared to other FPDs with a
similar call volume, which is likely due in part to its disadvantaged status and corresponding lack of funding.

Capacity and Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services MSR Recommendation(s)

o Develop a plan to replace the station bay doors and provide a shower for firefighters to clean off
potentially hazardous residue after incidents and to allow for 24-hour station coverage.

e Knights Landing FPD should consider replacing apparatus that exceeds the recommended 25-year
lifespan which will likely require increased revenue. It may be difficult for the voters to support a
Proposition 218 assessment to increase Knights Landing FPD revenue due to the disadvantaged
income status of most of its population.

¢ Knights Landing FPD should provide written evaluations of its level of service, deployment, and
response time objectives on an annual basis at a Fire Commission meeting. Knights Landing FPD
needs to keep an eye on ensuring adequate personnel responding to fire calls. If call volume
continues to increase, reserves providing regular station coverage may be needed.

e Knights Landing FPD needs to complete its NFIRS reporting on an ongoing monthly basis and
obtain training if needed.

4. FINANCIAL ABILITY
Financial ability of agencies to provide services.
YES MAYBE NO

a) Is the subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does
the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues? Does revenue O O X
growth keep pace with increased costs?

b) Can the subject agency improve its use of generally accepted
accounting principles including: summaries of all fund balances,
summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of
reserves, and any un-funded obligations (i.e. pension/retiree O O X
benefits)? Does the agency need accounting and/or financial
policies that guide the agency in how financial transactions are
recorded and presented?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
8-10
244



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

c)

Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular
basis and are discrepancies identified, investigated and corrective
action taken in a timely manner? The review may include
reconciliations of various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual,
analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and expense
balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s
financial system and the County Treasury, does the agency
review monthly the transactions in the County system to
transactions the agency submitted to the County for processing?

d)

Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports
(quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that provide a clear and
complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully
disclosing both positive and negative financial information to the
public and financial institutions?

e)

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being
reliable? For example, is a large percentage of revenue coming
from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

Is the organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level
of service, necessary infrastructure maintenance, replacement
and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the
schedules of similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule
include a specific amount identified for capital asset replacement
(tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

9)

Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against
unexpected events or upcoming significant costs (excluding
capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Has the agency identified and
quantified what the possible significant risks and costs of
infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency have a
reserve policy?

h)

Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s
debt at an unmanageable level? Does the agency need a clear
debt management policy, if applicable?

0 0 X
0 0 X
0 0 X
X 0 0
X 0 0
0 0 X

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI
LAFCo No. 21-05

8-11

Public Review Draft June 15, 2022

245



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Financial Background

KNIGHTS LANDING PROTECTION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenue
Property taxes, in-lieu taxes, HOPTR $ 81572 $ 85571 $ 95364 $ 99,097 $ 104,767
Development impact fees 524 416 2,039 100 22,121
Interest 2,516 5,182 12,268 14,084 (1,095)
Intergovernmental grants 101,757 - - - -
Special assessment 15,286 15,932 15,592 15,702 15,214
CA Fire - - - 2,593 -
Other revenue - 727 - - 3,184
Total Revenue 201,655 107,828 125,263 131,576 144,191
Expenditures
Salaries and benefits 13,244 18,309 20,203 21,403 19,819
Services and supplies 18,216 41,446 51,789 56,102 48,856
Debt service (principal and interest) 13,700 13,700 13,700 6,850 -
Contributions to volunteers 4,500 4,704 3,780 3,330 3,510
Other expenditures 689 - 10 - -
Capital Assets:
Buildings and improvements 6,260 - - - -
Equipment 113,063 - - - 195,229
Total Expenditures 169,672 78,159 89,482 87,685 267,414
Netincome (loss) 31,983 29,669 35,781 43,891 (123,223)
Beginning Fund Balance 363,092 395,075 424,744 460,525 504,416
Ending Fund Balances $ 395,075 $ 424,744 $ 460,525 $ 504,416 $ 381,193
Fund Balances
Restricted - Development impact fees $ 108,972 $ 110,901 $ 115482 $ 101,084 $ 117,279
Assigned - Capital asset replacement 81,965 123,102 125,886 128,539 70,066
Assigned - General reserve 30,097 30,097 30,097 30,097 30,097
Unassigned 174,041 160,644 189,060 244,696 163,751
Total Fund Balances $ 395,075 $ 424,744  $ 460,525 $ 504,416 $ 381,193
Y-T-Y Change in total Fund Balances
Amount Increase (Decrease) $ 31,983 $ 29,669 $ 35781 $ 43,891 $ (123,223)
Percentage Increase (Decrease) 8.81% 7.51% 8.42% 9.53% -24.43%
Property Tax Analysis
a. Assessed Value (AV) $ 117,812,816 $ 121,856,199 $ 125,276,097 $ 130,042,309 $ 137,239,114
b. Y-T-Y Percentage change in AV 1.91% 3.43% 2.81% 3.80% 5.53%
c. Current secured, unsecured and HOPTF $ 71956 $ 74291 % 85,203 $ 88576 $ 93,675
d. District share of general 1% levy (c/a) 6.1077% 6.0966% 6.8012% 6.8113% 6.8257%

a) Isthe subject agency in an unstable financial position, i.e. does the 5-year trend analysis indicate any issues?
Does revenue growth keep pace with increased costs?

No. The District’s current core revenues are in excess of expenditures by over $30,000 a year. The
District’s total core revenues (property taxes, and special assessments) have increased on average
6.5% a year. Salaries and benefits have increased 28% from FY 2017 to FY 2018 but have since
remained flat. Services and supplies have increased 56% from FY 2017 to FY 2018, but also have
since remained flat. Total fund balance has only increased $18,101 from an opening fund balance of
$363,092 as of July 1, 2016 to $381,193 fund balance as of June 30, 2021. The small increase in fund
balance is due to a purchase of an engine in the amount of $195,259 in FY 2021. Total fund balance

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
8-12
246



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

b)

c)

d)

e)

as of June 30, 2021 is $381,193 of which $263,914 can be used for any purpose and the balance of
$117,279 is from unexpended development impact fees which can only be used to acquire new
equipment or facilities related to servicing areas resulting from new development.

Revenue

KLFPD'’s revenue consists of property taxes, special assessments development impact fees, interest,
and other miscellaneous revenue. Like other rural fire districts, KLFD relies primarily on a share of the
general 1% property tax levy for the majority of its revenue. In fiscal year 2021, property taxes of
$104,767 comprised 73% of total revenues. The District’s share of property taxes within its boundaries
is approximately 6.8%, while the average for all rural FPDs in the county is 6.2%. The District has also
levied a special assessment since 1991. In 2021 special assessment revenue was $15,214 which
accounted for $11% of total revenue. However, the special assessment has not increased much since
1991 when $12,337 was levied. Since 1992 the District has collected development impact fees (DIF)
that is required for all new development. The DIF can only be used by the District to acquire equipment
and facilities to service new development. Over the past 5 years the district has collected $22,121 of
DIF. In addition, over the past 5 years the Knights Landing FPD has received a federal grant with help
from the City of West Sacramento in the amount of $101,757 and other revenue totaling $6,504.

Expenditures
District expenditures, excluding capital expenditures, increased significantly from 2017 to 2018 but

since have remained flat through 2021.

Capital expenditures
2017: $119,323, (15) SCBA units
2021: $195,229, Brush truck

The District’s current core revenues are not enough to adequately fund apparatus replacement as
recommended nor to pay for regular staffing at the firehouse. The total fund balance as of June 30,
2021 is almost $1,400,000 below the minimum recommended amount, see 4g).

Does the subject agency need to use generally accepted accounting principles including: summaries of all
fund balances, summaries of revenues and expenditures, general status of reserves, and any un-funded
obligations (i.e., pension/retiree benefits)? Does the agency have accounting and/or financial policies that
guide the agency in how financial transactions are recorded and presented?

No. No significant account miscoding or omissions were noted. The district maintains all funds in the County
Treasury and uses the County’s financial system to maintain its accounting records. Since the district is a
dependent district, it is subject to the same accounting and financial policies of the County. Accounting and
budget data including all cash receipts and disbursements are reviewed by County finance staff before they
are posted.

Does the agency staff need to review financial data on a regular basis and are discrepancies identified,
investigated and corrective action taken in a timely manner? The review may include reconciliations of
various accounts, comparing budgets-to-actual, analyzing budget variances, comparing revenue and
expense balances to the prior year, etc. If the agency uses Yolo County’s financial system and the County
Treasury, does the agency review monthly the transactions in the County system to transactions the agency
submitted to the County for processing?

No. District staff reviews the County ledgers thoroughly on a monthly basis.

Does the agency board need to receive regular financial reports (quarterly or mid-year at a minimum) that
provide a clear and complete picture of the agency’s assets and liabilities, fully disclosing both positive and
negative financial information to the public and financial institutions?

No. The District commission receives a general ledger, trial balance and budget-to-actual reports at
each meeting. In addition, the commission is made aware of any deposits made during the past month.

Is there an issue with the organization’s revenue sources being reliable? For example, is a large percentage
of revenue coming from grants or one-time/short-term sources?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

8-13
247



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

f)

9)

h)

No. Revenues are reliable, with the majority coming from property taxes, special assessments and
interest which all are collected and distributed by the County.

Is the organization’s revenue insufficient to fund an adequate level of service, necessary infrastructure
maintenance, replacement and/or any needed expansion? Is the fee inconsistent with the schedules of
similar local agencies? Does the rate/fee schedule include a specific amount identified for capital asset
replacement (tied to a capital improvement plan with implementation policies)?

Yes. The District has current apparatus, facility and staffing needs as noted above in the “Capacity and
Adequacy of Public Facilities and Services” section 3a) and 3b). The District’s current core revenues
are not enough to adequately fund apparatus replacement as recommended nor to pay for regular
staffing at the firehouse. The total fund balance of $381,193 as of June 30, 2021 is almost $1,400,000
below the recommended amount, see 4q).

Is the organization needing additional reserves to protect against unexpected events or upcoming significant
costs (excluding capital asset replacement, see 4f)? Does the agency need to identify and quantify what the
possible significant risks and costs of infrastructure or equipment failure? Does the agency need a reserve
policy?

Yes. The District’s total fund balances as of June 30, 2021 of $381,193 is almost $1,400,000 less than
the minimum recommended fund. The recommended fund balance is the total of 3 components as
follows:

o Capital asset replacement. Using estimated apparatus replacement costs, this estimate
divides this cost by the recommended life of each apparatus and assumes a straight-line
projection and contribution to a capital asset replacement sinking fund.

e General reserve. This is the total of 50% of current secured taxes and 50% of special
assessments to maintain liquidity from July through December each year when no
tax/assessment revenue is received.

e Unassigned fund balance. GFOA recommendation of 15% of operating expenditures to
mitigate revenue shortages and/or unanticipated expenditures.

The June 30,2021 actual and estimated recommended fund balances amounts are as follows:

6/30/2021 6/30/2021
Actual Recommended Excess/
Balance Balance (Shortage)

Apparatus Replacement
Dewelopment impact fees 117,279
Other funds 70,066
187,345 1,716,000 (1,528,655)

General reserve 30,097 53,000 (22,903)
Unassigned 163,751 11,000 152,751
Total Recommended Fund Balance $ 381,193 $ 1,780,000 $ (1,398,807)

Does the agency have any debt, and if so, is the organization’s debt at an unmanageable level? Does the
agency need a clear capital financing and debt management policy, if applicable?

No. In FY 2010 the District purchased an engine which was financed with a capital lease. The lease
required payments totaling $13,700 a year and was paid off in FY 2020. The District also does not have
any pension or retiree health insurance (OPEB) liabilities.

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05

8-14
248



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Financial Ability MSR Determination

Knights Landing FPD is operating in a fiscally prudent and responsible manner but is not able to adequately
fund station improvements and apparatus replacement within the recommended 25-year lifespan. The
District’s current core revenues exceed regular operating expenses, on average, by about $30,000 per
year. Core revenues are only increasing by 6% a year and total fund balance has only increased by 1% a
year, so the Knights Landing FPD does not have sufficient revenue to set aside much fund balance to build
its capital asset reserve. The total fund balance is less than what appears to be needed, mostly due to
underfunding of the capital asset replacement reserve. The District’s total fund balances as of June 30,
2021 of $381,193 is almost $1,400,000 less than the minimum recommended fund. The District does not
have formal reserve policies. Additional funding is required to maintain adequate reserve balances and to
purchase apparatus within the recommend lifespan. Knights Landing FPD maintains its funds in the County
Treasury and uses the County’s financial system to maintain its accounting records. Knights Landing FPD
fire commission receives financial reports and additional financial information at each meeting. As a
dependent district, Knights Landing FPD is included in the County’s Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report (ACFR).

Financial Ability MSR Recommendation(s)

e Create a CIP to determine how much funding needs to be set aside each year and determine
whether current revenues are adequate to fund the program. Develop reserve policies to fund
increased services, the CIP, and maintain and adequate fund balances.

e Consider increasing Knights Landing FPD’s special assessment to provide funding for staffing,
facilities and apparatus/equipment needs.

e Districts that collect an AB 1600 Development Impact Fees should, every five years, make the
findings required by Government Code Section 66001(d) to help ensure that fees collected from
new development are spent solely on appropriate facilities.

5. SHARED SERVICES AND FACILITIES
Status of, and opportunities for, shared facilities.
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services
or facilities with neighboring, overlapping or other organizations BJ O O
that are not currently being utilized?

Discussion:

a) Are there any opportunities for the organization to share services or facilities with neighboring, overlapping
or other organizations that are not currently being utilized?

Yes. LAFCo recommends Knights Landing FPD along with Dunnigan, Yolo and Zamora FPDs scale
up its services and operate more as a regional unit via a JOA. The FPDs recently signed an agreement
in May 2022 and need to work towards standardizing written operating policies and guidelines. It also
has mutual/auto aid agreements with surrounding fire departments.

The goal for coordinated/joint operations is to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of
resources, consistent training/testing/reporting, standardization, and improved coordination during
incident response. Additional things that should be included as a required element of the JOA is:

e Apparatus/equipment standardization,
e Shared reserve apparatus, and
e Cooperative purchasing

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
8-15
249



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

Shared Services MSR Determination

LAFCo recommends Knights Landing FPD along with Dunnigan, Yolo and Zamora FPDs scale up its
services and operate more as a regional unit via a JOA. The FPDs recently signed an agreement in May
2022 and need to work towards standardizing written operating policies and guidelines. It also has
mutual/auto aid agreements with surrounding fire departments. The goal for coordinated/joint operations is
to achieve a similar service standard, efficient use of resources, consistent training/testing/reporting,
standardization, and improved coordination during incident response.

Shared Services MSR Determination Recommendation

e Additional items that should be included as a required element of the JOA are apparatus/equipment
standardization, shared reserve apparatus, and cooperative purchasing. These efficiencies are
currently either optional or not included in the JOA.

6. ACCOUNTABILITY, STRUCTURE AND EFFICIENCIES
Accountability for community service needs, including governmental structure and operational efficiencies.
YES MAYBE NO

a) Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s
governmental structure or operations that will increase accountability X O] ]
and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public,
service inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?

b) Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining
board members? Is there a lack of board member training regarding 0 O X
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

c) Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a
lack of staff member training regarding the organization’s program O O X
requirements and financial management?

d) Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to
personnel/payroll, general and administrative, board member and
meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among X O O
staff and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct (see
suggested policies list)?

e) Are any agency officials and designated staff not current in making ] ] X
their Statement of Economic Interests (Form 700) disclosures?

f) Does the agency need liability and workers compensation insurance ] ] X
coverage?

g) Does the agency need to secure independent audits of financial
reports that meet California State Controller requirements? Are the ] ] X
same auditors used for more than six years? Are audit results not
reviewed in an open meeting?

h) If the agency is not audited annually, does the agency need to have
a qualified external person review agency finances each year (at a
minimum), comparing budgets to actuals, comparing actuals to prior O ¢ [
years, analyzing significant differences or changes, and determining
if the reports appear reasonable?

Fire Protection Agencies MSR/SOI Public Review Draft June 15, 2022
LAFCo No. 21-05
8-16
250



YoLO LAFCO MUNICIPAL SERVICE REVIEW/SPHERE OF INFLUENCE STUDY

i) Does the organization need to improve its public transparency via a
website  (see  https://www.yololafco.org/yolo-local-government- BJ O
website-transparency-scorecards)?
Discussion:
a) Are there any recommended changes to the organization’s governmental structure or operations that will

b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

increase accountability and efficiency (i.e. overlapping boundaries that confuse the public, service
inefficiencies, and/or higher costs/rates)?

Yes. Knights Landing FPD entered into a JOA with Dunnigan, Yolo and Zamora FPDs in May 2022
designed to improve operations and efficiencies. The recommendation below is to ensure Knights
Landing FPD enters into the JOA and maintains standing in good faith to achieve JOA goals.

Are there any issues with filling board vacancies and maintaining board members? Is there a lack of board
member training regarding the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

No. Although all the five fire commission seats are currently filled, there has been one vacant seat for
most of the last five years. But commissioners have been relatively stable. The commission currently
appears to be solid and capable.

Name / Title Start End

Raymond Bivert / 07/24/2018 09/01/2022
Daniel Gamez Jr. / 03/09/2021 05/01/2023
Raul Cervantes / 08/31/2021 08/01/2024
Willie Morales / 06/08/2021 05/01/2025
Carlos Perez / 01/25/2022 11/01/2025

Are there any issues with staff capacity and/or turnover? Is there a lack of staff member training regarding
the organization’s program requirements and financial management?

No. The Knights Landing FPD chief has been with the department for 15 years and indicates it has a
solid group of volunteer personnel. During COVID, it apparently lost a few volunteers but otherwise has
been holding steady at around 12 volunteers. If call volume continues to increase, paid staff and/or
reserves providing regular station coverage may be needed.

Does the agency need adequate policies (as applicable) relating to personnel/payroll, general and
administrative, board member and meetings, and segregating financial and accounting duties among staff
and/or board to minimize risk of error or misconduct?

Yes. Knights Landing FPD has bylaws, injury and il